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INVESTIGATION INTO MASONRY.

At the Jan'ry Session ol the R. I. Assembly, 1831,

a Memorial signed by sixty seven Delegates to an

Antimasonic Convention, praying for an investiga

tion into the Masonic Corporations, created by the

Legislature, was presented, and referred to a Com

mittee. No further proceeding was had upon the

subject untjl October Session, 1831, at which time

the demand of public opinion for some disposition

of the Memorial could no longer be safely postpon

ed. Accordingly, a resolution prepared hy Mr. B.

Hazard, was introduced by Mr. James F. Simmons,

to appoint a Committee to investigate the subject

of Masonry. These gentlemen were both appointed

on that Committee, after which a discussion arose

upon a motion to refer the Memorial, with a no

tice, to Masonic Corporations. Messrs. Hazard and

Simmons, in that debate, were extremely severe

upon Antimasons, the former declaring that there

was not one among them that he would trust with

a groat out of his sight, and the latter asserting that

the principles of Antimasonry were sapping the

foundations of our political institutions. Both of

these eentleman were known to have a command

ing influence with the party then in power in the

State, and it was also known that Antimasonry

would probably oppose the re-election of the indi

viduals then in office. These circumstances, con

nected with the severe and apparently unprovok

ed censures cast upon Antimasons, by these gentle'

men in debate, induced an apprehension that the de

sign of appointing this Committee might be rather

to suppress Antimasonry, if possible, and vindicate

Masonry, than to give the subject a full and fair

investigation without any reference to political

parties. The course pursued will show whether

there were any reasonable grounds for this appre

hension. It was also known that another of the

Committee, Mr. Haile, had on a public occasion

compared the introduction of Antimasonry into po

lities, to a pestilence. Under such circumstances,

it appeared to some that a majority of the Commit

tee had already given evidence that they had pre

judged the question upon which they were about

to act.

Shortly after the adjournment of the Legislature,

the following notice issued by Mr. Hazard, as

Chairman, without being shown to at least two

others of the Committee, was published in the

newspapers:

"NOTICE.—The Committee named in the sub

joined Resolution, will meet on Tuesday the sixth

day of December next, at ten o'clock, A. M., at the

State House in Providence, for the purpose of at

tending to the duties in said resolution assigned (o

them. Personal notice will be given to those, whom

the Committee тшy think it necessary to call before

them. And they will moreover readily attend to

all information, testimony, facts, circumstances anil

suggestions in writing, which any individuals may

have to communicate, and which may in any de-

gree aid them in making the thorough investiga

tion, which the General Assembly will expect from

them. For the Commiltee,

B. HAZARD, Chairman.

Nov. 21,1831.

STATE OF RHODE ISLAND АМП PROVIDENCE

PLANTATIONS.

In General Assembly, October Session, .1. D. 1831 .

Whereas the crimes and ononnitim wil'nin a few

yenrs, committed in a nniihboring S'ate bv certain

Free Masons avowedly in the cau-'e of Masonry,

have excited unversal indignation anil Abhorrence ;

and have awakened jealousies and suspicions very

unfavorable In all Mxannic tu*tit"linn?, and undor

(lie weight of which the whole Masonic, fratermiv.

the good and virtuous as well as the vicious, must

unavoidably suffer : Therefore, in the hope of al

laying the great and increasing excitement thus

occasioned, and that the innocent may be distin

guished from the guilty, if in this State there aie

any, who can justly be charged with advocating the

criminal doctrines imputed to Free Masonry :

Resolved, That Messrs. Hazard, W. Sprague, Jr.

Simmons, Halle, and E. R. Potter, with such others

as the Honorable Senate may think proper to add,

be and they are hereby appointed a Committee, ful

ly to investigate and inquire into the causes,

grounds and extent of the charges and accusations

brought against Free Masonry and Masons in this

State.—And that said Committee, so far as may be

necessary to enable them to perform this duty, he

empowered to administer oaths, to examine wit

nesses, and to call for books and papers."

At the time of the publication of this notice, a.

note was forwarded to Mr Sprague, one of the Com

mittee, by Mr. Hazard, in which that gentleman re

marked, "Whatever may be said in the newspapers,

I am very conrident there will be no difference of

opinion among the members of the Committee, upon

the subject of Masonry or the course to be pursued

in relation to it,"

This assurance led to a hope that-the investigation

would be conducted in a manner of which no per

son desirous for a full disclosure of the truth, could

reasonably complain.

Members of the Antimasonic State Committee

had made repeated attempts to ascertain from the

investigating Committee what course they would

pursue, and upon what points they would be wil

ling to hear testimony ; but they were not recog

nised as being entitled to be heard in preferring

charges, or proving those alleged in the Memorial,

nor could they learn any specifications to define

the vague terms of "charges and accuations against

Masonry and Masons," into which the Committee

were directed lo inquire. Up, to the day appointed

for the examination, it was* generally understood

that Masons would not state upon oath, what their

Masonic oaths were ; and it is also a fact thai the

Committee, though requested, declined summoning

at least one Ma^on, who though holding a high of

ficial station, had declared that he would not reveal

his Masonic oiths under a civil oath. To prevent

a total failure of the investigation by a refusal of

M:isons to testify, and the neglect of the Committee

to summon seceding Masons, the Antimasonic Com

mittee took measures to procure such testimony as

ihe short time allowed by the notice would permit.

They accordingly prevailed upon 'the Rev. Moses

Thacher, Rev. Levi Chace, and a number of seced

ing Masons to attend the examination in person,

and they procured the depositions of others, which

were taken in legal form. The intimation therefore,

that Mr. Tliocher, or any other witness presented

himself voluntarily as has been represented in the

Assembly, is incorrect. He came at the special

and urgent request of the Antimasonic State Com

mittee. The investigating Committee ined no com

pulsory process, in any ruse, and their summonses

were virtually nothing more than requests.

With aview of bringing the investigation to somo

point, the following suggestions were drawn up,

and presented to the Committee, hy Win. Spraiiuc,

E'q. for their consideration, on the first day

they mat for business, Tuesday. Doc. fith. Thrss

suggestions were made by an imlividual, in coinрIi-

ance with 111s rule prescribed by Sir. Нoтoмl,

Chairman ol the Committee. They were ir '



TO THE COMMITTEE.

One of the principal "grounds of the charges

And accusations brought against Freemasonry and

Masons in this State," and every other State, which

vou, gentlemen, are appointed "fully to investi

gate aud inquire into," is the oaths administered in

the several degrees in the Lodges and Chapters.

It is deemed indispensable to establish what the

precise form and expression of these oaths"*are, in

order to determine whether they may or have, or do

lead to an interference with the civil duties of cit

izens.

In the first place it is* charged that these oflths

are illegally administered, in solemn Ib'rm, by per

sons not Magistrates, and who arc liable to indict

ment and punishment for this offence, at common

Law.

Thus Sir E. Co!¿e lays it down, that "All oaths

must be lawful, allowed by the Common Law, or

some statute ; if they are administered by persons in

a private capacity, or not duly authorised they are

coram nnnjudice, and void ; and those administer

ing them are guilty of a high contempt for doing

U without warrant of law, and punishable by fine

and imprisonment. 3. Inst. 278. 2. Roll Abr.

257; cited in Jacob. Law Die. Tit. Oath.

Blackstpne goes so far on this point as to say, that

"I t is much to be questioned how far any Magistrate

is justifiable in taking a voluntary affidavit in any

extrajudical matter, as is now too frequent upon ev

ery petty occasion, since it is more than possible,

Hiat by such idle oaths a man may frequently in

fora conscicntïœ, incur the guilt, and at the same

time evade the temporal penalties of perjury.' Blk.

Com. Vol.4. 137. Even this doubt is expressed of

UnnecessaVy oaths-, administered by lawful mag

istrates. It is certainly stronger as applied to Ma

sonic oaths, adrmnisli'.rei! unlawfully in secret, and

binding tné person wlio receives them to do a mor

al wrong if he adheres to them.

Should the Committee deomthis a proper subject

of their inquiry, they can easily establish the fact,

by the testimony of seceding and the admission of

'adhering Masons, that oaths are administered in

Lodges and Chapters, by swearing on the holy

Scriptures. Seo Dri¡losilion of Benjamin Russell

and De Wilt Clinton, herewith presented, marked

{No. 1 and 2 )

The nature of these oaths, tlieir exact terms

and import from Ihn language in which they are

t'.xрresse'd, aie also iihp'ortant lobe learned. The

farts theuïs'elves, as to what the oaths say , are deem

ed to bo much more essential to a fair under

standing ó'f thein, than the construction which

persons interested notó, in explaining them away to

avoid the charges brought against thorn, may put

upon them. Besides, If the oaths are to lie judged

of l.y construction, ratfier than their plain and ob

vious meaning, would not the interpretation of these

oafhs, by Masonic works of the highest authority,

previous to Masonry being called in question, be

hiore satisfactory, than the construction adhering

ЭДаannн may now contend for, when the charge is

hiàde that tiieso very oaths have led to the murder

o'f a citizen in New York, аnЗ screened his niurder-

'ers from the just infliction of the laws ?

On this point, the nature of the oaihs, the com

mittee is respectfully referred to a printed paper

('marktMI No. :5) containing the oaths offiVe degrees,

In nearly the sime language, (with some not very

'material alterations in expression and none in mean

ing1) as tni;y b'ivg bcen administered in fi.. island

Lodge* and Chapters, up to the murder of William

.Mlir¡í:u:, in 1s3(i, and probably ever since. The

same pnpcr'c'tM'Vins evidence of the uniformity and

'inii vtlrsalily of these niasofiic oaths, as do also the

Pnuoaitiuna 6i° Messrs. Clinton and Russell-, before t

'ii.;l.'-rrod to. . j

To uitublish lAo afciftrfirily of Msaufric Oaths in ¡

tho United States, reference in further made fo' a

paper marked No. 4, containing the trial at New

Berlin, New York, as sworn to by Philip Peck, who

was present at that trial.

Also paper No. 5, Affidavit of Israel Chace.

Also paper No. C, Affidavit of Tabor Cory.

The same point will be proved by inquiry to that

effect of all seceding or adhering Masons, who may

be summoned before the Committee.

Paper No. 7, contains the statement of one ot

your Hon. Committee, William Sprague Jr. Esq.

asserting the language of certain portions of the

three first oaths. ft is requested that that gentleman

may be examined, with others who have certified

with him, or who are believed to be ready to testi

fy, if called on, viz : Wm. Sprague Jr., Rev. Hen

ry Tavern, (who has taken the degree of Knight

Tifcplar.) Dr. Wm. 11. Allen, Willard Ballou, Johii
Drown, Nathan Whiting, Benjamin Wr. Case, (lloy-

al Arch) Rev. Moses 'l'hacher (Royal Arch,) John

F. Greene, Arthur Potter, Anson Potter, Gamaliel

Church, (Royal Arch) Barney Phelps.

The above named persons, and s,ome others whose

names may be presented if desired, are acquainted

with masonry, and it is believed will give the Com

mittee all the information in their possession. It h

believed that their testimony will not essentially

vary from the statement of the form of the Oaths as

given in printed paper No. 3.

The Committee are also i espectfully requested to

summon before them some known adhering Masens,

to Ascertain from them the. form of proceedings in

Lodges, and Chapters. If permitted to suggest, the

following names would be offered :—

Kev. David Pickering, Mr. Moses Richardsons

who, it is suggested, became acquainted with the'

abduction of Morgan, in the Grand Chapter of New

York, soon after it happened. Should he decline

stating on this point, Walter Paine Jr. and Asa

Peàrce should he summoned. Mr. Peter Grinnell is

acquainted with the sanie facts.

Mr. Peter Giinnell, who in 1816 visitesI the Lodg*

es iii N. England, it is believed. Inquiry shoulJ

Ьe made of this gentleman as to his knowledge of

the Check degteo, established in 1826—27, to keep

out the book .Masons, who might study Morgan's

disclosures. On this point, see paper No. 8. con

taining a letter signed P. Grinnell and C. M. Nes

tell. Please also inquire if this Check degree was

received from-tha New York Grand Lodges, and

communicated to all the Lodges in this State. Ex

amine also, Messrs. Sprague, Chase, Thacher, Hal-

lou, Tatem and others on this point, which will

clearly establish the connexion between the Lodges

of Rhode L.land and New York, and the fact that

Morgan's disclosures were true, or a special degree,

to exclude those who read his book, would not have

beert required.

Josiah Whitskor, Williarn Wilkinson, Richard

Anthony, Henry Mumford, Christian M. Nestcll',

Benj. S. Olney, John ÏJarton, Henry Martin, [who

administered tho Royal Àrçh Oath to Moses Thach

er,] Samu'el Jackson, 2d, Barney Merrey, Barzillai

Cranston, Jacob Frieze, [Examine Mr. P'riezc as to

an article on the 2dth paie of paper No. 9. written

by him.] Rev. Martin Cheney.

The Commitle are also requested to ascertain if

possible, at what time, Chapters and Lodges in R.

I. or any menibers became acquainted with the ab

duction of Morgan, and whether any anil what state

ment had been made respecting it, and his fate.

Oran Pii'ckaVd of Cumberland^ if 'summoned, (a

Royal Arch Mason,) it is believed will throw light

on this subject.

The existence of Lodges of Blacks, who take tho

same oaths as white Masons, aid work under a

Grand Lodge at Boston, which grants dispensations

all over the country, has excite'd some alarm, partíc

ulat ly in connexion with tTui insm rveúon -it the

Snmli.it being slated, that Waiker, the black who

an inccisdiury ipa.'AphliHa.uboTt lirne a£*



tó excite tlieSlavc: to revolt,and Gen. Nut, tiie lead

t>r of the recent Massacre in Va. were mriпbers of

tliu African Lodge.

On thi'. point testimony may be obtained from

Henry Codding, of Provideneo. Also, from the

following officers of Harmony Lodge,in Providence,

viz :—George C. Willis, Master; Thomas, Senf War

den ; Alfred Niger, Jun. Warden ; Northup, Sen.

Deacon. ^

The inquiry whether Masonry imposes ihe penf

ally of death for violation ol her oaths, is certainly

important. Individual construction of Masons now

cannot be us good proof, as the terms of the penal

ties, and Ihe construction put upon them by the

most approved Masonic writers. On this point

leave is asked to refer to printed sheets, No. У, а

proof sheet of a document not yet published. Re

ferences are there given to Маso1Лc authors, which

will be offered to the Committee if desired, for fur

ther examination as to the correctness ol the refer

ence. So far as the Records of Lodges and Chap

ters may be offered, the Committee are requested to

receive thorn with the understanding that they con- j

tain only what Masons deem proper to le written,

and do not record the unwritten and most important

matters in the Lodge. On this point of the duties ol

a Masonic Secretary, seo Book of Constitutions, p.

15, Cross's Masonic Charts p. (it>, do do, 140, Temp

lars' Chart, 79, cited in proceedings K. I. Antima-

sonic Convention, p. 10.

The several corporations were chartered by the

General Assembly as Charitable Societies. This

will be seen by reference to their acts of Incorpora

tion, cited in the Antimasonic Memorial,(see paper

No. 11.) A strictjinquiry on this point is respectfully

•suggested, in order to ascertain what proportion of

the funds are devoted to charities, and what pro

portion to useless parades. On this point see paper

Wo. 10, and records of Newport St. John's Lodge.in

iius-essum of Benj. W. Case."

The several documents above referred to, were

presented to the Committee, but it did not appear

that any use was made of them in the investigation.

The Committee, on the first day, frankly and readily

received all names of witnesses presented to them,

most of whom they summoned. Those who had

declared they would not testify at all, Were not sum

moned. Masonic Clergymen the Committee declin

ed summoning, on the ground, as was understood,

that it might lead to a breach, or unpleasant feelings

in their societies.

Previous to the meeting of the Committees and

nearly every night during their sitting in Provi

dence, the Masonic Hall was lighted up, and it is

presumed the Masons assembled there to determine

upon (he measures they should adopt to produce un

iformity in the statemeni.s they should make to the

Committee. On several occasions, when the exam

ination was carried into the evening, the principal

Masons retired ,us it was understood to visit (heLodge

Room, and unquestionably for the above purpose.

The testimony was taken at four different times ;

.first, before four and sometimes five of the Com

mittee sitting in Providence, fiom the 7th to the

1 7th of December—second, before Mr. Hazard the

Chairman, sitting alone in Newport, irregularly

for several days—third, before Mr. Simmons, an

other of the Committee, sitting alone in Provi-

ТЙcncc,—and fourth, before Mr. Haile in Warren,

at which last examination no person whatever was

'present to put cross questions to the adhering ma

sons, who were examined by Mr. Haile. Mr.

Sprague or M'r. Cornell. di¿ not at any time as-

r.ums the rirriit of sitting aloc.; to take examina

tions, without the approbation of other mem

bers of the Committee. The fbruvcT issued one

summons, or rather request, to a citizen residing in

•another State, whpse deposition wa,i taken.

During the only investigation in which the

committee acted as a body, Mr. Haile, one of the

, oilici-ited as -scribe, and wrote down,

principally in his own language, the answers oftrw

witnesses, as he conslruud or understood them,

which the witnesses were required to sign. In

his minutes so taken, the answers of witnesses artt

put down in а condensed form, without any state

ments appearing of the circumstances under which

the answers were given ; such as the remarks of

members of the Committee, the variation of an

swers upon second thought, by the witnesses, and

a variety of circumstances, without which it id

impossible to determine whether the examination

was fully and fairly conducted, and how far th в

witnesses are entitled to credit. The most "ma

terial difference between us, will be, that where

cross questions were proposed, the second answer

of the witness was generally takon by him instead

of the first, while tiiis Report will in mosteases,

give birth answers, that the witness may not avail

himself of the time given for reflection to frame an

answer best suited to evade the question, if such

were his design. None of these and other circum

stances connected with the progress of the inves

tigation ; the manner in which the Chairman put

or° refused' to put questions, or his severe censures

upon witnesses and spectators,will be found in Mr.

Haile's Report. While therefore, we shall agreo

in the main facts, there will be so material a dif

ference in the filling out of the narrative on our

part, by stating facts which his abridged account

will omit, as entirely to relieve the State printer of

Rhode Island from the trouble of prosecuting for

an infringement of a pretended copy right, of a

public Legislative Report, which is no more the

subject of copy right than a speech made in Con

gress, and taken down by a Reporter. [It might be

interesting to learn by whom this copy right of a

public document was transferred to the State prin

ter, for what consideration, and for whose benefit.

The circumstance is believed to be unparalleled.]

This attempt to confine the circulation of thia

important evidence (which is the property of the

public alonsr) by guarding it with a copy right,

and thereby preventing its republication in the

newspapers, has induced us to publish our version

of it in this form, which is free to all the world to

republish.

Having thus stated the preliminaries of the inves

tigation, we proceed to lay before the public a full

and faithful Report, taken at the time, of the^pro-

ceedings of the Committee and the examination of

witnesses. The correctness of this Report, in ev

ery essential particular, will be vouched for by a

number of individuals who paid strict attention to

the investigation. An appeal is also made for the

accuracy of our narration, to the numerous apee1

tators who were present.

On the morning of Wednesday, the first dayt

the Committee met for business, Mr. Hazard and

others of the Committee, held a long conversation

in the Senate Chamber, with several of the most

eminent masons of Providence. Among them

were the Grand Master, the Grand Commander,

the General Grand Treasurer, and others. A

part of that conversation was' known at the time.

Its import, and that of other interviews understood

to have taken place, it is believed is fully explain

ed in the subsequent disclosure made by one of the

witnesses, Win. Wilkinson, Esq., thai a majority

of tkc Committee had agreed with these Masons, that

iftlic.i ilisclusnd their onths, they should not be ques-

tioncil as to the cererиtmies, proceedings, $-c. which,

they considered to lir, the SECUETS of Masonry, that

they hrul sworn not to reveal ! The tact is simply

stated as it is borne out by the testimony. Wheth

er it was proper for an investigating Committee to

have entered into such a stipulation with the wit

nesses who w"ere to be examined upon charges

against their own Institution, tiie public must

decide.

No Committee appeared before the Legislativs

Committee in behalf of any body, and neither the



Memorialists to the General Assembly, or the

Antimasons were permitted to appear to make

good any charges against Masonry. During the

investigation six or eight of tiie highest Masonic

Officers in Rhode Island were constantly present,

seated on one side of the table, and a number oí'

members of the Antimasonic State Committee

were as frequently present, seated on the other

side. Both parties, in their individual capacity,

proposed questions in writing, which were handed

to the Committee. The examination was held in

the Senate Chamber in Providence.

Wednesday, Drcembcr 7, 1831—Present of the

Cormnit'ee, B. Hazard, chairman, James F. Sim

mons, Wm. Sprague. Jr. and Levi Haue; (absent,

£. R. Potter and S. B. Cornell, of the Senate.)

TESTIMONY OF REV. MOSES ТМЛСНЕИ.

Mr Hazard called the Rev. Moses Thacher as

the first witness. who proceeded to give the follow-

ing testimony, the substance of which was taken

down in writing by Mr. Halle, of the Committee,

who acted as ¡Scribe for that purpose.

MOSES THACHF.ÏI sworn in chief, in answer to

interrogatories, saya. He resides in North Wren-

tham, Massachusetts ; is a clergyman ; has been a

Free Mason and t:'.ken seven degrees. viz. Entered

Apprentice, Fellow Craft, Master Mason, Mark

Master, Past Master, Most ExcellentMaster and

Royal Arch.

INTERROGATORIES ВУ THE CHAIRMAN.

In what Lodge ;ind at what time did you take

the three first degrees? Answer. In St. John's

Lodge, Providence, in the winter or spring of

) 8-J<>-a7.

When did you take the next ? Ans. The sum

mer following.

In the same Lodge ? Ans. No ; in the same

Hall, hut in what is termed the Chapter. the Prov

idence Royal Arch Chapter.

When did you take the last degree ? Ans. l am

not able to designate the precise time. I took the

three preparatory degrees in 1827, and soon after

the Royal Arch degree, which took a whole eve

ning in performing the ceremonies.

Before you took the degrees, was an obligation

or oath administered to you ? Ans. Yes,, a dis

tinct oath, upon taking each degree.

• ENTERED APPRENTICE'S OATH.

Mr. Hazard.—Can you repeat the oath that you

took as an entered Apprentice ? Ans. l can re

peat the oath substantially. I do not know that 1

can give all the language, verbatim.

Be so good as to repeat what you do recollect.

Ans. So far as I recollect it was substantially this.

] was made to kneel and clasp the sacred writings

with the square and compass in this form. Tire

Master of the Lodge then addressed me in lan

guage like this Before you proceed any farther

it is necessary for you to take an oath or obliga

tion ; this oath will not interfere with your reli

gion or polities. Have you any objections to take

it? On signifying my assent, he directed meto

repeat the oath after him, calling my own name.

1 would not be understood as givrng the language

verbatim, which was used in introducing the oath,

hut the sense and substance. The Master then

proceeded to administer the oath by sentences, to

be repeated after him. as I was utterly ignorant of

it; ignorant masonically, for as 1 afterwards found

I had seen the oath before, substantially.

Mr. Hazard. Where had you seen it? Ans. In

a hook called Morgan's Illustrations which had ac

cidentally fallen into my hands.

Mr. Hazard. [To Mr. Haile, who was writing

down the testimony.] You need not go too fast, Mr.

Haile. It is best to have it all down, because Mr.

Thacher has got to sign it. Well Sir, (to the wit

ness) repeat it as you recollect it.

ll'itntrs. I proceeded after the Master, sentence

by sentence, and said.

"I, Moses Thacher, of my own free will and ac

cord, in presence of Almighty God and this wor

shipful Lodge of Free and accepted Mason, dedi

cated to God, and held forth to the Holy Order of

St. John, do hereby and hereon, most solemnly

and sincerely promise and swear, that I will al

ways hail, ever conceal, and never reveal any art

or arts, part or parts, point or points, of the secrets,

arts and mysteries of ancient Freemasonry, which

I have heretofore received, am about to receive,

or may hereafter be instructed in, to any person of

persons in the known world, except it be to a true

and lawful brother Mason, (I think iä the mode of

expression ; I am not certain as to that mode,) or in

the body of a lawfully constituted Lodge of such,

and not unto him or unto them whom I shall hear

so to be, but unto him or them only whom I shall

find so to be, after strict trial, due examination or

lawful information.

1 furthermore promise and swear, that I will not

write, print, stain. stamp, hew, cut, carve, engrave,

or indent it, upon anything movable or immova

ble, under the whole canopy of Heaven, whereby

or whereon the least letter, figure, mark, character,

stain, shadow, or resemblance of the same, shall

become legible or intelligible to myself or any other

person, whereby the secrets of Free Masonry may

be unlawfully obtained, through my airworthiness.

To all which I do most sincerely and solemnly

promise and swear, without the least equivocation,

mental reservation, or secret evasion of mind, in

me whatever, binding myself under no less pen

alty than to have my throat cut across, [the Master

at tins time drew the hand le of his Mallet, as I af

terwards found it to be across my throat] my tongue

torn out by the roots, my body buried in the rough

samls of the sea, at low water mark, where the tide

ebbs and flows twico in twenty-four hours. [The

oath closes with the legal form, I believe] So help

me God and keep nie sieadíast in the due perform

ance of the same.

FELLOW CRAFT'S OATH.

Mr. Hazard.—Be so good as to stale what addi

tions (hero were in the oath you look, in the degree

of Fellow Craft.

Witness.—The candidate swears to obey all eiirns

and summons of a fellow craft Mason—to support

the Constitution, and by-laws of the Lodge, and of

the Grand Lodge under which it is held. I was told,

as in the preceding degree that the oath was not to

interfere with my religion or polities.

Mr. Hazard, I will read you the Fellow Craft's

Oath from Allyn's Ritual, and ask you it it is the

same you took ? [Mr Haile read it accordingly.]

Witness.—The oath I took was to support the

Constitution of the (irand Lodge ; not the Gram!

Lodge of the United States; The oath read from

Allyn is the substance of the one I took.

Mr. Hazard,—What did you understand by the

length of your cable tow ?

Witness.— hi the time the degree was given, I

did not understand what that expression meant. I

afterwards learned from' a Mason, that it meant a

certain distance, according to the degiee. In the

Master's degree, it is understood to mean three

miles. It was not explained to me at the time.

MASTEK MASOJV'S OATH.

Mr. Hazard.—Will you point out the difference

in the Master Masons oath, with the proceeding

oaths?

Witness.—The Master Mason swears to keep the

secrets of a brother of the same degree, murder

and treason excepted, and they left to his election.

.V;-. Hazard.—I believe that is the only essential

difference.

WUntss.—There are several others.

Mr. Hazard.— Well, will you point them out ?

Witness.— I will point out some of them as far

as I can recollect. In addition to his former obli-

gаtions the candidato swears that lie will not ghc



the Master Mason's word, which lie is hereafter to

receive, to any but a M.i:. on of the sams de^roe.fl

Пo not here pretend to give the preci.-e language of

the oath,] except upon the five points of fellowship,

and then not above his breath. That he will not give

' the grand hailing sign of distress, except he is in real

distress, and when ho sets that sign given, or hoars

the words accompanying it, he swears to fly to the

relief of the person giving the sign or uttering the

words, unless there is a greater probability of losing

his life, than saving the life of the person in dis

tress.

The candidate in this degree also sweats that he

will not speak evil of a urother Master Mason,either

before his face or behind his back, but will apprize

him of all approaching danger, if in his power.—

Another addition in substance is he promises and

swears that the secrets of a brother Master Mason,

given to him in charge, as such, and he knowing

them to be such, shall remain as secure and invio

lable in his own breast as in that of the person com

municating them, murder and treason excepsed,and

(here left at his election.

(Mr. Halle—discretion ?)

Witness—Election I think it is.

The penalty also varies, in this degree. It is that

the body be severed in two in the midst, and the

bowels burnt to ashes, and these ashes scattered be

fore the four winds of heaven, that there mignt not

the least trace or remembrance remain, among

men or Masons, of so vile and perjured a wreteh as

I should be if I were ever wilfully to violate any

part of this my solemn oath or obligation, of a mas

ter mason. That is the substance of the penalty.

I am not positive of every word.

Mr. Hazard. Is it not a part of the oath that

you will not violate the chastity of a Master Mason's

wife, daughter, &c. ?

Witness. Yes Sir, " I further more promise and

»wear, that I will not violate the chastity ofa Master

Mason's wife, mother, daughter or sister, knowing

them to be such, or suffer it to be done by others

if in my power to prevent it.

A question in writing having been handed to the

committee, Col. T. Rivers, a (Mason) here asked,

"will the Committee receive questions from by

standers ? I appear for no one."

Mr. Hazard.—We will receive any information

from any citizen, and will be obliged to any who will

give information to aid in this investigation. We

shall be glad to receive any from yourself.

Mr. Rivers. I have none to make. [Wm. Wil-

ktnson, Esq. a high mason, and Mr. Rivers here

held some conversation aside.]

Mr. Hazard then read the Mark Master's oath

from Allyn, Mr. Simmons reading the conclusion.

Is that the substance of the oath ? It is so far as I

can recollect. I believe the phraseology is different

in reference to the Mark and the Jewish She

kel of silver.

[B.F. Hallett presented questions in writing, re

lative to the ceremony representing the killing

of Hiram Abiffin the Masters degree, and the re

ference it had to the penalty. The Commitete did

not put the questions.]

Thomas Rivers, Esq. here presented a question

in writing for Mr. Hazard to put, but before it was

put, Mr. R. said he would waive it for the present,

and it was returned to him.

Mr. Simmons read the Most Excellent Master's

oath from Allyn, and asked if that was correct.

Witness.—That was substantially as I received it,

so far as I can recollect.

[Mr. Hazard was again requested to put the ques

tion relative to the ceremony of killing Hiram Abiff.

but declined.]

Witness here said there was a point in the Mas

ter Mason's oath, relative to obeying all signs and

summonses, which he believed he had omitted to

state before. He then stated that part oí the obli

gation.

ROVAI. ARCH OATH.

Mr. Simmons.—Do you recollect the variation»

of the Royal Arch oath from the preceding uaths ?

It would be preferable ior you to give them.

H'itntss.—rl'hey do not readily occur to me, and

I should probably omit some in pointing out the

differences. 1 can state them as i'ar аs my reeol-

ection extends.

Mr. Hazard.—Do you recollect any clause to

keep the secrets of a brother Companion, murder

and treason not excepted ?

Witness.—I do not recollect that phraseology.

Mr. Simmons then read the oath from Allyn. and

asked if that was correct. [The clause in the oath,

as given in Allyn, is to keep all the secrets, without

exception.]

Witness.—The oath, so far as I recollect, is sub

stantially the same as was administered to me. I

do not recollect the words "right or wrong" being

administered to me. The words murder and trea

son not excepted, were not in the oath I took. I do

not recollect the promise to employ a Companion

Royal Arch Mason, in preference to another per

son.

On being further questioned, witness replied, I

am confident that I was sworn to assist a companion

Royal Arch Mason when in any difficulty, and to

extricate him from the same, if within my power.—

I have no recollection of any kind of difficulty be

ing excepted. He was to be assisted when in diffi

culty. The penalty I recollect distincly as read,

to have my scull smote off, and my brains expos

ed to the scorching rays of the sun. I do not rec

ollect any further material variation from the oath

as now readto me.

Question put by request.—What was the form

in which you were sworn to keep the secrets of a

Royal Arch Mason ?

Witness.—To the best of my recollection it was

to keep all secrets of a Compamon Royal Arch Ma

son, communicated to me as such, and I knowing

them to be such.

Mr. Simmons.—Were there no exceptions as to

the kind of secrets you were to keep ?

Witness.—No. I recollect there were exceptions

in the preceding degrees, but I do not recollect any

in this.

[A question in writing was here handed to the

Chairman, asking the situation in which witness

was placed to receive the oath, and the nature of

the ceremony of representing God appearing to

Moses in the burning bush. The Chairman did not

put the questions.]

Mr. Simmons put the following question by re

quest. Did you ever take a check degree and if so

please explain it ?

Witness.—After 1 had taken the three first degrees

in Masonry, which I received in one night, the

Master of the Lodge said to me, before you leave

the hall it is necessary for yo.u to take an oath, in

consequence of a book which has been published,

revealing the secrets ofFreemasonry or of the Order,

I do not remember which. He further said that it

was necessary for me to do this in order to visit

other Lodges, andeaid "if other folks get our keys,

we must put on new locks." That was his ex

pression. The oath was then administered to me,

the general terms of which were that I would not

give the word or sign about to be communicated to

me, except in a Lodge, or at the door of such, when

about to be examined for admission. It was in

tended as a key for admission into Lodges. I never

made use of it but once.

Mr. Hazard.—I dont see but they will have

their hands full of m'aking new secrets.

Question by request. Was there any penalty

attached to this oath?

Witness. No corporeal penalty. 1 think the

penalty was to be disgrace or expulsion for dis

closing this sign.

Question by Thomas Rivers. (Mason.)



After takint; these several obligation?, did you

not receive a eharge, and did you not consider it

binding ?

ff'itncis.— After taking each of the two first

decrees, a charge wasri'gd to mo [Mr Mo.-c* Rich

ardson here banded to Mr Simmons Webb'sMoиitor

and referred to the charge.]

ЛГr Simmons — If I read the charge to you frem

Webb, will you reccollect if that was the charge

you received in tke;first decree.

Witness.—I presume I can.

Mr. Simmons here read the following from Webb's

Monitor a book published to the world by Masons.

Charge иt initiation into the first Degree.

Brother, As you are now introduced into the first

principles of Masonry, I congratulate you on being

accepted into this ancient und honorable order; an

cient as having subsisted from time immemorial;

and honorable, as tending in every particular, so to

render all men, who will be conformable to its pre

cepts. No institution was ever raised on a better

principle, or more solid foundation; nor were ever

more excellent rules and useful maxims laid down,

than are inculeated in the several masonic lectures.

The greatest and best of men in all ages have been

encouragera and promoters of the art, and have

never deemed it derogatory from their dignity to

level themselves with the fraternity, extend their

privileges, and patronise their assemblies. There

are three great duties which, as a mason, you are

charged to inculeate, to God, your neighbor, and

yourself. To God, in never mentioning his name,

but with that awe and reverence which is ever due

• from a creature to his creator; lo implore his nid in

all your laudable undertakings; and to esteem him

as the chief good;—to your neighbor ; in acting

upon the square, and doing unto him as you wish he

should do unto you:—and to yourself; in avoiding

all irregularity and intemperance, which may im

pair your faculties, or debase the dignity of your

profession. A zealous attachment to these duties

will ensure 'public and private esteem. In the

state, you are to be a quiet and peaceable subject,

true to your government, and just to your country;

you are not to countenance disloyalty or rebellion,

but patiently submit to legal authority, and conform

with cheerfulness to the government of the country

in which you live. In your outward demeanor be

particularly careful to avoid censure or reproach;

and beware of those who may artfully endeavor to

insinuate themselves into your esteem, with a view

to betray your virtuous resolutions, or make you

swerve from the principles of this institution. Lot

not your interest, favour, or prejudice, bias your in

tegrity or influence you to be guilty of a dishonor

able action ; but let your conduct and behaviour be

regular and uniform, and your deportment suitable

to the dignity of your profession. Although your

frequent appearance at our regular meetings is

earnestly solicited, yet it is not meant that masonry

should interfere with your necessary vocations;

ior these are on no account to be neglected, neither

are you to suffer your zeal for the institution, to

lead" you into disputes with those who, through

ignorance, may ridicule it. At your leisure hours

you are to study the liberal arts and sciences ; and

that yon may improve in masonic disquisitions, con

verse with well-informed brethren, who will be

always as ready to giye, as you will be to receive,

instruction. Finally ; keep sacred ani inviolable

the mysteries of the order, as these are to distinguish

you from the rest of the community, and mark your

consequence among masons. If, in the circle of

your acquaintance, you find a person desirous of

being initiated into masonry, bo particular by atten

tive not to recommend him, unless you arc con

vinced he will conform to our rules ; that the honour,

glory, and reputation ofthe institution may be firmly

established and the world at large be convinced of

its good rffccis '

After reading the charge from \Vebb's Monitor

in the first degree, Mr. Simmons inquired of the

witness if that charge was delivered to him .'

Witness. I think that was read tonic, or the sub

stance of it.

Mr. Simmons. Did you consider it binding?

Witness. 1 paid but Mule attention to it at the

time. 1 knew it was printed, and I could read it at

my leisure.

Mr. Simmons. Did you consider the charge bind

ing on you as a Mason ?

Witness. A portion of it I considered binding on

me before I was a Mason—so far as it cujoincd mor

al obligations.

Mr. HuzuÍtl. You paid but little attention to it,

but considered it was binding on you as a Mason ?

Witness. I do not recollect I had any distinct im

pression of the charge. I received it as advice in

connexion with the oaths. My attention was move

particularly turned to what were called the secrets

of Masonry, than to what I knew had been publis li

ed, and could bo examined another time.

Mr. Simmons. Was a Lecture reau1 toyou in the

Fellow Craft's degree?

Witness. I distinctly recollect receiving a charge

in that degree to be always ready to assist in seeing

the laws and regulations of Masonry duly executed.

Mr. Simmons then read the charge from Webb,

in the Fellow Craft's degree, p. 71, and also the

charge in the Master Mason's degree, from Webb,

p. 75, as follow :—

Charge at Initiation into the Second Dagree.

BROTHER,—Being advanced to the second degree

of Masonry, we congratulate you on your prefer

ment. The internal, and not external qualifications

of a man, are what masonry regards. As you in

crease in knowledge, you will improve in socfal in

tercourse. It is unnecessary to recapitulate the

duties which, as a mason, you are bound to dis

charge ; or enlarge on the necessity of a strict ad

herence to them, as your own experience must

have established their value. Our laws and regu

lations you are strenuously to support ; and be al

ways ready to assist in seeing them duly executed.

You are nqt to palliaie, or aggravate the offences of

your brethren ; but, in the decision of every tres

pass against our rules, you are to judge with can

dour, admonish with friendship, and reprehend with

íustice. The study of the liberal arts, that valua

ble branch of education, which tends so effectually

to polish and adorn the mind, is earnestly recom

mended to your consideration ; especiaily the sci

ence of geometry, which is established as the basis

of our art. Geometry or Masonry, originally sy

nonymous terms, being of a divine and moral nature,

is enriched with the most useful knowledge ; while

it proves the wonderful properties of nature, it de

monstrates the more important truths of mor.ility.

Your past behaviour and regular deportment liavo

merited the honour which wo have now conferred ;

and in your new character, it is expected that you

will conform to the principles of the order, by steadi

ly persevering in the practice of every commenda

ble virtue. Such is the nature ofyour engagements

as a fellow craft, and to these duties yoцаre bound

by the most sacred ties."

Charge at Initmlinninto the Third Degree.

BROTHER—Your zeal for the Insitution of Mason

ry, the progress you have made in the mystery, and

your stedfast conformity to our regulations, have

pointed you out as a prope'r obíect of our favor and

esteem. You are now bound by duty, honor and

gratitude, to be faithful to your trust, to support

the dignity of your character on every occasion :

and to enjoin by precept and example, obedience to

the tenets of the Order. Exemplary conduct is

expected from you, to convince the world, that

merit is the title to our privileges, and that on you

our favors are not undeservedly bestowed. In the

character of a Master-Mason, you are authorised to

correct tlio errois aad irregularitiea of your unin
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formed .brethren and to guard tli3m against a breach

of fidelity, and every allurement in vicious prac

tices. To preserve the reputation of the fraternity

unsullied, must be your constant care ; and for this

purpose, it is your province, to recommend to your

inferiors, obedience, and submission : to your equals,

courtesy and affability; to your superiors, kindness

and condescension. Universal benevolence you

are always to inculeate ; and, by the regularity of

your own behaviour, afford the best example lor

the conduct of others less informed. The ancient

land-marks of the Order, entrusted to your care,

you are carefully to preserve ; and while ynu cau

tion the inexperienced against a breach of fidelity ;

•nerer suffer them tobe infringed, or countenance a

deviation j\om the established usages and customs

of the fraternity Your virtue, honor and reputa

tion, are concerned in supporting, with dignity, the

respectable character you now bear. Let no mo-

tire, therefore, make you swerve from your duty,

•violate your vows, or betray your trust, but be true

und faithful , and imitate the example. of that cele

brated artist, whom you this evening represent,

Thus you will render yourself deserving of the hon

or which we have conferred, and merit the confi

dence that we have reposed."

The question which had been previously handed

to the Chninnan of the Committee was asçain writ

ten and handed to Mr. Sprague, one of the commit

tee, the first question having been torn up by

the Chairman. Somo conversation passed between

Mr. Hazard and Mr. Sprague.

Mr. Hazard. • It seems to be insisted on that this

question must be put. What celebrated Artist is

deferred to in the Master's Chaigo just read to vou

whom you represented, and in what manner did you

represent him, and has it any reference tu the pen

alty ?

Witness. It refers to Hiram Abiff, or Hiram the

Widow's Son, who was said to have been stain, lor

refusing to revenl the Master Mason's Word, and

whom the candidate is made to represent by being

knocked down, and laid out as if he were dead,and

is then brought to life. That is a part of the histo

ry ol the degree as explained to me that evening,

in connexion with the penalties of the three first

degrees.

Mr. Moses Richardson (Mason) here turned to

another charge in Webb. r

Mr. Hazard. Here is another charge, 1 read it

to know if it wis read to you. It is. in Webb's

Monitor, page 99.

V ou agree to be a good man and true, and slrictly

to obey thu moral law. You agree to be a peacea

ble subject, and cheerfully to csuform to the laws

of the country in which you reside. You promise

not to be concerned in plots and conspiracies against

government, but patiently to submit to the decisions

of the supreme legislature. You agree to pay a

proper respect to the civil magistrate', to work dili

gently, live creditably, and act honourably by all

men. You agree to hold in veneration the original

rulers and patrons of the order of masonry and their

regular successors, supreme and subordinate accord

ing to their stations ; and to submit to the awards

and resolutions of your brethren in general chapter

Convened, in every ca*-; consistent with the consti

tution ol the order. You promise to reapect genu

ine brethren, and to discountenance impostors, and

* The above charcas, upon which much stress was

laid by Masons in this investigatiou. are given verbatim,

(except a part of the first charge,) in Bernard's Lighi on

Masonry, pages 25, 52, and 74. In the account there

given of the three first degrees, it is said, " the following

charge is, or ought to be delivered to the candidate, but

lie is generally told, " it is in the Monitor and you can

learn it at your leisure." Thus it will be seen that Ma

sonry has had Ike credit of all the maxims conveyed in
•hese charges, from tlin lime of (he first disclosures of her

isreeionisa and oWispatians, snado in t!m eounuy.

all dissenters from, the eriginal plan of masonry

You agree to promote the general good of society,

to cultivate the social virtues, and to propagate the

knowledge of the art. You promise to pay homage

to the Grand Master tor the time being, and to hU

officers when duly installed ; and strictly to conform"

to every edict of the Grand Lodge, or General As

sembly of Masons, that is not subversive of the prin

ciples and ground work of masonry. You admit

that it is not in the power of any man, or body of

men, to make innovatien in the body of masoury.

You promise a regular attendance on the com

mittees and communications of the Grai.d Lodge^

on receiving proper notice, and to pay attention to

all the duties of masonrí , on convenient occasi ,n .

You agree that no visitors sTiall be received into

your Lodge without due examination, and produc

ing proper vouchers of their having been initiated

in a regular lodge."

Witness. I do not recollect hearing that read to

me.

[The above charge is given to the Master of a,

Lodge, on his installment as such, by the Grand

Master, and not to individual members.]

Mr. B. F. Hallett. here requested the Commit

tee to notice the Masonic qualification given to the

(injunction to obey the civil laws. He referred

Mr. Hazard to Dermott's Ahiman Rezon (the book

of Constitutions so h'iihly extolled by Deputy

General Grand High Priest Poinsett, at his inaugu

ration in Washington ) On page 81 of that bonk,

the following qualification is given of the Mnsonic

injunction to obey the civil Magistrate, which Mr.

Hazard read.

"Of old, kings, princes and states encouraged the'

Fraternity for their loyalty, who ever flourished

most in times of рeэcс; but though a brother is not

countenanced in his rebellion against the St'ite, YET

IF CONVICTED OF JVO OTIIER CRIME, his TtlпtlOñ

lo the Lodge remains indefeasible."

TliH same principle is fuily recognized in the fol

lowing extract from a book of thu highest Masonic

authority in Rhode bland and Massachusetts.

SECTION II. Of Gtvcrnment and the Civil

Magistrate.

" So that if a brother should be а REBEI.

AoiissT THE STATE, be is not lo be counTe-

nariced in his rebellion, however lie may bt pitied

as an unhappy man, AND IF CONVICTED OF NO

OTHEII CRIME, though llluloinl Brotherhood must

and ought lo disown bis ichellion and give no um

brage or ground of political jealousy to the gov

ernment for the time being, THEY CANNOT EXPEL

HIM FROM THE LODGE, ANI\ HIS EELATKAI тo

IT REMAINS INDEFEASIBLE."—See Massachusetts

Book of Constitutions, p. 1C6. Edited by Thad

deus M. Harris, and published by the sanction of

the Grand Lodge.

So says James Hardie, in his Masonic Monitor,

p. 163, of the distinct duties of a Mason as a riu-

zen and a Mason. " In civil government, he is to

be firm in his allegiance, yit steadfast in difcrtce

of our (the Masonic,) laws, liberty, and constitu

tion."

NoTE. [It will thus be seen, that by the constitution','

and the practices of Masonry. TREASUS AGAINST THF.

STATE, and the MURDER ot a Mason who violates his

oath, are not accounted crimes of suiïicient magnitude,

to authorize expulsion from a Lodge ! ! It well becomes

a Society, avowing and practising such principles, lo

Ulk of '-submission to the civil magistrate," and requir

ing its members " to be true to their government, and

just to their country," when thoy have the full sanction of

the Lodge to rebel against that government, and retain'

entire fellowship with Masonry. . It will also be seen by

the above extract that the loyal brethren only are re

quired to disavow the rebellion, but those who desire le1

be disloyal, are left at entire liberty to aid the traitor, ana.

join iu lus treason, without any censure from АЪлunry !]i

>*'
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Mr. Hazard (after reading the extract from Der-

molt.) Yes I see how it is. To the witness. Is

this book of Constitutions by Laurence Dermott,

called the Ahiman Rezon a standard authority in

the New England Lodges !

Witness. I have never known it Masonically to

be a standard authority in the N. England Lodges.

It is an authority highly respected by Masons.

Mr. Hazard. Is the Free Mason's Monitor by

Thomas S. Webb, a standard authority among

masons ?

Witness. I understand it to be so, but supersed

ed, in some measure by the Chart of Jeremy L.

Cross. I do not know Masonically that Cross is

used in the Lodges. Webb and Cross are under

stood to be used by Masons as authority, indiscrimi

nately without preference.

Mr. Simmons. When you speak of not knowing

Ahiman Rezon, to be an authority, masonically,

what do you mean ?

H'iinr.s.t. I mean I never was informed as a Ala-

sun, by a Mason, that it was such.

Mr. Hazard. Here produced several newspa

pers and pamphlets. In the Providence American

ef Sept. 17, 1831, is an Address to the Grand Lodge

of Rhode Island signed Moses Thatcher. Were

you the author of that Address ?

Witness—after examining it. I was.

Mr. Hazard. Here is a pamphlet addressed te

the Church- of North Wrenthain in 1829, published

in Boston. Is that yours ?•'

Witness—It is.

Mr. Hazard—Here are betters addressed to a

brother, in the Church on seceding from Masonry,,

signed Moses Thacher 1829.

Witness—? published those letters.

Mr. Hazard. In the American of Sept. 27, 1631,

is a letter to you signed Caleb Sayles,]taken from

the Masonic Mirror. Have you seen that state

ment ?

Witness. I have seen it in the Masonic Miiror,

and I believe in the Microcosm.

Mr. Hazard—1 have alluded to these papers, Be

cause the Committee may wish to ask you some

questions in explanation of these statements.

WUrU4HÍ. I will give the committee all the infor

mation in my power.

Ms. Hazard. The testimony in this investiga

tion is of immense importance to every body. To

the Masons themselves and to the community. It

is the intention of the Committee to conduct the ex

amination sa that no one shall have cause to com

plain, and with that understanding it is desirable

that no more questions should be suggested in writ

ing fur the Committee to put, than, are absolutely

neessary.

Question by request. Are the statements of the

ceremonies of imitation, &c. give in Barnard's

Light on Masonry, and Allyn's Ritual, correct so

far as you have taken the degrees ?

ttitnris. They are substantially the same I

have received mid seen administered in Lodges. I

have been in the Lodge in Providence where I re

ceived the lower degrees^ in St. Albans Lodge,

Massachusetts, and once attended the Grand Lodge

in Boston. The Lodges I have examined agree in

their ceremonies and mode of working.

I never attended the Chapter after It was initiat

ed in the Royal Arch degree.

Question by request. Was the declaration that

your oath was not to interfere with your religion or

polities made to you, previous to taking the Royal

Arch oath.

Witness. I have no recollection whether it was

or was not used in that degree. 1 recollect it dis

tinctly in the first degree.

Mr. Simmons. Did you have Morgan's illustra

tions in your pocket or about you, when you went

¡lio the Lo;!¡;'c at Providence to take the degrees ?

Witntss. I had not. I had easnally teen Mor

gan's book, after I was propounded, 6ut on being

assured by a Mason of good standing that it was

not true, 1 paid but very little attention to it.

[The above question appeared to have been asked

by Mr. Simmons, at the verbal suggestion of one

of the by-slanders.who was a Mason. It being a

quarter before 2 o'clock, the Committee adjourned.

In the course of the examination this forenoon that

part of Mr. Thacher's testimony, as taken down by

Mr. Haile, as far as the inquiry into the check de

gree, was read to witness by Mr. Haile, but no fa

ther.]

Wednesday afternoon, Dec. 7.—The Committee

met at 3 o,clock, and resumeo. the examination of

Mr. Thacher.

[Mr. Hazard handed to Mr. Simmons a number

of interrogatories, in the hand writing of Thomas

Rivers, Esq. a Mason. They were put as follow :

Mr. Simmons. Were all the degrees conferred

on you, on account of your profession, (as a cler

gyman) gratuitously ?

Witness. They were. I paid no fee for them.

Mr. Simmons. Did you ever consider yourself

bound to favor a mason to the injury of others, in

consequence of your masonic obligations?

Witness. I never considered myself so bound.

Mr. Simmons. While a member of the Lodge,

did you know of any higher punishment being in

flicted, for a violation of Masonic obligation, than

expulsion ?

Witness. No ; nor had I any personal knowl

edge of any membsr having been^expelled.

Mr. Simmons. Did you ever hear the question

of higher penalties than expulsion discussed in the

lodge ; if so, when and where, and uader wiir t

circumstances ?

Witness. Yes 1 did. In St. Albans Lodge, in

Wrentham, the last time 1 was in the Lodge, this

subject was talked about. The members present,

who had taken the higher degrees were silent on

the subject, except one. Those of the lower de

grees expressed tireir opinions. They were vari

ous.

Mr. Simmons. At what time was this ?

Witness. The 13th of May, 1829, in St. Albans

Lodge in Wrentham.

[Witness here referred to a note he had of the

transaction.]

Mr. Simmons. Was it a meeting' of the Lodge ?

• Witness. Tt waS a regular Lodge meeting, 1 do

not know if there was a Tyler at the door. I think

on reflection that Esquire Fiske,a high Mason,who

was present, was the one wKo expressed an opin

ion on the subject. The question was proposed in

this form. In what 'light are Masonic penalties to

be considered, not whether they had been inflicted,

but in what light they were to be considered.

There was no vote taken.

Mr. Hazard. Did you not say just now, that you

knew of no higher penalty than expulsion?

Witness. Personally I did not, nor was I ever

present when any one was expelled. 1 have been

informed that I have been expelled myself.

Mr. Hazard. Who were present when this mat

ter was talked about, and was it notaiter the Lodge

was closed ?

Witness. It was in open Lodge. There were

present, Josiah J. Fiske,* Rev. Luther Wright,

Anson Mann, Samuel Druce, Esq. and Asa Ware,

Jr. Secretary, or acting as such. Others were;

present.

* Mr. Fiske i* the second member of the Honorable

Council of the State of Massachusetts. He was chosen

the present year. having the bighest number of votes,

while Russell Freeman, Ksq. charged with the crime of

opposition lo the Masonic candidate lot CougruM fro».

! '.• i л ol District, was not ra-eleelsd.
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Mr. Hazard. That it sufficient. How wa» the

subject introduced ?

Witness. As a matter of discussion and inquiry.

No motion was made. The sense of the Lodge

vas not taken.

Mr. Hazard. Was any member of the Lodge

present who expressed his opinion that the Lodge

had power to inflict any penalty but expulsion ?

Witness. No sir. 1 do not reeollect that the term

expulsion was used at all. The explanation was

given by one member that the candidate swears

that rather than reveal, he will suffer thus and so,

according as the penaltiesYead ; and I do Hot recol

lect that any other definite opinion was expressed.

I did not understand it as the prevailing sentiment.

No other explanation was given. [Witness here

suggested to Mr. Haile, who was writing down the

substance of his answers, that he wished to be un

derstood as saying that the Mason referred to, who

explained the penalty, said, that rather than reveal

Masonic secrets he would suffer his penalties, so

and so.]

Mr. Simmons here resumed the standing inter

rogatories. While a Mason did you ever give your

vote for a Mason, on account of his being sueh ?

Witness. 1 did not, nor do I remember if I ever

was placad in that situation. I do not know any

clause in the Masonic obligations 1 have taken

that literally obliged me to vote for a Mason.

Mr. Simmons proposed the following, by request

ef Mr. Rivers.

Did you ever know a political question to be

¿iscussed in a Lodge, or a nomination for a politi

cal office to be made there ?

Witness. 1 did not.

Question. Did you ever know a public officer to

release or discharge a person accused of crime,

upon making himself known as a Mason ?

Witness. 1 never did, of my own personal

knowledge. I suppose this question has reference

to my personal knowledge of the fact. Otherwise

I should state differently. '

Question. At the time of taking the oaths, did

you consider that there was any thing in them in

consistent with your civil duties ?

Witness. After I had examined the oaths, I be

came satisfied that 1 could not conform to them

literally, without violating my duty as a citizen.

Mr. Simmons. What, at the time you took

them ?

Witness. I have previously stated the circum

stances under which the oaths were received, and

have said I had not the means to consider them

Mr. Simmons. How long after did you make this

discovery ?

Witness. Sometime after, I cannot state precise

ly, circumstances led to my examining the oaths,

and after giving the subject a thorough investiga

tion I came to the deliberate conclusion that they

would interfere with my civil and religious duties.

Mr. Simmons. How many degress had you taken

hefore you came to that conclusion ?

Witness. I formed this conclusion after I had ta

ken all the degrees I ever took. 1 had never thor

oughly examined the subject before, and relied up

on the fact that conscientious men had taken these

oaths before me.

Mr. Hazard,. Will you explain for what reason

you considered these oaths to conflict with your

civil and religious duties?

Witness. I supposed that the oaths were in them

selves unlawful, and so far I understood them as

conflicting with my religious duties. I considered

that I had no moral right to bind myself under a

barbarous penalty to keep such secrets as thoae of

Masonry. I supposed too that my Masonic oaths

might in certain circumstances conflict with a ju

dicial oath, particularly in regard to that part of

the oath where the candidate swears to keep a Ma-

eon's secrets, murder and treason only excepted,

and these loft to his «lection. If brought upo» the

stand as a witness in a Court,' 1 might be called

upon to testify against a brother, under my civil

oath, where I had sworn Masonically not to testify,

and where my Masonic oath expressly bound me

not to testify. Also that part of the oath which

bound me as a Mason to warn a brother Mason of

all approaching danger, if in my power. He might

be in danger of being arrested as a thie f, and my

Masonic oath would bind me to warn him of the

approaching danger, so that he might escape.

[A question was here handed to Mr. Simmons,

whether the Master of the Lodge explained these

oaths at the time they were given, or any other.

Mr, Hazard. Can you point to that part of .your

Masonic oath which is intended for the purpose of

screening a thief from justice, or may be used for

that purpose?

Witness. I have reference to the clause I have

repeated in the Master Mason's oath.

Mr. Hazard. What part of it.

Witness. This part, " I furthermore promise and

swear that I will not speak evil of a brother Master

Mason, neither behind his back nor before his face,

but will apprise him of all approaching danger, if

in my power." I consider the plain import and

meaning of that oath, would bind me to aid a brother

Mason to escape from justice or screen him from

punishment, if I could do so by warning him of hia

danger.

Mr. Hazard. You say your Masonic oath would

oblige you to aid a Mason to escape irom justice.—

Am I also to understand you to mean that Tour Ma

sonic oath would bind you to conceal any crime

a brother Mason should communicate to you?

Witness. In the Master Mason's oath murder and

treason are the only crimes excluded, which I un

derstand to include all others.

Mr. Hazard. That is true. All crimes less than

murder and treason are certainly included by that

phrafnlogy. That is true. It should be so stated—

turning to Mr. Haile.

Witness. Another part of the obligation I had in

my mind was,that I will not give the grand hailing

sign of distress unless I am in real distress, and

should I see that sign given, or hear the words ac

companying it, I will fly to the relief ot the person

making that sign or uttering the words, if there is a

greater probability of saving his life than loosing

my own. If I were on a jury and the criminal on

trial should make that sign, it would be it; my pow

er to afford him relief, and my Masonic oath would

literally bind me to do so by preventing a verdict, or

using my influence to cause a verdict in his favor.

[It was here remarked to Mr. Haile (the Scribe of

the Committee) by a by-stander that he had not

written down Mr. Thacher's explanation. The wit

ness, on hearing Mr. Haile's note read on this point,

said that was not as he stated it. Mr. Haile finally

wrote it down in this form, " by pieventing a ver

dict or influencing others to give a verdict in his fa

vor."

Witness-.—My meaning isthat if I was a juror,

anda biother Mason on trial should give the Grand

hailing sign of distress, my Masonic oath would re

quire me to answer him, and afford him relief it it

were in my power.

[T. Rivers, Esq., (Mason) here presented a ques

tion, which Mr. Hazard looked at, observing it is

the same thing he has said before. He however

put the question, the purport of which was to in

quire whether he received his Masonic oaths as lit

erally binding.]

Witness.—I did reçoive them under their literal

construction, as far as 1 understood them, and I know

of no other standard by which to construe th(4'i ex

cept bv their plain import, in the same manner I do

the civil oath 1 have taken to day, literally to tell

the truth, the whole truth and nothing but the truth.

Mr. Hazard. Ifyou had beenappointed a judgo ot'a

court while you were a Mason, or drawn on a jury
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*o try л easr- between a Mason and ono not a Ma

non, eliuuld you have considered, or do you now

consider, that there is any oath that would require

you as a judge or a juror, to favor a mason to the

injury of oho not a mason ?

Witness. I do not consider there is any oath

•Ihat would bind me 30 to act, because I would not

to be bound; but if! were to receive the oath, and

.were to construe it in the same manner I have the

oath y°u have administered to me as a witness, I

should be required so to act if called upon mason-

icully.

Mr. Hazard. Did you so consider it when you

look it.

Witness. I did when I examined the oaths, and

foi that reason 1 renounced them, because I found

that I rnuat either conform to them, it required, and

violate my ciyil duties, or violate my masonic oath

if I complied with my civil oath.

[A question was here handed to Mr. Hazard from

Masons. Mr. Ы. said, It comes back to the same

thing he has answered before. Mr. Haile said,

that 19 lutly explained before, and he then read to

the witness what he had taken down on that point.]

Mr. Hazard. Did you ever know any instance

of a masonic judge or juror or Sheriff, or other offi

cer, practicing upon that iniiiuitious construction

of .Masonic oaths, which binds him to favor a mason

to the injury of one not a Mason, or to screen him

fimn justice ?

Witness. No such transaction ever passed under

my personal knowledge. There are many things

which I have bt-en informed of, and have good evi

dence to believe, but I presume the inquiry is made

дo reference to my personal knowledge.

Mr. Hazard. Did you ever know the Grand

hailing sign of distress to be given under trial, to a

judge, juror or sheriff ?

Witness. I never did. I do not know that I have

bseo in a Court of Justice, since I was a mason,

When there was a trial between a Mason and one

not a Mason.

Mr. Simmons. One of the Committee (Mr.

Spraiyue) wishes this question to be put : Did you

ever hear the oaths, at any time, explained to you

masonically, to mean any thing other than what

their terms import ? [This question had been pre-

viou'ly handed to Mi. Simmons, and laid aside.]

Vfitncrs. I never heard them explained in any

way. They are administered literally, and there

left.

Mr. Simmons. You snid you had charges deliv

ered to you, and did you not consider them bind

ing ? Here ¡9 one, " you agree to be a food man.

and true, and strictly to obey the roorлl jaw."

Wkitness. To what dooree does that appertain ?

Mr. fiiinmon?. Mark Masters, I believe.

[This charge is not given in any degree, but to

ihe Master of a Lod^e, on his installation.]

Witness. 1 have no recollection ofhaying it giv

en to rue.

Mr. Muscs Richarihnn—(a Mason) I ought to

huow something about it. That was given tome.

[The Masonic Chart by Jeremy L. Cross, Grand

Lecturer, was here handed to Mr. Huzard with a

request that he would ask an explanation of the

gymbol on page 33, which represents God appear

ing to Moses in the burning bush. Mr. H. iianded

ihe book to the witness.and asked what that meant.]

ll'urtrss. It represents one ot the ceremonies as

performed when I received the Royal Arch degree.

The candidate is lead round the chapter blind fold

ed, and a passage of scripture is read. " Now

ÎUosrs kept the flock of Jethro his father in-law,the

priest of Midian ; And the angel of the Lord ap

peared unto him in a flame of fire, out of the mid.st

of the bu-h ; and he looked and behold the bush

burned with firo, and the bush was riot consumed."

The handnge is then removed from the eyes of the

candidate, and ho sees a representation similar to

phis, (in Cross's Chart) When I saw it a bush wag

prepared, so that it wai made to blaze up, without

burning the bush. A peison who is made to repre

sent the Deity, stepped behind the bush, and called

out " Moses, Moses." The conductor of the can

didate answers " Here am I." The person behind

the bush, says, " draw not nigh" hither: put off

thy shoes from off thy feet, [the candidate's shoes

are here taken oft] for the place whereon thou

standest is holy ground. 1 am the God of thy fa

thers, tlio God of Abraham, the God of Isaac, and

the God of Jacob." The bandage is then put over

the eyes ofthe candidate, and the person says, "And

Moses hid his face, for he was al'raid to look upon

Gol"

[Air. Hazard here turned ¡o Allyn's Ritual, p.

14d, and read a part of the description of this cere

mony. Witness said he believed it was accurately

described in that book. Mr. Haile had not written

down any of this description. Mr. Hullett reques

ted that it might be made a part of the deposition.

He said, we consider it as a blasphemous exhibition

degrading the character of the Deity, and therefore

wish it may he known to the General Assembly

that Masonic bodies are guilty of such practices.]

Mr. Hazard. Very well ; but is there anyway

we can get it before the General Assembly. We

can't make these books a part of the deposition ? It

was replied that the books could easily be referred

to, and could be produced in the Assembly, if ne

cessary.

Mr. Hazard. Are these emblems in the Mason

ic Chart of Cross, correctly explained in AHyn'g

liituai ? The witness examined both, and said they

appeared to him to be substantially a delineation and

explanation of the ceremony he had witnessed, as

described in Chart, p. 33, and Allyn p. 148. I wit

nessed the exhibition in St. John e Chapter, Provir

dence, as described in Allyn, when I was admitted

to the P.oyal Arch degree, except being requested

to knocl, which l du not recollect. The other parts

f do recollect.

Mr. Simmens. Kow long did you continue a

member of a Lodge or Chapter ?

ll'iluces. I am unable to say how long 1 was

considered as a Mason. 1 believe about two years.

Mr. Hazard here observed, that this was an inves

tigation instituted lor the information ot the G-en-

eral As-embly. 1t was important to understand

the circumstances and feelings under which the

witnessestestified, and the committee were bound

to inquire into these facts. Ke had prepared some

questions, himself, with this view, and ;he rest of

the committee could prepare what they pleased.—

He then proceeded to read the following interro

gatories.

1. Before the several oaths were administered to

you, did you lake all the means in you power tq

ascertain whether an oath would be administered,

and what you would be required to swear to ?

I made no inquiries into the nature of the oaths,

nor did I understand I could be permitted to do so.

The Master of the Lodge said they would not in

terfere wit!n my religion or polities. The oaths in

the three first degrees were administered to me in

one night. I had no understanding in regard to the

oaths, at the time they were administered.

Mr. Hazard. Did you not know that an oath

would be administered ?

Witness. It did not occur to me before I was in-

roduced to the Lodge, whether an oath would be*

required. I say this in reference to the first degree.

1 afterwards inferred thatan oath would be adminis

tered in all subsequent degrees.

2d. Interrogatory. When taking the oaths did

you strictly attend to them, and endeavor to compre

hend their meaning, and what were the obligations

you were subjecting yourself to ?

Witness. I did, as fu;ly as the circumstanceи un

der which they were administered would admit.—

It required an effort, situated at I was, to repeaj,

them after the Master.
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3d. Interrogatory. Did you at the time when

vou had taken the oaths, think you understood

/hem? Did you immediately make any inquiry to

learn how they were understood ?

Witness. I did not suppose that I understood the

oaths. I did not at that time for ibis reason. that I

had no [Mr. Hazard—let him get that down] that 1

had no opportunity for reflection, and was sensible

it would take considerable time to render the oaths

familiar. When I left the Lodge I did not immedi

ately reflect much oit the meaning ot the oaths I

had taken.

Mr. Hazard. Had you any doubts, and did you

make any inquiry ?

Witness. I had some doubts, and I conversed

with a Muster Mason relative (o some clauses in

the oath. I took it for granted, without understand

ing the oaths, that they must bo harmless.

Mr. Hazard. How ? From the iact that men

of principle had taken them before me and from the

essurance oi the Master that it would not interfere

with my religion or polities, and I did not turn my

Attention to them particularly for some months af

ter.

Mr. Hazard. On what particular account did

you do so ?

Witness. The circumstances that led me more

particularly to examine the subject were theintelli-

gunce receive;! iVom the West respecting the Mor

gan outrage, and the disclosures at Le Roy of se

ceding Masons, at the meeting held there in the

summer of 1826 [July 4th and 5th, 1023.]

Mr. Hazard. Upon having then reconsidered

Iho oaths, did you immediately announce to Ihn

Lodge that you were dissatisfied and should secede?

¡fitness. I did not. I proceeded to examine

the subject, but aid not announce my intention tut

lS39,wben I delivered an address on the subject.—

1 had some scruples m regard to the oaths, before í

was aware they were so exceptionable, but did not

communicate my views, until 1 proceeded thorough

ly to examine them. I then stated to the Lodge

the principal reasons I bad at that timo in my mind,

why I wished to withdraw.

4tlt interrogatory. Did you reflect after taking;

each oath upon the nature and extent and force ol

it, and if you had any objections, did you state

tiioso objections to the Lodge ?

Witness. Thatquestion I have already answer

ed. Mr. Hazard assented.

fak Interrogatory. Was it your understanding

when you took the oaths, thru thereby,as far as was

in your power, you gave jurisdiction to the Lodge,

to execute upon you the рcnаШeэ,or to takeyour life

in the manner described in the penalties, and did

you consider that you shared in the same power and

jurisdiction wilh the Lodge, over others ?

Witness. When I took : the oaths I did not so

consider them, for as I have before staied, I had no

opportunity to farm a correct conclusion, but when

I took the subject seriously into consideration, I

qprtainlv came to that conclusion.

Mr. Hazard. But did you when you took the

oath consider you gave jurisdiction to 'the Lodge

over your life ?

Witness. I say no, in the form the question is

put to me. The circumstances under which the

oaths are given, render it impossible to understand

them at the time, but when 1 came to give my at-

t2ntion to a consideration ol the oaths, I received

that impression of their import.

Mr. Hazard. You have said that no man can

understand the oath whcnjie, takes it. 1 should

think sojtoo.

Mr Haile, I understand Mr. Thaclici to say he

did not then consider when he took the oath, that

he gave jurisdiction to the Lod^e to inflict the pen

alty, because he had not time to consider the oaths,

but when he did uxumine ilium, he came to that

Conclusion.

,Цr. ¡¡иzard. And because it ivas not until tome

time after, he snre atU'utioa to the import of the

oaths as expressed.

'Witness. That is correct, as I have before stat

ed. The circumstances under which the oaths arc

administered, render it impossible for the candidate

to take the real sense ot them without further re

flection.

UiA interrogatory. What do you consider tho

secrets or mysteries of Masonry to bo ? Do you

know of any others than those disclosed in Bernard

and Allyn ?

Witness. I consider that those works contain all

the secrets to the 7(h decree inclusive, so far as I

was instructed. 1 know of no others that aie called

Masonic secrets.

'Ik Interrogatory. Are the Constitutions and

By-Laws of Lodges printed and published?

Witness. The Book of Constitutions so called

is published. There is also a Charter which each

Lodge holds from the Grand Lodgo, and each

Chanter from the Grand Chapter. I never saw

them published. The Charter in St. Alban's

Lodge is engrossed on parchment, and the By-

Laws are in writing, and were read at stated times

| I know of no other By-laws in any other Lodge.

Mr. Hazard. When you were initiated hers,

did you not sign the By-laws ?

Witness. I do not recollect writing my name.

elk Interrogatory. Do you know of any other

oath or obligation up to the 7lh degree, except those

you have specified ?

Witness. I know of none.

9th Interrogatory. Did you understand the oaths

you had taken were in conllict with your civil and

religious duties ?

Witness. That question I have answered before.

Jlir. Hazard. You jay in your address to the

Grá'nd Lodge of Rhode Island, " that you had a

conversation, just before you joined the Lodge,

wiih an intelligent Mason in Providence, concern

ing reports from the West, who assmed you that it

was nothing but a political manœuvre, and that

there was nothing of Masonry in Morgan's Illustra

tions." Who was that gentleman ?

Witness. Is it necessary for me to answer that

question ?

Mr. Hazard. It is.

Witness. My only objection arises from personal

feeling.

Mi. Hazard. There need be none. You are

called upon under your oath.

31r. Muses RicIiarilron, who was standing near

the table, said, There is none on my part.

Witness. I had that conversation with Major

Mnses Richardson, my uncle, who stands before

me, and from whem I received those assurances

and was perfectly satisfied with them at the time.

[It should here. be observed, that tho remark made

by Mr. Richardson, before the name of the individ

ual with whom Mr. Thaqber held the conversation

had been mentioned by any one, furnishes conclu

sive evidence that Mr. Richardson knew of that

conversation, and anticipated that Mr. Thaclicr

would name him.]

Mr. Hazard. You also say in that address that

on coming out of the Lodge, you expressed your

surprise to some one that you'had received three

degrees in one night, and that he replied you could

not have got off very well without. ¡Said they did not

formerly give but one in an evening, but since the

Morgan book came out, the Grand Lodge had issu

ed a dispensation to all its subordinate Lodges, that

they shoutd not confer the riist degree, without the

second and third the same evening. Who was that

; person ?

Witness. My cousin Wm. E. Cutting, of Prov-

| idence.

lli'i Iutcrrogntorn. In that same address you

I say, "Masons of high standing in LoUge and Chap-

, ter have repeatedly declared that if Morgan was

; put to death, he bad met his deserved fate, aad h^4



paid no more than the life he had forfeited by tho

infraction of liin Masonic vows." All men must

consider that you should not have made so heavy a

charge as this, of a justification of murderbyyom

fellow citizens unless you were fully warrantod in

it. It is a very important charge.

Witness. I stated that, as one of the considera

tions which brought me to the conclusion thai it was

a principle in Masonry that the violator ol Masonic

oaths ought to suffer death. I stated it from whai

1 had heard from others, and believed, us I consid

ered, on sufficient authority. . I did not say I hat

heard it myself.

Mr. Hazard. You made that assertion then on

information from others, upon whom you though

you could depend ?

Witness. I stated it on the ground I should any

other historical fact I believed.

Mr. Hazard. Who were these persons from

whom you derived this information ?

Witness. Mr. Warren, a clergyman of Plymouth,

Mass. told me he had heard the High Priest of a

Chapter express an opinion that Morgan had met

his deserved fate. He did not give the name of the

High Priest.

Mr. fIaue Was Mr. Warrenf a Mason, or a se-

ceder ?

Witness. He said he was a Mason. I never sat

in a Lodge with him. He is now a seceding Ma

son. He was not so considered at the time he told

mo this fact. I had no knowledge of his being a

eeceder at that time.

Mr. Hazard. Do you recollect any other per

son ?

Witness. I have heard it spoken of by others,

whose names do not now occur to me, and I have

seen evidence of such opinions having been

avowed by Masons, sufficient to satisfy my mind.

Mr. Hazard. Had you reference to what this Mr.

Warren had said, in your address ?

Witness. I had, and also to publications from

the West, and other statements in newspapers, that

Masons had made use of similar expressions.

12íA Inttrrogatory by Mr. Hazard. In your Ad-

(îress to the Grand Lodge of R. I. you state a con

versation with a Mr. Sayles respecting the alleged

murder ofa man who illegally made a Mason, some

years ago, in or near Providence. The conversa

tion alluded tois stated in Mr. Thaeher's address,

thus :

In the summer or autumn of 1828, a Mr.

Sayles, a gentleman of high standing in the masonic

fraternity, who is considered what is technically

called a 'bright mason,' riding with me on my er-

turn from St. Alban's lodge in Wrentham, related,

substantially, the following circumstances :—A

member of the masonic institution. some years since,

whom I will call А. В.. and who lived in one of the

back towns of Rhode Island, took C. D. and made

him a mason, as the masons would say, "illegally;"

giving him such instructions that he "worked him

self into a lodge." C. D. retained this illegal stand

ing for some time, and rendered himself so familiar

with the 'work,' that he obtained asn office, I think

that ofjunior or senior warden. By and bye, how

ever, it 'leaked out' that C. D. had been made a

mason illegally, and by whom ; when the lodge

'made him over again,' and he was suffered tore-

tain his standing with the fraternity. Soon after

this, A. 15. who had thus violated his masonic obli

gations, happened to be in Providence at the time

the grand lodge was in session, which summoned

him to appear before them. A. B. obeyed the sum

mon, and was by the grand lodge 'put out of the

way,' so secretly, that his friends thought he had

absconded, and this wag the general report. The

manner in which this last act was conducted, I un

derstood Mr. Sayles to be this: The grand lodge

unpointed certain resolute masons to aut as execu

tioners, who inflicted upon Л. B. the penalty of his

obligation, and consigned his body down the river.

The narrator of these circumstannee| expressed h!i

regret that the 'Morgan affair' had not Ьeeл con

ducted as secretly, and thereby prevented all this

noise and commotion.

Mr. Hazard inquired if this was correct ?

Ifitness. The conversation was in substance as

there stated. I related it, not as any thing I knew

myself, but as a conversation I heard. I stated it

deliberately to the best of my recollection.

13í/í Interrogatory. You say you have seen

Caleb Sayles' address, purporting to be a denial of

your statement, in some material particulars. Did

you address Mr. Sayles on this subject, or have any

explanation with him.

W iincas. I never addressed Mr. Sayles on this

subject, except through the medinm of the press.

Mr. Hazard. You say that Mr. Sayles com

municated this circumstance1 to other persons be

sides yourself ; did you ever have any conversation

with those persons ?

Witness. I did not confer with them, after Mr.

Sayles came out with his reply. I conversed with

them sometime before. One of them is a Physician,

Dr. Vfm. W. Pride, and has removed to Gibson,

Pennsylvania.

Mr. Hazard. Well, wherever he is, we will have

that man's deposition.

Witness. Rev. Luther Wright was the other

1 particularly referred to. He now resides in Hol-

liston, Mass.

Mr. Hazard. Were these persons Masons ?

Witness. Yes,

Mr. Hazard. At what time did you converse

with them ?

V/itness. The conversation with Dr. Pride was

in the Summer or Autumn of 1838, and with the

others subsequently.

Utk Interrogatory. Did you immediately alter

your conversation with Sayles, communicate what

you had heard him say to the Grand Lodge, and

did you make any enquiries of them, in relation to

this transaction ;

Witness. I did not. I do not know that I was

acquainted with any member of the Grand Lodge,

except Moses Richardson.

Mr. Hazard. Did you place any reliance on the

account Sayles had given you ?

Witness. I did.

Mr. Hazard. How long did you continue a

Mason after this ?

Witness. Perhaps four or five months after. I

dissolved my connexion with tho Institution pub

licly in May. I am unable to state the precise time

of the conversation with Mr. Sayles.

lotli Interrogatory. You have stated that the

Royal Arch Oath taken by you, did not contain the

exception in the clause as given in the Master Ma

son's oath, requiring you to keep the secret of a

Brother, murder and treason excepted, and that at

your election. This exception being omitted in tho

Royal Arch oath, did you construe it you were to

<eep all secrets, including murder and treason ?—•.

Did you of course construe that oath that you had

not the privilege of any exception ?

Witness. That was my impression and inference

when I came to consider tho oath. Al the time of

:aking it, I had no distinct understanding or opinion.

There were several circumstances thats led me to

an examination. One was that it was stated to mo

iy a Royal Arch Mason, that the oath was adrninis-

ered to him as it is given in the disclosures by tho

Le Roy Convention, murder and treason not ex

cepted. I was satisfied I had not taken it in that

anguage, but on subsequent examination I con

sidered that the oath as I had taken it, required the

concealment of murder ;md treason.

Witness here objected to the language Mr. Hailo

(the Scribe of the Committee) had used inputting

clown his answers. Mr. H. then wrote it over

again in this form. At (he lime the oath was ad

ministered to me I had no distinct impression ur



opinion, but on subsequent examination I supposed

that the literal expression of the oath required the

concealment of murder and treason.

Witness. The word construction would be pre

ferable to expression. Mr. Haile Ihen added it so as

to read expression and construction.

[This and similar occurrences are noted, to show

the difficulty the witnesses against Masonry found

in having their answers put down in their own lan

guage.]

IGiA Interrogatory. Were you called before an

Ecclesiastical Council on account of excluding Ma

sons from your Church ?

Witness. I never was called before an Ecclesi

astical Council on that or any other account.

Mr. Hazard. I ask did you exclude some of your

Society from your communion, who were masons ?

Witness. No Sir, I had no power to exclude. A

dissatisfaction arose in the Church. The offender

was a mason. The Masonic part of the Church

favored him, or joined with him. It was a matter

of Church discipline, but I have no objection to

stating the particulars if it is desired.

Mr. Hazard. Every thing that goes to show the

feelings under which the witness testifies is impor

tant. The inquiry is made without intending any

impeachment of your conduct.

Witness. The circumstances alluded to was a

case of Church discipline. A member of the

Church, who was a Mason, was dealt with and tri

ed before the Church upon three charges. They

were not brought by me, but £by a brother in the

Church.

Mr. Hazard. What were they.

Wil-Atss. One wis for abuse of me in my family.

It related to Masonry, and was abuse of me on that

account, in the presence of my family.

Mr. Hazard. What wr re the other two charges ?

Witness. One was for assisting in preparing and

publishing a report of St. Alban's Lodge, which

was considered slanderous. The other was for he-

coming angry in Church meeting, and uttering

there improper and contemptuous language.

Mr. Hazard. That was actually a Church trial

of strength between Masons and Antimasons.—

What was the result ?

Witness. He was tried and found guilty by

a small majority of the Church, on two of the char

ges, and to the other he plead guilty. I would state

here, that if it is necessary for the Committee to

go into a case of Church discipline in my Church,

there is a pamphlet published, which contains a full

statement of the transaction.

Mr. Hazard. We have nothing to do with your

Church discipline. My object is to ascertain wheth

er there has been a Masonic quarrel in your Cnurch,

that would have an effect upon the feelings under

which the witness would testify.

Witness. The offence related to Masonry, but

the samo offences, in reference to any other matter,

would have been examined.

Mr. Hazard. I don't pretend to judge which

party was right. _ Whether your party was right or

not.it may have' impressed you with feelings that

may have some bearing at this time.

Witness. The Church of which lam pastor have

published the proceedings in this case in full, which

the committee can examine, if they please.

Mr. Hazard. What took place after he was

found guilty ?

Witness. He requested an Ecclesiastical Coun.

cil. He was not. excommunicated, but required to

make an apology ; he had plead guilty to the charge

of becoming angry and using improper language in

Church meeting. The Church, however, complied

with his demand for an Ecclesiastical Council.

-Air. Hazard. What was the result.

Vfitnrss. It would take half an hour to state it

fully. Bullí parties have published their account ol

tlie proceedings. The committee, I presume. have

ioe ou the oilier side. It it is uot material, I should

a little rather not go ints this subject, ltst I mijht

do the Church au injury by not itatiug tin matter

onectly. •

[The witness alluded to a pamphlet which had

been handed to Mr. Hazard, by Moses Richardson,

a mason, at whose suggestion Mr. Hazard appeared

to have gone into this examination of matters of

Church discipline.]

Mr. Hazard. Well, let us know the result.

'Witness. The result was, that he was required

by the Council to make an apology, with which the

Church could not be satisfied, and they regarded it

as virtually an acquittal. If the committee will

listen toit, I am peifectly willing to go overth¡8

whole case, -though it relates exclusively to a mat

ter of Church discipline. The only objection I have

to stating it in this form is, that unless the whole

giound is gone over, it may leave a wrong impres

sion.

Mr. Simmons inquired if all this controversy waï

published on both sides ?

Vfitness. Yes, but I perceive you have nothing

there on our side. [Referring to Mr. Hazard a

pamphlets.]

Mr. Hazard. Will you furnish me with it ?

Witness. I will with all my heart, when I get

home.

Mr. Hazard. Did this lead to a division in the

Church between Masons and Antimasons ?

Vfitness. Those who went wilh me, were none

of them Masons. Those that went with the mem

ber were part Masons and part not.

[In the course of this examination, there was a

pretty clear indication of disapprobation from the

spectators, at this inquiry into a matter of Church

discipline. Mr. Hazard saw it, and said]—Now Mrv

Thacher, as to this, 1 did not intend to go at all into1

the subject. There shall be no use made of thaj

trial by the Committee, 1 assure you, to prejudice

you or your Church in any way ; but I should be

obliged to you if you will furnish me with the

statement on your side.

Witness. I will, sir, whh pleasure.

Mr. Hazard here had some conversation with the"

rest of the Committee. He then said, thst he waff

willing for one, to strike out of the deposition ali

that part relating to this affair in the Church. The'

Witness said he had no objection to its being either

retained or stricken out. Mr. Hazard then directed

Mr. Haile to erase all from and after the Kith Inter

rogatory.

[A few days after the examination, Mr. Thacher

forwarded to a friend, the pamphlet referred to by

Mr. Hazard, and it was placed in his hands. A rer

erence to Mr. Hazard's report, will show the very

special pains he took to procure every thing her

could, connected with Mr. Thacher,in his private or

ministerial relations, in order, if possible, to die-

credit his testimony against Masonry. Mr. Hazard

after the examination, avowed his hostility to Mr.

Thacher, arid his determination to serve him up in

his report, though professing great candor and re

spect, while he was before the Committee. A very

considerable portioïi of that report, as presented to-

the General Assembly, was devoted to a personal

attack upon Mr. Thacher. These facts are not un

important in forming a fair opinion of the proceed

ings ol the Committee, especially the Chairman.]

17th Interrogatory. Before you made your ad

dress to the Church, and communicated your in

tention to secede from Masonry, had it been inti

mated to you that it was expected of you to secede ?

Witness. No, sir, I did it of my own accord1.—

The members of the Church did not intimate to me

that they expected or wished me to secede, nor was

it intimated or expected, to my knowledge.

Mr. Hazard. You are desirous of giving the

oaths accurately, and hero is one part I suppose is

considered material. Furthermore, I promise and

swear, that if any part of my obligation is omitted

in this time , I will hold myself amenable, whenever



informed.

Witness. Î have no recollection of that clause in

the oath administered to me.

M? . MOSES Rickardsen, [who has held some of

the highest Masonic offices in Rhode Island, and

was a delegate |Vom that Grand Chapter to the Gen

eral Grand Chapter which a>sembled in New York

in 182G, just about the time of Morgan's abduction,]

here addressed the Committee verbally, and said

that as his ñama liad been mentioned by the wit

ness, he asked the liberty to ask him a lew ques

tions, without writing them.

Mr. Hazard. Our rule has been that if any

citizen has questions to ask, he should do ¡tin writ

ing. Mr. Richardson considers his case different,

as he has been personally alluded to. i have no ob

jection.

Mr. Haue. I have none.

Mr. Hazard, to tho Witness. Did Mr. Sayles

mention the name of the person who made a mason

illegally in one ot the back towns in Rhode Island ?

Witness. He did not.

Mr. Hazard directed Mr. Haue to go back and

put that answer in its proper place.

Mr. Moses Richardson here commenced asking a

question, relative to the number of times witness

had stated his conversation with Saylee.

Mr. Hazard interrupted him. He considered it

improper for a bystander to put a question verbally.

The witness had referred to many persons, and if

they were admitted to come and question the wit

ness, they would take the examination out of the

hands of the Committee. He was perfectly willing

on his own part, but there was a propriety which

must be observed. If Mr. Richardson wishes to

state any thing, he can become a witness, orpresent

it in writing.

Mr. Richardson said he submitted, but he de

clining reducing his questions to writing. Mr. Haz

ard said if Mr. Richardson would suggest to the

Committee any relevant question, he would put it.

Some side conversation here passed between Mr.

H.&Mr. R.

Mr. Hazard. Mr. Richardson wishes that you

may be asked whether you have stated the conver

sation of Sayles with you, in print, on any other

occasion than your address to the Grand Lodge?

Witness. Yes. It is mentioned in a note in my

renunciation.

Mr. Hazard. Have you related your aforesaid

nonversation with Mr. Sayles, in any other publica

tion, and in what?

Witness. I made it in my address to my congre

gation. It was contained in a note lo that address.

It was also published in the proceedings of the An-

timasonic Convention at Philadelphia. That state

ment did not pass under my examination before it

was published. 1 made the statement verbally in

the Conventi«n.

[Mr. William M7 kinson (Mason) hore made

some remark to Mr. Hazard which was not heard.

Mr. Hazard replied, that will show for itself.

Mr. Hazard. Did you make that statement at an

Antimasonic Convention in Providence, in May

1830. '

Witness. 1 have no recollection of it. Do not

think I did.

Mr.Hu:аrd. Did you make it at a Convention

in lioston?

Witness. Did not recollect that he did. He

had gone over so much ground in this examination,

it was possible he might not •be able to recollect

whether he had or hud not so stated.

Mr. Hazard said it was not materia]. Not of any

consequence. [It being now 10 o'clock in the

evening. Mr. Hazard inquired if no other gen

tleman of the Committee wished to ask any more

questions. Mr. Simmons asked if wiiness had seen

trie Koyai Arch degree administered to others.—

Witness replied he had not, except so far as ho had

seen it given lo-the parsons who took it with him.

Mr. Hazard handed the paper Mr. Haile had

written on, to Mr. Thacher and requested him to

sign it. Witness said he did not precisely know

wnat the paper contained. Mr. Hazard told him he

must sign it, or they should consider it very extra

ordinary, fie asked if it was not satisfactory?

Witness replied he did not know hut that it was,

but he was so much exhausted with an examina

tion of twelve hours,that he did not feel entire confi

dence in his powers lo discriminate,whether the evi

dence was taken down correctly or not. He should

prefer having an opportunity to examine it. Mr.

Hazard insisted upon his signing it, and used lan

guage of intimidation toward witness, giving him

to understand it would be considered a contempt of

the Committee if he did not sign it, and he would

be treated accordingly. Mr. Thacher replied thnt

be certainly should not sign it, unless he heard it

read in connexion. Mr. Hazard said it had been

read sufficiently.

Mr. Hallett here said that the witness ought not

to be pressed on this point. It was apparent to

every one that in many instances Mr. Haile had not .

taken down the answers of the witness in his owu

language, nor in his meaning fully. It would bo

very extraordinary to press a man to sign a

paper he did not know the contents of, under such

circumstances. Mr. Hazard said he did not thank'

Mr. Hallett for his interference. The Committee

understood their duty. Mr. Thacher said he was

obliged to Mr. Hallett for the suggestion, and fi'lt

that he ought to he protected against sigmng the

paper, in ignorance of its contents. He certain

ly should not sign it so. Mr. Hazard said very

well. The Committee Aould put a proper con

struction upon such a refusal. He then asked

the witness if he would hear the testimony read

all through, and then sign it? Witness replied that'

his mind was not in a proper state ior such a task,

but ha would listen to it as well as he could. Mr.

Haile then proceeded to read the testimony he

had taken down. It was found to be incorrectly

stated in many very essential particulars, which

were generally corrected, though in very many

instances the witness couid not succeed in having

his own ideas expressed in his own words. The

reading was not finished until after twelve o'clock at

night. Mr. Thacher then put his name to the pa

per, with a written reservation, that it contained

the substance of his statement, to the best of his

knowledge and belief.

COMMENTS.—[This attempt to force Mr. Thach

er into a heedless signature of a statement drawn

up in this manner, was obviously made by the Chair

man with a view to involve the witness in some

contradiction, which might furnish him with materi

als for discrediting this witness, as he afterwards

tabored hard to do, in his report, A candid exami

nation of Mr. Thacher's testimony as it is here pre

sented almost verbatim, is invited. It is believed

that on looking it through, it will he found that few-

witnesses have ever sustained so long and close an

examination, with more uniform accuracy and con

sistency. At tho close of the examination Mr.

Thacher was excused by the Committee from fur

ther attendance, for which act of courtesy ha

thanked them.

The next day, after Mr. Thacher had left the

State and relumed to his residence, some .Masons

were busy in circulating an infamous handbill,

assailing his character, which had been published

some time before in Massachusetts. They to^k this

Masonic method to discredit the witness, not daring

to attempt to touch his character while ne was un

der examination. The disposition uniformly evinced

by Masons, to traduce the character of Mr Thacher,

and their declining to bring any testimony to dis

credit him, which they had full opportunity to do,

whils he was under examination as a witness, lm-

nifh conclusive proof that his enemies have no

ground» for their aspersisn", whi»¡b- they Hare 'e."-



ir

by legtil investigation. Another attempt was made

to discredit Mr. Thaclier's testimony, by declaring

in Masomc newspapers and elsewhere, that be haï

ч stated a great many tiiings' in his speeches am

writings on Masonry which he did not dare to swear

to under oath. The reason is obvious. In his

speeches and writings Mr. Thucher had used facts

which he believed sufficiently proved by others,

at he had a perfect right to do; but when Hmder

oath, he was bound to assert nothing that was nol

ivithin his own personal knowledge. The care and

caution with which he confined himself to this rule,

in his examination, will give to any candid man, an

additional confidence in the truth of his declara

tions.

Another attempt to evade the force of Mr.Tlinth

ers's testimony, was made by representing in the

Masonic paper at Providence, that he had really

stated nothing against Masonry, in his examination.

The reflection will' readily occur, that if Mr.

Tliacher had really testified to nothing against Ma

sonry, lor what reason has he been so severely villi-

iii-d by Masons for stating when not under oath, tin:

very F;MIH. facts touching Ale sonic oaths and princi

ples which he swore to in this examination ?

TESTIMONY OF REV. LEVI CHASE.

Thursday morning, Dec. 8.—The Investigating

Committee met at 0 o'clock: Present the same as

yesterday. , The second witness,

1лm Cliase, was called, and sworn to tell the

whole trull». In answer to general-interrogatories,

says—

I reside at Fall River,-town of Troy, (Mass.) am

by trade a machinist, now the operator ot a nr.ill—

a manufacturer. Am an ordained minister of the

Gospel. I have been a Mason, but am- not now.—

Have taken the six first degrees. I was a Most Ex

cellent Master. I was made a mason in Manchester

Lodge, in Coventry, R. I. in the year 1815 : I think

in December, or first of 181C. I took three degrees

in that Lodge-r-all that Lodge was authorized to

confer. The other three I received in Warren, at

the Royal Arch Chapter, in the fore part of the

year 1822. I was never made a member of а

Chapter. I continued a Mason up to 1828, in the

fall, I think, when I publicly seceded. There was

an obligation administered to me at the time of tak

ing each of these degrees. I could not repeat the

obligations verbatim. I could the penalties. I could

write the oaths out, on reflection. . •

(Mr. Simmons read the Entered Apprentices' oath

from Bernard's Light on Masonry) page 20.

Witness. That is correct as administered to me

by John Greene, Agent of Warwick Manufacturing

Company, in Warwick, who was at that time Wor

shipful Master of the Lodge.

Mr. Simmons then read the Fellow Craft's oath,

from Bernard, pages 44 and 45.

Witness. It agrees with the oath I took—except

I was not to wrong a Brother one cent, (not two)

dispersed (not disposed) over the globe, and so

help me God—(not keep). Otherwise it is substan

tially the same. The words "square or angle of my

work," I am confident were not administered to me.

.Mr. Hazard. Keep instead of help ; that must

be n typographical error.

Mr. Simmons then read the Master Mason's oath

from Bernard, page 61.

Mr. Simmons. Was any explanation given?

Witness. Ne explanation or intimation was given,

until I was brought and placed in a proper situation

to ieceive the oatb. I had no knowledge till then,

that an oath -was -administered in the Lodge, l was

first prepared by being stripped of my apparel.

Mr. Simmons here suggested that that part of the

ceremony was immaterial.

Witness. With the permision of the Committee

I will give it in my own way. My apparel being

taken off,—

Mr. Hazard. I would suggest to ths witness that

¡I is not necessary fur him to relate the ceremony.

The Committee -have no objection, but you will

be asked if all the previous ceremonies are correctly

stated in-Bemard, which will embrace your whele

answer.

[sVoie. The design of this ingenious suggestion

was apparent. It would obviate giving a detail of

the degrading ceremony in the deposition, which it

was then expected would be openly read before

the General Assembly. The reference to the cer

emonies in Bernard would not be understood, be

cause not one in fifty ot the members had ovei-

seen that book.]

Witness. 1 was placed in a very cuiious position

to receive the oath and shouid like to explain it, a*

a reason why I took it, and others afier it, without

proper ieflection. „

Mr. Hazard. Is not the whole of this contained

in Bernard's Light on Masonry ?'

Witness. 1 do not know but it is just as 1 received it.

In the first place I was informed that it was neces

sary 1 should be prepared. I was prepared by being^

divested of my apparel except my shirt, and a pair

of drawers provided and put on. I was then hood

winked by a bandage across my eyes, a cable tow

orroperqund my neck, and—

Mr. Hazard. I SHOULD BE ASHAMED- тo AC*

KNOWLEDGE THAT !

Witness. I am willing to confess how degraded

a situation I was placed in to receive the oath, and

you must remember I am sworn by you, to tell the

whole truth. My shirt was stripped off my left arm,

and my left breast naked. [Grand Master Cook,

and Past High Priest Wilkinson,who were sitting at

the table,guv e indications of great uneasiness here.]

In this situation I was led into the Lodge Room,

and made to kneel, at the altar, on my naked left

knee, my hands clasping the bible. Then I was in-

Termed by the Worshipful Master, that I was placed

h a proper situation to receive the oath or obligation,

which he informed me was not to infringe upon my

-eligibus nof political sentiments. He asked me if'

l was willing to receive it on that condition. My

answer was, that I was. Then he ordered me to

repeat my own name, Lcvi Chase, am! repeat after"

iim the oath that has been read tome. A similar

assurance was given before each of the three

îrst degrees he conferred on me, only the phraseol

ogy may be a little different. He would assure me

as before, &c.

Mr. Thomas Rivers, here said it was very easy

"or the witness to learn the oath or write it out of

Bernard.

Wstness. I never saw Bernard's Light on Mason-

•y, until last Friday (six days before) when it was

banded me by Mr. Shove. I wrote out the oath

long before I ever saw Bernard's, as it is given in-

ny Address to the Grand Lodge of Rhode Island,-

lublished in June 1831: I could not therefore have

written it from Bernard, as you say.

Mr. Haile. Is that substantially the oath you

.ook?

Witness. It is.excepting two variations. Murder

md treason excepted, and they left to my own free

vill and choice, was the way I took' it.

Mr. Hazard. It is immaterial whether it is elec-

ion,orfree will and choice. The meaning is the

same. *

Mr. Rivers, said he wiehetT to explain. He

did not mean to intimate that the witness had

taken the oath wholly from- Bernard, but he (Wit

ness) said that hecoukl not remember the oaths,and

he inferred tire witness had written Ihem from Ber1'

nardi

Mr. Hallett remarked that witness said he couM

not repeat the oaths verbatim at once, but could

write them out, on reflection.

Mr. Kazardsaid this interference was improper.

Mr. Halletl replied that he was aware of it, but

if Mr. Rivers wag permitted to make an insinuation •

against-the witness, he had a ri^ht to repel it.
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Witness. The words "and they left at my own

Iree will and choice, or election" instead of "st my

own election," were used in the oath I took. Then

aa to the penalty—"teers I to prove" guilty, instead

of "euer to prone" guilty. I recallect distinctly

receiving the words "if any part of my obligation is

omitted at this time, I ptomise to hold myself amen

able thereto whenever informed."

Mr. Simmons then read the Mark Masler'i oath,

from Bernard, page 98.

¡fitness. That is substantially the same. I have

no recollection that the woid sicap was used.

Mr. Simmons then read the Past Master's oath,

from Bernard, page 109.

Witness. That is substantially the same, except

help me God ana keep me, instead ot"make me."

When you first replied Jesus Christ, was it your

intention to exclude God and the Holy Spirit?

Witness. It was not.

Mr. Hazard, (considerably excited.) It don t

fay well, Mr. Witness.

Witness. Well Sir, I am willing you should

make it fay as you please. It fays with Masonry.

[Note. If Mr. Hazard had studied Masonry in her

own constitutions, he would have fouud no difficulty in

understanding the witness. Masonry is designed to be

universal, to include Turks, Pagans, Jews, and Gentiles.

Consequently she excludes all religions but natural re

ligion. She acknowledges a God. it is true, but he may

be Juggernaut, Brama, Allah, a Chinese Josh, or the

God of the Christian. It is all the same in her universal

creed. Mr. Hazard should have recollected too, that

Mr. Simmons then read the Most Excellent Mas

ter's oath, from Bernard, page 120.

Witness. That is substantially the same—(no

variation was mentioned.) After 1 was initiated, a

charge was read.

Mr. Simmons read from Webb's Monitor, p. 41,

the charge at initiation in the first degree, (the same

as eiven in the testimony of Mr.Thacher.)

Witness. That was read to me from Webb's Mon

itor.

Mr. Simmons. Did you consider it as binding

as your oath ?

Witness. I did not.

Mr. Hazard. 1 shall begin to think Masonry is

worse than I ever thought it was, if Ministers will

take these oaths and charges, and then not consider

them binding.

Witness. I did not consider the charge as bind

ing in every particular.

Mr. Hazard. Who gave the charge to you in

the Chapter?

Witness. 1 have no recollection of any charge

given tu me in the upper degrees, in particular. I

did not consider this charge binding, where it came

in contact with my religious principles, in saying

that no institution was ever raised on a better foun

dation than Masonry, none ever established better

i ules, &.c. I considered the Christian religion a

better institution. That was the only part which

struck me as objectionable at that time.

Mr. Hazard. Did you make any protest against

it at the time ?

Witness. N o sir, I did not.

Mr. Hazard. Then you left it to be understood

you had no objections to it?

Witness. 1 would observe that I was brought in

that situation where I vras like a slave, with a rope

around my neck. I felt a fear to protest against

any thing, situated as I was.

Mr. Hazard. What was your objection to that

part of the charge?

Witness. I had embraced the religion of the Son

of God, an Institution I considered far superior to

that of Masonry. A circumstance impressed my

mind much. I was asked, " whom do you believe

in?" My answer was, in Jesus Christ, the Son of

God. I was checked, and ordered to say, in God.

This impressed my mind that the Institution wished

to exclude the religion of the Son of God.

Mr. Hazard. You were checked by the presiding

officer?

¡fitness. The conductor told me to say, in God.

Mr. Hazard. I want to go to the bottom of this

Moses Seixas, a thorough professed Jew, was long

Grand Master, High Priest, &c. of Masonry, at New

port, Rhode Island, and could he have presided over a

society that professed belief in Jesus Christ, whom he

regarded as an impostor?]

Mr. Hazard. Do you consider that the words

Jesus Christ, include God, the Father, and the

Holy Spirit?

Witness. Do you wish to know my belief re

specting Deity?

Mr. Hazard, (vehemently.) Do you consider

that the words Jesus Christ, the Son of God, include

God the Father, and the Holy Spirit?

Witness. 1 do not, Sir, in every sense of the

word. If the Chairman is going into an investiga

tion of my belief of divine things, 1 shall wish an

opportunity to explain. •

Mr William Sprague, (senior) here remarked,

that he believed it was unusual in this state, .to

press witnesses on their religmus opinions.

[The numerous spectators' present, evinced no

little surprise, at the course the Chairman was pur

suing. Mr Hazard said, that some persons might

think that the witness was hardly pressed. His

object was to inquire if he meant to charge Masons

with being Atheists. The witness said he had

made no such charge.]

Mr. Hazard—with emphasis—Do you or do you

not consider that the word God also includes

Christ and the Holy Spirit ?

Witness. I do not in every sense. If you will

give me an opportunity, I will explain. First

as to the reasons why I do not understand that

Jesus Christ does not, in every sense compre

hend God the Father.

Mr. Hazard. It is a short question, and requires

a short answer.

Witness. I must answer ¡t my own way.

Mr. Simmons. How long will it take you ?

Witness. It may take me three hours ; I will ex

plain my reasons if the Committee wish it.

Jlir. Hazard You dont frighten us. We will

sift this matter to the bottom

Witness. You have placed me in a situation to

make me out an Unitarian or Trinitarian, as you

please.

Mr. Hazard. You have undertaken to impeach

your fellow citizens as heathens, and it is our du

ty to protect them.

Witness. Yery well Sir. You can protect them,

if you choose, only allow me to explain.

Mr. Hazard. You have placed yourself in this

situation, and you must take the consequence.

Mr. Sprague, Jr. One of the Committee, ob-

business. It seems to be an imputation upon the

religious belief of this whole class of your fellow

citizens. What I wish to know is, did you infer

that they were deists, and wanted to exclude Jesus

Christ?

Witntss. I do suppose that they wished to ex

clude the name of Jesus Christ, the Son of God,

and the religion of the Savior, as being no part of

Masonry.

Mr. Hazard, to Mr. Haue—Put that down, and

let us sei what it all comes to. To the witness—

jected to going into an investigation ot a man's re

ligious creed.

Mr. Hazard persisted, and the witness said he

was ready to proceed, as fast as Mr. Haile would

take down his explanation. Mr Haile said be had

written it down, thus—The reasons why I do not

consider that Jesus Christ includes God and the

Holy Spirit, are, first, because he is called the son

of man.

Mr. Simmons. Would you prefer to explain this,

here, or to write out your reasons, come other

time >



Witness said it was immaterial to him which.—

He only wished not to be left in a situation for the

spectators to draw an unfavorable inference from

his not being allowed to explain. When he receiv

ed the degree, he was as he hoped, a christian.—

Had he first been tuld to say he believed in God,

he should not have thought of it, but their rejec

tion of his use of the words Jesus Christ, brought

«n impression to his mind, that they meant to make

a distinction, unfavorable to the сhristian religion.

He could not see the difference, but they evidently

meant to make one. He was willing to leave it

there.

Mr. Hazard—(Here began to soften a little.)—

That will do very well, if you will say you dont

believe so now. You ought to extend charity to

уш« brethren.

Witness. 1 will say, in all charity, that I do not

believe they were Deists, but that such is the ten

dency and design of the Masonic Institution. ]

find by searching the six degrees administered to

me, that the word Christ or Son of God, is exclud

ed, and I believe there was a design in it, to ex

clude his religion.

Mr. Hazard (with warmth.) Then you mean to

call them Deists.

Witness. No Sir. I do not wish to condemn

any man's opinions. I do not speak of the individ

uals, but I say the Institution is founded on DEISM.

Mr. Hazard. 1 now understand you to say that

it is the fault of the Institution and not of the indi

viduals ?

Wstness. I did not intend to impeach the mem

bers, but the Institution as designed to exclude the

christian religion.

Mr. Hazard. The design to exclude the Chris

tian religion you impute to the founders of the In

stitution, not to those who are now its members ?

Witness. To the Institution, as well as it found

ers.

Mr. Simmons. Would you prefer at your leis

ure to Write out your answers to the questions Mr.

Hazard has asked you, or will you have them ta

ken down now.

Witness. Either, way. [Up to this time Mr.

Haile had not written down the answers of witness

to the question touching his belief in the distinct

existence of the different persons in the trinity.—

He now wrote it down in the following form.]—

" The desigri to exclude Jesus Christ and the

Christian religion, I impute to the Institution (oí

Free Masonry,) and not to the members of it with

whom I am acquainted, many of wliotn I believe to

be сhristians. I also lind , on examination, as far as

1 have gone in the six degrees, that Jesus Christ

and his religion are excluded.

[Mr. Moses Riclrirdson, a Mason here made some

remarks to Mr. Simmons,] upon which Mr. S. in

quired. Did you ever hear it explained that the

Scriptures were to be the rule and guide of your

whole life ?

Witmiss. Does not remember ever to have heard

it so explained. Is confident he never did in the

Lodge. Has heard portions of scripture read

there.

Mr. Hazard. Did you ever attend the lectures

in a Lodge ?

Witness. I never did, except the parte used at

the opening and closing of a Lodge.

Mr. Hazard. I am certain I have seen lectures

in which the holy scriptures are acknowledged to

be the guide for Masons.

Mr Hazard. Do you know if at the meeting

of Lodges for Lectures, &c. ; do you know if the

scriptures are referred to ?

Witness. I do not, for the reason that I never

attended or heard of such lectures. I never heard

it explained in any Lodge, that the scriptures were

to be the guide of Masons. 1 know of no lectures

given there for that purpose.

Mr Hazard—(turning to Mr Joseph S. Cooke

Grand Master of the Grand Lodge, who was silting

at the table,) how is it, Mr Cooke ? Dont you have

lectures.

.We. Cooke replied that the Lodges were in the

practice of holding meetings for lectures. I do not

know whether in opening and closing Lodges the

scriptures are read or not.

Mr. Hallett here asked whether Grand Master

Cooke intended to say that meetings of the Lodges

were held for the delivery of lectures upon morals,

science, the arts, or any subject o(,that nature ?

Mr. Cooke said, they were in the habit of having

lectures in the Lodges. '

Mr. Hallett asked : did you ever know lectures

given in Lodges for any other purpose than to ex

plain the signs, grips, and ceremonies ?

Mr. Cooke said he could not precisely tell what

the lectures were.

Mr. Hazard said the examination was not to be

taken out of the hands of the Committee in this

way.

Mr. Hallett replied that Mr Cook had intimated

that meetings of Lodges were held for scientific and

literary lectures,and he wished the Committee might

understand what these lectures were. [He here'

held up an old pamphlet printed in characters, under

Masonic sanction, containing the lectures and oaths

in the three first degrees. This book was after

wards proved to have been contrived by Masons,

and used in Rhode Island Lodges, for studying the

lectures.] Mr. Hallet said, that pamphlet contained

the lectures in the three first degrees. - They taught

how to tuck up and tuck down the apron] and how

to kill Hiram Abiff, but they contained neither sci

ence or morals. He challenged the Grand Master

to show that any other description of lectures were

delivered in Lodges. Mr. Hazard here interposed,

and the examination proceeded. The Grand Mas

ter was afterwards personally requested by Mr

Hallett, to furnish evidence, if there was any, that

any iither lectures were delivered in Lodges ex

cept those that related to the ceremonies of initia

tion, and those read to the candidates from Webb's

Monitor. The G. M. did not pretend there were

any others.

[COMMENTS.—The^ubstance of these pretendedly

scientific and mm nl lectures, as delivered in Lodges,

will be found in Barnard's Light on Masonry. The

Grand Master (if not corrected) would have con

veyed the impression which is so often falsely

entertained, that regular courses of lectures from

which valuable information could be derived, are

given in Lodges and Chapters; and the Investigating

Committee not only permitted this inference to bo

drawn from his statement, but the Chairman was

evidently displeased at an explanation which de

monstrated the fact that these lectures, instead of

conveying information, are made up of questions and

answers about the childish ceremonies and profane

oaths of the degrees.]

Mr. Simmons inquired ofthe witness if the charg

es read from Webb, in the three degrees, were de

livered to him, and if he considered them binding?

Witness had not read Webb for fifteen years, but

thinks the charges were read to him. Without

giving them much attention at the time, it occurred

to him that there were smnc things not altogether

systematical. He considered them binding as a man,

so far as they did not interfere with his religious

opinions, and as a Mason so far as they did not in

terfere with his more solemn obligations.

Mr Simmtns. What part did you consider not

systematical ?

Witness. I alluded there to the first sentence,

'your leal for the institution of Masomy,the progress

you have made in the mystery, and your conformity

to our rules, have pointed you out as a proper object

of our favor.' I was hurried through the degrees.

I took the first degree on Tuesday evening, and the

two next on Saturday following, so that I conld not

have made much progress in the mystery.



[Mr. Hazard had spent some time in looking over

Webb's Monitor, whicli had been handed to him by

Mr. Richardson, a Mason, for some purpose. Hav

ing apparently found what he was looking for, he

«iid

Here is Ihe clause. Have you ever read from

Webb,—from the Masonic Monitor, in an Address

.to Master Masons the following section in the Mon

itor, ' The Huly -WVíítngí^that great light in Ma

sonry, will guide you to all truth; it will. direct

your paths to (ho tomple of happiness, and point oui

to you the whole duty of man.' Now, Mr. witness,

it ¡s truth we want. It is the duly of the Committee

to protect their fellow citizens, who are charged in

this loose manner with excluding the Christian re

ligion. Was that charge given to you? {It will be

observed that Mr. Hazard was particularly close in

his cross questions when Masonry or Masons were

implicated by the testimony. It will be useful tosee

hereafter, how he applied this rule when adhering

Masons were under examination.]

In reply to Mr. Hazard's question, relative to the

Holy writings being the guide of Masons, witness

saii! he did not remember to have heard that sen

tence in the Lodge.

Mr. Hutlett proposed a question in writing,

" were you ever present at the installation of the

Master of a Lodge?"

Witness said no.

Mr llailctt then referred Mr Hazard to page 97

of Webb's Monitor, showing that the address from

.which he had read the expression about the ' Holy

Writings' was not made to a Master Mason, but to

the Master of a Lodge, on his installation, by the

Grand Master.

. [Mr Muses Richardson here whispered to Mr Sim

mons.]

Mr Simmons (addressing the witness,)—Ts it not

usual, to give the same charge in the Past Masters

degree as at the Installation of the Master of a

Lodfrc ?

Witness. I do not know.

[This covil<J not be the caso with the Address Mr

Kazaid tead from, because that commences, 'Yon

are iiow to ba installed Master of this new Lodge-.]

[NOTE. As Messrs. Hazard and Simmons were

sso anxious to prove that Masonry was, as she has

pretended to ho ' the Handmaid of religion,' and

censured Mr. Chase so sternly for sHedging that

Masonry excluded the Christian religion, it may not

he out of place here to iefer to what the Masonic

Hook of Constitutions understands by Holy Writings.

We quote from the original charge at Initiation into

the first decree, p. 175 of the Massachusetts Book

of Constitutions, edited by a learned and pious di

vine, Thaddeus M. Harris, D. D. and approved by

the Grand Lodge. ' As a gentleman and и Mason,

you are to be a strict observer of the mqraf law, as

contained in the Holy Writings.* Note by Dr Har

ris H ' The Bible, and in countries where. it is not

lilwwn, ANV OTHER BOOK, WHICH IS UNDERSTOOD

TO CONTAIN THE WORD OF GoD.'

MR. HAZARD'S INTERROOATORIES.

Mr Hazard here proposed to witness the interrog

atories, wilh pome variations, he had put to Mr.

Timelier. Tu the first whe4her ho inquired as to

the natura of lha oaths, bofore he took them..

Witnessed üe did not, because he iliil not under

stand even tkat an oalIi. was to be administered,

lirfare he took the first degree. If he had known

and undej-stood the nature of the oaths anil what he

was to go through, he should not h^ve taken the

decrees. After taking the first degree, ho did en

deavor to find out if there wore any more oaths,

imt he could nor. Jle asked a brother Mason when

going up to 'de Lodge to take the 2d degree, and he

replied. ' O, you go forward and take the other

degrees and youvv'ul be satisfied.' He was dissatis

fied on taking tho first degree, but he went forward.

The Committee hare adjourned ut quarter before

..n o'clut:^.

Thursday Afternoon December 8th. Met again at

3 o'clock, and continued Mr. Hazard's interrogato

ries. Witness was confident he did not understand

the oaths,when be took them, as he did afterwards.

The reason was they were given one word or sen

tence at a liinu. and he did not know what was com

ing next, and could not keep up the connexion in

his mind. The mallet was drawn across his throat,

to remind him of 1rs penalty. The oath was givee

to him the same as a master learns achild his letters,

who don't know what is coming for him to repeat.

1 can only compare it to this.

Mr. Hazard. How old were you?

Witness. About 29 years of age.

Mr. Hazard. How long did you remain in a

Lodge?

Witness. I was a Mason from 181G to 1828.

Mr Hazard. Were you a child all that time ?

Witness. I am a child yet I hope, of the 6on of

God, and I wish- all men wore the same.

Mr Hazard. It is very well for the community

to know what kind of Masons there are who come

here to charge their fellow citizens with being athe

ists.

Mr Simmons. Have you answered that part of

the 1st Interrogatory, whether you made inquires

before taking the oath ?

Witness. I have answered that beforei 1 did

not.

Mr Simmons. Did you reflect, after you had ta

ken each oath, upon its nature, force and extent ?

Witness. 1 had no chance to reflect. 1 have

giyen the reasons before.

Mr Simmons. If not satisfied with the oaths, did

you complain or object 3

V/itness. I have answered that 1 made inquiry

ot a brother.

Mr Hazard. The question I ask is, whether af

ter you took the first oath, you reflected on it,

before you toek another ?

Witness. 1 did so far as I have stated, and ask

ed a brother, but could get no explanation.

Mr. Hazard. Were you satisfied with the oath,

upon the reflection you did give to it ?

Witness. I was not. Thai ia answered before, if

I understand language.

Mr Hazard Did you then make any inquiry of

the elder Masons, as to how they construed their

oaths, to remove these doubts?

Witness. Ail the inquiry I made was of the

brother when going np to the Lodge, between

Tuesday and Saturday.

Mr Hazard. If these people come here to run

down their fellow citizens, let us see what they

I know about it.

Mr Sts-ague, of the Committee, here objected to

this course of examination. Some observations

passed between him and Mr Hazard, which wero

not heard.

Mr Simmons. Upon taking Hie other oaths,

were you satbfied ?

Witness. I was not. Mr. S. did you complain

or object to the Lodge '

VfUness. I never complained or objected in the

Lodge, because I never afterwards attended that

Lodge, and 1 should have feared the consequences

if I had complained.

Thursday Afte.rnoon December 6th. Tho Com

mittee met at 3 o'clock, and resumed the examina

tion of Mr. Chase.

Mr. Hazard. Was there any thing in your Ma

sonic oaths which made it dangerous for you to se

cede, or dissolve your connection with the Lodge?

Witness. If you mean not to attend the Lodge,

I did not so understand them. I did discontinue visit

ing the Lodge, but I considered if I seceded or dis

closed the secrets, my Masonic obligations would

not tolerate me in so doing, and I was afraid the

penalties of the obligations might be iuflicled on

me.

Mr. Ifaile repeated the question.



Witness. I did not consider the quitting of the

.n.I".-.!, dangerous, but I did consider it dangerous

to secede and renounce Masonry.

Mr Hazard. I will put the question, which you

don't seem to understand. Was there any thing

that rendered it dangerous for you to dissolveeyour

connection with your Lodge?

Witness. NQI in quitting the Lodge in the way

1 did, but I did consider it would be dangerous to

secede. There is a difference between leaving the

Lodge and seceding.

Mr Simmons. The question is whether you con

sidered it dangerous to dissolve your connection?

Wtiness. I have answered that.

Mr Simmons. Do you perfectly comprehend the

meaning of the question?

Mr Hazard. No matter. We have got it. (To

the witness.) Did you think there was any thing

dangerous in complaining in the Lodge {of your

oaths.]

Witness. I did at that time. Equally se much

so as complaining out of the Lodge.

Mr. Hazard. This is a serious examination, and

.1 ask you to point out what part of your Masonic ob

ligations forbid you to complain?

Witness. I thought that part which bound me to

keep'the secrets inviolable and net to speak evil of a

brother in the Lodge or out ol it, neither behind his

back nor before his face, rendered it dangereus, for I

could not speak against the Institution without

speaking against those who support it.

Mr Hazard. Well. Was there any thing in

yonr Masonic oaths that compelled you ttl go on,

•taking further degrees.

- Witness. No, Sir, there was not.

Webb's Monitor was here handed to the witness

•by Mr. Turner, open at page 30, and this question

was put to him by request. Previous to taking the

orvth in the first degree, while in the preparation

room, wore you required to give your assent to

several declarations one of which was, ' Do you se

riously declare upon your uonor.that you will cheer

fully conform to all the ancient established usages

and customs of the Fraternity?

Witness. These questions were asked before 1

look the Entered Apprentice'soath,and I was bound

to submit.

Mr. Hazard. But what part of this did you

consider would prevent your complaining to the

Lodge?

I\itness. That part where I have bound myself

to conform to the usages of Masonry, withoutknow'

ing what they were.

Mr Hazard. Was obedience to the Lodge in

consistent with your right to complain.

Witness. I considered that complaining to the

Lodge would be complaining against those who up-

íiold the Lodge, and I had submitted myself to the

usages of tho Lodge and could not complain.

Mr Hazard. I said nothing about that, but I will

ask you whether you had that on your mind before

•the book was handed to you?

Witness said he had owned that book, Webb's

Monitor, since 181G, and that the preparatory obli

gation in tho Kntered Apprentice degree, together

with his other obligations, certainly did occur to his

mind, as reasons wby it would not be safe to com

plain. The Chairman, he said, had treated him as

if ho were a child, in this examination.

Mr. Hazard. I asked you if you were a child,

because you represented yourself so, as learning

your letters, when taking the oatli?.

Ifitness. In one respect I was like a child when

taking the oaths; an infant is naked, and 1 was

nearly so. •

Mr Simmons. Did you consider these prelimina

ry objections, and theoalhs and charges lobe all

connected, and atl binding upon those who took

them, and did you so masonically consider them

when you took them !

Witness. After reflection I to considered thorn

Masonically, as all in connection, and do at this

time. I considered the charges were, the trap laid to

draw persons in to hold and bind them by tire oaths.

Mr Hazard then proceeded with tho inlerogato-

ries, as propounded loMrThacher. In answer to

5th, whether witness considered he gave the Lodge

jurisdiction as far as he could, to inflict the penal

ties. if he violated his oaths, &c. Witness save af

ter mature reflection he did consider them of that

nature. He came to that conclusion about a year

after he took them (say 1817.) He then consider

ed that he ought to bo cautious as to what he said

against the: Institution. The word caution, is used

in the Lodge.

In answer to the 6th, 7th and 8th Interogatories,

witness says he knows of no secrets except such аs

are explained in Bernard. Has not seen Ailyn's

Ritual. He did consider his Masonic oaths con

flicted with his civil duties, immediately upon re

flecting on them.

In answer to 10th Interogatory, what induced

him to secede from Masonry,

Witness says he seceded in 1828. Varioua cir

cumstances lead to it. The principie one was the

following which he wished to have taken down.—

In thre latler part of September, 18S7, going from

Dighton to Pawtucket, I stoppçd at the house of

Capt. linker, I do not recollect his other name.—

Elder Duniel Greene .of Pawtucket came in and af

ter thu ;irst salutations said he wanted to speak with

me..

[JVofc. Mr Greene is a respectable Baptist Cler

gyman. He has gone as high as the Knight Tem

plar's degree,and has been,and is still believed tobc,a,

strenuous advocate of Masonry. He stopped the

R. 1. American, which he had taken for a long time,

immediately alter that paper opened its columns to

investigate Masonry. Aside from Masonry, he is a

very respectable citizen.]

Witness proceeded to state that they then retir

ed into a room by themselves : and he aeked

me if I had visited a Lodge lately. 1 told

him no, and did not think I ever should again. He

then asked me if 1 knew that I could not get into

a Lodge. I observed to him that I thought I could

work in, as my memory was good. He observed

that he had reference to a particular circumstance

that had taken place. I asked, what circumstance ?

He observed, he liad reference to Morgan's Illustra

tions, a book so called. That on that account the

lodges had passed another degree or check-word, I

think he styled it, in order to stop look masons,

having reference to the book before mentioned; but

observed, if you had been here last evening, I could

have vouched for you, and you could have took

the check word or degree, I don't recollect which

he used. I then asked him if that book was true?

He answered by a nod of his head, giving assent in

that way. I then asked him if Morgan was mur

dered? He said he dnro not answer me upon that

subject no further, (having reference to my not

having taken the check degree) no otherwise than

he would there say to me, no doubt he has suffered

his just deserts, according to his obligations. He

then look mo so, (grasping both arms above the

elbows) and said, I suppose he had his choice. This

was what first led me to serious meditation to seek

for a lit opportunity to secede. 1 then went home,

and secretly borrowed that book, (Morgan's.) The

owner would not let me have it, except in secret,

under a promise to return it. He was not a mason.

I. reai? it through and ''ooт! in it substantially the

penalties and oaths thnt had oeen conferred upon

me. This was the ñnal cause of my seceding.

In the Foil River Monitor I published my first pub

lic renunciation, in 1828 in the fall 1 think.

Mr Hazard. Were you a member of a Lodge

then?



Witnesí. I conclude I was considered a member

of Manchester Lodge, from the notice I received

from the Secretary of the Lodge, summoning me,

after my renunciation, to show cause why 1 should

not be expelled. I understood 1 was expelled.

Mr Hazard. Did you make any communication

to the Lodge—they were your brethren for many

years before yuu seceded—of your intention to re

cede. .

Witness. I made no communication to the

Lodge, because I was afraid to do so, before I came

out publicly.

Mr. Hazard. How many did the Lodge con

sist of?

Witness. 30 or 40, or perhnps more, when 1 was

initiated. Among them were Dr. Allen, Dr Knight,

John Green, and a Mr. Merrill.

Mr Hazard. Were your brethren of Manches

ter Lodge, with whom you associated, men of such

character that you should have been afraid of your

ife, if in their power, when you seceded?

Witness. I could not say what they would feel

bound to do, as Masons. In their moral character I

considered them as good men, as other men, and

some of them I hope are christians. They sfiowed

me in the Lodge what they did to traitors, in the mur

der of the ruffians who killed Hiram Abiflf, and I

thought I had some cause to fear, from the nature

of the penalties I could not tell what their Ma

sonic obligations would lead them to, as far as they

adhered to their oaths, and I stood in fear, masoni

cally.

Mr Simmons. Did you as a Mason, consider

you were bound to execute such penalties upon

others? т,

Witness. I considered myself masonically hcram.

to perform all oaths and obligations to the Lodge,

if adhering to them, but not morally and virtually

bound to execute such penalties.

In answer to llth, 12th and 13th Interrogatories,

witness says he never heard the nature of Masonic

penalties discussed in a Lodge, and that he knows

nothing about the deliberations of the Lodge on

polities or religion, but never knew these subjects

discussed in the Lodge. Mr. Bliss, a Mason, once

requested him to vote for Mr Hodges for Congress

in 1827.

14ih Interrogatory. Did you consider or be

lieve that there was any thing in your Masonic ob

ligations binding you as a Freemason to vote for a

Freemason, in preference to a better man, not a

mason.

Witness. You say as a Freemason. I answer

in two capacities. If the grand hailing sign were

given, I should consider myself bound as a Mason

to support a Mason for office, in preference to a-

nother not a mason, hut as a citizen bound by my

civil obligations, I should disdain the idea.

Mr Hazard repeated the question. You can

evade it or answer it as you please.

Witness said if Mr Haile would lake it down he

believed it would be a full answer. I considered

myself standing in a two fold relation, and that if I

were to see the grand hailing sign I should be

bound Masonically to aid him with my vote as I

was bound to obey the sign, and to go on a master

mason's errand bareheaded and bare foot, and to re

lieve him if there was more probability of saving

his life than lossing my own. I say this as a Free

Mason. As a free man and exclusive of Masonic

signs I could not do it. As a seceder I should not.

In answer to 15th Interrogatory, whether he

would give a preference to a Mason, witness says

he should masonically be under obligation by his

oath, to favor a mason in preference to those no

Masons. He had never practiced so, for he har

never had the grand hailing sign used, to him by a

Mason in distress.

16th and 17th Interrogatories—Witness knows

nothing about.

18th. Have you frequented Lodges in other

States, and are they the same as in this State ?

Witness. Was never in any Lodge out of ths

State. He had been present at a funeral when the

Attleborough Lodge buried Dr. Ballou, and there

were Masons present from seven different States,

who passed the same signs.

Mr. Simmons. What induced you to apply for

.he higher degress, if you considered the three nrsl

rreligious and Deistical ?

Witness.—When I applied for the three last

grees. I considered the three first irreligious and

leistical. The reason of my applying was this : 1

was informed by Rev. Thomas W. Tucker that he

had been dissatisfied in the lower degrees, but was

also placed in my hand, the purport of which ap

peared to be more agreeable to the Christian relig

ion. It- was a poem in praise of Masonry. He

observed, if I would join he would recommend me*

and they would not charge any thing, as I was i

Minister, and I should be satisfied. I had expres-

sed to him my dissatisfaction on account of iti

irreligion, and he told me the Methodist brethren

in Bristol were considerably engaged in religion,

and were mostly Masons—and iie was satisfied, and

rather urged me to come in, and eee how pleasanl

it was. I was a minister of the Methodist order at

that time, and Mr. Tucker was the same. I went,

and they opened a Lodge on the Mastei's degree—

they satisfied my mind some—and seemed to have

a very pleasant time—talked some about religion.—

but I afterwards rather doubted if it was not all a

catch, as they did not seem to close the lodge in

very regular order. I had also conversed with

Elder Case about my dissatisfaction about the three

first degrees—he made but very little answer to it.

I worked into the Lodge in Bristol. I never knew

before then that clergymen were admitted gratis.—

I paid for my three first degrees. Was not then a

minister.

Mr Simmons. Yon have several times qualified

your answers by saying you considered your oaths

Misonically binding, but not morally or virtually.

What do you mean by it ?

Witness. I have explained that several times.

In the oaths I promise and swear such nnd such

things, without any equivocation or mental reser

vation, &c. I cannot get rid of that in any way

Masonically, but to do just as the oaths direct.

Mr Simmons repeated the question.

Witness again said he did not consider the oaths

morally or virtually binding.

Witness. I have given a Masonic answer,

without self evasion or equivocation.

Mr Hazard. How long after you determined to

withdraw from Masonry, before you did so ?

Witness. About one year. I made my mind

known to my wife, soon after my interview with

Elder Greene, and she persuaded me not to secede,

from fear that I should be exposed to injury.

Mr Hazard. I have a poor opinion of Masonry,

but I have a good opinion of Masons.

Witness. I have no enmity against any Mason

in the world. It is the Institution is all I have

any thing against. I would do a good turn to a Ma

son as soon as any other man.

Mr Hazard. If on any occasion when a Mason,

your Masonic obligations had conflicted with your

civil, religious or social duties, which should you

have obeyed.

Witness. 1 should obey the obligation 'due to

my Maker, even at the sacrifice of my life, if re

quired. In other respects leant tell how 1 might

have been influenced as a Mason.

Mr Hazard. Did you ever(hear a Mason justi

fy the murder of Morgan except Elder Greene ?

If so, when and where? [nsked by request]

Witness. I have, At the time of the Dedham



Anthnasonic Convention, three yспгэ ago, at a tav

ern about 10 miles this side of Dedham, I heard a

Mason say, if there ever was euch a man as Mor

gan, and he had taken such oaths as he had pub

lished, he was a damned perjured wreteh, and de

served to be killed ! This man said he was a Ma

son. He was a stranger to me. Messrs. Brayton,

Slade and Luther Lincoln ef Norton, were present

at this conversation. Mr Lincoln said to the man

he ought to be careful what he said for there was a

seceding Mason present. He replied he did not

believe there was a seceder. but if there was he was

a perjured wreteh and deserved to die.

- Mr Hazard. I wonder you staid in such com

as that.

Witness. I did not. I left it.

Question from Mr Paine. (Antimason.) Had

any person seceded from Masonry in this quarter

before you did, and did this circumstance add to

your fears respecting the penalties of the oaths?

Witness. Yes. 1 believe I was the first Mason

who seceded from a Lodge in Rhode Island. No

one had done so publicly. I seceded abdut a year

after the conversation with Elder Greene. [The

examination of Mr. Chase, which had occupied

from 9 o'clock, A.M. to the same hour P.M. was

here closed,the notes of Mr Haile were read to him,

and by him signed, and the Committee adjourned.]

COMMENTS.

[It will be observed that the interrogations pт:1 to

Mr Chase, were varied considerably from those put

to Mr Thacher. The ingenuity of Mr Hazard, who

is one of the most acute cross questioning lawyers

in the country,was exerted to its utmost to entangle

Mr Chase in his examination. The latter, as will

he apparent from his answers, is a plain conscien

tious, pious, single minded man, with no reproach

on his whole life, but secession from Masonry; with

no guile in himself and suspecting none in others;

and yet it is obvious that straight forward common

ensetand t.ruth, enabled him successfully to baffle all

the Chairman's efforts to involve him in contradic

tion, or render him ridiculous. Those who witness

ed the anger and occasional fierceness of Mr Haz

ard toward this witness, and the perfect coolness

and good nature of the latter under wanton insult,

were well satisfied that the former felt himself

completely foiled at his best weapons.

Another point in the examination of this witness,

•hould not escape remark. Mr Hazard and Mr

Simmons attempted to call this witness in question

as to his religious creed, with a view to discredit his

testimony. No people on earth are so jealous of the

elightest interference in matters of religious concern-

- n« -ut. ¡is the people of Rhode Island, and but for the

protection given the Committee by Masonry, this

attempt to call a witness to account, for his religious

helief would have roused an universal indignation.

To prove this assertion,and also to show how far Ben

jamin Hazard, Esq. could act inconsistently, trenn.

with himself, in order to uphold Masonry, and brow

beat Antimasonic witnesses, we will relate one

fact. At the November term of the U. S. Circuit

Court in Providence, 1828, Judge Story presiding,

the old comme.i! law objection to the competency of

two witnesses was taken, on the ground of their

disbelief in a future state of reward and punishment.

The Judge examined testimony touching the irre

ligious belief of the witnesses, and being proved

to be deists, if not atheists, they were both set

aside. This decision, though in strict conformity to

common law precedents, was declared to be an in

fringement of the rights of conscience secured by

the Bill of Rights of R. I . The press of that State was

universally roused against the decision of the Judge

in thi§ case, and a general indignation pervaded the

community. At the subsequent session of the

Legislature of Rhode Island, in January, this same

Benjamin Hazard, Esq. himself introduced a bill,

explanatory of the bill of rights, declaring that no

witness shall be called in question in any Court in

this State (Rhode Island) touching his belief or dis

belief in matters of religious concernment. Mr.

Hazard advocated this bill, (which passed unani

mously) at the same time censuring the. conduct of

Judge Story, toward the witnesses in the case re

ferred to, with no little severity. Not a word was

uttered in the House of Assembly in vindication of

the Judge, who had just cause to complain (and we

understood at the time did complain) that not one of

his friends would explain to the House the prece

dents of common law, npon which the Court had

telt bound to exclude the witnesses. The reason

they did not do so, is the old reason that usually

governs the conduct of politicians : it would have

been very unpopular to have done so ! Mr. Hazard

availed himself fully of the popular feeling. He

introduced the bill, he censured the Judge, and he,

himself, was the first one, after that act passed, to

call Tn question the religious opinions of a witness

under civil oaths before him, sitting as a Judge !—

With this glaring fact before them, the candid

portion of the public will not be surprised at any

inconsistency ; any outrage upon the feelings or

opinions of witnesses; any bargains with Masonic

witnesses ; any perversion of testimony ; any se

verity and bitterness of denunciation, which they

may find in the deportment and report of Benjamin

Hazard, Esq. touching his connexion with this in

vestigation into Masonry.]

With a view to establish the identity of masonic

oaths throughout the country ,as far as the notice giv

en previous to the meeting of the Legislative Com

mittee would admit, the Antimasonic State Commit

tee took measures to procure depositions to that

effect. They accordingly forwarded to the proper

officer at Worcester, Mass. a commission signed by

Mr. Sprague, Jr. one of the Committee, to take the

deposition of Pliny Merrick, Esq. Hie deposition

was accordingly taken, sealed up by the officer, and

placed in the hands of the Legislative Committee,

with the seal unbroken, on December 8, at noon,

In the afternoon of the same day, Mr Hazard, the

Chairman, handed the deposition, after he had ex

amined it, to Mr Joseph S. Cook, Grand Master of

Rhode Island, with permission to take it home.—

The Preparation Room of the Masonic Hall waa

lighted up that evening, and this deposition was

unquestionably discussed there. A similar indul

gence to take papers and documents for examina

tion, was extended to the antimasons, at first, until

the Masons began to hand' in written statements,

which were not permitted to go out of the hands

of the Committee.

Other depostions were taken, and presented to

the Committee, None of them were read aloud, and

all were handed over to the Grand Lodge.

DEPOSITIONS.

This may certify whom it may concern that I,

TABEA CORY, in the town of Troy, and county of

Bristol, have taken seven degrees in masonry. I

received them in Portland, state of Maine, in the

years Eighteen Hundred and fifteen and sixteen. I

have perused Bernard's Light on Masonry, and

can certify the obligations and penalties are the

same as those conferred on me.

TABER CORY.

Bristol, st. December 3, 1831. Then personally

appeared the above named Taber (•'orj , and made

oath that the foregoing certificate by him subscribed

is true, before me, JOSEPH GOODING,

Justice of the Peace.

This may certify whom it may concern that I

ISRAEL CHACE, in the Town of Westport, State of

Massachusetts and County of Bristol. That I have

taken three degrees of Freemasonry. I received

them in North Carolina, Hyde County Mattamus-

ktet,Franklin Lodge in Feb.or March 1827. I have

perused Bernard's Light on Masonry and can certify

the obligations and penalties are the same as those

conferred on me, excepting the words angle and

square of my work, mentioned in the Fellow Craft



ftuliaalinn. N. B. Bernard's Liirht on Masonry,

page 45ih. ISRAEL CHACE.

IMdlol, s. s.. Westport, December 3d, 1831.

Then personally appeared the above named Israel

Chuco, and made outh Hiаt tbe foregoing state

ment by him made and sisned is true.

before me, ABNÈR B. GIFFORD,

Justice of the Peace.

DEPOSITION OF PLINV MKRRI cк, Esrr.

. I Pliny Merrick of Worcester, in the State of

Massachusetts, Counsellor at Law, do testify and

sav, thai sometime in the course of the winter of

1820--21, as nearly as I can recollect, I was admit

ted a member of the Masonic Lodge held in the

town of Taunlon in the county of Bristol, as I nn-

derstood by virtue of a charter from the Grand

Lodge ot the State ot Massachusetts. That until

my removal from Taunton, Which was in the sum

mer of 1624, 1 occasionally attended the meetings

of the Lodge ; and during some part of the time,

frequently. I waa admitted in the Ledge to the de-

frees of Entered apprentice, Fellow Craft, and

laster Mason. In the summer of 1824, as nearly

as I can recollect, 1 was admitted to the degrees of

Mark Master, Past Master, Most Excellent Master,

and the degree of Royal Arch Mason, in Adoni-

ram Chapter in Attleborough, in the County of

"Bristol in this state ; that I took the four last men

tioned degrees in one afternoon and evening, and

and have uot since, to my recollection, been in any

chapter in the county of Bristol. I removed to

the town of Worcester, where I now reside, in the

summer of 1824, anil afterwards attended occasion

ally the meetings of the fraternity in this place.—

During my absence from town on one occasion, I

was elected to the office of High Priest, which is

the highest office in the Chapter : On being in

formed of my election to that place, which was

wholly unexpected, I consented to accept, and Dr.

Benjamin Chapin of Worcester, who had been the

former High Priest, agreed to make mo acquainted

With all the forms, ceremonies,oaths and obligations

of the several degrees of the Chapter, and I ac-

sordingly visited him several times and learnt the

same from him, and committed the same to memo-

ïy. I attended several meetings of the chapter dur

ing, tlie first part of the year, and discharged the

duties of my office. Besides the communications

made to me by Dr. Chapin, I have heard .him re

peat the oaths in the chapter as its presiding officer.

During the last half year while I was elected to of.

fice, I believe I was not once present at any meet,

ing : and I have uot been, I believe, in any meet

ing of the Masonic Fraternity since, except that]

once went in for a few moments for the purpose of

seeing a gentleman who I understood was there.—

On one occasion, after my admission to the chap

ter,! hoard Mr. Gleason,\тho-wai introduced to me as

the Grand Lecturer, employed by the Grand Lodge

of the state, to teach the Lectures of Masonry, re

peat the Royal Arch Mason's oath. These are all

the opportunities which I have h*d by attendance

on lodges and chapters, of ascertaining what were

its oaths or obligations. I was however once pres

ent at a meeting of the Grand Chapter of this state

in Boston, but I do not recollect that the oath of

the degree was repeated.

The several obligations of the three first degrees

of Freemasonry were formerly quite familiar to

me,from having frequently heard them repeated in

the Lodge meetings at Taunton. These obliga

tions are faithfully given in a Book called " Light

on Masonry,'' by David Bernard. I do not mean to

itate that the exact expressions which I heard in

Lodge meetings,are given, because the words used

were not precisely the same on different occasions ;

but I mean to state, that the oaths as given in the

Book referred to, are suhstantially the same with

those which I often heard administered to initiates

fcy the presiding officer of the Lodge. I do nol

mean herein to specify all the variations which on

the perusal of that Book have occurred to mo ; btrf

I state those which seem to me in any way materia!

I do not recollect to have heard in the Lodge an?

such part of the Master Mason's oath as the follow

ing, viz : " / will go on a Muster Mason'' s errand,

whenever required, evçn should I hare to ¿roirart

headed, if icitliin the length of my cable-tow." " if

any part of this my solemn oath or obligation le

omitted at this time, I wilt hold myself umenabh

thereto whenever informed." With these excep

tions, I do not know of any. variations between the

oaths of these three degrees as Г formerly heatd

them in the Lodges and as I find them in the Book

before referred to, which seem to mo in any way

essentially to affect the sense.

I do not distinctly recollect the oaths snd obliga

tions of the four degrees of Mark Master, Past Mas

ter, Most Excellent Master, and Royal Arch Ma

son, as they were administered to me, at my

initiatioa at the Chapter in Atltleborough. Owing

to the great variety of the ceremonies through

which í passed ori that day, and the great number

of the parts of' the several oaths, it was impossibte

for me to retain a distinct recollection of the whole.

Besides this, when the Royal Arch degree- was ad

ministered to me, I was very much overcome, both

by the previous fatigue I had undergone, and the

nature and character of the obligation; and becom

ing faint, was removed from the room before its ad

ministration was finished. On my recovery, I

returned to the Chapter, and passed through the

remaining ceremonies; but I have no recollection

that the remaining part of the oath was administer

ed. Among the persons present on that occasion, I

recollect Mr. John Baylies of Tauntou.

I believe that the oaths and obligations of the four

degrees of Mark Master, Past Master, Most Excel

lent Master, and Royal Arch Mason are given

the book before mentioned, substantially, as I learnt

and heard them administered, as I have before men

tioned. The words are riot in every particular

precisely the same in that book, as I reeollectcd to

have heard them in the chapter; but I do not know

of any variation, which mateiially affected the senso

in any other particular than those which 1 shai!

mention hereafter.

/ distinctly recollect that the following expression

was made use of in tho Chapter as part of the Roy

al Arch oath, viz: "I WILL ESPOUSE THE CAUSE

OF A ROYAL ARCH COMPANION WHEN IN AHT

DIFFICULTY, SO FAR AS TO EХТШСАТE HIM FROM

THE SAME, IF IN MY POWER, WHETHER HE BI

RIGHT OH WRONG." Г never heard any explana

tion of that clause in the Chapter. On one occasion,

when that part of the oath was repeated to a person

then passing through the ceremonies of initiation,

he hesitated and asked if it could be so ? A Rever

end companion standing by replied, that it was, an-i

advised him to go on, and it would he explained to

him. He did go on 4>ut I heard no explanation

given.

I do not recollect to have ever heard the following

words, or any similar thereto, introduced into any of

the obligations of any of the degrees of Freemason

ry as they were administered, vu : "I will promote

a companion Royal Arch Mason's political prefer

ment in preference to another of equal qualifica

tions."

The following clause makes part of the obliga

tion of a Royal Arch Mason as I have heard it ad

ministered, viz : "A COMPANION ROYAL ARCH

MASON's SECRETs GIVEN ME IN CHARGEAS SOCH,

AND I RNOWING THEM TO BE SUCH.JSHALL RE

MAIN AS SECURE ASD INVIOLABLE IN MY BREAST

AS IN HIS OWN." To these words I believe ate

also added, "murder and treason not excepted."—

With respect to these last words, I must say, that

at this time, my recollection is not so perfect, эs to

enable me. to speak with absolute certainty. For

merly, after I had left visiting the Chapter, I liad

no doubt on tliis point. But in conversations whiclv



I have not unfrequently sinca had with adhering

members ot the Masonic Institution, their frank ad

mission of the accuracy of the disclosure ol the

masonic obligations as contained in the book 1 have

referred to,on other points, and their earnest and ap

parently sincere denial of its accuracy on this point,

have lead me to doubt whether my recollection was

perfect. I have taxed tny memory to the utmost

of my power; and I can now only say, that while I

i'o not feel certain, I yet believe that the words

" NURUER AND TREASON MOT EÏCEPTED" Were

used; but tho belief is founded on a variety of con

siderations distinct from a precise recollection of the

fact. All those members of the Masonic Fraterni

ty who denied the use of the words last quoted in

the conversations to which I have alluded, stated

that the following words are used in their stead,

viz : " murder and treason only excepted, and they

left to my election."

Tho check degree, as it is sometimes called, and

I believe usually, I never hearfl repeated and ex

plained but once by any member of the Masonic

Fraternity. Being in Boston, I accidentally met

Dr. John .Homans, now resident in that city, near

the old Court House. He asked me to walk into

the office of Mr. Powers, the Grand Secretary of

the Grand Lodge of Massachusetts. After some

conversation, Mr. Powers proposed to communicate

and explain this degree or ceremony, to us, and ac

cordingly did so. The explanation was the same

which is given in the eighty sixth page of Ber

nard's Light on Masonry. I havewsinc6 it «fas

communicated to me, heard it spoken of by mem

bers of the Institution as a matter added to ita cer

emonies; but I have never since heard it repeated.

And further this deponent saith not.

PLINY MERRICK.

WORCESTER, se. On the fifth day of December,

in the year of our Lord one thousand eight hundred

and thirty one, the aforesaid deponent was examin

ed, and cautioned and sworn, agreeably to law, to

the deposition aforesaid, by him subscribed, taken

at the request ol William Sprague, Junior, and to

be used before a Committee of the Legislature of

Rhodo Island.—The residence of the deponent in

the state of Massachusetts is the cause of taking this

deposition. ISAAC DAVIS,

Justice of the Peace

[Among the documents presented to the Investi

gating Committee, to aid their inquiries, was a re

port of the New Berlin trial, in which the Sherii

of the county, General Welsh, and Mr. Pike a Jus

tice of the Peace, both adhering Royal Arch Ma

sons, had sworn to the oath of that degree in the

form it is given in Bernard. Accompanying the re

port was an Affidavit el Phillip Peck, who was pres

ent at the trial, certifying to its correctness in every

particular ; with a view to present further evidence

on this point, and te elicit other important facts

which had been stated, but, as we believe, never

before been sworn to, interrogatories were forward

ed to Now York, and the following affidavit re

ceived in reply, from Jarvis F. Hanks, a high re

nouncing Mason of eighteen degrees, and an unim

peachahle citizen of New York.]

AFFIDAVIT OF JARVIS F. HAHRS.

Gentlemen :—In compliance with your request, !

proceed to narrate such facts and circumstances as

come within my knowledge, on the subject of Free

masonry, and such as will accumulate the testi

mony of which you are in pursuit. So far, howev

er, as my experience goes, in relation to its oaths

ceremonies, &c. I cannot speak with certainty, o

more than eighteen degrees, into whose mysteries

have been introduced. Of ¡Ы usages, as a society

my remarks will illustrate the conduct of Lodge

and Chapters only. In this communication, I wist

it to be distinctly understood that when I relate i

fact, or make an assertion, I intend it to assume th

character at positive testimony; but when an optnioi

is given, it is to lie taken only as the judgment o

\

ne whose experience is Urge, and whom former

anding among the fraternity was honorable, ano,

ïerefore, il not- to be received as absolute evi-

ence.

Bernard's Light and Allyn's Ritual, in the ae-

ount of the degrees I hove taken, are substantially

orrect. The genuine book of the first three du

rées by William Morgan, and the publication of tho

e Roy Convention, up to and including the Royal

,rch degree, are true revelations of the 6rst seven

egrees of Freemasonry as they existed in 1825,

iroughout the United States. I say genuine, be-

ause a spurious book, purporting to be the work of

rlorgan, lias, 1 believe been introduced into the

market. Verbal variations did ever exist in the

hraseology of the masonic lectures and work; but

s great a similarity has prevailed as could be ex-

ected or hoped lor, in oral traditions; yet the sub-

timer, was the same in all places, among all Masons.

would here state that 1 received the first three de-

roes and Union Master, in Charleston, Kariawlta

ounly, Virginia; the Mark Master, Past Master,

most excellent Master, Royal Arch, Royal Master,

nd Ark and Dove in Philadelphia ; (he Select

Blaster at Point Pleasant Virginia ; Secret Moni

er and Knight of Constantinople at Zanesville.Ohio;

ieroine of Jericho, Mediterranean Pass,and Knight

f the Hound Table, in Cleaveland, Ohio; Knighl of

t. John at Euclid, Ohio, and Intimate Secretary in

iVarren, Ohio. 1 was High Priest of Webb Chap-"

er No. 13, and Worshipful Master of Concon!

sodge No. 15 at Cleaveland, Ohio, each during Hie

ear 1336. Within this period I presided at the in •

tallation anil advancement to the Royal Arch de

gree, of about twenty five persons, whose names I

ould furnish, if expedient, and one ofwhom alieas:

esides. in this city. I have visited various Lodges

,nd Chapters in New York city and State, in Phil-

;delphia and numerous towns in Pennsylvania ; in

Ohio and in Virginia ; probably fifty in all. 1 have

conversed with intelligent Masons from nearly

every State in the Union, as well as from many,

rarts ot Great Britain and am welt satisfied that fin;

'.sscnce of Ficcmaaonry is everywhere ike same.

The oath of the Entered Apprentice binds the

recipient to keep all the secrets ot the whole system

rom the world. The words are "I will alwaye

mil, ever conceal, and never reveal, any part or

larts, art or arts, point or points, of the secret mys-

.eries of ancient Freemasonry, which I have re

ceived, am about to receive, or may he hereafter

instructed in, to any person or persons in the known

world, except it be to a true and lawful brother

Mason," &c.

The Master's oath contains two or three clauses,

the force of which adhering Masons have, I believe,

uniformly denied. "I will fly to the relief of any

person giving tne grand hailing sign of distress of

a master mason, or uttering the exclamation belong-

ng thereto, and relievo him if in my power, if there

a not more danger of losing my lile, than hope of

saving his " I understand this obligation to be

capable of influencing a mnster mason to do for a

brother, many things which would be illegal. For

instance, a masonic Sheriff has in custody a brother

who has committed a capital crime, and is sentenced

to death,—he givps th^1 grand hailing sign of dis

tress—the Sheriff is bound to "relieve him if in IIH

power," and suffers him to escape, as if by accident.

A jailor turns the key upon a brother. At a con

venient time, the potent sign is displayed—the

huge iron doors, massive gates and impassible bar

riers, are overcome, with the facility of magic, and

the culprit is let loose to commit new depredations

upon society. 2d—"/ will warn a brother matter

mason of all approaching danger." 1 quote only

parts of the oath ; not, however, destroying or per

verting the real sense. Reference may be easily

had to standard revelations. This warning may

mean that one is obliged to give notice to a brother.,

of any fraud about to be practised upon him by а



swindler assuming tho cliaracter of an honest man,

and therefore not suspected ol evil ; or it may equally

Und a mason to notify a criviinal who has sworn

tho same oath, of his danger of apprehension by an

officer of Justine, and urge his immediate flight to

regions beyond his jurndiclion. If the points be

capable ol such interpretation, bad men will always

be ready to take advantage of it. Imlced there

seems to be ample proof that masons have under

stood these obligations as constraining them to ex

tend relief, if possible, lo those of their brethren

who have violated the laws of the land, and have

not only become obnoxious to the penalty of those

laws, but also deserving the indignation of all good

men.

But the Royal Arch occupies an elevation which

Mr. Webb calls "the summit and perfection of an

cient masonry." U is sought as the ultimatum ol

the mystery by the votaries of secret societies.—

Those who advance beyond this, are as a drop of

water to tho ocean. Two points in this obligation

are worthy of remark. Tlie first runs time :—"1

WILL AID A COMPANION RoYAL AnCH MASON

WHENEVER I SEE HIM ENGAGED IN ANY DIF-

TICULTY, SO FAR AS TO EXTRICATE II I M FROM

THE êAME IK IN MY POWER, WHETHER HE BE

RIGHT OR WRONG."

Mr. Strong, late editor of the Amtimasonic In

telligencer, at Hartford, Conn. has explained this

clause as it was explained to me when I took it.—

[The explanation is this : Suppose a companion is

engaged in a dispute or quarrel, you are to take

him by the left arm, grasping him with both your

hands ; saying who are you ? I am thai lam, come

along with me." When thus accosted he is bound

to leave the place and accompany you.] But I have

always understood it was capable of a wider lati

tude, and verily believe most American Masons

have so understood it. No doubt, in many instan

ees, it has been construed in a manner prejudicial

to the wholesome regulations qf society, and favor

able to the most unrestrained commission of crime.

The second is thus: "I WILL KEEP ALL THE

SECRETS OF A Co.MEANiON RoYAL ARCH MA-

ION WHEN CONFIDED TO ME AS SUCH, OR KNOW

ING THEM TO BE SUCH, AS SBCURE IN MV BREAST

AS THEY WERE IN HIS OWN, MURDER AND TREA

SON NOT EXCEPTED ;" or sometimes, "without ex

ception" but most frequently in the first form.—

Now, although the. candidate in the master's oath,

is taught to keep the secrets of a master mason,

given in confidence, "murder and treason only ex-

cepted, and those left ai his own discretion," yet it

ig reserved for the Royal Arch to require men to

conceal the highest crimes, known to human laves !

A master mason once told me, in confidence, of a

criminal transaction, which made him a father, be

fore his marriage, being assured that I would never

mention it, but that it was as secure in my breast

as it was in his own. His name has never been

mentioned in connection with the fact.

• I am in possession of another masonic secret,

poured into my ear by a Royal Arch Mason, which

1 have never made known ; and 1 reveal it circum

stantially, now, not only to shew the nature of the

secrets entrusted to the brethren, but also to illus

trate the influence ol masonry upon the course of

justice. In the year 1826, Miss N. of Cleaveland,

Ohio, living in the family of W. O. a relative by

marriage, was charged with stunting a sum of mon.

ey, and, I think, a number of silver spoons. By

some means or other she was removed for trial to

Canandaigua, N. Y. Mr. 0. was a Royal Arch Ma

son, and attended her. R. W. the Attorney em

ployed to defend her, was a Mark-Master Mason.—

My informant, R. S. a Royal Arch Mason, was

present at the trial as a spectator. The guilt ol

Miss N. was clearly proved. R. S. remarked that

"she was guilty in the opinion of every person in

the Court House." It was a trial of great interest,

and attracted crowds of persons anxious to know

the result of it. The verdict being " not guilty,"

sho was honorably acquitted. The conclusion was

iriesistable in my mirnl that the jury was corrupted

through the influence of mа«onгy. R. W. the

young lady's advocate, and lt. S. are now, both

juilges of Courts of Common Pleas , one in Cuya-

ho(;a. county, and the other in Medina comity,

Ohio.

The proportion of charitable donations to the

whole disbursements ol the order, so far as my

knowledge extends, will be best illustrated by re-

latingaiew facts. 1 was a member of Kanawha

Lodge, No. 104 Virginia, about three years, during

which linn I do not recollect that more than twenty

dollars was paid out for charitable purposes :—that

was' in a single sum, to a brother's widow. It was,

however, the semi-yearly practice of this lodge to eat

a dinner, which was paid for outof the lodge funds,

and cost from 80 lo 150 dollars each. À brother

was paid tili dollars out of the same funds, for

transcribing the iecoids into a new book.

The Lodge and chapter, at Cleaveland,spent ser-

eral hundí ed dollars to erect a hall for their meet

ings, for furniture, dress, &c. Ido not remember

any charitable appropriation within 1826, except a

loan to Mr. Williams of New York,'on his note, for

a few months. There was a smalpamount paid for

the funeral expenses of a poor brother, who died

friendless, and without the means of interment.

I visited Royal Arch Lodge, No. 2, of this city,

(New York,) in 1827. During the evening,three or

four petitionstor charity were presented and read.

The applicants were represented as members of

that lodge, m sickness and extreme poverty, and

worthy men and masons. All the petitions were

rejected, but one, on the ground thas there were no

disposible funds in the treasury! The gentleman

occupying the senior Warden's seat, proposed to

lend the poor lodge fire dollars, for the relief of

one of the applicants, which was accepted. It was

a received opinion among the masons, that Royal

Arch Lodge was the richest in the city, having, at

that very time, invested in stocks, 20,000 dollars.—

The regular meetings of this lodge were semi

monthly, at each of which Mr. Pardessus, lessee of

the masonic hall, furnished a supper at the stipulat

ed prices of sixteen dollars ! !

One more fact will suffice. Sometime in the

autumn of 1827, 1 visited Jerusalem Chapter No. 8,

of Royal Arch Masonry, of this city, in company

with a mason from Cleaveland, Ohio, with whom 1

have since had a conversation on this subject. We

concur in the following : During the meeting, a

resolution was adopted by said Chapter, TO PAY our

OK ITS FUNDS 500 DOLLARS, FOR THE RELIEF OF

THE WESTERN SUFFERERS, OTHERWISE THE KID

NAPPERS OF WILLIAM MORGAN ! The money

was to be placed in the hands of a worthy comptm-

ton, destined to Rochester, who it was said, veas

also tobe the bearer of considerable sums from oth

er masonic bodies in the city, for the same pur

pose.

Thus, I have given you a brief account of sucli

ofmy experience of masonry, as will probably be

of service to you, in your investigation of this sub

ject, and am Yours Respectfully,

JARV1S F. HANKS.

New York, Dec. 9,1831.

City and yunty of New York, s.s. Jarvis F.

Hanks of said City being duly sworn, says that the

foregoing statement is in all respects just and true.

JARVIS F. HAWKS.

Sworn before me this 10th day of December,1831.

WILLIAMS. SEARS,

C. of Deeds.

COMMENT.

[The last fact related in this important deposition,

is sufficient .in itself, to establish. the character of

Masonry, as it is now disclosed to the world. The

same fact was stated in Mr. Whittlesey's report on

the Abduction of Morgan, made at the Philadelphia



National Convention, 1830. See proceedings of

eaid Convention, page 17. It has never since been

sttemptod to be disproved by the members of Jeru

salem Chapter. It is now stated under the sanction

of a civil oath, and another person referred to who

will testify to the same fact, thus confirming the

statements of the able and convincing ceport sbove

referred to. It was also stated in Mr. Wlutllesey's

report, that there was reason to believe that the

Grand Chapter of New York, in 1827, placed con

siderable sums of money, for like purposes, at the

disposal of their Grand Scribe. This has since been

proved to have been the fact, in the trial of Gould

and Weed, and it has also been proved that $100

were voted to Eli Bruce, and a similar sum to oth

er masons implicated in the Morgan conspiracy.

In the same report by Mr. Whiltlesey, (a docu

ment, the most minute statements of which have

since been established by legal testimony, in a re

markable manner,) another important fact is related

in this connection; viz. that "Richard Howard (one

of the supposed murderers of Morgan,) came to tho

city of New York, in February or March, 1827, and

nltended a masonic meeting at SL Johns Hall, in

that city, where he confessed in open Lodge, that

he assisted in putting Morgan to death, and that he

was furnished with funds by the Knights Compan

ions, then present to escape to Europe, and that

after being secreted from pursuit by members of

the fraternity, he did escape. Certain it is, that no

information has been received of this Howard,

since he absconded, and that the officers of justice

have never been able to penetrate the veil ot secre-

sy, wliich concealed his flight. Page 13.]

Friday morning December 9.—The Committee

met at 9 o'clock, Messrs. Hazard, Simmons, Sprague

nnd Haile, as before. The third witness, Anson Pot

ter, a Friend, whose name had been handed to the

Committee on the list of witnesses, was called.

TESTIMONY OF ARSON POTTER..

Mr. Hazard put to this witness some of the gen-

ctal interrogatories, which had been put to the two

preceding witnesses, but with material variations.

This witness was not a Friend during- his connexion

with Masonry. By a printed rule of the Friend's

ftlceling, of many years standing, no person can

belong lo the society called Freemasons, or visit

their parades, feasts, &c. and at the same time re

tain his connexion wilh the Society of friends.

I reside in Cranston, R. 1. am a farmer by occupa

tion. I have been a Mason of three degrees. Took

the degrees in St Johns Lodge, Providence. I did

not consider myself a Mason 20 years ago. I have

not known any thing of the movements of Masonry

in a Lodge since that tune. At the time of taking

each degree an oath or obligation was administered

to me.

In answer to 3d Interrogatory, if he was told,

previous to taking the oaths, that they would not

interlere wilh his religious or political opinions,

witness says—I have no recollection of such being

the case, I may possibly hare forgotten it as it is so

long sinie, nearly twenty years.

In answer to 4th Interrogatory whether he cnuld

repeat the oaths, witness says—I think not literally

correct, the substance of them is in my mind.

In answer to the 5th, if charges were delivered

after each oath, and if he coesidered them equally

binding with the oaths, witness says—That I cannot

answar strictly. I have some faint knowledge of

one or more charges. 1 did not consider the charges

binding. I considered it as fatherly advice. The

oaths I considered of a different character.

Mr. Hazard read the charge from Webb, in the

1st degree ; and inquired if that was read to him?

tfitness. A portion of it I recollect. I should

think a part of it was used. My impression >vas

that the charge was good. I think the principles

and duties inculeated were similar to those. >

In answer lo the 6th, whether he endeavored to

| learn prerious to initiation, if lie was.to take an

I oath, and what the nature of It was.

Witness. leant say I labored much, because it

appeared to mo to be a principle with the Fraterni

ty to keep every thing in perfect darkness. It

would have been no use to inquire. About twenty

years ago I left the Lodge, ceased going, and I have

been told that since my views have been expressed

of the transaction in New York, I have been ex

pelled. I never had any notice to appear. I did not

consider myself a Mason twenty years ago. It wai

a quiet withdrawal. Not notified to the Lodge.

Mr. Hazard. 1 think you showed your sense.

To the 7th, if he comprehended the force and ef

fect of tho oaths, when taking them—

Witness. I did not at first. I presume few do. I

can't say that I did, for under thecircumstances the

oaths are administered, the mind is occupied in re

peating the oaths as they are deaconed off,and look

ing for something wonderful to come.

Mr. Hazard. Did you find it?

Witness. I found nothing that I wished to con

tinue with. There are perhaps some men of firm

ness enough to attend exclusively to the moral im

port of the oaths while taking them. But very

few can. Had I done so, I should not have taken

them.

In answer to the 8th—if he had any doubt of the

meaning of the oaths, frc. I had but little doubt of

the meaning of the oaths, after I looked them over.

I considered 1 had placed my life at stake, H I did

not comply wilh the oaths. I took the three degrees

within about six months, from the first to the list.

In answer to the 9th—if he applied lo the Lodge

to satisfy his mind respecting the nature of the

oaths, and if he examined them immediately after

taking them, for that purpose ?

Witness. I sinhoulil think not. I some time after

studied the Lectures with a friend, and then I did

not give them so much weight as 1 have eince. I .

had a sense of the awful penalty I had incurred : I

did not read them, because they ate not allowed to

be written or printed, and arc transmitted from one

to another by memory.

In answer the 10th—if he considered he gave

jurisdiction to the Lodge to take his life if he vio

lated his oath, and also shared in the same jurisdic

tion over others ?

Witness. Not particularly at the time of taking'

the oaths, for at that time there was not a clear

perception, in consequence of the circumstances

under which the oaths were taken. On examina

tion, they appeared to be trained for that object.

Mr. Hazard here held up a written paper in his

hand, (the first intimation given from the Commit

tee to any but Masons, that such sdocument would

lre or had been furnished by the Masons)—and said

—1 will read you an oath furnished to the Com

mittee at their request, by the Grand Lodge of

Rhode Island, the Rhode Island oa'li. as it is admin

istered in Lodges in this State and no doubt as

you received it. 1 will read to you the Entered^

Apprentice's oath, and you may then say if it is

the same you took. Mr. Hazard then proceeded to

read the Entered Apprentice Oath from a written

sheet of paper, marked A.

COMMENTS.

[This paper bore no date, nor the name of any

person, or any certificate where it came from, and

no one knew the hand writing, except the masons,

and probably a majority of the Committee. It will

appear in the course of the Investigation, and it is

known from other sources, that the masons, on the

first day of the meeting of the Committee, Dec. 7,

were very earnest to persuade Mr. Hazard not to

require them to state (Ji iir oaths, because they had

generally been considered among masons, as a part

of the secrete they were bound not to disclose. Mr. -

Hazard was resolute on that point, and insisted that

they should hand in their oaths, as it would be

worse for them to have their oaths proved by e-



ceding roaioni, than to fire them themselves.

Doubtless this consideration had much weight, for

it was well known to them that there was a suffi

cient number of seceding masons summoned as

witnesses, in addition to those who had already tes

tified, fully to substantiate the oaths of the three

first degrees. The result of this negotiation be

tween Mess». Hazard, Haile and Simmons of the

Committee, and the principal masons, was, that

the latter were to hand in Iheir oaths on condition

that they should lie protected by the Chairman, from

answering any questions respecting their secrets and

ceremonies. Mr. Sprague, one of the Committee,

had no knowledge of this bargain, ami was not con

sulted. Mr. Cornell, another of the Committee, had

not taken his seat with them, until after the nego

tiation was concluded. Mr. Hazard, after the

first examination at Providence was concluded, said

to one ot the reporters of this testimony, on the 18th

of December, that the masons would have fixed

themselves, if they had refused to give their obliga

tions, as they talked of doing at first, or words to

that effect. It also will be seen, in the future tes

timony, that these oaths were prepared and written

out in the preparation room, by an agreement as to

the several points among a number of leading ma-

ions, acting as a committee. Some difficulty was

experienced in inducing some of the committee

to consent to giving in their oaths at all. Col.

John Andrews, a high mason, and an honorable

man, said to the writer, in the presence of John

Hall, Esq., that he was on the committee relative

to handing in the oaths to the Investigating Com

mittee. He was for giving them in, and wrote

some himself. Some of the committee were op

posed to it, and one said he would have his arm

cut off sooner than he would tell the oaths. Col A.

adilded, "a great many masons consider the oaths

as much the secrets as any part of masonry." The

masons, however, finding Mr. Hazard resolute tc

get the oaths, (the only point on which he pressee

thern through the whole investigation) and perceiv

ing that they would be proved by others, suddenly

arrived at the conclusion that their oaths were not

a part of 'heir secrets, and that they had no where

sworn to keep the Urms of the oaths themselves,

secret. Under these circumstances, the paper con

taining the oaths of the three first degrees as agreee

upon by the masonic committee, WAS handed in on

Friday.]

[The following is acorrect transcript of the three

oaths in the three first degrees of Masonry, as fur

nished hy a Committee of the Grand Lodge o

Rhode Island, in the manner heretofore stated, anc

delivered to the Chairman, Mr. Hazard, by Grane

M.ist e r Cook e. 1

OBLIGATION OF ENTERED APPRENTICE

"I, . , - , of my own free will and accord, anc

in the presence of Almighty God and this Right

Worshipful Lodge, erected to him and dedicated to

holy St. John, do hereby and hereon (that is on the

*í lпly Bible, square and compass) solemnly and sin

cerely promise and swear, (or affirm) that I wilt

always hail, forever conceal and never reveal, any

of the secret arts, parts or points, of the mysteries

of Freo Masonry, to any person, under the canopy

of Huaven, except it shall be to a true and lawfut

Mason, or within the body of a just and [lawful]

regular T.sOilge of such ; and not unto him or them

until after due trial, strict examination, or hy the

lawful information of a brother, I shall have found

him or thorn as iustly and lawfully entitled to the

same, as 1 am mvseif. I furthermore promise and

swear, (or a(Brin) that 1 Will not write, print, cut

carve, paint, stain, or engrave them, [or cause the

same In In; dune byotliers] uponany thing moveable

or imiuovcable, whereby the least letter, figure or

character may become legible or intelligible, so

that the necrets of the Craft may at any time be

unlawfully obtained.

,. AU this I promise and swear (or affirm) with a

fixed and stetdy purpose of mind in me to perform

the same, without any equivocation, mental reser

vation or secrect evasion of mind in me whatever—

BINDING MYSELF UNDER NO LESS PENALTY THAK

THAT OF HAVING МУ THROAT CUT ACROSS FROM

EAR TO EAR, MY TONGUE TORs OUT BY ITs HOOTS,

AND THAT BUHIF.D IN THE ROUGH SAND OF THE

SEA, AT LOW WATER MARR, WHERE THE TIDE

EBBS AND FLOWS TWICE IN TWENTY FOUR HOURs.

ao help me God, and keep me steadfast in the per

formance of this my Entered Apprentice's Oath and

Obligation." '

FELLOW CRAFT'S OBLIGATION.

I, , of m y own free will sndaccord,in the

presence of Almighty God, and this Right Wor

shipful Lodge of Fellow Crafts, erected to God, and

dedicated to St. John, do hereby and hereon, in

addition to my former obligation, solemnly and sin

cerely promise and swear, (or affirm) that I will

always hail, forever conceal, and never reveal, any

of the secrets of Freemasonry appertaining to the

degree of Fellow Crafts, to any person under the

canopy of heaven, unless it shall be to a true and

lawful Fellow Craft, or within the body of a just

and [lawful] regalar Lodge of such, and not unto

him or them, until after due trial, strict examina

tion, or by the lawful information of a Fellow Craft,

I shall have found him or them to be as justly and

lawfully entitled to the same, аs I am myself.

I furthermore promise and swear, (or affirm) that

I will aid and assist all worthy distressed Fellow

Crafts, so far as I can do it without injury to my

self. I furtheimore promise and swear, (or affirm)

that I will answer all lawtul signs or tokens, which

may be given or sent unto me from a true and

lawful Fellow Craft, or from the body of a just

and lawful Lodge of such, if within the first angle

or square of ray work.

(All this I promise and swear, (or affirm) with a firm

and fixed 'resolution to perform the same, BINDING

MYSELF UNDER NO LESS PENALTY THAN THAT OF

HAVING MY LEFT BREAST TORN OPEN, MY HEART

TAREN FROM THENCE, AND GIVEN AS A PREY TO

THE BEASTS OF THE FIELD AND FOWLS OF THE

AIR.

So help me God, and keep me steadfast in the

performance of this my Fellow Craft's oath or obli

gation.

[The words "If within the first angle or square

of my work," are understood to have an allusion to

operative masonry, and to mean a straight line from

one corner of a building to the other]

MASTER MASON'S OBLIGATION.

"I, , of my own free willjand accord,

and in the presence of Almighty God, and this

right worshipful Lodge of Master Masons, erected

to Him and dedicated to St. John, do hereby and

hereon, in addition to my former obligations, sol

emnly and sincerely promise and swear (or affirm)

that I will always hail, lorever conceal, and never

reveal, any of the secret mysteries of freemasonry,

appertaining to the degree of Master Mason, to any

person under the canopy of Heaven, except it shall

bo a true and lawlul Master Mason, or within the

body of a just and [lawful] regular Lodgo of such,

and not unto him or them until after due trial,

strict examination, or by the lawful intormation of

a Master Mason, I slnll have found him or them In

be as justly and lawfully entitled to the same as I

am myself.

1st. I furthermore promise and swear, (or affirm,)

that I will answer all lawful signs and summonses,

which may be given or sent unto me from a, true

and lawful Master Mason, or frem the body of a,

just and lawful lodge of such, if within the length

ol my cable-tow.

ad. That I will aid and assist all worthy distres

sed Master Masons, their witlows and orphans,so far

as 1 can doit without injury to myself or family.

3d THAT I ты. KEIF л BROTHER'S ЕЕСRЕТ&



IS MT OWH, WHEW COMMITTED TO »IK IX CHAROE

AS SUCH, MURDER AND TREASON EXCEPTED.

4th. That I will abide . by and support the by

laws of the Lodge of whicli I nny become a mem

ber, the constitution of the Grand Lodge under

which the same is holden, and the general regula-

tations of Masonry.

5th. I furthermore promise and swear (or affirm)

that I will not be at the making of a woman a M.i-

aon, a young man under age, an old man in dotage,

an athebt, a mad man, or a fool, knowing them to

be such

Gth. That 1 will not wronor a biotheror deprive

him of his good name or sulFer it to be done by

others, if in my power to prevent il ; вuт WILL

APPU1ZE HIM OF ALL APPROACHING DANGER, SO

¡FAR AS IT SHALL COME TO MY KNOWLEDGE.

7th. That I will nut muíate tue chastity of a

brother's wife, daughter, sister or mother, knowing

'.'scm to lie suck.

8th. That I will not give the Master Mason's

word, except on the fire points of fellowship, and

not then above my breath, unless absolute necessi

ty shall require it. All this 1 promise and swear

(or .-'.Ilii ш) with a firm and fixed resolution to per

form the same, BIHJING MYSELF UNDER NO LESS

PENALTY THAN THAT OF HAVING MY BODY SEV

ERED IN TWO, MY BOWELS TAKEN OUT AND

BURNT TO ASHES, AND THOSE ASHEI SCATTERED

TO THE FOUR WINDS OF HEAVEN, MY BODY

QUARTERED, AND DISPERSED TOWARDS THE FOUR

CARDINAL POINTS OF THE UNIVERSE, SO THAT

THERE SHOULD BE NO MOUE REMKMBRANCE HAD

OГ ME' AMONG ME.V OR MASONS FOREVER.

So help me God and keep me steadfast in the p,er-

formanco of this my Master Mason's oath or obliga

tion."

[sYWe. Appended to this obligation was the fol

lowing sentence, but it was not read or sworn to by

any one, during the examination, nor was there any

evidence as to the souice from which it came, or

the authority on which it was founded.]

"Succeeding each obligation a charge U giren

which may be" found in Webb's Monitor, and

which explains the duty of a Mason under the obli

gation. The Monitor is used as a book of refer

ence by Masons, and is always depended on, for cor

rect information respecting the sevenfirst degrees."

[.Vate. In the same manner the following sen

tence appeared, appended to the entered Apprenti

ces oath. No witness testified that this explana

tion had ever been made in any Lodge, or by what

Masons it was ever so explained. The Committee

did not read it or ask any question respecting it,nor

was it known except to those who furnished it and

theCominittee, tobe attached to the oath, until some

time alter. It should therefore be understood that

this explanation is in reality no part of the testimony,

because no inquiry was made respecting it, and no

witness vouched for ils accuracy. On the contrary

every Masonic witness as well as seceders, swore

that the oaths were no where explained different

from what they read, in or out ot the Lodge. This

paragraph was thrown in, as a mere supposition of

the opinion of Masons, without stating what Ma

sons ; an explanation got up, without a shadow of

Masonic authority, to soften the oath, since the

murder of Morgan. The only explanation of this

sort ever given by Masons, was given in the Ad-

drcís of the Rhode Island Grand Lodge, put forth to

quiet the jealous inquires of the peeple. The ref

erence to the by-laws has nothing to do with the

oaths, as will be shown by subsequent testimony,

the " transactions of the Lodge" not meaning the

oaths, but the ordinary Ьu.чmesч concerns. The

Chairman of the Investigating Committee stated

himself that he so understood it.]

["The explanation given by Mason» of this penalty

is • that I would rather have, or sooner have my

throat rut,&c. than to reveal, &c.' And th«re is

«n article in lue by-laws of the Lodges in Frovi-

dence, which provides " that if any membsr »Imll

disclose any of .the transactions of the Lodge, to tho-

disadvantage of the Craft, &c. he shall be admon

ished or expelled." (See 15th article ofthe by-lawe

of St. John's Lodge, and tho 14th of Mount Ver-

non Lodge.)

TESTIMONY OF ANSON POTTER. [Continued.]

Mr. Hazard, after reading to the witness tho

entered Apprentice oath, from the manuscript

marked A. inquired of the witness if that oath was

administered to him in the first degree.

Witness. That I presume is about literally cor

rect, as it was delivered to me. There may be

some alterations that do not strike me on hearing it

read.

Mr. Hazard. I now read from the same Lodge

the form of the Fellow Craft Oath.

Mr. Win. C. Barker, (Master of St. Johns Lodge,

and most Eminent Commander of the Encampment

of Knight Templars) said, the first partis all the

same as in the entered Apprentice oath. Mr. H.

then read the Fellow Craft Oath, from the manu

script form.

Witness. I presume that is the substance of the ш

oath I took. I do not recollect the expression•

"square and angle ofmy work."

Mr. Hazard. I will read theMasler Mason's oath

furnished me by the Grand Master, and Mr. Wil

kinson, and Mr. Grinnell. He then read that oalh

from the manuscript, and asked if it was correct.

H'itnfsK. 1 should think it was substantially tho

same. There are some omissions and verbal alter

ations. Among those to be excluded, in the oath I

took, was a hermaphrodite. There was something

in the oath relative to the grand hailing sign of

distress.

[The clause in Bernard was handed to Mr. Haz

ard, which he was requested to read to witness.]

Witness. Something of that kind was in tlie

oath. 1 never read the oaths in Bernard. So far

as the expression, "furthermore do I promise and

swear that 1 will not give the grand hailing sign of

distress, except I am in real distress, or for the be

nefit of the craft when at work,"I am pretty con

fident it was in my oath. At present it strikes mo

that was about all reUtive to the grand hailing

sign.

Mr Hazard. We have been also furnished by the

same Lodge with a copy of the charge adminis

tered before taking the oath, which I will read to

you.

To the candidate. " Before we proceed to give

you the secrets of Freemasonry, it will be necessa

ry for you to take an oath or obligation such as all

Masons have taken before you; whereby you tcill

bind yourself to keep inviolable all the secrets that

may be communicated to you. This obligation in not

intended to interfere with your religious or political

opinions. And sometimes the form is changed and

put in this manner: ' This obligation is not intended •

to interfere with your duty to yourself, your neigh

bor, your country or ydur God.' Have you any

objection to taking such an obligation?

" To the candidate who has no objection, the fol

lowing obligations are administered."—Was that de

livered to you?

Witness. I have no recollection of any such

charge before taking the oath.

The 11 th Interrogatory was put to witness; if he

knew of any secrets in Masonry, except those dis

closed in Bernard's Light and Allyn's Ritual?

Witness. I never read Bernard's Lis ht on Ma

sonry or AHyn's Ritual. I have Morgan's Illustra

tions. The three first degrees in Morgan are sub

stantially correct. [It was here stated that Bernard

was a copy frjui Morgan, in the three first de

grees.]

12fft interrogatory— If the By laws were pub

lished, and if he knew of any «ecret by laws .'
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Witness. I think thoYiy laws wnrn written, hut

not printed, I think. Iknew ot no secret by laws.

In answer to the 13th Interrogatory, witness says,

lin knew of no other oaths, than those he has stated.

The 14th Interrogatory, he thinks he has answered

before. s

To the lúth—If he evor heard the subject of Ma

sonic penalties discussed in a Lodge ?

Witness. I don't recollect that I ever did in a

Lodge. I recollect after the Lodge was closed, as

it is called, in the sitting room of the Lodge, where

we met to eat and drink, as we usually did every

night, hearing Masons on more than one occasion

say, that the author of .lachin and Boaz, published

in 17C7,'or 8, had been put to death by Masons, for

divulging Masonry. This book 1 remember hearing

talked ol by Masons, twenty-five years ago. The

circumstances under which I received it are faintly

on my mind, but I am clear as to the fact. [Л'0(e

Mr. Hailu wrote down this question, leaving out

"by Masons for divulging Masonry." Mr. Turner

msisted on having it put down in the words of the

witness. We believe it was finally done so.]

Mr. Hazard asked if he understood them to say

that the author of Jachin and Boaz was murdered ?

Witness. My impression now is clearly that they

did not consider it as a murder, but a necessary

fonsequfnce of Ma-some obligations. It was mention

ed, as I presume, as a CAUTION to show the bind-

inn nature of our obligations, and the importance

oj not divulging the secrets.

[Remark.—Some difficulty here occurred about

writing down this answer. Mr. Haile made some

observation, about the witness wishing to have his

answer written down, which was not distinctly un

derstood, and it is therefore omitted. The witness

explained "tint he meant that in the conversation

stier the closing of the Lodge, respecting the killing

of the author of Jachin and Hoaz, the suggestion was

it grew out of his Masonic obligations ; not that he

was murdered, but that he was put to death, ac

cording to Masonic law. Witness was satisfied

with leaving out this part, but that was his under

standing." It is a fact that the above answer,

which is here stated In the precise language ot the

witness, was entirely omitted in Mr. Haile's min

utes. The witness added further—"I considered

it then ae generally understood among Masons that

(he author of .larbin and Boaz was put lo death in

consequence of publishing the book disclosing Ma-

sonic secrets, in violation of Masonic obligations."

Mr. Hazard. Was the subject talked of openly,

among the members ? and do you undertake to say

they justified the murder ?

Witness. It was never a subject of public con

versation. It would be difficult to tell at this time

how I received it, but it was never a subject of

public remark. I do not remember ever to have

heard that circumstance discussed as to its crimi

nality. It was mentioned as a circumstance that

had happened a long time ago, and probably never

Did you ever hear the sub

ject discussed of the power of the Lodge to inflict

sny higher penalty than expulsion, and did you ever

know of any higher punishment ?

Witness. } don't remember ever hearing that

аubiect touched'upon at all, as to what power they

liad. I never knew of any punishment inflicted by

the Lodge, unless the notice I had of being expel-

.led, is such.

17tís Interrogatory. Were' polities or religion

ever discussed in the" Lodge ?

Witness. 1'olitirs nor religion was never the

subject of deliberation in a Lodge, when I was

present. The charges appeared to be of a religious

nature. My experience in a Lodge was probably

not more than twenty evenings. I presume it was

a principle of the Lodge at that time to exclude

polities and religion from the Lodge while it was

«pen.

would happen again.

IGlA Interrogatory.

I8lA Interrogatory. Tf witness ever felt/bound

to give his vote for a Mason, in preference to a bet

ter man not a Mason?

Witness. No. For myself perhaps I have been

under as little ofthat influence as any one. I have

nodoubt it has an influence, but I never considered

it as growing out of the professed principles of

Masomy. There was nothing in the professed

obligations or principles of Masonry that imposed

upon me any political duty. Nothing in that duty

as I considered, which had the least beating on my

political opinions. I speak of it as it was as I un

derstood it, twenty years ago. I know nothing ot it

since then in the Lodge.

Mr Hazard asked what influence he meant to say

it had? v

Vfitnfss. I meant to be considered that there

no doubt was a considerable influence arising from

a brother being at the head of a Lodge and making

Masons, or from a brother being liberal and furnish

ing a supply of refreshments. It was a general in

fluence obtained by such means. In this state I

do not recollect any instance of a mason treating a

\9thlnterrogalory. If witness, when on a jury,

would have been influenced by his masonic obliga

tions to give a verdict for a brother mason, in pref

erence to one not a mason?

Witness. It never would have had that mflu

ence on my mind, I trust. 1 considered the obliga

tions as leading to that; pointing that way, but they

never had that influence on me.

20(Л Interrogatory. If witness everknew a judge,

juror, or other officer, practice upon this construc

tion of masonic oaths?

Witness. I have been but little in courts. I

never saw any thing ofthat kind.

21st Interrogatory.—If the forms and ceremonies

of Lodges in this .and other states are alike?

Witness. They are, as far as my knowledge ex

tended. 1 remember in visiting a Lodge in Nor

folk, Va., the Senior Warden came out to examine

me. I thought I was but an indifferent mason, but

I found him so rusty, 1 had to instruct him in the

pa*'S signs, and I was praised for my being so bright

a mason. It was praise I did not covet, lor I never

felt much desire to become acquainted with the

science of masonry as it was called.

Mr. Hazard. Masonry is the only science I know

of, in which the greater the ignorance the greater

the merit.

Question from Mr. Turner.—What was the na

ture of the subjects usually discussed among tho

members, after the Lodge was closed?

Witness. After the Lodge was formally closed,

the subjects discussed in the Eating Room were

various. There was no regutar subject. Desultory

conversation and songs. Usually sung about our

selves, showing what worthy men wo were.

Question from Mr. Paine—Did you promise in

your Master's oath to obey the grand hailing sign

of distress?

Witness. I think that in my Master Mason's

oath, I did promise to answer the grand hailing sign

of distress. I am not positive it was in the oath;

I think it was. 1 am confident it was in the oath,

or that I was so charged.

Question from Mr. Taine.—If that sigh was made

to you, how did you consider it bound you as a

I believe I never made up my mina

fully how 1 ahould act in that cose. I never made

it, nor had it made to me. I wish to convey the

idea that I never felt myself much bonnd by my

masonic oaths. If it had been to the extent of a

quarter or half a dollar, to a worthy brother, and

perhaps more, I should have answered it; hut not at

the expense of principle. I trust 1 never should

have done that.

Question from Mr. Paine.— Did you ever hear a

mason justify the murder of William Morgan?

mnsonr

Witness.



\Vitness. I never beard a mason fully justify th

murder of Morgan. I have heard llieui use expres

sions which seemed to imply а sentiment that way-

ЛГr. Hazard here spoke up with some wanuih.

—The Committee are not desirous of hunting up

scandal. I consider it no better than scandal, to ait

here to hear our fellow citizens cha: gcd with" justi

fying murder.

Mr: Turner said he presumed the Committee sit

here to gel at the trytli, which he liad always under

stood to be no slander.

The testimony of Anson Potter here closed, and

the minutes taken by Mr. Haile, were read to the

witness, and by him signed.

WILLARD BALLOU.—Fourth Witness.

Resides in Warwick, R. I. Is a throstle spinner.

I am now a Mason. Have never publicly seci ded.

Have taken seven degrees. I was admitted and

took the four first degrees in the town of Paris.

county of Oneida, State of New York, in Federal

Lodge No. 80. Took the other degí eos in a Chap

ter at New Hartford, New York. I have been mas

ter of a Lode in Rhode Island, Warwick Lodge. 1

think it was in 1828.

Mr. Hazard r,ead the Entered Apprentice Oath,

from the Grand Lodge paper.

Witness. " My body buried," as I received it:—

(instead ofthat, the tongue buried.) The substance

is the same as the oath I received in N. York. It

diners some in phraseology.

The Fellow Crafts oath being read. Witness says

that part stating I will always hail and never reveal,

¿ce. is included in the Entered Apprentice oath, and

not given in this. The same oaths I have taken in

N. York, I have heard administered in Lodges in

this State. I took the six first degrees as laid down

in Bernard substantially. I have examined that

book and the oaths as there given are substantially

suck as I received in J\. York, and haee seen admin

istered in Rhode Island, up io the three first dt-

g rces.

The Entered Apprentice oath is the same, as iu

Bernard. The Fellow Craft is the same except

square and angle of my work. 1 have seen the

three first degrees administered in Manchester

Lodge, Coventry, and Warwick Lodge, R. I. [At

the request of Mr. Paine, Mr Hazard read the Mas

ter Mason's oath from Bernard.] IVitnesssays that

part, I will fly to the relief of the person giving the

grand hailing sign of distress should there he a

greater probability of saving his life than loosing

my own, is in the oath. He is certain that he swore

in his Master Mason's oath to support the constitu

tion of the Grand Lodge of the U. States which is

not iu Bernard. He also distinctly remembers that

clause, that if any part of this obligation be omitted

I will hold myself amenable thereto, whenever in

formed. That is subslantialy correct as I received

the oaths. I have heard the oaths in the three first

degrees administered in this Slate, in the same form

in Manchester and Warwick Lodges, except some

clauses in the latter oaths were left out. The omis

sions are, "that I will remember n brother Master

Mason when on my knees offering up my devotions

Io Almighty God." This is loft out in the Rhode

Island Ledges. Also," That I will go on a Master

Mason's irrand when required." No other materi

al altera tion in the oath.

.'/;• F line requested that witnesi might be asked a

question relative to the members of Manchester

Lodgo having used Morgan's book to initiate a can

didate.

Mr. Hazard evaded it, and among other offensive

remarks, said, " The Masonic dunghill has produced

а цreа1 many Antímaseme vermin."

Mr Turner, (aside)—" And you think you are

the cock ol the walk to gobble them up, but you

will find yourself mistaken."

Question from Mr Paine. Did you ever receive

a letter in Majonic cypher. If •o átate ¡t. 1

Witness has receivnd a letter in the Royal Arch

cypher addressed to him at Warwick, post marked,

Mid.lletown, Upper Houses. There wus nothing ¡a

the Ittter but the following signs.

F L > LTIL DV

VALLVL

The reading of the iaises was'' REYENGE IS

S WEETE,' when interpreted by the explanation laii

down in Bei uard.p. 138. 1 have never taken the de

gree of 11. A. Mason. I never have formally with

drawn from Masonry. I certified a paper that Ray

Potter gave the penal clause of the Entered Appren

tice oath correct. I gave the certificate 2511) July last.

1 have no means of ascertaining whether the ííoyal

Arch signs I received came from a Mason or an An-

timason. I can merely give my supposition.

Question from J. S. Harris, (Antimason.) Will

you state what you believe to have been the occa

sion of your receiving that letter ?

Witness. In 1827 I think, I was at Manchester

Lodge, Coventry. There were two candidates to

be initiated that night. There was no one present

that belonged to Hie Lodge, that fell competent to

give the obligation. Several of the members in

quired, if any of them hrnd got Morgan's book, and

they could give tho obligations outTof that. 1 told

of it afterwards. That 1 supposed was the reason

of my receiving that letter. I know of no other.

The last degree I received was Most Excellent

Master. The fourth degree which I look was called

the Union degree.

In answer to queslion from Mr Hazard. I hadi

seen the R. Arch Chapter cypher some iears before

I saw it in Bernard.

In answer to question from Mr Wm. Harrlfi, (An

timason) if there was a penalty in the Union degree?

There was a penalty in the Union degree. It was to

have my body severed from shoulder to hip, diago

nally.

Queslion from the same. Was the word affirm

ever used in any Masonic oath you ever heard ad

ministered.

Witness. I never heard it used or used it my

self.

BARNEY PHELPS.—Fifth Witness.

Resides in Mansville Smilhfield, R. Island. I am

a Machinist. I have taken Ihree degrees in Ma

sonry. 1 have never publicly seceded. I am not

an adhering Mason. I took my degrees in Colum

bia Lodge, No. 34, in Brattleborough, Vermont.—

The oaths administered to me were substantially the

same as those in Bernard. There is no material va

riation. I received the degrees in the Fall of 1826

1 think. I was convinced that the obligations- were

not binding on me, after about two years. I con

sidered them binding for about two years.

Question put by request. l)id you ever hear any

Mason in or out of the Lodge, justify the murder of

Morgan ?

Witness. I heard a Mason say that allowing

Morgan had got his throat cut from ear to ear, and

the book he had published was true, justice was

done him, or words to that effect.

Mr Hazard here began to look stern'and proposed]

a number of queries to the witness.

Witness. The Mason was Timothy Bracket of

Guildford Vermont. It was sometime in October,

1830, in the highway near the doer of his House.—

His wife was present, and a sister of mine. Don'l

recollect that any body else was present. I stopped

at his house in a wagon, and he came to the door.—

The subject of Masonry was introduced among us.

I thought it was not justice to murder Morgan. He

did not appear to be angry. We were on friendly

terms. I never heard any thing but that he was a

respectable man.

Mr. Hazard. Were you on good termi ?

Witness- Yes, we were
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Mr. Hasard. Ah ! He wai your fnend then

was he r

Witness. I considered it so.

Mr. Hazard. Well, this is a pretty office to do

your FRIEND, to slander him in tins icui. (Mut

tering.) These kind of tell tale things—contempti

ble !

[The witness who was an entire stranger, and a

diffident and very respectable young mechanic, here

seemed greatly distressed at the treatment he re

ceived. Recovering himself he said I was asked

sir, and I thought 1 must tell because Iliad sworn

to teil all the truth.]

Mr Hazard. The Committee have no desire to

listen to these slanders.

ORAN PAKCARD—Sixth Witness.

Besides in Cumberland. Is a Blacksmith by pro

fession: I suppose I am a Free Mason. 1 have la-

ken five degrees. Took three in Massachusetts in

Pacific Lodge,at Amherst.Took the other two in the

Mark Lodge, at Cumberland, R. 1. I think in 1827.

[A question was put by request,what had occurred in

the Grand Lodge in 1827, when he was present,

relative to the murder of Morgan.] At the time

they chose officers of the Grand Lodge, at a regular

Lodge meeting in Cumberland, R. Island, I think

in 1827, it might have been in 1823. Richard Аи-

thony was Grand Master at the time. There was

present Mr Peter Grinnell one of the officers, Bar

ney Merry, if I am not mistaken, and I believe

Samuel Greene, and some other gentlemen from

Providence I do not recollect. Richard Anthony

spoke about the killing of Morgan. It was the first

lime I heard of the death of Morgan. Mr Anthony

said there was no doubt that Morgan was killed.

HE SAID PROBABLY IT WOULD COME OUT IN PRINT

Shortly, HE К All) Л E SHOULD READ IT IN HIS FAMILY

THE SAME AS ANY OTHER PRINT, AND LET IT PASS,

or Words to that effect. Nothing else passed upon

that subject in the Lodge, as I recollect.

Mr Hazard. Are you a political Antimason.

Witness. No.

Mr Hazard. Are you a Mason then ?

Witness. I have not set in any Lodge since

then.

Mr Hazard. Have you seceded.

Witness. ISo Sir.

Mr Hazard. Let us know whether you are fish,

flesh or fowl. After a pause Mr H. said do you

consider yourself bound by any of the obligations

ef Masonry ?

Witness. I do not.

COMMENTS.

[Several questions had been prepared to ask Mr.

Packard, who had reluctantly obeyed a special

summons, obtained from the Committee by the re

quest of Antimasons. Mr. Packard had never se

ceded, and though disposed to tell the whole truth,

he evidently labored under strong apprehensions of

the consequences of displeasing the Masons. Pre

vious to his examination he had said to an individ

ual that the understanding of the Grand Master and

others present, respecting the killing of Morgan,

seemed to be that it was the duty of Masons to pass

itoverandsay nothing about it. Questions were

prepared to bring out this tact fully.but at this time,

it being after dinner, Mr Hazard had become so

stern and almost savage in his manner toward the

witnesses, that it seemed cruel to expose them to

his sarcasms, by proposing any question. The com

mittee shew no disposition to get at all the witness

knew on this subject, and it is a remarkable fact

that Past Grand Master Anthony was not called to

explain away this singular circumstance, nor (to

our knowledge) was any other person named by the

witness, as present in the Grand Lodge in 1827,

questioned at all on that point by the Committee.—

The fact,as it stands unexplained, is this. That the

witness, a Mason, heard the killing of Morgan first

mentioned in a Grand Isodge, by the Grand Mas

ter, who said there was no doubt he wa* ¡tilled,

and thia too, long before it was at all believed, in

Rhode Island, out of the Ijtdge, that Morgan h:;

been murdered, and at the very time Masonsn::

doors, were pronouncing the accounts from th.

West tobe abominable lies, and declaring in theic

papers, that Morgan was travelling about the coun

try, or up in Canada, selling his books ! The Giant!

Master told the Masons then, as this witness depoî-

es, that Morgan was killed, and probably it woulu

come out in print shortly. Even he, doubted tbe

power of Masonry to keep trRi murder out of

print, but says he, il they do print it 1 shall read i;

in my family the same as any other newspaper sto

ry and let it pass! Without a word of censure,

though he knew the penalties Morgan had sworn

to and that he had been killed, by Masons, in literal

conformity to those penalties. This fact shows toe.

that the Grand Lodges in different states, knew ol

ihe murder of Morgan, long before it was believed

by the public. They could only have learnt it. at

that period, from the Masonic bodies in N. York.

and yet they did all in their power to keep the

people in ignorance ofthat crime. Such is the mo

rality inculeated in the Lodge Room ! To illus

trate the baleful influence of'Masonic oaths.still far

ther, it should be stated here, that Past Grand Mas

ter Anthony, alluded toby the witness, is a hiuliK'

respectable manufacturer, and a citizen whoss

character has always commanded the highest re

spect. He knew of the murder of Morgan, it ap

pears in 1827, and yet he stopped the Rhode Island

American, some time after, when that paper came

out Antimasonic, and endeavored to aid in bringing

the murderers of Morgan to justice', merely be

cause it published what he knew to be facts re

specting Masonry ! Such facts defy comment !]

Friday Afternoon, December 9.

ABRAHAM WILRINSON—Affirmed.

Resides in North Providence. Never was a Ma

son, and does not think he ever shall be.

Question. Have you ever heard any Mason or

Masons express their approbation of the killing of

Morgan ? If so, who were they, what did they say.

when was it, and on what occasion.

Witness. I have a number of times, soon after

the news of the abduction of Morgan. Some Ma

sons would justify it and some would not. I recol

lect but one at this time, who justified the killing.

That was Samuel Greene, then of N. Providence.

He said that if Morgan had disclosed the secrets ci

Vlasonry, he did not see why any body need com-

ilain, for he had suffered nomore than his just de

serts, or what he had agreed to. Either one or the

other of these expressions. It was made in the N.

England Pacific Bank, or by the door. There were

several present. It was sometime in 1828, 1 thinl;

William Harris was one wlio was present, I do not

recollect any other. The subject of the abduction

and murder of Morgan, led to this conversation.—

[t might have been commenced by me. I took an

early interest in the subject, and was considerably

excited aboutit. There was an argument between

me and Mr Greene, at the time. He appeared to

be some considerably excited. The argument was

not of great length. Mr Greene spoke with his usual

warmth, when in argument. Not any more as I

know of. 1 have found in a great many conversa

tions on this subject, some Masons justify the mur

der, and some not. But I never found any who did

not seem to get over it very easy, with a smile a;

the excitement. I cannot recollect when or where

I have heard other Masons express this opinion, but

have frequently heard them say that Morgan was

a poor, dissipated, perjured rascal, and if he was

killed he had met with his just deserts, and that I

was meddling with what was none of my business.

And when I said what a serious circumstance it was.

and mentioned his wife and children, Masons have

said, she was not his wife, only a prostitute picked

up in the streets of Philadelphia. I hare been



threatened for|my attempts to Í n vestigats thii iubject.

I was in the Roger Williams Bank, Providence, in

1823,1 think. Nathaniel Smith and Wm. Harris

were present. Samuel E. Gardner, of KmithuVId,

Cnshier of Lime Rock Bank and Master of Mount

^ l -iriah Lodge, came in. After salutation he said to

: rue, I understand yon are a patron or encourager of

i that Free Press, at Pawtucket. Suppose I am, said

I, is there any thin; in it unlawful, that I have not

a right to do? Why, says he.it will do you more

injury than every thing you ever did in your life.

Saya I, yon alarm' me, be good enough to tell me in

what way I 3111 to lu: injured for doing that. Says

he,it will be done wrrit а« UNSEEN HAND.

Air. Hazard. Are you well acquainted with Mr

Gardner, and did you consider him a hot headed

young man, who would utter such expressions with

out any meaning, and 'did you consider what he

said in character as a mere bravado, or did you be

lieve it was intended asa warning, or a threat i

, Witness. I have known him (or fifteen years.—

He is pretty free (rifted)" in conversation, 'taiks

freely, and speaks his mind without the fear of any

body, and never saw any thing in him but what I

considered him to be a correct young man. I con

sidered what he said to be in exact accordance with

the principles of Masonry, I eould not tell what

he niu.nit, but his countenance looked white, as il

ho spoke the sentiments of his heart. 1 was impres

sed seriously with my danger upon reflection, and

•have remained so ever .since, having seon nothing

to alter, but much to add to my cause for it.

Mr. Hazard. Were your opinions formerly

.friendly to Masons P

\\'iturss. Yes. I did not withdraw my confi

dence from them, until this Morgan business.

Questions handed in by Masons at the table.

1st. Whether yon have railed the Masonic Hill

in Pawtucket, tHe slaughter house" Ans. ¥es.

'-M. Did you ever say you did not doubt that five

hundred persons had been put to death in St. Johns

Hall?

Witness. I have no recollection of ever saying

that I believed any person had been murdered in a

Lodge in Rhode Island. I may have said that I be

lieved the Institution had been the cause of the

death of hundreds. I meant to couple it with (he

obligations of the institution which enjoin death.

Here Mr. Hazard went into a long cross exami

nation respecting the reasons witness had for believ

ing that the author of Jachin and linuz was killed,

and for his belief that other masons who hud reveal-

o-l the secreti.had been put to death. Mr. II. particu

larly pressed the witness as to the date of the pub

lication of Jachin and Boaz, &c. Witness wislied

to have time to consult the publications in which

he had seen these stat.ments. His impression was

that it was Samuel Prilchard who-was found mur

dered in the streets of London, about a hundred

years ago, or more, and that M isonry dwindled to

nothing in consequence and became the laughing

stock of the boys.

The dnposilion was here left for the witness to

produce documents on this point.

WILLIAM H ARBIS of N. Providence, Manufactur

er.affirmed. Was present on an occasion when Sam

ne! Greene, (named by former witness.) of Paw

tucket, a high Mason, said that if Morgan had been

guilly of disclosing the secrets as had been charged

on him, he had suffered justly.

Mr. Hazard. H^ve you beard any other Mason

stify the murder'

Witness. 1 believe I have heard one other Ma

son justify the murder of Morgan. It was Mr Bar

ney Merry, of Ncirth Providence, recently Grand

Master of the Lodge. He observed that if the ac

count was correct, ii Morgan had revealed the se-

•This was explained to have reference to a term com

mon in the lumber biuiacsi. A board afree r\fti*i when

Я i pi i u su/. i

justify

W;»,

crett of Masonry, , h» deserved hts fate, f am aat *

mason and never have been. Someten or twelve

years lince I was encouraged by Mr Hezekiah

Howe, then of P,iw tucket, a Royal Arch Mason, tq

join the Lodge. 1 asked him this question, whether

if by any means, sleeping or waking, I should be

weak enough to disclose any of. the oaths or secrets

of Masonry, what would be the consequence ? He

said, very solemnly, it would lie DEATH. 'He reside*

now in New York, near Albany, is я manufacturer,'

at the establishment qf David Wilkinson, as I have

understood. Said Howe is a Royal Arch Mason, as

t am informed, and was at that time. He was a

pretty free spoken man. He was most open on

Masonry, of any man 1 knew it that time.

Witness. Has not had any other material con

versation. About two years ago, w» in conver

sation with a person who is a captain of a vessel.-—

Witness would prefer not to slate his name, but

could do it if it were necessary.

Mr. Hazard insisted on the name.

Witness He had been a high Mason. His name

was Chase, Joseph, 1 think. He now resides in

Pawtucket. He stated to me that in a voyage he

had made, some years before, about 25 perhaps,

they were in distress, and saw a French veesel ap

proaching. His captain gave the French vessel a

Masonic signal,but could not bring Л с r to. Ноcато

to Mr. Chast and stated that he could not bring the

vessel to. He then undertook it himself as being a

higher Mason, from what I could draw from him',

and after hailing the ship, gave a Masonic signal.—

Said Chase in relating this circumstance, suited

the action to the wold, and made the signal in my

presence, probably not supposing that Г would un

derstand it. 1 then said to him I knew how he did

it, by giving the grand hailing ttgn. [Witness here

pointed out the sign in Allyn's Ritual p. 152. and

said that was the sign he made.] Caut.,C. then beg

ged of me not to mention the tircunistanco to any

one, for he was fearfuj that the Masons would serve

him аs they rli,l Morgan. It struck me th;U he was

alarmed. ' I slated to him that I would not injure

him. This was my reason for dectining lo give the

name. I then mated to him what I had seen in Sol

omon Southwick's papp.r, that he had for some time

felt himself in jeopaidy, bu't there was one consola-

tion that Masons had already killed one too many,

to attempt the like again.

Mr. Hazard asked if this remark was made by

South wick when he was a candidate for Goveraoi?

Witness. I think before. ,

Mr. Hazard. It Ы the first time I evor lieurd

any body quote Solomon Southwick, except John

Howe.

question by Mr Simmons. .Was Samuel .Greene

apt tn be excited when arguing on Masoniy, &c.

Viitnet*. It is my impression that he was, and,

he was pretty zealous. The same remark would

not apply to Barney Merry. He is a very cool nun.

I think there was no argument between us. I think

it was produced by one question alone, and that, I

think cume from me about the kidnapping and prob

able marder nf Morgan. the conversation with

Merry might have been a year after the news of

Morgans murder or more.

(¿nestitn by Mr. tfazurd (respecting his knowl

edge of masonic signs.)

H'itness. 1 am troubled with rather a fthort

memory—but at that time could give a number of

them. It requires a retentive memory to be ii

bright mason, Ï have studied Barnaul's Light on

Masonry and I think he goes to 44 degrees includ

ing French and Prussian. My inducement in study

ing the signs was to watch the operation nf Free-

Masonry—which :I have done for the last J2 years.

Question by da. Were you a signer of the late

Ami Masonic memorial, and a member of the lete

State Convention?

nitnea. I wss. I was early in this subiect

and was *t the first Aoti Maeejiic Convention ÍAÜU«



State. For that act in eoming forward and being a

member of the Ami Masonic State Committee.

(Mr Hazard here interrupts witness and says—

"then you are a party")—1 was accosted by a friend

ot mine,s high mason,who staied to me with a great

deal of earnestness, Hint I had better keep b:ick in

ill" back ground—that he was persuaded that it

would be very much to my injury to have my

name made use ofin that way—he said I might do

as much in the back ground—I might push the

thing as hard as I pleased against masonry, bulan

n friend he prayed that I would not come forward

again in the way that í had.

This was Crawford Titus, with whom 1 have been

intimately acquainted for 12 or 15 years.

Question by da. Were you present in the late

Antimasonic Convention—did you vote on the ques

tion declaring the Anti-masons a political party—or

did you approve of that vote and are you attached

to that party ? Ans. I believe you may say all

that— I was present—1 think I did so vote and I

approve of the vote and am attached to that party.

Question by Mr. Simmons. At what time did

Mr Titus give you that advice ? and what did you

suppose was his object ? It was about two years

since, I think, before Anti-masonry assumed much

of a political character in this state. 1 cannot say

positively what his object was—but supposed it was

because he was fully acquainted with the operation

of masonl-y -and out of purely friendly feelings to

teards mt.

Mr. Hazard here weht into a vexatious examina

tion about the state of parties. Sargeanl's trench

law suit and quarrels in Pawtucket where Mr Wil

kinson was interested against Masons.

Witnrss. There was a strong party feeling in

Pawtucket—Ihere was bitterness of feeling in the

community there. T.here was such a suit. David

Wilkinson was a Mason. t

Mr. Hazard. Were you present at the R. W.

Bank when the convematlon between Mr Wilkinson

and S. I1'. Gardner, mentioned in the deposition .oí

Mr Wilkinson, look place ; if so what part of it did

you hear?

Witness. I was present and heard the latter part

of it—that part of it in which Gardner said it would

be done by an unseen hand.

It being late in the evening, the Committee ad

journed.

Saturday Morning, Dee. 10.—The Committee

met at 10 o'clock, present as yesterday.

Or B. W. Case of Newport, was called and

sworn, and the Committee examined him for about

an hour. In the mean time Rev. Daniel Greene,

who had justified the mmder of Morgan, as stated

by Mr Chase, appeared and requested that he might

be examined in regard to the conversation with Mi

Chase. Whether he had been summoned by the

. Committee, or had appeared voluntarily, was not

explained.

Mr. Hazard directed Dr Case a (sseeding Ma

non) to suspend his testimony, and Mr Greene, (an

adhering Mason) took the stand.

REVD. DANIEL GREENE, (Mason.)—7th. Witntss.

Mr Halle read to witness that part of the deposi

tion of Levi Chase, which alinees that witness de

clared to him, Morgan had suffered accordingly to

his obligations, and he was asked if he recollected

that conversation ?

Witntss. I reqolleet if my memory serves me, ol

having three conversations with Air. Chase in pri

vate, on the subject ol Masonry. The first was at

Captain Bakers.

[Mr. Hazard here said, " Mr Coske, we shall want lh»

other oaths." Mr Cooke, the Grand Master then handed

i paper td Mr Hazard. It should be borne in mind that

Mr Greene was the first Royal Arch Mason exam

ined, and it was necessary to avoid having to recur to

she oaths in Bernard, should any question be asked.]

Witness The conversation is not all correctly

iated by Mr Chase. After some othereonfersation,

of the people »i the house the liberty:)

ч1eр into some other room, by ourselves. We wera

into another room. I asked him if he bad visited i

Lodge lately. He said he had not. 1 told him i:

vras doubtful whether he could get into a Lodge tt

that lime, if he had not visited one lor some time, u

there was a great deal of excitement in conse

quence of many books that were about, and sonie

imposlers The Grand Lodge had taken great pre

caution, and instituted something new among them

to check these impostors, when they should appeir,

and that if he had not learnt that, he could not be

able to visit a Lodge until he had; and I should ad

vise him to get it immediately, if he intended to vis

it the Lodges. I don't remember that any thing

particular took place after that. I told him if he

had been there last night, I could have vouched lor

him ami he could have taken the degree, and thít

he could not get it except at the Lodge of which be

was a member, or by being vouched lor by a brothec

There was no conversation at that time, that took

place with us, respecting the murder of William

Morgan. I don't remember particularly.

Mr. Hazard. Was there ever any conversation

between you relating to the murder of Morgan?

Witness. I would like lobe asked a question or

that point. I had a conversation with him on thai

subject, alone by ourselves, in my keeping room,

after eleven o'clock at night. I can't remember just

ly how the conversation was introduced, but the

substance, I think was this. He asked me if I be

lieved that Morgan was murdered, or his life beer

taken. I told him that according to the accounts !

had received, the best I could get, 1 believed he was.

He then asked mo if I believed the Masons did it I

told him I believed they had, according to the ac

counts 1 had received in the papers I read. My es

pressions were these, that 1 thought it was an a*fu!

thing before God, yet we were not to blame for wlut

others did, anil that there was no society but whs:

had its bad members, and that he well remembered

that our Congregational brethren in Salem hung

the Quakers, but we were not to be blamed for it

I never justified the murder of Morgan, no further

and never meant to be understood so.

[Л"oгe. A question was here written by Mr. На!

lett, and handed to the Committee, " If a Congregi-

linnal Church should retain at its communion, mem

bers who had hung the Salem Quakers, and all other

Congregationai Churches in the country,should con

tinue to fellowship that Church and be bound to re

ceive the murderers at their communion tabte,

should you excuse them by saying they were not к

blame for what others did?" While Mr. H. was wri

ting this question, Mr Greene said that lie was very

unwell, and wished to be excused from having

questions put to him. He had only come to explain

what he understood Mr Chase had said about him.

He should prefer being examined further, if neces

sary, some other time. The Committee did not put

the question, nor ivas it put afterwards.]

Tin4 witness here entered into an earnest de

fence of himself. He said, it was the injunc

tion of my father in law, whose ashes are now

in the grave, that I was about to take an obli

gation which was not to interfere with my politic!

or religion. I was a witness in a case in Uoslon be

fore Judge Wilder, in which A. Wilkinson was

Plaintiff and Benson Defendant. It was between >

Mason and an Antimason, and I told the truth in

favor of Mr Wilkinson, (the Antimason.) lams

Mason. I have gone to the orders of Knighthood. I

took the three first degrees first, then up to the Roy

al Arch, and then to the Knight Templar. I took

them inclusive to the Knight Templar, in the

Lodge of Pawtucket and Chapter and Encampment

of this town. I do not recollect the names of the

persons who gave me the degrees.

Question by request. Are the oaths and obliga

tions that were taken by and administered to you,

the same as those contained in Allyn and Bernard?



Witness. I could not telt you. I havo never

iead Allyn or Bernard.

Question by request. Can you repeat tlio Knight

Templai'sonth ?

\I'itness. The oaths of the higher degrees, /

could not remember if it was to gain a Kingdom.

Tha oaths of the Entered Apprentice was then

read to witness, as furnished by the Grand bodge.

Witness. I should think in amount about the

saine. I thought there was some variations in

«ouie of the words. [The witness was cut aiked to

point them out.]

The Fellow Craft's oath was read and Master

Masons from the same paper.

Witness. According to the best of my informa

tion or memory, they seem to me to be substantial

ly the same.

Witness does nat recollect that part of the obliga

tion, that he will hold himself amenable thereto il

any part of the obligation is omitted, whenever in

formed. Never heard any thing of the kind.

Witness was asked, by request, if he remember

ed the following clause i., the Master's oath. 'Fur

thermore do I promise and swear ahould 1 ever hear

the grand hailing sign of distress,and the person giv

ing it heing-in distress I will fly to his relief, &c.'

Witness. My metnory does not serve me, so as

to be able to state correctly, whether I recollect any

thing about it. He begged tobe excused at this

time.

Mr Hazard here said that the Committee did not

contemplate examining him in full extent. The

Committee had prepared interrogatories, embracing

the whole subject.

Witness said as to the higher degrees he could

not attempt to give them.

The witness was here excused, with the under

standing that he would be called again, if wanted.

[.Vote. It was thought remarkable by some, that

the witness should remember his three first degrees

pretty accurately, which he took many years ago,

and yet could not remember the higher degrees,

which he had taken much more recently ," if it

were to gain a Kingdom.'' It should he remember

ed that no masonic witness, at this time, had been

examined as to any degrees above the Master, nor

was it known, while he was under examination, on

Saturday, that the Masons had handed in any oaths

»buve the third degree. Several questions were

written by Antimasons, with a view of drawing out

the oaths in the higher degrees. The witness, how

ever, plead indisposition, and pressed the Committee

to excuse him, until some other time, and he was

excused. He was called again several days after,

aiul examined further. In this report the order of

time in which each witness was examimed, will be

preserved, unless where it is stated tobe other-

wise.]

NATHAN WHITING.—8th Witness.

Resides in East Greenwich Is an Attorney and

Counsellor at Law. Is a Mason, has token three

degrees together with the check degree. Took

thorn in King Solomon's Lodge, at East Greenwich.

Has been Master of that Lodge, Haidly thinks he

can repeat the oaths from recollection. The Grand

Lod^e oaths in the three first degrees, were then

read to witness.

Vfitaess They are substantially the same, with

eeme variations as I took,and have administered,them

in said degrees. It sometimes used to be administered

in the Fellow Craft, ' within the length of my ca

ble tos-,' instead of 'square and angle of my work.'

In the Master's degree after 'murder and treason

excapted,' is added, AND THAT AT MV OPTION.—

This was the usual form. In other respects this

Master's oath read is substantially the same witness

has been acquainted with.

[The Chairman was here requested to read the

oaths to witness from Allyn, but he refused. He

was then requested to put to him the clauses in the

oath ¡u Allyn not given in the wiitUn osth«handod

in by the Grand Ledge. This was finally don ia

a very reluctant manner.]

Witness was asked by request if in the Master'«

oath he recollects this clause, 'That I will not give

the grand hailing sign of distress, unless i am in

real distress/ &c.

Witness. I think I never heard it in the oaths,e«

administered.

siBstiuu by request. Is it taught in the Lee-

tures?

Witness. It is as a matter of instruction.

Question by request. Is the duty of obedience

to this fcign taught at the same lime, as a Ma

sonic duty ?

Witness. The use of the sign and the duty to

bey it are also taught, and pointed out. in the Lee-

tuies. ,

The several clauses in the oath given in Allyn,

not included in the Committee's oaths,were marked

off, and the committee requested to put ihem to

witness. Mr Hazard inquired if the committee

saw any importance in putting' the questions to

show the difference? Some conversation took

ilace between the Committee, on this point.

Mr Hazard, said he considered that the varia

tions were wholly immaterial.

Mr Sprague considered that it was of »ome im

portance.

At r Hazard insisted it was wholly immaterial ; he

said the difference between the oath, was merely

verbal. As the oath is repeated from memory, it ig

impossible it should always be alike. Dr. Case ha»

tes t i lied that.

Mr Hazard here complained of the trouble the

Committee were put to, by these questions. Mr.

Hallett offered to take the written oaths and com

pare them with the printed, and prepare questions,

and point out all the differences. Mr Hazard wished

he would do so, and the written oJibs of the 3 first

degrees, were afterwards handed to him for that

purpose.

Mr Turner said it was useless to prepare ques

tions for the Chairman to tear up. Mr Hazard

said he had tore none up that ought to be put. Mr

Turner said he thought differently. Mr Hazard

replied that he should tear them up, if they were

not considered material. Finally Mr Hazard agreed

to put the omitted clauses to witness, and the fol

lowing clauses from the Master's oath in Allyn's

Ritual were read. 1st. "That 1 will not be at the

initiation or raising a candidate at one communica

tion, without a dispensation." ä I. That 1 will go

on a Master Mason's errand even barefoot, to saw

his life or relieve his necessities. .

Il'itness. The first is given in some instancos,but

not generally. The second. No.

3J. " That if any p"art of my obligations is omit

ted at this time, I will hold myself uuswerabio

thereto, &n."

Witness does not recollect that it was ever so-

administered.

' Question from В. F. Hallett. Did you ever, a»

Master ol'a Lodge, explain the penalties in the three

first oath.-, and if so at what time, and in nh.it

manner.

Witness. I never gave any explanation cf the

penalties.

Question from the same. Did you ever deliver

Lectures in the Lodge, and if so, wlut subjects did

they neat of; Were they designed to explain the

signs and ceremonies i

Witness. 1 have delivered lectures. They treat

ed of moral subjects, and were in explanation of the

mode and manner of initiation, and working in the

LoJge.

Questicn from the same. Did you ever receive

a check degree or oath, and by whuui, and for what

reason was it instituted.

Witness. 1 received a degree, called the check

degree and understood it tu have been adoptud ou '

account of Morgan's disclosure;. . •



question from do. Where did 700 understand it

eriginated ?

Wilntss. I understood it originated in and was

prescribed by the Grand boige of Лeт York, and

recommended to other Lodges. .1 do not remember

whether I took an oath in that degree, or not.

AtSo'clock, P. M. The Committee adjourned

until 10 o'clock Monday morning.

Monday Morning, Dee. 12.

• Committee met at 10 o'clock, Messrs. Hazard,

Sprague and Hüte present Simmons absent.

JOHN BROWK—Mnth Witness.

, Resides in East Greenwich, (is Clerk of the

.Court of Common Pleas for Kent County.) 1 have

been a Mason. Was initiated in North Carolina

rising twenty tiro jears ago. Took five degrees in

the same »inter. Never have taken hut five de

grees. I was told that one of the two last degrees

I took,was wrong, (the Mark Masters.)as I received

thnm. Hare not been in a Lodge of Mark and Past

Musters since. Наve been a member ol East Green

wich Lodge (and Secretary of it) for many years.

Ido not «(insider myself a seceding Mason. I was

expelled as I understood. I had violated no obli

gations of Masbmy. I had even avoided reading

Morgan's book that I might avoid being questioned

its to its truth. I had giren my opinion freely of

the Institution ts to it» antiquity, and the truths of

its tradition»—that they were unfounded. I bad

stated to (he Lodge that at the expiration of the

office of Secretary, which I then held, 1 should no

longer frequent the Lodge. I considered the obli

gations binding on ins to conceal the segrets, until

the Grand Lodge gars what I considered a dispen

sation, m their Address tn the people in June hist.

Mr It.uitre inquired whether be wus a political

Anti-Mason.

¡fitnius. I do not understand Antimasonry to

bo political as such ; butl consider that it is oblig

ed lo act politically to accomplish its object in put

ting down th< Institution of Free Masonry. I

^cannot repent ths .obligation» verbatim. 1 recol

lected enough of them to avoid the violation of them.

The Entered Apprentice oath from the G. Lodge

paper wat read.

Witness. That is substantially the same I think,

except the body buried, instead of the tongue.

Fellow Craft's oath read from same form.

Witness. Ths Fellow Craft's orith.I think is sub

stantially the rame. It almost carries me back to

the scenes 1 passed through.

The Master's oath was then read.

Witness. In the Master's degree, '• AND THAT AT

MT owii OPTION," I recollect was used after "mur-

ilcr and treason excepted. Witness refers to the

practice of administering the oath in the Lodge at

Kast Greenwich [a Lodge subordinate to the Grand

Lodge, and but 13 miles distant from tho Lodge in

J'iovldenct:.] I think in the penalty it read that

there should be ne more remembrance had amona

Inen ami. more especially among Masons, of so vile

'it mi-rteh as I shall te wert I. ever to violate my

obligation, &c.

Mr l-'fazartl. Have you not confounded the oaths

received iri one Lodge with those you havt heard

in another.

Witness. I received all ths degress I ever took in

Jïorth Carolina, .an¿ I may fiaVe blended the'oaths

I there received with those adminstered in East

Greenwich Lodge. . .,

Question by request.— In the Lectures what is

'the answer to tba question " what makes you a

Mason?"

The only snswe I ever heard is " MY OBLIGA

TION."

Quistfnn by do. Did you evef hear an affirma-

Чп » As Leafs ?

Witnest. I nfter htard the word affirm used ia

any oath.

Mr Hazard. There appears to be a haeklin¿

about th'at word. Did you ever know any one to

refuse to swear in a Lodge.

Witness. I neyer did ?

Question ly request. Were you ever asked in

the Lectures why you had a cable tow round

your nt'Ck or body ?

Witness. I remember but little of the Lectures.

My impression is the question was asked.

Question by do. (Vas the answer that it was de

signed to show that as yon advanced in Masonry,

the (nibs become more and more binding '

WirieSs does not recollect.

Question by Commute*. Before taking the oath

were you tola that it would not interfere with your

religion or politics ?

Witness. I have heard the question usually ask

ed by the Master whether the candidate is willing

to take an obligation that ia not to interfere with his

religion or polities. My impression is, it is invaria

bly asked in the Master's degree. 1 am not certain

as to the other degrees.

Question from B. F. Halletl. Did you ever

know the penalties in the oaths to he explained in a

Lodge to mean any thing but death ?

Witness. Only as they were given. / never

knew any other than the LITERAL CONSTBUCTIOIT,

as they read. I never hem d them explained to mean

any thing but what they say."

Question proposed by Masons. Did not the by

laws of tho Lodge provide for the expulsion of a

member who should disclose any of the transaction!

•f thei.odge ?

Witness. Thefe. was no article in our by-laws

te expel a member for disclosing the transactions of

the Lodge. There was an article in the by-laws

for expelling a member who should violate them.

Question from W. Paine, Jr. Were the Oaths

incorporated into the by-laws ?

Witness. They were not. They were not te be

written.

Question from B. F. Hallett. What is un

derstood by the transactions of the Lodge Room ?

Do they include the oaths and penalties, or merely

the business.

Witness. They do' not include the oaths or pen

alties, as I have said before, and relate only to the

business c.f the Lodge.

[Mr. Haile did not put down either the above

question or answer, saying it was unnecessary, be

cause tho witness had answered it before ]

Mr. Hazard was here reques'ed by Walter-Tame,

Jr. to question the witness as to the variations be

tween the Master Mason's oath, as handed in by

the Grand Lodge, and the printed oath in Allyn.

Mr Hazard said this was puting the committee to

a great deal of unnecessary trouble. If Mr. Paine

wanted these questions put, it was his business to

have then there in writing.

B. /'. Hallett—You asked me' the other day.

(Friday) to prepare the variations between the

written and printed oaths, and I went without my

dinner in order to do so, while the committee ad

journed at noon. When they met in the after

noon, I handed you the variations, with all-tho

questions we wished to hare asked respecting them.

You took the paper, and without reading it, imme

diately stripped it up so, (making the motion of

leisurely tearing up paper in small strips) and thn v

the pieces under the table:

Mr. Hatard. Did 1 1 Well, weil,- Can't you

write them out again .' He was told that thejr

could be written out again, and that in the

mean time the witness could be asked respecting

the variations, as they were marked off in pencil, ia

Allyn's form.

Mr. Hazard then read from Allyn the first clause

omitted in the Grand Lodge oath; viz, "I will not

five the Grand bailing sign, except I am in ress
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, в* for (ho beriefit o/ the Ciait, wlion at

work; and should I see that sign given, or hear

the words accompanying it, I will fly to the relief

of the person »o giving it, should there be a greater

probability of saving his lile ih.m bstnir my own."

Witness. I remember something about it. 1 re

member 1 was charged to abfy that sign- »s far as 1

tould ¡re it liij day, or hear the explanation Inj night.

I do not recollect the words " fur the benefit oi the

Craft when at work."

Mr. Hazard next read this printed clause " I

will not be at the initiating, passing or raUing a can-

ilid.it« at one communication, without a dispensa

tion from tho Grand Lodge lor that purpose.

If'itiuss. I dont recollect any such thing.

сOMMENTS.

[Mr. Haile has put this down wrong, and made

the witness contradict himself by putting the

Wrong answer to No. 3 ot the questions marked K.

This witness was questioned out of Allyn, ftom

variations marked in pencil, before the written

variations were used by the Committee, they hav

ing been torn up, as above stated. The second

question Mr. Hazard asked• him ori the variations,

vraà as above, to wliich Witness answered No.

Mr. Haile in his minutes here, calls the 2d varia

tion as follow«, " 1 will apprize him of all approach

ing danger," and then puts the witness down as

eaying " I do not recollect any surh thing," when

just before he has sworn to these precis's wards in

the written form of the Master's oath, prepared bj

the Grand Lodge. This blunder of Mr Haile was

not corrected by witness, because the questions and

answers were not read over to him directly togeth

er. It however furnished a valuable hint Ht the

time, toa looker on, by which Mr. Haile was after

wards unconscious! ymade to put questions in a form

that caused several adhering Masons to "swear to a

certain expression when told it was in the Grand

Lodge oath, and then afterwards to swear they

never heard it, when it was read to them from a

paper marked É., as ons of the variations, in Allyn's

printed form ! This striking fact will be shown in

its proper place.]

Mr. Hazard, then proceeded to put the variations

to witness, viz. ''I will apprize a brother Mason

of all approaching danger."

Witness. Yes.

"Will go on a Master Mason's errand barefoot,

i.e."

Witness. Don't recollect that.

"If any part of thin my solemn obligation is omit

ted at this time, I will hold myself answerable

thereto, whenever informed."

Witness. Recollect that, and think the oath is so

administered.

Mr. Hazard here put the 10th standing interroga

tory, whether witness considered lie gave and took

jurisdiction, as far as he could, over life, by assum

ing tin; penalties?

nitufss. I think I did Understand the oaths,

tii:il I gave the Lodge jurisdiction over my life, as

Tar as 1 bad the power. 1 understood Hint 1 sub

jected myself to these penalties, .«fid that I was to

»hare in the came jurisdiction. That was the con

struction as I then understood it. 1 thought from

the antiquity of the Institution, and that every

thing that was done having been sanctioned by king

Solomon and both the Holy St. Johns, it must be

right. Moreover Nathan Whiting (master of the

Lodge) was the first Mason I sver heard say that

the penalties were not 'to IV« so understood and in

flicted; and that was after the murder of Morgan.

I do not now so consider them.

[Most of ibis answer is left out by Mr. Hiule.]

Mdi Interrogatory. If when he took the oaths,

he considered them incompatible with civil duties.

(fitness. I never expected they would come in

conflict with my religious, moral or civil obliga

tions. 1 did not bestow much thought upon it,

but M I bare before (aid, considered the antiquity

arid character of mrmliers of the Institution (o btí

such as would sanction what it enjoined. 1 was to

keep the secret», I considered, tubject lo.tlie penalty.

I ilid not exercise any private judgment nbo'it it,

but considered Irom the antiquity ot tUe Institution,

ami ils lirinir sanctioned by euch names tli.it its ob-

¡igatiuus must bo correct. , And were 1 convinced

ot the truth of its traditions and its antiquity, ;н

iauüht in the l.udii.o ¡, I sh HI Id IV el that I had dono

wrong in answeiing any interrogatories. That

the^e was no power that could ho higher fban such

a power, to- make me depart from my vow of se

crecy.

24th Interrogatory. What do you consider the

object of Masonry to be?

Witness. 1 have had different views of it. I

luve in former limes, when I believed its traditions,

and the dato of its origin, had an exalted opinion of

it. At other times I considered it as a mutual in'

surance, not as a benevolent Institution. What

they call charity is not such, but merely a right of

claimine what is one's due.

16th Interrogatory. Did you ever hear the na

ture and extent of the penalties discussed in auy

Lodge.

Witness. I think I never heard the nature and

extent of the penallie > discussed in a Lodge. There

is perhaps soin» explanation in the Lectures. We

sometimes had lectures after the Lodge was closed.

The explanations are laid down in the Lectuies.

17th Interrogatory. Did you ever hear a Lodge

claim the power to inflict a higher punishment than

expulsion?

Witness. I do not know that I ever heard it

mentioned in a Lodge that they had- power to in

flict any higher penalties than expulsion, nor evert

expulsion except as it is mentioned in the by-lawn

I never knew personally of any punishment by *

Lodge.

18th Interrogatory, relative to polities and relig

ion. >

Witness. I never heard the subject of religion

or polities discussed in a Lodge, and I think the

by-laws prohibit it. I never knew a Lodge It)

nominate a cundida!« for political office, or combiné

as a Lodge, to elect him.

In answer to 21st Interrogatory.

Witness. I never practiced on the construction

that my Masonic oaths bound me to lavor a Mason

to the injury of one who was not. If I had a favor

to bestow I considered I had a right to select wbo

I would bestow it on.

Question by request. Did you believe that your"

Masonic oaths bound you to assist a Mason to the

injury of one not a Mason ?

Witness. I considered if I eoulil assist but ont)

I should give a brother Ike preference.

In answer to 22d.

Witness. I never knew Masonry to be used as a po

litical engine, or to obstruct the course of justice so

fаг as my own observation has extended, but I am

satisfied it has been I now. answer from my own

knowledge. If the question was put to me

do I know if General Jackson is President of the

U. S. l should answer not of my personal knowl

edge. Witness wishes his answer that he nevef

knew the grand hailing sign lobe given or prac

ticed upon by a Judge, &c. in a Court of law to bo

understood at speaking of his own personal knowl

edge. The grand hailing sign, as stated in Bern

ard, witness recollects to have received part of.

Question from Walter Paine, Jr. What is the

manner or motion with which a Mason enters and

leaves a Lodge ?

Witness. By giving the due guard of that de

gree, a sign which he gives on entering and leaving.

The Witness was asked by Mr. Paine to explain

what that sign is ?

Witness hesitated. Tim principal Masons at the

table appeared uneasy.

Mr Hazard. If yon hsve any delicacy about



disclosing those tigns, we t.fvt na idea 9/ burden

ing any man's conscience.

Witness. 1 do not know that I have gone so far

a» that. 1 do not know that l have ever violated

my obligation of secrecy. I never took any obliga

tion to conceal the oaths. [Wh™ the witness was

allied to disclose the nalure of this sign the Ma-

ssns sitting at the table evinced a feeling something

like horror at the sacrilege they t-eemed to antici

pate would he coimhilted. They were evidently

much relieved by the reluctance ol the witness to

answer. The witness was readily excused by the

Committee. The circumstance is worthy remark,

iis illustrating the wonderful power Masonic oaths

have to bind down their victims. Even this re

spectable witness, though he was convinced Ma

sonry was a wicked institution, and had entirely,

renounced it, yet (such was the force of the ille

gal and criminal oaths he had taken) he lelt a re

luctance to reveal the secrets he hud improperly

Bworn to conceal.]

Question from W. Paine, Jr. Did you consider

yoursel" bound as a Mason, to give a preference to

a Mason, over a person not a mason, under the same

or similar circumstances?

COMMENTS.

[Mr Hazard had uniformly put this question,and

he continued to do so afterwards, in this form, which

rendered it entirely nugatory, viz.—' Did you eveT

vote for a „candidate you least liked, and thought

least qualified, because he was a brother Mason, in

preference to a better man, not a Mason, of your

vicn political sentiments.1

Mr. Paine and other Antimasons, insisted this

was an unfair question, because it Masons preferred

one another over all oiher men, in like circumstan

ces and acted accordingly, then mes not Masons,

who were just as goo¡I citizens as Masons were, did

not stand an equal chance in society, and this was

one of the evils of the Institution we .complained of

sia interfering with equal privilege* and equal rights.

The Mason stood with tho^e not Masons, precisely

as if he was not a Mason, while with those who

were Masons, he was sure of a preference. This

gave him a decided advantage. It was not intended

to confine this question touching Masonic prefer

ence, to polities, but to extend it to trade, business

rnbfortunen, or any other situation where a prefer

ence could be given to a Mason, by Masons, to the

disadvantage or' neglect of one not a Mason.—

Instead of putting it in the form it was present

ed by Mr. Paine, Mr Hazard proposed ¡tin his own

way—thus.

If two men, one a Mason and the other not, of

equal qualifications, were placed in precisely the

Mine situation as political candidates, is there any

thing in your Masonic obligations which would

oblige you to vote fur Hie one who was a Mason, in

preference to the other ?

Witness. If men of equal talents both stood

equally in my opinion, and the brother solicited rne

as a brother, I can't, say but I should consider my

self bound as a Mason to have preferred him. The

nature of the connection is euch, {t was a case

that never happened with me, for in almost every

instance, there has been something to distinguish

between candidates for office.

Mr. Hazard. Do you belong to any other society

except the Masonic ?

Witness. Secret Society, do you mean?

Mr. Hazard. No. Religious society.

Witness. Yes.

Mr Hazard. Well, in cases where every thing

was equal, would you not act in the same manner,

between a brother in the Church, who was a

candidate for office, and a person who was not a

brother?

Witness. I presume I should.

СOММЕ.ЧТ«.

[A further attempt was made to have this question

put in the form Mr Paine had proposed, but with

out effect. .It may here well be remarked that the

preferences in society, arising from moral, religious

ami other organizations, though in many cases inju

rious to equal rights, by leading to combinations

of one class of citizens against all others, are fully

atoned for by the great good which these associa

tions effect in community, to the preservation and

improvement of which, they are. essential. Besides,

the members of such societies are openly known,

and th.'y have no means of secret concert and co

operation, unknown to other men. Every man, not

of their society, consequently knows how to antici

pate their preferences. But Masons exercise this

preference in secret, even without it being known

that they are Masons. They are bound to obey se

cret signala, with which persims who are perfect

strangers to each other may be brought to co-oper

ate secretly at any moment, and in any place. Thus

a man not a Mason constantly labors under disad

vantages that he knows nothing of and cannot coun

teract, and whenever he comes in contact with a

Mason, though he stands on precisely equal foottng

with him,he must be the looser,because Masons will

turn the scale against him. Thus when the evi

dence is balanced before a jury, between a mason

and one not a mason, masons on the jury, how

ever honest as men, will feel a sufficient bias from

their Masonic relation to turn the scale in favor

of the brother. 'These are every day situations

in which persons not Masons, may be placed, with

Masons, without reference to polities, which go to

show that a man not a mason, has not a fair chance

in a community where some are masons. and others

not. He is therefore compelled, either to become

a mason, or to continue to labor under these disad

vantages.]

Question by request, from Antimasons. Did you

ever know a Mason or his family to receive in

charily as much money, as he had paid into the

Lodse for fees and quarterly dues?

Witness. I think there has been one instance,

since 1 have been a member of King Solomon's

Lodge, in which a person did receive as much and

perhaps more than he had paid in. He was tick

sometime. I think he received more.

Question by request, from do. How much mo

ney was paid out of your lodge for charity to dis

tressed members, while you were Secretary ?

Witness. I never knew any money paid out in

chanty during the four years I was Secretary of

the lodge. l knew of no applications for cfianty,

in that time.

[Allyn's Ritual, with variations from the written

oath ol the Grand Lodge, marked off in pencil, was

again referred to by Mr. HalUtt, and Mr. Hazard

was requested to put these variations to the wit

ness. Up to this timo the paper marked E., ccn-

taining these variations, was not in possession of

the Committee, Mr. Hazard having torn up the first

copy Mr. Hallott handed to him. Of couise thU

witness could not have been questioned from in

terrogatories marked E. as is represented in Mr.

Haile's minutes. He was questioned in part from

the Master's oath in Allyn, viz: 1st. " I will not

give the Grand Hailing sign of distress, except I

am in real distress, or for the benefit of the craft

when at work."

Witness. I recollect that part, except the words

"for the benefit of the craft when at work." I

do not- recollect positively whether it was in the

oaths or the lectures. I am positive that it was

imposed upon me as a duty which I was to per

form, that I would not give the Grand Hailing

sign, except I was in real distress. 1 recollect hav

ing heard this inculcated in substance, I cannot re

collect whether it 'was in the oath or lecture. 1

considered it obligatory. I have never refreshed.



my memory aa havo avoided reading Bernard on

the lower degrees.

2d. " And should I see that sign given', or heal

ths words accompanying it, 1 will fly to the relief

of the person so giving it. should there be ;i greater

probability of saving his life than losing my own."

Witness was asked if he remembered that injunc

tion ? ,

Witness. I think I have heard that injunction

given rather stronger. " As fir as I could sen the

sign by day, or hear it by n;ght," 1 was required

to obey it.

The part relating to.passing and raising of a can

didate, witness does not recotlect. To keep a Mas

ter Mason's secrets, murder and treason excepted,

and that left at my option, witness distinctly recol

lects, as he has before stated. The clause relating

to going on a Master Mason's errand, is not recol

lected. Witness says, I think it is not in the ob

ligation, but I have heard it somewhere inculeated

ns a duty.

Mr. Hazard, inquired if he might not confound

what he had heard, with what he had read in

Bernard or Allyn ?

Witness. I never read Bernard or Allyn.

The clause was read to witness from Allyn,

'' That if any part of this obligation (Master's oath)

be omitted at this time, I will hold myself amen-

ble thereto, whenever informed."

Witness. It appears to me that is done on some

occasions when the person administering the oath

is not perfect in it. I cannot be positive..

The examination of Mr. Brown here closed.

Tuesday Morning, December 14. The Commit

tee met at 9 o'clock. Present as before. WILLIAM

WILRINSON, Esq. was called and sworn to tell the

while truth.

[fCTTliu testimony of this witness is entitled to

particular attention from his high standing both as a

Mason and an individual. He has held the highest

Masonic offices in the State, and many out of it,

and is a citizen of great respectability of character.

Being one of the oldest and most intelligent mem

bers of the Order in this country, and most zealous

ly attached to it, it is certain that if he cannot de-

feed and explain its principles when on his oath, so

as to remove all doubts, and show Masonry to be a

valuable and excellent Institution, no Mason living

can do so. The examination of Mr. Wilkinson oc

cupied one whole day, and yet Mr. Haile has com

pressed it into four or five pages, suppressing by

far the most important answers given by this wit

ness. Throughout the examination, Mr Haile, un

der the direction of Mr. Hazard, persisted in not

putting down the questions and answers considered

most material by Antimasons. The exculpations of

Masonry, were carefully recorded to the letter, but

the confussoiy, contradictory and confused answers

of the witness on his cross examination were as

carefully excluded. Not only so, but tho witness

was requested by the Committee to allow Mr Haile

to erase an answer already written down, which had

an unfavoable bearing upon Masonry. This was the

first Masonic witness fully examined touching the

oaths, &c. The grossly partial conduct of a major

ity of the Committee on this day, put an end not

only to all confidence, but to all hope that they

would conduct the investigation as honest men, in

search of truth rather than political partizans in

pursuit of the best means to secure an election.]

TESTIMONY or WILLIAM WILRINSON, ESO.

[ШA Witness.]

Mr. Hazard commenced with the general inter

rogatories.

Witness, in answer to 1st. I am a Freemason —

Have taken twelve degrees, viz. Entered Appren

tice, Fellow Craft, Master Mason, Mark Master,

Past Master, Most Excellent Master, Royal Arch,

Knight of the Red Cross, Knight Templar and

Knight of Malta, generally considered one degree.

The Royal Mailer and the Select Master's degrees

I afterwards icccivod. I know nothing about them,

and i could not work myself into a Lodge of these

degrees, (meauing,as was understood, the two last.)

t was initiaied into the íirít degree in this room,

(the Senate Chamber of the State House, where ths

Committee were holding their investigation,) by Sr.

John's Lodge, Providence, No. 2, on the 24th of

June, 1792. [Thus it will be seen that Masonry

began with taking possession of ' the Halls ol Leg

islation,' ns Orator Brainard says, and transformed

them into her LorJges. To this day the Senate

Clumber of the State House' in Kent county, R.

Island, is alternately occupied by the Masons of

King Solomon's Lodgp, and the Senators of tho

people, and we believe is jointly owned, as far as its

occupation is conceined, by the Stale and the Ma-

sons!j

Witness. Daniel Sulwell was then Master of the

Lodge,but Moses Seixas fa Jew who disbelieved the

christian religion] performed as Mqster at my initi

ation. I received the two next degrees, the same

year, in the same Lodge. The Chapter was fiut

opened in this town, (Providence,) in 1793, and I

was initiated into the three next degrees in the

s:ime room, in November the same year and the R.

A. in the same year. I received tho other degrees

except Royal and Select Master, in Si Johns En

campment, Providence, and the Royal and Select

Masterin the Council of Royal and Select Masters

in Providence. I was among the fiist who were

made Royal Arch Masons in Rhode Island, having

received the degrees on the first evening a Chap

ter was opened in this Slate,and this Chapter I think

was the 2d Chapter opened in New England.

Ind Interrogatory.

Witness. There was an oath administered to me

when taking each of these degrees.

3d question in relation to what is said to the can

didate iefore taking the oaths.

Witness. It is so long since I received the En

tered Apprentice degree, that I cannot say whether

there was, hut my impression always has been that

there was from the fact that when Master of a

Lodge I always staled the same to the candidate. I

have presided in Lodge and Chapter as high as the

R. A. degree. It was merely verbal, and might have

differed. The precise words I cannot remember,

but that was the substance ; that the oaths are not

tointeifere with religion or polities; thatevery thing

relating to religion or polities is excluded. We

receive the Jew as well as others. I should have

rejected an Atheist. Further than that we did nut

gn—аnи this practice tus I believe been invariable.

We considered we had nothing to do with his reli

gion, further than to require a belief in God,

In answer to the 4lh Interrogatory.

Witness. I cannot state the obligations. I nev

er was a book Mason. It is nearly twenty years

since I have heard them. When we get old we

generally drop off, and: only go occasionally to the

Lodge. There are two degrees, Royal and Select

Master, of which 1 cnn give no account. I have

examined the, throe first degrees handed in by

the officers of the Grand Lodge. They are I be

lieve the same without variation; as I took and havo

usually administered myself, and which I took. —

T'ao reason why 1 cannot repeat them is, it is twen

ty years since I have been much where the loiver

degrees are administered. We have hitherto re

frained from giving our obligations. Atthe request

of the Committee they have been given in writing

now. / know of no injunction to keep the oaths se

cret. I saw the obligations in Jachin and Boaz about

40 years ago,but except that, 1 have never seen the

obligations printed or written until as read tomo

now:

Mr. Hazard. It is unnecessary to explain that

further.

Witness. I would wish to give some reasons to-

tho world. It has never come to my knowledge.



that Iba obligation! were ever written or printed,

bat handed down by tradition. 1 have never seen

them written till now.

ÍMr HaHe hero proceeded to read the written

is of the higher degrees, as furnhhed to the

Committee by the officers of the Koyal Arch

Chapter. The Ro^al Arch oath was first read to

witness, then the Mnr'x, Past and Most Excellent

Masters, and the Knights of the Cross, Knights

Templars p.nd Royal ami Select Masters. A request

was made thai ihs witness should first be examined

from the printed oaths hi Allyn, before the oaths

agreed upon by the Masons, were given to him, as

leaders, to inform him what he was expected to say,

hut Mr Hazard peremptorily refused to perrnit the

Witness to be questioned in any other way, at first,

than by reading lo him what he took rare to inform

him was the oaths agreed ирoд by the R. Island Ma-

i'ins. The oaths thus furnished in writinir, are as

¿nlion-.]

- MARR MASTER'S OBLIGATION.

I , of tny own free will and accord,

end in the presence of Almighty God, and this

lodge of mark master masons, erected to him, and

dedicated to St. John, do hereby and hereon, in ad

dition to my former obligations, solemnly and sin

soerely promise and swear (or affirm) thai, I will al

ways hail, forever conceal, and never reveal any

pf the secret arts, parts or poii.ls of the mysteries

of freemasonry appertaining to the degree of a

mark master, to any person under the canopy of

Heaven, except it shall be to a true and lawful mark

master mason, or within the body of a regularly

.constituted ludirs of such, and not unto him or them,

Until after due trial, strict examination), or by the

lawful information of a mark master, 1 shall have

found him or them to be as justly and lawfully en

titled lo the same as I am myself.

I furthermore promise and swear (or affirm) that

I will answer all lawful signs and summon.s which

may bS given or sent unto me from a true and law

ful mark master mason, or from s regularly con

stituted lodge of such, if within the length of my

,cable tow.

.Sil. That I will aid and assist all worthy «us-

•tressed mark master masons, their widows and or-

.¡rhans, so far as I can do it without injury to my

self or family.

3d. That I will not pledge my mark a second

lime without redeeming it the first, neither will I

jeceive a brother's mark in pledge without grant

ing him his request if in my power, if not I will re

turn him his mark with the value thereof, which is

one quarter of a dollar.

4th. That I will not alter my mark nor suffer it

,tp be done by others, if in my power to prevent it,

after it has been once recorded on the lodge book

kept for that purpose.

5th. That 1 will abide by and support the by-

Jaws of the mark lodge, of which I may become a

member, the constitution of the general, and state

grand chapters under which the same is holden,

and the general regulations of masonry.

All this I promise and swear (or affirm) with a

fixed and steady purpose of mind to perform the

sатe, without any equivocation, mental reserva

tion^ or secret evasion of mind in me whatever—

binding myself under no less penalty, than that

of hating my right ear smote off, sa as not ta ht

able to hear fht ieord, тру right hand struck off, sn

as not lo be Me to give the sign ; so help me God.

and keep me steadfast lo perform thin my mark

master's obligation.

PACT MASTER'S OBLIGATION.

. i : -. of my oiyn free will and accord, and

•in the presence of Almighty God, and this lodge

of past Mailer masons, erected to Him, and dedica

ted to St John, ilu hereby and hereon, in addition

to my former obligations, solemnly and sincerely

'ombe and awaar (or affirm) that I will e¡ways

hail, forever conceal, end never reveal, eny of thi

secret arts, parts or points of the mysteries of free

masonry appertaining to the degree of a past master,

lo any person under the canopy of Heavcn, except

it shall be to-a (rue and Iuwtul past master. or within

the body of a regularly constituted lodge of such,

and not unto him or them until alter due trial,

strict examination or by the lawful information oí

a past master I shall have found him or them lo be

as justly and lawfully entitled to the same as I am

myself.

I furthermore promise and swear (or affirm) that

1 will answer aii lawful signs and summonses which

may be given 01 sent unto me from a true and law

ful brother of this degree, or from a regularly con

stituted lodge of such, if within the length of my

cable tow.

2rl. Thai I will aid and assist all worthy dis-

trereed past masters, (heir widows aq'd orphans, so fir

as I can do it without injury tu myself or family.

3d. That I will not rule nor govern the lodge

over which I may be appointed to preside, in an

arbitrary or illegal manner, but agreeably to the

by-laws adopted by. a majority of the members for

the government of the same.

4th. That I will abide by and support the by

laws of the lodge of which I may become a, mem

ber, the constitution of the general, and state grand

chapters under which the same is holden, and the

general regulations of masonry.

All this I promise and swear (or affirm) with ?

firm and fixed purfose of mind to perform the same,

without any equivocation^ menial teservation or

secrel evasion of mind in me whatever, binding my

self under no less penalty than that of having my

toungue cleave 19 the roof of my mouth so as not

to be able to give the word, so help me God and

keep me steadfast to perform this my past master

mason's oath or obligation.

MOST EXCELLENT MASTER'S OBLIGA

TION.

I , of my own free will and accord,

and in the presence of Almighty God, and Ihie

Lodge of most excellent masters, erected to Him,

and dedicated to St. John.de hereby and hernon, in

addition to my former obligations, solemnly and

sincerely promise and swear (or affirm) that I will

always hail, forever conceal, and never reveal, any

of the secret arts, parla or points of the mysteries

of Freemasonrí', appertaining to the degree of a

most excellent master, to any person under' the

canopy of heaven, except it shall he to a true and

lawful most excellent master, or within the liody of

a regulai ly constituted Lodge of such, and .not unto

him or them, until after due trial, strict examination,

or by the lawful information of a most excellent

master,! shall have found him or them to be as justly,

and lawfully entitled to the same as I am my-

self.

I furthermore promise and swear (or affirm) that

I will answer all lawful signs and summonses, which

may be given or sent unto me, from a true and

lawful most excellent master, or from a regularly

constituted Lodge of such, if within the length of

my rabie tow.

8il. That I will aid and assist all worthy dis

tressed most excelleril masters, their widows and

orphans, so far as I can do il without injury to my-

self or family.

3d. That I will not derogate from the name

now, about to be conferred upon me, being that of a

most excellent n.asler.

4ih. That 1 Ivill not open and close a Lodge,

over which I may be appointed to preside, without

first working a lorturc, or a section of a lecture.

5lh. That I will abide by and support the by-

1 uve of the most excellent master's Lodge of which

I may become a member, the constitution of the

general, and slate grand .ohapters, under which the

•aaie is holden, and the general regulations of mn
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All ibis I promise and swear (or affirm) with a

fixed and steady purpose of mind to perform the

same, without any equivocation,mental reservation,

or secret evasion of mind in me whatever, binding

rnyself under no less penalty, than that of having

TH у flesh torn from my ribs, and my body exposed to

rot on a 'dunghill, so help me God, and keep me

steadfast to perform this my most excellent mas

ter's obligation.

ROYAL ARCH MASON'S OBLIGATION.

" I , of my own free will and accord,and

in the presence of Almighty God, and this Chap

ter of Royal Arch Masons, erected to Him and ded

icated 10 Kins Solomon, do hereby and hereon, in

addition to my former obligations, solemnly and

sincerely promise and swear, (or affirm) that I will

always hail, forever conceal, and never reveal, any

of the secret arts, parts or points of the mysteries

of freemasonry appertaining to the degree of Royal

Arch Masonry, to any person under the canopy of

Heaven, except it shall be to a true and lawful

Hoyal Arch Mason,or within the body of a regular

ly constituted Chapter of such ; and not unto him

or them until afier d;ie trial, strict examination, or

by the lawful information of a companion, 1 shall

have found him or them (o be as justly and lawful

ly entitled to the same as I am myself.

1st. 1 furthermore promise and swear (or affirm)

that 1 will answer all lawful signs and summonses

which may be given or sent unto me from a true and

lawful Companion, or from the body of a regular

ly constituted Chapter of such, if witliin the length

of my cable-tow.

2r1. That I will aid and assist all worthy distressed

Royal Arch Musons, their widows and orphans so

far as I ran doit without injury to myself or family.

3d. That I will not he present at the opening of

a Chapter of Royal Arch Masons, unless there shall

be present nine regular Royal Arch Masons.

4tfi. That 1 will not be present at conlerring the

degree of R. A. Masonry upon any one who has

not accotding to the best of my knowledge and be

lief, regularly received all the preceding degrees,

viz: entered apprentice, fellow crait, Mailer Ma

son, Mark Master, Past Master, and most Excellent

Master—and not then unless he is deemed a wor

thy man.

5th. That I will not shed the blood of a Royal

Arch Mason unlawfully, knowing him to be such.

6th. That I will not reveal the key to the mys

terious characters of Royal Arch Masonry to any

parson under tho canopy of Heaven, except it he

to a true and lawful Royal Arch Mason, or within

the body of a regularly constituted Chapter ofsuch

7th. That I will not give the grand Royai Arch

word in any other manner except that ,in which I

uny receive it.

8th. That I will abide by and support tha by

laws of the Chapter of which I may become a

member, the constitution of the General and Slate

Grand Chapters, under which the same is holden,

and4hs general regulations of Masonry.

All this I promise and swear (or affirm) with a

filed and steady purpose of mind to perform the

same, without any equivocation,mental reservation,

or secret evasion ofmind in me whatuver—BIND'ING

MYSELF UNDER SO LESS FENAI.TV ТНЛ&* THAT OF

HAVING MY SCULL SMOTE OFF AND MY BRAINS EX

POSED TO THE SCORCHING RAYS OF THE SUN. So

help me God, and keep (ne steadfast in performing

this my Royal Arch Mason's oath or obligation."

OBILGATION OF THE DEGREE OF

RNIGHTS OF THE R'ED CROSS.

I, , of my owrtfree will and accord, and in the

presence of the Supreme' Architect ol the Universe,

and these companions, do hereby and hereon, most

solemnly and sincerely promise andi swear, That I

will aiways hail, forever conceal, and never reveal

any el the mysteries appertaining to the degree <)(

the Knights of the Red Cross, to any person under

the canopy of heaven, except it be to a true and

lawful Knight of the Red Cross, or in the body of

a just and lawful council of the order. . .

I furthermore promise and swear, that I will an

swer and obey all lawful signs and summonses giv

en or sent to me from a regular council ol Knights

of the Red Cross, or given ins by the hand of a bro

ther Sir Knight if within the distance Of forty miles,

natural infirmities and unavoidable accidents only

excusing me.

I furthermore promise and swear, that I will not

be at the opening of a Council of Knighis of the

Red Cross, except there shall he present five reg

ular members of the order, or three Knights of the

Red Cross being also Knights Templars and having

from three different commanderies, with a warrant

or charter empowering thern to work.—1 further

more promise and swear, that I will not be present

at the conferring of the degree of the Knights ol the

Red Cross upon any person who has not, according

to the best of my knowledge, received all the preced

ing degrees, viz. Entered Apprentice, Fellow Crafts;

&o. &c. &.c.—I furthermore promise and swear,

that I will vindicate the character of a worthy Sir

Knight, when wrongfiilly traduced, and will assist

him'on all lawful occasions with my purse, counsel

and sword, so far as truth, justice and honor may

warrant.— I furthermore promise and swear, that Г

will abide by and support the bylaws of the council

of which 1 may become a member, the Constitution

of tho General Grand and State Encampmepts,

and the general regulations of Knighthood.—All

this I promise and swear with a fixed and steady

purpose of mind to perform the same; binding my-

selt under no less penally than thai my house may

lie pulled down, and timber taken from thence, and

being set up, I may be hanged thereon, and, until,

the last trumpet shall sound, I may be e.iclnded

from the society of all courteous Sir Knights of the

Red Cross, should I wilfully or intentionaily violate

this obligation—So help me God, and keep me

steadfast to perform the same.

KNIGHTS TEMPLAR'S OBLIGATION.

I, , of my own free will and accord,,

and in the presence of the Supreme Architect of

the Universe, and these Sir Knights present, do

hereby and hereon, most solemnly and .sincerely

promise and swear, That I will torever keep anil

conceal, and never reveal any of the mysteries ap

pertaining to the orders of Knights Templare and

Knighis of Malta of the order of St. John at Jerusa

lem, to any person under the canopy of heaven,

except it be to a true and lawful Sir Knight of these

orders, or in the body of a just and regularly con

stituted Encampment.—I furthermore. promise and

swear, that 1 will answer and obey ail lawful signs

and summonses, given or sent unto me from a bne

courteous Sir Knight, or from the body of a just

and regularly constituted Encampment.— I further

more promise and swear, lhat I witl aid and assi-t

all worthy Knights Templars, their widows nnd

orphans, so far as the same run be done without in

jury to mys3lf or family.— I furthermore proinisn

and swear, that I will not be at tho opening of any

regular constituted Encarnr/nicnt, unle-ч thete

shall be present seven regular Knights Templars,

or three Sir Knights, hailini from three different

commandeiies, with a warrant or charier from toma

regular Grand Encampment empowering ihein to

work. I furthermore promise ami swear, thai I wijl ,

not be present at Conferring ihc order isf Kuitht-:

Templars upon any person who has not, accofdinr;

to tho best of my knowledge and belief, received f,l!

the preceding degrees.—I furthermore promise an. i

swoar, that I will travel forty miles barefoot on fro

zen ground to relieve the necessities of a worthy

Knight Tempbr, should I be convinced his situa

tion reqmred it, and I have no other way of commu-

nicatins to his relief.— I furlltermore promise lmdr



*we*r, that I will wiold my iword in defence of

innocent maidens, destitute widows, helpless or

phans and the Christian religion.—1 furthermore

promise and swear, that I will abide by and support

the bylaws of (he Encampment of which I may

become a member, the Constitution of the General

and State Grand Encampment under which the

same is holden, and the general regulations ol

Knighthood. All this I promise and swear, with a

fixed and steady purpose of mind, to perform the

same, binding myself under 'no less penalty than

that my head may lie stricken off, ami placed on

the highest spire in Christendom—So help me God,

and keep me steadfast to perform this obligation.

SELECT MASTER'S OBLIGATION.

1, , in the presence of this Council of

Select Masters, erected to God, and dedicated, to

King Solomon, do solemnly and sincerely promise

and swear, That I will stand to, and abide by, all

the laws, rules and regulations of the. Council of

Select Masters of which I may become a member,

and ever maintain the general regulations of the

order.— I further promise and swear, that I will

answer all due signs and summonses given or sent

unto me from a true and lawful Select Master, or

from the body of a just ant! regular Council of such.

—That I will not assent to nor confer the degree of

Select Master upon anyone, except he is a Royal

Arch Mason, and has taken all the preceding de

grees, and has also been admitted a, Royal Master

in a regular Council.—That 1 will not enter the

9lh Arch without permission of the three Grand

Masters, neither will I penetrate beyond the one in

which I arn employed. All this I promise and

swear without any equivocation, mental reserva

tion, or secret evasion of mind in me whatever

binding myself under no less penalty than that of

having my eyes torn from their sockets, my hands

chopped off to the stumps, my tody quartered and

thrown among the rubbish of the temple—So help

me God, and keep me steadfast to perform this my

Selec't Master's obligation.

ROYAL MASTER'S OBLIGATION.

I . of my own free will and accord, in

presence of Almighty God, and this Right Worship

ful Council o-f Royal Masters, erected to God. and

dedicated to King Solomon, do hereby and hereon

sincerely and solemnly promise and swear, That I

will keep and conceal all the mysteries appertain

ing to the degree of Royal Master and will not re

veal the same, except it be to a true and lawfut

companion of that order, or in a just and regular

constituted council of such.—I further promise and

swear that I will not be at the opening of a councit

of Royal Masters, unless (пeтo bo seven members

'of that degree present.—That I will riot be present

at conferring the degree of Royal Masierupon any

one who has not, according to the best of my

knowledge and belief, regularly received the pre

ceding degrees of Entered Apprentice, Fellow

Craft, Master Mason, Mark Master, Pan Master,

and Most Excellent Master, and been exalted

to the sublime degrees of Royal Arch Masonry.—

That I will abide by and suppoit' the by-laws of the

council of which I may become a member, and the

gener-al regulations of the order.—That I will not

give the words, grips and signs of this degree in

any other manner than that in which I may receive

them.

All (his I promise and swear, with т firm and

fixed rwiolution to perfar-m the same, binding my

self under the penalties nf my preceding obligations

with thin addition, that I would sooner he luiría,

aline, and my memory forgotten among the Graft-

so help me God, and keep.mo steadfast to perform

the samo.

The oaths of Maik, Past and Excellent Master

snd Royal Arch Mason, having been read,

IL'itntts said, I have no kind of doubt of the cor-

rectne« of those obligation!, substantially. It wffl

re recollected, as was well said by Rev. brothel

Thacher, that a person at his initiation, if in the

tescription they give you, they tell you the truth,

t is difficult to remember what passes, especiallj

as it took place many years agq when I was a youní

nan. The substance was precisely the same. Sotct

ariation?, perhaps, but not material. Tho three fiB

legrees belong to the Master's Lodge. Tlic Roiil

Arch contains all above up to that degree, whiehart

administered ¡n Chapters. The obligations of Mari

Master up to and including Royal Arch, are suh

stantially such as have always been administered si

far as my knowledge extends. That was the sun

and substance, but to say they are the words used i

would not. There may be some verbal variation'

but no substantial difference.

The oath of Knight of the Red Cross was reí

Witness said it was correct.

Question by request —Is the word " 1гhen',ff.

until the last trumpet shall sound may I be sepa
rated from the society of all courteous Sir Knights •

Witness. Tint it is the perfect substance of ill

believe. It is all I can say respecting it.

A candidate for the higher degrees must have re

ceived all the preceding degrees, from entered A--

prentice up. Tho Knight Templar's oath was tlui

read .

Witness. That is substantially the same,exc.ept-

Mr Hazard. Did you ever have any occnsion !

make use of your sword ¡n ilefenco of distress«

damsels ? [A laugh. Witness did not smile cc:

reply.]

The Royal and Select Master's oaths being reari,

Witness says I know nothing about them above

the Knight Templar.

Question by request. Did you ever know the

word affirm substituted forswear?

Witness. I do not recollect. I never knew an;

person to apply- I was told that a Mr. Nichols

once took the affirmation. As a Master of a Lodgr

I should not have refused to give it. I know o'

nothing in the principles of Masonry to prohibitif

Jlfr Hazard. There nre some clauses in the oath

given in Allyn's Ritual, which are not contained in

the written oaths that have been read to yon, am.

winch we are requested to ask you, if you ever

took. I will read them to you from this paps

which has been prepared for that purpose.

[JVoie. Mr H. then proceeded to read these clausr-

a part of which it will be recollected had been hand

ed to him once before, and torn up by him. A sec

ond copy had been prepared by Mr Hallett, at M:

Hazard's request, and handed to him. They wen

prepared from a comparison of tho printed oaths in

Altyn and Bernard, with the written oaths handed

in by tho Masons, and embraced every thin;s in

which the meaning und import of these oaths dif

fered ¡n any essential particular. An examination

of them, will show how nearly the Written foritu

correspond with the printed,and will excite surprise

that men who now came forward and swore to the

truth of tho former, should for five years have per

sisted in a positive denial that there was one word

of truth in tho latter ! Jj'One of these variations,

No. 2, is in fact no variation, the same version

being given almost literally in the Cih point of the

Master Mason's obligation, as written out by the

Masons. 'It was purposely inserted to mislead the

Masonic witnesses, in order to test the question

whether they really swore to the written oaths from

perfect recollection, or because they were told they

were the Rhode Island oaths ; and whether-they did

not deny the printed variations, rather because

they were told they were in theseceder's books,an*!

not in the written oaths, than because they were

sure they never took or heard them Mr Hazard

having refused to put the oaths to the Masons first

out of Allyn, and persisting ¡n telling svery wit
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«ess, what were the Rhode bland oath* аз he cal

led them, and what were the Seceder's oaths, it

teemed perfectly tair to sat this trap to calch them.]

VARIATIONS

BclKten the written and pi inted oaths, [on paper

marked E.]

[In the Master Mason's Oath ]

1st. " Furthermore I do promise and pwcar,

that I will not give the grand hailing sign of die-

Uesi of this degree, except 1 am in real distress,,

ur for the benefit of the craft when at work; and

should I see that sign given, or hear the words ac

companying it, 1 will fly to the relief ol the person

so giving it, should there be a greater probability of

saving his life than losing my own."—Page 71.

2J. "Furthermore I do premise and swear, that

I will not speak evil of a brother mason, neither

brhind His back or before his face, but WILL AP

PRISE HIM OF ALL APPROACHING DANGER.—p.

72.

3d. " Furthermore I do promise and swear, that

a master mason's secrets, given to me in charge as

such, shall remain as secure and inviolable in my

breast as in his, before communicated, murder and

treason only excepted ; and they left to my oten

election —p. 72.

4th. Furthermore dol promiss and swear, that 1

will go on a master mason's errand, even barefoot

iin.l bareheaded, to save his life or relieve his

necessities."—p. 72.

5¡h. " Furthermore do 1 promise and swear,

^iat il any part of this obligation be omitted at

tiiis lime, 1 will hold myself amenable thereto

whenever informed."— p. 73.

In the ROYAL ARCH OATH.—Gth. "1 further

more promise and swear, that I will not speak

the c.Mnd omnific royal arch word, which I shall

hereafter receive, in any manner, except in that

in which I shall receive it, which will be in the

presenc¡! of three companion royal arch masons,

myself making one of the number; and then by

three limes three, under a living arch, and at low

breath."

7th. " I furthermore promise and swear, that

I will not speak evil of a companion royal arch

iuasan behind his back or before his face, but

will apprise him of all approaching danger, if in

my power."

8th. " I furthermore promise and swear, that

I will assist a companion royal arch Mason when I

see him engaged in any difficulty, and will espouse

his cause so far as to extricate him from the same,

whether lie be RIGHT or WRONG !!"

9th. " I furthermoie promise and swear, that I

will keep all the secrets of a companion royal arch

mason, when communicated to me as such, or I

knowing them to be such, without exception.

lOtli. In the obligation of the royal arch degree,

as read to you from paper marked ß. is this

sentence :

7th. ,.s• That I will not give the grand royal arch

ward in any manner except that in which 1 rn.iy

receive it."

Is the manner there referred to the same de

scribed in this obligation as given in Allyn's Ritual,

\n : "¡n the presence of three companion royal

"rch mssons, myself nnking one of the number,

anJ then by three li.-utis three under a living arch,

and at low breath Í1'

PAST MASTER'S OBLIGATION.— Hth. Is the

psnilty in this cbgree e/er given thus : —Binding

myself nudor no le^s penalty than to have my

toague split from tip to root?"*

KNIGHT OF тuк RED CROSS.—12th. Is this

a part of the obligation :—" That I will assist him,

on a lawtul occasion, in preference to any brother

of an inferior degree, and so far as truth, honor and

justice may warrant?"*

13ih. In the obligation of knight of the red

, ¡s the expression u.ed in ths penalty, "until

the last trump shall lound," or "when tli* bst

trump shall sound,'""

14th. In the knijht templar's obligation is this

expression used : " with a fixed and steady purpose

of mind to perform the same, without any hesita

tion, equivocation, mental reservation or self eva

sion of mind in me whatever ?"*

J 'i¡b. Do these or similar .words occur ¡n any

,art of the ceremony or initiation- of a knight tem-

iiar : "Thid pure wine I now take in testimony of

my belief in the mortality of the body and the immor

tality of the soul, and may this libation appear as

a witness against me both here and hereafter. And

as the sins of the world were laid upon the head of

the Saviour, so may all the sins committed by the

ierson whose skull this was, he heaped upon my

iead, in addition to my own, should I ever know-

n¿ly or wilfully violate or transgress any obliga

tion tint I have heretofore taken, or take at this

time, in relation.to any degree of masonry or order

ot knighthood. So help me God ?" &c.

The witness was questioned separately on each

of the variations ¡n the three first degrees.

The first relative to the Grand hailing sign,—he

says I do not recollect any such thing in'' the obli

gation.

The second, " I will not speak evil of a Master

Mason, behind his back, or before his face, but will

apprise him of all approaching danger." Witness

entered into an explanation at some length of this

and the preceding clause without making uny

definite answer.

Mr. Hazard. Why cant you give a plaia answei.

We dont want a great lung harangue.

Witness. l dont recollect any such thing in the

obligation.

Question by request. Do you in the charges, or

lectures.

Witness. That is the general principle, that we

have gone upon in Masonry. 1 dont recollect

.vhere it is. It is the general principle (if Masonry

to assist « worthy brother in all his laudable un

dertakings.

3d. And that left to my election ?

Witness. Those are woids l never heard.

4th. Go on a Mason's errand,&c.

Witness. I never heard it in or Out of a Lodge

till I came here.

5:h. It anv thing is omitted in this my obligation,

I will hold myself amenable thereto.when iniormcd.

Witness. That I never heard. It is eo inconsis

tent, I tliink it must have been put in to make u»

ridiculous.

Mr. Hazard here asked the witness to explain

some parts of the oath (Master Mason's.) Agreat

many phrases, he said, were not understood. What

are tiis lawful signs and summonses you are to obey,

when called upon by a brother, if within the length

of your cable tow ?

Witness. Wi:hm our convenience. That we

were bound as lar as suited our convenience or

wishes. IVe dont profess to be any thing but men

in our charities. It is left entirely optional that we

will assist a brother il in our power. It is left to our

will or option. Within the length of my cable tow

is within my wishes and abilities. I never under

stood it further. It means nothing more. 1 look

upon our first charge to be a fair exposition of the

duties ot Masons.

[Thus even according to this witness, a designing

maiimay masonically go to the extent of his wishuJ

and abilities to obey tho summons of a brother mason,

to do wrong, or assist a brother, right or wrong.]

Mt Hazard. What do you understand to be the

lawful sings and summonses you are to obey ?

Witness. All lawful signs or summons I consid

er to be the summons sent to attend the Lodge, and

also applications for assistance, from a brother.

* Tha, Committee scarcely pst thes» 4'iesliom to *

single witness.
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A written request was handed to Mr Hazard to

inquire what these signs and summonses were.

Mr Hazard. We dont want them. The question

was not put by the Chairman.

Witness continued. A brother is bound to obey

the signs and come if he is summoned before a

l.inli'r. and if he refuses to come he is liable tobo

expelled, according 'to our by-laws. This has al

ways been my understanding and practice, and I

believe it to be correct.

Mr. Hazard. IF THAT is THE""MEANIKG I

IrONT SI:E BUT YOU'R CABLE TOW, is A TOW

CABLE.

Tfie witness was asked to explain that part of the

oath relative to assisting the widows and orphans

of Master Masons.

Witness. Tlmt is explained above. How far

we have done it, the world must judge.

Mr. Hazard. The 3d point, to keep the secrets

of a biotiier Master Mason, murder *nd treason ex-

ccpted ; how do you understand that ?

Witness. My idea on that is simply this. If a

bratktr communicated a secret zee were not to tell

sfit.

Question by request. But if a crime lese than

murder and treason, had been communicated to

you, what would yon have done.

Witness. I dont know how I should have acted,

hut I vvus never Iried. If a man who was a mason,

liad communicated to me that he had committed a

crime,- 1 should have said to him you are no longer

a mason. I will rcpo.it you to tits Lod^e, and you

elinll be expelled.

Mr. Hazard. Hut how do you explain it?

Wi(ne.sn. Why, that we should not unnecessa

rily or lightly reveai the secrets of a brother.

Mr. Hnzurd. It seems tu mi that the expres

sion Mt HUM: AXD TREASON EXCEPTED includes

all others, among the secrets to lie Ut¡it.

Witness. That is not my construction.

Mr. Hazard, (becoming rather earnest) We

dont want your particular case, but how it is under

stood among masons.

Witness. I should consider it not to extend to

crimes.

Mr Huzard. But if a crime had been communi

caled, would you have felt yourself bound not to

make it public ?

Witness. After he had been expelled, I should

Imve done eu ; and 1 might have done so before.—

I can't tetl, for I never was put to the trial.

Question from W. Paine, Jr. What would you

have done, before the Mason was expelled from the

Lodge. Should you have felt yourself authorised

to communicate a crime, less than murder or trea

son. given to you as a Mason's secret ?

Witness. 1 have answered th,at Gentlemen will

recotlect that it ы hard to tell what I should have

done, f da not think, I should huve concealed a

crime auaii.st the laws of my country.

Mr Ha-zard, IT is VEUY CLEAH THAT YOU

OUGHT NOT TO HAVE TAREN THIS OATH. 1'Г IS IN

IUUECT VIOLATION OF YOUR DUTY TO YOUtt COUN-

ТR Т !

Witness. If it отr,* such a crime as ought to be

rrctairii, -in ?/ idea is we should have rcveuUd it, bat

if any small offence, perhaps not.

[Qu.rry. If this highly respectable and moral

man balanced his Masonic obligations so nicely, as

to the quality of the offences ho mi^ht conceal,

what would a man whoso moral principles hung

laiher loosely about him, do as a mason ";]

Mr Hazard How do you explain the clause,

"will apprize him of atl approaching danger, so

far ns it shall come to mv knowledge."

Witness. Tiie^t; wonls got into the obligation as

woi ds of course. I never warned one in my life.

I never saw it practised upon, and 1 am sure that I

nuver should apprise a person, to prevent his beinir

apprehended for crime. NV'e have bad men and

good men among- us. Seme might hate done it, and

plead theirobligation, but I think they cannot ban

done it as good Masons.

Mr Hazard. Do you understand it to apply !o

crimes, or aro wo to understand that you never

considered it as binding you to communicate any

warning that would prevent the execution oft:«

laws ? '

Witness. I never put any different construcuon

upon it. I never heard any other given, or praciigs

ed upon or knew it to be done. 1 should considel

it applied only to a worthy brother Mason, and thil

I was only bound to consider it in that light. 1

nev-er knew it to be extended to crimes—1 speak

for myself. I cannot say what some may ban

done.

Question from B. F. 1 1 itlicit. By saying a ;cor-

thy brother, do you not mean that he is a, iru; : . .

mason ?

Witness. I so understand it. Deciding for mi-

self, I should always inquire for myself, ami it !

found him unworthy I should have acted ac-

eorи'.no'.v. I do not protend to sav that this is Sis-

sonic. I have never considered it, or thought much

about it.

Mr Hazard. How do you construe the pena!»

of the obligations?

Witness. I construe the penalty merely i.

personal; binding on my honor as a Mason, and!

never heard it otherwise among worthy Masons.—

Permit me to add there is nothing in our try laws

which recognizes any punishment but expulsion.

Mr. Hazard. I have looked over your by laws,

and fino1 they only apply to punishments lor the vioic-

tion of those by laws.

Witness. The by laws speak of expnlsion ES the

punishment for disclosing the transactions of ths

Lodge.

Mr Hazard. I know it. Here is the clause—

" that if any member shall disclose any of the tran

sactions of the body, to the disadvantage of tiií

Craft, &c. he shall be expelled." But that don't

cover the whole.

[sYuic. Mr. Hailo has oriiitted the most essential

parts of the above very important explanations bi

this wi'ness, which are here given verbatim, from

his own mouth. Instead of giving the language of

the witness, Mr Haile, in his minutes, has inerely

taken down the conclusions he interred the witness

ultimately arrived at.]

Mr. Halletl here offered to Mr. Hazard the

Knight Templar's Ma-onic Chart, by Grand Lec

turer, Jeremy Ь- Cross, a work approved by all

Masons, and requested him to question the witness

аs to the aymbol on page 17, representing the head

of a Knight Templar, stuck upon the top of a lofty

spire; with a view to ascertain whether this was

not the Masonic construction intended to be ¿riven

to the penaltiпs, by holding up this symbol, ns a

warning to deter Masons from revealing the secrets.

Mr. Hazard, after some hesitation, handed the book

to witness, and asked if he knew any thing about it.

Witness. I never read it. I considered 1 knew

as much of Masonry as was necessary, without study

ing it in books.

His attention was here particularly called to the

head, on the spire.

Witness. 1 should look at it merely asa picture.

It may do to amuse children.

A remark was made by an Antimason, that it

seemed to be a curious picture for such a purpose.

The following question was then put by request.

Has it not a direct reference to the penally, as ex

pressed in the Knight Templar's oath ? -

Witness. In our obligation we have expressed

that our heads should be struck oft' .and placed on

the highest spire in Christendom, and I suppose this

is a picture of it.—I dont say that it is emblematic

of it. 1 only say that our penalty says they shall

be placed there, and that ¡s a picture of it. It will



во lo pleäie children with, I never examined Cross'

Chart one hour in my life.

A request was made from Anlimasons, that Mr

Hazard would examine the witness ictaiive tn the

clauses in tin1, printed sRoyal Arch Oa:h, which

liad been omitted in the written oalh, handed in by

the Masons, but ihe witness had grown wiser than

to risk any further attempt at explanation or con

struction.

Mr Hazard—Here are some clauses in Allyn,

which are not in your Royal Arch oath ?

JVitness. Perhaps the general answer would

best be, that what is thero written is the whole as it

TV'.ia given to me

Mr. Hazard. But it is particularly requested

that we should put these questions. He then pro

posed the variations in the Royal Arch oath. 1st.

" will destroy the key to the ineffable character of

this degree, whenever it comes to rny sight?"

Witness does not recollect it. 2nd. The grand

Omnifie word, and manner in which it is to be

epoken ?

Witness. I never heard the expression" grand

Omnific."

Mr Hazard was requested to ask what was the

wanner alluded to in the written oath, in which

the Koyal Arch word was to be received and spo

ken; with a' view to see if it did not 'conform to the

oath in that respect in Allya. He refused to put the

question !

3d. " Will apprise of all approaching danger if in

my powci?''

Witness. The Master's oath gives all the obliga

tion that xve are bound to assist a brother.

4th. '' 1 will employ a companion Roy;i( Arch Ma

son, in preference to any other person, of equal

qualifications?"

Witness. I never heard it.

6th. " I will espouse his cause, so far as to extri

cate him from any difficulty, whether he be right or

wrong?"

Witness. 1 never heard it in my life.

[Mr Hazard was here referred by Antimasons,

to tho following authority, but he took no notice

of it.

"lu WHATEVER SITUATION YOU MAY BE PLAC

ED, sit not at a brother's call. If he be in danser,

FLY тo IMS RELIEF. If he be calumniated, JUSTI

FY HIS cHARACTER. Bear his burdens, allay his

sorrows, and ESPOUSE HIS CAUSE !" Freema

sons' Alonitor by James Hardie, p. 185. " The ob

ligations imposed upon the Order is that each mem

ber is to 'protect a, brother, AS FAR AS HE CAN!"

Ibid, p. 191). " To streich forth your hands to as

sist a brother,when it is in your power; tfl be always

ready to go any where ta serve him ; to betray NO

confidence he t eposes in you ; to support him with

your authority—in short mutually to support and

nssist each other, and EARNESTLY тo PROMOTE

ONE ANOTHER'S INTEREST, are duties which (well

you know) are incumbent on you. Ye are covenant

ed by solemn promises."—General Address to Л1а-

Sо/1S.]

(ilb. " I will keep all the secrets of a companion

Royal Arch Mason, without exception, or murder

ar;d treason not excepled:" Did you ever hear

that ?

Witness. " No. Never to my hearing murder

and treason. 1 should say that," [as to keeping se

crets,] "that being included in the Master's oath,and

referred to, it wns unnecessary to repeat it in the

liinial Areh." [This is the precise language of the

wimess]

Mr. Hazard. Was the charge in Webb's Moni

tor, delivered to you at your initiation?

Witness. Webb's Monitor had not been publish

ed when I. was initiated. We then had verbal

charges. Shoit ones. They were usuaily the same

ns in Webb's Monilor, with an addition by him.—

Webb was not published till I had received the

Royal Arch degree. I should say the first edition

was in 1797 or 8. I saw it in OS. I received the

Charge or address, before tho oath, and a charge af

ter it. 1 considered them ns embodying the truo

spirit ol Masons,which ought to govern the conduct

ol every goorl brother. Binding upon me for my

rule or government. Thes cnarge aiter the obliga

tion is given in the course of conferring the degree,

not immediately.

Question by request —Was the address made pre

vious lo taking each oalh that it was not to interfere

with your religion or politics ?

Witness. I should say it was considered as a part

of Masonry; that is the idja we have always incul

cated on .Masons, that it wa.' not to interfere. 'I can

not say whether it was atlministeied before every

oath or not. My impression is it is.

(¿nutton by request —Aro you ccrCtiir (hat this

address was always made previous to initiation?

Witness. I have no distinct recollection on tho

subject. My impression is it was, bntl cannot say.

I have always felt so, and acted accordingly.

Mr. Hazard proposed tho 10th Interrogatory. Lf

witness considered he gave jurisdiction fo tho

Lodge over his life?

Witness. I never had any such idea. I consider

ed it as personal, as 1 have before stated. I never

heard it so explained by any Lodge or Masons.

Tho llth Interrogatory, relating to the secrets of

Masonry,Mr Hazard passed orcr, and put the 12th.

If the Bylaws are published, and il theie are any

secret By-lawss '

Witness. The constitution and By-laws of Lodg

es are frequently pubtished, and also kept in Rec

ords. I never knew of any secret By-laws. I have

I'een Master of a Lodge, Grand Master, High

Priest and at the head of an Encampment.

In answer to 13th Interrogatory.

Witness. Knows of no other obligation in Ma

sonry, than the ones he Ins stated.

Question from W. Paine, Jr. Do you know of

any new degree in Masonry ?
• Witness. 1 know of no degree but such аs I

have stated.

Question from the same. Do you know of any

ueofree established since the abduction of Moiean ?

Witness. I know of nothing as appertaining

to Masonry.

Mr Hazard permitted the evasion to pass, and

proposed the 14th Interrogatory. If witness con

sidered ihe oaths incompatible with religious, mor.

al or civil duties ?

Ifitness. I did not consider that they interfered

at ail.

Jl/r Hazard. What do you consider the origin

and objects of Free Masonry ю be ?

Witness. I have been a Mason forty years. I"

consider the object of Masonry purely a social com

pact for our social comfort, and from which those

were excluded we did not wish to have associated

with us. Where no indecent word or oath was al

lowed to be uttered, nor religion nor polities allow

ed to be introduced. No dissension.

Question by request. At what time did Free

Masoniy commence ?

Witness. When it was instituted I know not or

cure ! I knew it was a society widely extended all

over Europe.

COMMENT.

[O* Mr. Wilkinson here asserts upon his oath that

he does not know when Free Masonry was institut

ed ! In connexion with this assertion, reference

was had to Webb's Monitor, in which is a certifi

cate signed by William Wilkinson R. A. S where

in he says " that the said ('Monitor) is repelele with

useful Masonic information, and fully entitled to

the sanction of the Grand Chapter." The first

Chapternf that bonk, thus unconditionally approv

ed by Mr. Wilkinson, says, "From the commence

ment ol the world, we may trace the foundation ot

Masonry. Ever since symmetry began, and har

mony displayed her charms, our order hat had a



beinf." Mr. Wilkinson certified to the truth of this

us.tcrlion, and yet on bis civil odtli,lie declared Ural

lie knew nothing about the origin of Masonry !—

Is not the inference plain, llcit respectable men who

»re Masons will cer'ify to what they know to be

faloe, irr order to KUstuin Masonry by imposing upon

public credulity ? Either Mr \V ¡liiinson's testimo

ny is false, or Webb is false : and yet we have Mr.

Wililirîion's tíame for the truth of bo;h assertions,

one of which cauDOt be true.]

ll'if-uirs continued bis answer. I never was much

of a book Mason. IVe were bounl to assist ail

mankind, but our broth en i :i particular. IVeliad

no ties in polities. 1 speak from my own practice

uni fselings. As to our being a blood stained in

stitution, it is. arsnrd. ' That 'we should have a

CAIN is not surprising . for we have had our JUDA-

tsEs a:no;ig иs. V''cbhsve also had our ALEXANDER,

the coppersmith, wh» sUemplPii to do us much evil.

I can say tho Lord reward him according to his

works.

' [tTF Query. Did the witnr---s here nllnde to the

Em perorpf Russia, who prohibited Fi ee Masonry

in his dominions, anil whose rather pudden rtiaih,

ufler that decree, has been involved tu.some little

doubt. Was he rewarded by Masonry, according

to bis works ?]

Hi't'n Interrogatory, Did yon ever hear the na

ture and Citent ol the pcnahies, discussed in a

1,odgc? or l.ha'.v any higher than expulsion, tobe

inflicted ?

Witness. I never did. I neve .-heard of any

penalties being infliciud, higher than expulsion.

In answer to liilh Interrogatory, witness says,

1 never knew any Lodge to combine to taî;e any

measures, lo supporta candidato lor office,

In answer to 20ih, If he ever voted for a Mason,

in preference to a heiter menn of his own political

sentiment ? witness says, } never did, and I never

favored a Mason to the injury of another person.

In answer to 21st, respecting the grand hailing

sign being given, he says, I never knew the £rand

hailing sign given in any Court, lo. any Judge,

juror or olficer.

In answer to 22d, whether he would o!'cy his Ma

sonic or civil obligation, if brought in conflict. Wit

ness says 1 think that q«eslion is answered, I do

consider that my Masonic oblig tiions do not conflict

with my civil duties,

In answer to 23d, If he has visited Lodges in

olher states/ and il their signs, ceremonies anil work

are the same, or simitar ? Witness says, I have in

the State of JYcw York, at tho meeting of the

Grand Lodge in N. York, and 35 years ago I visited

и Lodge in Boston and one in Charlestown. I know

of no difference in the ceremonies, and presume

them to be the same. I do not know any differ

ence between tlieir Masonic practices, signs and

mode of working, and those in this state.

The following question, which Air. Hazard had

neglected, was again handed to him, by W. Paine,

Jr.. After turning it over some little (¡me, he put

it.thus.

Mr. Hazard. It is wished to vary the 20th ques

tion in addition to mine. If you had a vote lo give,

or a favor to bestow upon but one, should you pre

fer a brother mason. to one who was not, under ths

same circumstances?

Mr. Moses Richardson, a Mason, who was stand

ing near the witness, here said aloud— That is a

case that never could occur. The witness made

no reply, nor was he required to do so. Mr. Haile

has not put down in his minutes, the question or

the refusal of the witness to answer.

24th Interrogatory. Is there a chain of connexion

between Giand Lodges and Masons of higher order

in this and other states? Do the higher Lodges or

Chapters in ail other states, form one Masonic bodv

or order under cue head or Chief, called the Grand

High Priest of the U. States? Is there any con-

^ between the highçr Masonic powers in this

country and those in Europe? Please state full/

and minutely all you know of any such connexion,

communication, government and subordination.

Witness. As lo the communication Between the

Grand Lodges. I presume it is kept up reguhrly

throughout the U. Slates. The Grand Lodge has

the supremacy of the three lower degrees of Ma-

sonry.

Лír. Unzard. I am very anxious to get at that—

he connexion between these Masonic bodies in the

U. Slates and also in other countries.

Mr. Jlnllilt. You will find it laid down in these

authorities— referring to tlie the Constitutions of ths

V. States Generai Grand Chapter, and the U. States

General Grand Encampment, in Webb's Monitor,

pp. 107,243. Also to Vinton 's Masonic Minstrel,

p. ЗУ!), in which is given a communication to the

Grand Lodge of R. Island from the Grand I-odge

of S. Carolina, setting forth that a communicatioM

had been received from the Grand Lodge of En

gland, ''relative to the union of Freemasons in En

gtand, Ireland, Scotland and America, by which

events the Masonic Fraternity throughout the

world have been cemented, into one happyfam

ily." At t'ne same time the Grand Lodge of South

Carolina voted, ''that Hie Corresponding Grand" Sec

retary shall congratulate the Grand Lodges in this

country, upon the happy union of the whole Ma

sonic f-unity throughout the world,,and particularly

that this 'great and Iirtppy event has been effected

without the smallest dereliction of principle, and

that the words, passwords, signs, grips, working.

forms of initiation, fyc. are PRECISELY THE SAME

iv ALL THE DEGREES, ns has Inen ike case from

time immemorial?1

When these references were handed to Mr. Haz

ard, Grand Master Cooke suggested to the witru'?s,

if he would not prefer to write it out, and hand his

answer to the Con.mittee.

Witness said he should prefer to liave Mr. Ilaile

(ake it down. Mr. Hazard proposed to adjourn till

afternoon, which was done, thus giving ihe witness

an opportunity lo consult with other Masons, аэ to

tho best mode of meeting this important question.

Tuesday .Afternoon, 3 o'clock.

Messrs. Hazard, Sprague and Haile of the Com

mittee, met at 3 o'clock, and resumed the examina

tion of Mr. Wilkinson, in reference to the govern

ment of Masonic bodies.

In answer to 26th Interrogatory, Witness says,

The several Lodges in this State are under subordi

nation to the Grand Lodge of the State. Each

State has its Grand Lodge. The Grand Lodges in

the U. States are independent. They communi

cate to each other their officers, &c. We write a

circular after the elections of officers, to all the

Grand Lodges, and a communication is kept up.

The communications between them are compli

mentary, or we can write on business. They com

municate any Masonic matters as they think neces

sary. They communicate with each other as equals,

but not аs superiors.

Тhero is a higher order of masons who form a

community. There is no connexion between Chap

ters and Lodges except this, that a person can

not receive the higher degrees, unless he has

taken Ihe lower. The same men compose both,

but there is no control in point of government. I

state this from wli,at 1 know in practice. I

have not been a book reading mason.. The two de

grees of Royal and Select Master, i do not know to

what branch they belong, though 1 have taken

thoso degrees.

Mr. Hazard. Does the Grand Lodge admit hon

orary members?

Witness. When the Grand Loige was first es

tablished in this State, there were but two Lodges,

and they then elected eight honorary members,

to intfcease the number. But many years alter th.s.



Grand Lodge voted not lo add to thai number, but

tontinue to elect those daring life, who had been

elected.

The several Royal Arch Chapters met in 17.08,

lnd a General Grand Chapter was formed, for the

Northern Staies, by a Convention hetd at Hartford.

\fterwards this was extended throughout the U.

States. They formed at lirst a Constitution far the

Northern Slates, which now extends ever the U.

States. This General Grand Chapar elects a G IT

ERAI, GRAIVD HIGH PRIEST, to whii'k all look up

as Hie HEAD. [Mr. Hailo did not like this last ad

mission, and got Iho witness to go over his answer

again. He then stated it in this tarín. J

la 17'JS, the Royal Arch Chapters in the North

ern States and New York, formed a General

Grand Chapter for those States, which was after

wards extended over the U. States, all the Chap

ters having adopted it. This Association is now

called the General Grand Chapter of the United

States, which is governed by an officer called the

General Grand High Priest.

ll'itness. f wish that to be corrected, so as (o read

presided over. Our Government is too Republican

to say governed.

Mr. Hatte, Then your Government is more 2o-

puliücan-than your tilles? ,-

ffitness. You will find it so. We aro governed

by no body but ourselves.

\f [Mr. Haite wrote down these precise words, but

Afterwards suggested to the witness they had bolter

ba struck out, to which the witness readily as

sented.]

. Jifr. Hazard. When did the higher degrees orig

inate, and when were they introduced hare?

Witness. I have no knowledge of tlio lime

when the degrees including the Royal Arch and

above, originated. The Royal Arch was introduc

ed into Rhode Island in November, 17ЯЗ. 1 lecol-

lect tli3 difficulty wo had to find seven Royal Arch

Mason?, to open the iirst Chapter. Mr. John Car-

lile and myself aro the only ones now living, who

tonic the degree at that lime. The higher degrees

were introduced afterwards. [ do not recollect

when. A number of Master Mason л being desir

ous of taking the higher degrees, Daniel Stilwell

went to N. York and got a dispensation; but it re-

q'tiroJ seve:i Royal Arch Masons to bo present at

tli3 opsning of a Chapter; there were present Mo

ses Seixas, Peleg Clarke, Thomas W. Moore, (Brit

ish CoiKul at Newport) D.miel Stilwell, Jonathan

DonnUon, Samuel Stearns, (a foreigner) and I be

liove D.miel Dailey. 1 do not like the expression

"thiy introduced it," (as Mr. Haile had written it

dawn.) It was introduced by them. [Mr. Haile

altere;! ¡t to, was introduced ]

A question was asked relative to the government

of the subordinate Chapters.

Witness. There is one question yon have not

nsked, which will explain this. Each State has a

Grand Chapter, to which all the chipters in that

títatn are subordinate. They objected to give us a

Grand Chapter in Rhode Island, wo were 10 small,

but we would not join, unless they r>id. We are so

Republican wo are not governed by any body but

ourselves. Our government is more republican

than any civil or religious, under Heaven. The

-several Chapters in each Shte form a Grand Chap

ter presider over by a Grand High Priest, to which

the Chapters are subordinate, and the Grand Chap

ters of each State are subordinate to and under the

jurisdiction of the General Grand Chapter of the

United States. 1 have nev.ir known of any com

munication with any foreign Masonic body, other

than that of a brother comiu.j along for charity. I

believe that once or twice Masonic letters have

passed between the Grand Lodge and the provin

cial Lodges in Ü. States. I say positively that there

is no subordination or connexion between any body

of Masons in this State and Europe. They may

keep up a friendly inter »urse.

in answer- to ths Î7lii. If Lnd^ra in other stairs

ive nbíice ol ilia .expulsion of members?

Witness. It is the custom of Gran 1 Lodges in

each .Slate to communicate to nach oilier the nain«

of members expelted Especially U' it was suppos

ed that -a person was travelling abroad whtre hi

misht do mischief as an unworthy brother.

[Qr'rry ? Howard, the murdere.r of Morgan,' .

travelled to Europe, by .the help ot a Chapter in N.

York,hut was never expelled. There was no fear, it'

seems, that he was an unworthy- brother ]

¿Mr tlu-zrtrd. Has your Lodgo ever received any '

communication from ths Grand Lodgo, Chapter 01-

Encampment of New York relative to the expul

sion of any member ol either of thoso bodies con- •

corned in the abduction anil -murder of William

Moi jan ?

Witness. 1 can give you a general answer. That

I have no knowledge of any ¡hing ef the kind ¡a

any Maronic body.

29th Interrogatory. When' the expulsion of a

member of another Lodge U communicated, what

order is taken by your Lodge, it' it comes from,

another State ?

Witness. It is entered on tha Rocards, so that ha

may not br received in that Lo Ige.

30:h. Ни any Lodge, Chapter or Encampment

in this State to your knowledge received uny com

munication fro:n a;ty Masonic body in New York,

on the subject cf tli3 killing of Morgan, and if so,

whit was its inipoit.

[ V written request was hero sent to Mr Hazard

from Antimaso'' , that he woutd summon the GranH

Master, Grand .ugh Priest and Grand Commander

of 1320-27, and question them on this point Ha

asked Mr Couk who they were, but neither of them

was summoned!]

Wime.ss. I havo no knowledge of any such com

munication ever having tiosn made. •

Question fwu B. F. Hallett. is it not according

to Masonic usage that every Mas'.'n who has not

boon expelled from his Lodge, Chapter, &c. is en

titled to admission in the Lodges or Chapters, of ait

other States, asa worthy visiting brother ?

[Mr Hails has perverted this question by putting

in a qualification not in the original.]

Witness. It is, if the Mason makes himself known'

as such, and the Lodgo is satisfied that his preten

sions are snch as he represents them, and they arcr

sati"fied he has taken the degree ofthat Lodge.

Mr Haeard. When any Masons in other States,

especially if conspicuous, are convicted of any

criinn of a serious nature, is it not usual for Lodges

to pass some order to guard against the intrusion of

such guilty Masons ?

Witness. To answer your question 1 should say

that I think it would be their duty to do so, but I

have not known such a case precisely. Ifa-inason

has done any thing for which he is expelled, it is

communicated to us, and we should not admit him.

Wo know no difference between great men acd lit

tle men in Masonry, except the great men we maks

ourselves—men of straw I suppose.

Mr Haile. But suppose a Mason had committed

a hiirli crimi, should you receive him, as a Mason ?

Witness. If he was nut a member of our Lodgt

ice should consider ™e had nothing to do with, his

crimes. He must ga to his own Lodge. If wo

knew that he had been convicted of a heinona crime,

we should not admit him, but we should not under

take to judge of his guilt or innocence. If he had

been convicted of a great ciime, 1 suppose we should

riot admit him whether he had been expelled or not.

I speak this from my own feelings, never having

had any knowledge of such a case.

Mr Hasard. Have you ever heard any Mason of

reputable standing in society, justify the killing

•of Morgan?

Witness. I never heard it justified at all m no

caso by any Mason. I suppose they would not have

communicated it to me, if they had. I expressed
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my «pinion against it, if it was done by Ма/onт. It

was a very unwarrantable act if it wns done, a wry

unwise and foolish one, аs well as wicked.

Mr. Hazard. Has your Lodge, or any Masonic

bodv, passed any vote disapproving of the conduct

of the persons concerned in the Morgan business,

and forbidding; their admission as visiting Ы-ethrcn?

Witness. I know of no proceedings about it;

I always considered we bad nothing to do with it.

We had nothing to say whether he was killed or

not, or murdered or not. We were entirely inde

pendent of it, and that Masons of this State bad no

more to do with it a* such than citizens of this State

bad. It bslonged to another jurisdiction.

Mi-. Hazard was requested to put the 11 In Inter

rogatory, which he had passed over. He put it in

tliis form : What do you consider the secrets 0i

mysteries of Masonry to be ? We dont ask you to

point out the signs. Do you know any secrets,

except those disclosed in Bernard and Allyn ?

Witness. I consider them to be merely personal

matters, by which one Mason knows another. They

serve to distinguish us from other folks. I never

thought of it before, but such is my impression.

Mr. ILsllclt. Do iliay not enable Masons to co

operate secretly, and combine against al! other

- men ? and may they not be used tp the injury of

othor men ?

Witness. I say as a Mason and an old man, that

the secrete of Masonry as imparted to irx^have tend

ed to make me a better man, and more charitable

to all men, and particularly to Masnns. We never

gave, the secrets umtcr the Inquisition, and- we ne

ver sJuill give them. 1 shall not sny whether those

pointed out in the books are the secrets or not. Let

those who think they have got them try, and they
• will fimt their mistake.

Mr. Huile. Aie not these secrets such as cannot

affect any but Masons ?

Witness. There is nothing in the secrets ol Ma-

s sonry which can affect any person, but Masons.

The following question was here pioposed by

W. Sprague Jr.—When you enter or leave a Lodge

4ir Chaptir, do vou make any sign or motion. If

so, to what does it allude. Is it intended to impress

'upon the mind, the penalty of that degree ?

Mr. Hazard. This relates to one of the secrets

'of Masonry.

Mr. Sprague saidthat'was the reason he wanted

the question put. It would explain the penalty.

Mr. Hazard read the question aloud, is if to see

what it was, and not as putting it to the witness.

Witness. I should not like to answer that ques

tion. It relates to the parís of onr ceremonies

which your honor has said you would not question

vs about ! You must be sensible that it is one of

those questions you agreed not to ask us about ! It

has no bearing on the subject and is merely an en

tering wedge to draw some admissions and contra-

dictions out of us Therefore I should decline

answering it. I consider it merely a piece of idle

curiosity to gaJn advantage. That you may state.

[This was the first intimation ghen of an under

standing between Mr. Hazard and the Masons, as

to the nature of the questions be should ask them.

Mr. Hazard did not deny the bargain, which wan

thus unexpectedly disclosed, though he evinced

much chagrin and vexation at the imprudent dis

closure made by the witness, and he afterwards

»aid to two individuals, that he was an old foot for

doing so, or words to that pffect.

Mn Paine Jr. informed Mr.Hazard there were sev

eral other questions we should want to nsk, snch

as an explanation of the burning hush, and the 5ih

Libation. Recovering in part from his confusion at

the unexpected disclosure made by the witness]

Mr. Hazard said, I have expressed- my opinion

that it is improper to call upon Masons to dbclo-s'e

their secrets. It U improper to make them forfeit

their honor by disclosing the secrets they have sworn

not to betray. [Jj°Murderan.d treason excepted.in-

clude» 'all other crimes, says Mr. Hazard, and yd

Masons are to be protected from disclosing what

they have sworn not to betray !] We have exam

ined Mr. Wilkinson to our satisfaction, and we

have no curiosity on this point. Masons consider

themselves bound in honor not to divulge the se

crets, ceremonies and signs, and I cant consider

that any such question can be put with any good

object.

Witness. I do not intend to answer nor deny

any thing in re/trence to the secrets and ceremonies

of Masonry. I do not mean to say .whether any

such sign is made or is not made. ,

[09* This respectable witness was under a cittil

oath to tell " Ihe truth the whole truth, and nothing

but the truth." He was under a Masonic oath, not

to tell the truth, in reply to this question. Which

oath did he consider superior ? And yet he testi

fied a lew pages back, that he never considered his

Masonic oath could come in conflict with his civil

duties, and, if it did, he should give the latter the

preference.

Is not the Masonic practice of this witness more

conclusive of the binding nature of Masonic oaths,

than of the force of civil [obligations upon the

subjects of Masonry ?]

Mr Paine Jr. requested Mr. Hazard to put the

following question, which, after some delay, and an

evidrnt reluctance, was read to the witness as fol

lows:

Are the ceremonies of initiation in the Knight

Templar's decree in Ally n's Ritual, page 250, drink

ing from the scull, &c., and the representation or

plate, called the 5th libation, are they correct?

The book was here handed to the witness, who de

clined taking it.

Witness. I never saw this book, I never read it,

nnd I never shall; nor shall I answer whether they

are correct or nut.

Mr. Hazard. To put an end to this kind of ques

tioning, 1 will ask, Have you made up your mind

that you will not answer any question relating to

the form of initiation, ceremonies and secrets ol Ma

sonry?

Vfitness. I have made up my mind not to aTi-

swer. / considered that to be sgreed vpon by the

Committee. [IX Civil oath, 1 swear, to tell the

truth, the whole truth!]

Mr. Sprague (of the Committee) here made somo

suggestions, dissenting from any such agreement

on his part, and insisting on the question being put.

Mr. Hazard. Are you willing to answer any

questions relating to Ihe forms of initiation and se

crets of Masonry?

Witness I am not. I consider them merely

personal. If we are guilty of crimes hang us, but

if we are not, I do not consider the question proper

to be answered. [iGJ"A Masonic oath, can never

interfere with a civil oath.]

Question from Mr. Paine.- -Do you1 know any

thing about a check degree or pаче word, given to

yourself or any Mason, since the disclosures made

by William Morgan?

Witness. There was no new d¿gree. There-

might have been something to prevent those Jo-

uASEs, who had been among us, from getting

there again. It was never called a degree. Л was

to keep out those TRAI-TORS as tee called iAen.', the

seceders and intruder sor spies; people that we U4on't

want should come thore.

[Some conversation not heard passed between

Mr Sprague and Mr Hazard. The latter socuied

uneasy. Mr Spragu î turntid to the 5th libation in

Allyn, and insisted on having the obligation as thore

given re,ad to the witness who had refused to look

at it in the book. Mr Hazard was thus placed tn

an uncomfortable potiHion, between his ttanrain

with the witness and other Masons not to ask these

questions, and the right claimed by Mr .

one of the Committee, who objected to the bargain

and insisted upon having the question put. A sud
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Jen thought appeared to seize Mr. Hazard, which

presented a mode te extricate hrnmlf, and also to

punish the witness for disclosing the bargain that

had exposed the partial operation» of tho majority

of the Committee.]

Mr. Hazard—(holding Allyn in his hand.) Mr.

Wilkinson, it is suggested that this part of the cere

mony, at this page of Allyn's book, is n part ol the

Knight Tcmphir's obligation which he swears to.

If is is so you ought to state it. It comes under

your obligations. /

Witness. We have given yon all the obligations

wq were required to.

Mr. Hazard—(a little touched.) But come to

think of it, this Is an obligation. It is given in the

form of an oath. l will read it to you Irom Allyn,

page 250.

" This pure wine Î take from this cup, in testi

mony of my belief of the mortality of the body,

and the immortality of the »oui, and as the »ins of

the whole world were laid upon the head of our

Savior, so may the sins of the person whose skull

this once was, be heaped upon my head in addition

to my own; and may they appear in judgment

against me,. both here and hereafter, should I vio

late or transgress any obligation in Masonry or the

orders of Knighthood, which I have heretofore ta

ken, take at this time or may hereafter he instruct

ed in. So help me God. [Drinks the wine ]

Mr. Hazard. That appears to be an oath. Is that

correct; Were these words a part of the obligation?

Witness. They do not belong to the obligation.

We have given you the obligation entire, as we

take it. We gave them as you askeds THAT is

CONTRARY TO WHAT HAS BEEN USUALLY CONSID

ERED OUR DUTY ; but the ceremonies we consider

as personal, belonging to us, and shall neither affirm

nor deny. I shall not for one.

[This answer was made, while Mr Haile was

writing down the question. After he had written

it out, he read the form of the fifth libation as above,

and asked] was this administered to you, or did you

•ver see it ?

Witness. I say that is our particular secrets and

cere-monies, which I SHALL NOT FEEL MYSELF

. BODND, UNDER ANY SITUATION TO DISCLOSE.

[inrThere is no Masonic obligation incompatible

with any civil obligation !]

Mr Hazard. But I consider this a part of the

obligation of the Knight Templar, if these words

sre true.

iJ'itufus. I had no such obligation administered

tome.

A question was here ¡ianded to Mr Hazard, which

he readily put. Do you know any thing about these

words ?

Witness. I know about a great many things in

Masonry, which I símil not tell yfu or any other

man. Whether it did or did not make a part of the

ceremonies, Ï neither affirm or deny.

Mr Hazard. As the answer now is, it maj lead to a

wrong conclusion that it is so. I think you might

as a Masonanswer in the negative, if it is not true ?

Witness. 1 think that would be «n unfair ques

tion. Von have aaid it might be answered as a ma-

*on. It is what as a mason / will never submit to.

[The witness here lifted up both arms.]

Mr Hazard. Th:»t is right, Mr Wilkinson.—

There IE nothing improper in your secrets, that is

proved. All societies have their secrets. But c-n't

you answer if these words were-or were not used in

the ceremony or initiation of a Right Templar?

Witness: As to the secret ceremonies ofthat or

any other degree, I will neither affirm or deny.

Mr Hazard. Wont that leave an impression

rather that it ¿sin the ceremonies-?

s. That would be an unnecessary question.

Mr Haile, then put it to witness in this form.—

Were these words used in any part of the cere

mony or initiation in the degree of Knight Templar:

Witness. In regard to the ceremonies in this

lor any other degree of Masonry, I neither «ffirtrt

nor deny. .

Mr Hazard. Mr Wilkinson, that look» very much

as if it was so !

Witness. (Rather out of patience) I can't help

how it looks !

Question from B. F. Halletl. Is there any thing

in the Royal Arch Oath, which refers to keeping

the secrets of a brother companion ?

Witness. I do not now recollect of any other

than the penalty of our former obligation, in the

Master's oath, to keep each other's secrets. Whe,th-

er that is again expressed in the Royal Arch oath,

I do not know. It strikes rile not, he being consid

ered already bound by reference to his former ob

ligation as a Master Mason. It may be incorporat

ed again by some.

Question from the same. But how is я Royal

Arch Mason bound by his oath to keep the secret»

of a brother companion ?

Witness. There is that which obligates him m

addition to his former obligation to keep the Master

Mason's imth.

Mr. Haile. That don't meet the question, tie

then read the written Royal Arch oath, as handed

in, which had no reference to keeping secrets, or

to the Master's oath. '

Witness. There is nothing difierent in the oath

as I received it or heard it. The Master's oath.

Mr. Haile. The Master's oath has nothing to do

with it. You do not understand it. It is no an

swer at all. The question is whether you are bound

in any way, to keep the secrets of a Royal Arch

Mason ?

Witness. No further than the other clause in the

Master's degree. That we should not reveal the

secrets of a Royal Arch Mason, we are bound in

the same way ; but nothing in addition. [Jj'That

is murder amftreasoh excepte¡!.] . , '.

Mr. Hazard. Does that comprehend the whole

oath ? [pointing tp the written oath.]

Witness. It does. You see we bind ourselves.

nbt to give the degree except to one who is a Mas

ter Mason.

Mr Haile. From whence are dispensations ob

tained for Grand Lodges, Grand Chapters and,

Grand Encampments.

Witness. While we were under the British gov~

ernment, we had a Deputy Grnnd Lodge derived

from their Grand Lodge. 'The higher orders were

not introduced then, and a Convention was called,

and the General Grand Chapter formed. The

General Grand Encampment was formed in the

•ame manner.

The Grand Lodges in the States we?o formed by

the subordinate Lodges in each State, without any

foreign dispensation.

How w,ere the Chapters formed ?

I have told in this State. In other States I do

not know.

After the General Grand Chapter was formed,

that constitution provided that there should b«

Grand Chapters in each State, represented at that

tiirr-, s

Question by request. Have you ever known a

Mason to give the secrets to one who was uol a

Mason, or to one of an inferior degree "

Witness. 1 never have known it.

Have yon »s a Mason ever been tohl sny thing

respecting Morgan, or his difficulties.

¡fitness. I never have.

Did you evfr kn»w Lewis C. Brown of Cumber

land, having heon tried in the Grand Lodge for arv

offence againsi Masonry.

Witness. I have some faint recollection of such

a trial. 1 remember there was a difficulty I can

not state respecting it. There was a difficulty be

tween him and his -Lodge, and an appeal to the

Grand Lodge. I cannot recollect the proceedings.

In reply to Mr Hazard, says he presumes the reo-

•rda will show.

7

I do not remember how long



. it w»«, whether t*n or twenty years. 1 hsd no con

cern with it. It was after I was activ» in the

bodge. He was not tried in the Grand Lodge. If

I recollect right a Committee was appointed.

[The testimony of Wm. Wilkinson here closed,

and the Committee adjourned till Wednesday morn

ing. Wo again invite a careful examination of this

testimony. Mr Wilkinson has evidently given his

testimony with a 'high degree of conscientiousness.

He appears deeply sensible of the importance of s

civil oath, and yet Masonic obligations were strong

er upon the mind of even such, a man, than civil

or conscientious obligations.]

Wednesday Morning, December 14. The Com

mittee met at 9 o'clock. Present Messrs. Hazard

Sprague and Haile. Barzilbi Cranston, Esq. was

called by Mr. Hazard. Mr. Cranston is HIGH

PRIEST of the Providence Royal Arch Chapter,

«nd at the samo time Secretary of Mount Vernon

Lodge; a practical illustration of the intimate con-

nextion between Chapters and Lodges; for whatev

er the President of the Chapter should desire to

have done in the Lodge, respecting its funds, &c.

the Secretary of the Lodge could carry into effect,

.and vice versa. Mr Cranston is a printer, and re

cently attempted to get up a Masonic paper, which,

he issued proposals to puplish, but without success,

He is a very respectable and unimpeachable citizen-

a man of prudence and circumspection, and consci-

eneious in his dealings, but very ardently attached

to Masonry, in which he has attained more distinc

tion than under any other circumstance.

The embarrassments under which Mr. Wilkinson

labored in giving his testimony, viva voce, seemed

lo have suggested to Mr. Hazard and the Masonic

witnesses, the necessity of obviating the like expos

ure, by coming prepared with a written statement,

the result of careful examination and "csution,"

by a comparison of ils different parts so as to avoid

contradiction. Thus, to the surprise of all not in

the secret, Mr. Cranston appeared with a written

reply to certain interrogatories with which Mr.

Hazard bad privately furnished him the day before,

as the only interrogatories the Committee would put

to him, thus giving him ample time to answer them

circumspectly in writing. [A similar indulgence, it

is believed, was never before granted lo a witness]

12¿A Witness. BARZILLAI CRANSTON, HIGH

PRIEST. Mr. Cranston was called by Mr. Hazard,

and instead of being s«orn to tell the truth, the

whule truth, and nothing but the truth, as had been

done with all the preceding witnesses, he was nf-

Jiras'd "to make trae answers te such questions as

may be asked!" Under this oath, he handed in his

written statement, drawn up by himself, in answer

to the interrogatories privately furnished him.

These facts Mr Haile suppresses in his minutes.]

WRITTEN STATEMENT DRAWN UP BY BARZILLAI

CRANSTON, WHEN NOT UNDER OATH.

Barzillai Cranston, in answer to questions, says he

is a Printer in Providence, 's a Mason, a member

and Secretary of Providence Mount Vermin Lodge

in Providence, Providenco Royal Arch Chapter,

Member of Council of Royal and Select Masters in

Prpvidenco and member of the Grand Lodge.

Tookihe three first degrees, in 1814, in St. John's

Lodge, and others, including Royal Arch, in 1817,

snd the Select Master, in 1826. Is at present

H it: h Priest in the Chapter. Oaths were ad

ministered in each degree, and were received in

good faith by him, which oaths deponent says have

been written out in full, and laid before the Honor

able Committee. A good deal of pains have been

taken to give the precise words of the obligations

an they have been given most, in the different

bodies, hy consultation among the present and past

officers. That form which the most of the officers

had used, was agreed upon as the most proper form.

Witness is certsin that these obligations are correct,

that is, as he learnt them; and he did learn them of

-4» officers who administered them to him.

His view of the obligations н that they are a»

cient forms and solemn asseverations ; that they

luve been kept in use as much for their antiquity

as for any other reason except the want of confi

dence in the members to frame better ones, as the

Charter of this State has been clung to. The de

claration that the obligation is not intended to inter

fere with the candidates religieus or political duties,

as well as the Charges delivered or read from the

Monitor, to every candidate, I consider proper qual

ifications of the obligations. I have known the af

firmation to be given to candidates, and sUould al

ways have considered it my duty, while presiding,

to administer it on being requested lo. I know of

nothing in Masonry against giving or taking the af

firmation. My construction of .the point in the

Master's obligation which says ' I will keep a broth

er's secrets, &c.' is, that the word worthy ought to

be understood, as it is expressed in a preceding

point, AND THAT THEY ARE BINDING ON HE 80 FIR

THAT I WOOLD SUFFER THE PENALTIES RATHER

THAN REVEAL WHAT I HAVE THEREIN PROMISED

TO CONCEAL, AND NO FURTHER. So I HAVE IN

STRUCTED OTHERS. Had the obligations been framed

to suit modern times, the explanation and qualifica

tions, which our improved moral sense has given

them, would be unnecessary. As a consequence

of the Masonic compact, I can state that money has

been appropriated by the Lodge I belong to for

charitable purposes in every year since it waa

chartered by the State. I never visited a Lodge or

other Masonic body out of this State but onco, aml

that was in Seekonk, Mass. for the purpose of giv

ing them information respecting conferring the de

grees and the lectures.

I have never heard a Mason justify the murderer

killing of Morgan, and never heard one speak liuhtly

ofthat transaction since it has been believed at nil to

be true. Before it was thought to be true, I heard

Masons and others speak lightly of it, as astorygot

up for some other purpose—that of making eals for

his book, &,«.—rather than because it was true,

I consider the Masonic Institution a charitable

one. not merely a mutual insurance company, be

cause a member or his distressed family may draw

nut more than he ever paid in. If a Mason is in

distress his claim for relief is good. (See by Uw

and abstract of charities.)

The hy laws (of Mount Vernon Lodge) provide

for the expulsion of a member for disclosing ' any

of the transactions of the Lodge to the disadvan

tage of the Craft, or any individual brother,' or if

he conduct himself disorderly or by vicieusness and

immorality of conduct act unworthy the character

of a M ,i son. 1 know of no other punishment than

expulsion.

The by laws are generally written and kept in a

book subject to the inspection of any member. The

constitution and by laws of the Grand Lodge are

printed, and lay on the table. I have printed by

laws for a Lodge. 1 know of no secret by laws.

.imount ofmoney paid for charstable purposes from

1799 to 1830.

1799.

I800.

1801.

¡et

1804.

1805.

1806.

1807.

1808.

1S09.

1810.

1811.

1812.

1813.

1814.

$18

10 67

18

30 50

13 25

-13

15 75

28 36

38 62

15 12

15

28 50

48 06

34 25

29

63

1815.

1816.

1817.

1818.

1819.

1820.

1821.

1822.

1823.

18S4.

1825.

(LT1826.

8CM 827.

1828.

1829.

1830.

46

57

106 69

46 15

48 50

63

35

56 75

107 25

107 75

97 04

182 50

100 92

97

71

74 50

$1,705 IS



Exclusivo of money raised by subscription which

probably amounted to several hundred dollars.

(Signed,) JASON WILLIAMS, Com

Providence, May r630.

A true copy from the records of Mount Veriion

Lodge. B. CRANSTON, Secretary.

Providence, June 3, 1831.

After Mr. Cranston had handed in his written

statement, Mr. Halle, by request of Antimasons,

read the variations in the oaths from Allyn's Ritual,

omitted in the written oaths handed in by the ЛЬ-

stms.

1st. As lo the Grand Hailing Sign, witness was

asked if he ever heard it in the oath.

Witness. I am confident 1 never did.

3d. "I will not speak ill of a brother mason, nei

ther behind bis back or before his lace, but will ap

prize him of all approaching danger." Did you

ever hear that ?

Witness. I never did ! [Alter a pause, witness

addeil] There is a point in the obligation similar

to that, " that 1 will not wrong a brother, or de

prive him of his good name." •

[O"Mark the prevarication. The witness en

deavors to carry un impression that there is » mate

rial difference in the 2d point between the Rhode

Island oath and Allyn's, and he so answers as to

make it appear that the most objectionable clause,

" will apprize him of all approaching danger," is not

in the Rhode Island oath ! To show lurn; nigh the

wind Masons can swear, touching their oaths, who

are conscientious men in all other respects, refer

ence is here made to the terms of this point as given

in Allyn's oath, and in the Rhode bland oath,

which this witness had just previously sworn was

literally correct, but which be almost denies, when

it is put to him as a variation .in Allyn's form.

From the Master's Oath in Allyn's Ritual.

" That I will not speak evil of a brother Master

Mason, neither behind his bark nor before his face,

hut will apprize him of all approaching danger."

From the same oath written out by theGrand Lodge.

" That I will not wrong a brother, or deprive

him of his good nime, or suffer it to be done by

others, if in my power to prevent it, ¿ai will ap

prize him of all approaching danger, so far as it

It'il I come to my knowledge !"

The Utter is in reality stronger than the first,

and yet the witness worded his answer so as to

convey an impression that the obnoxious clause was

not in the Rhode Island oath. Other witnesses it

will be found went farther, and flatly denied that

the clause, " apprize him of all approaching dan

ger," was in the Rhode Island oath at all !]

u I. Keeping a brother's secrets, murder and

treason excepted, and they left to my election.

Did yon ever hear it so administered ?

Witness. No Sir. The form if, I will keep the

secreta of a brother Master Mason, murder and trea

son excepted.

4th. Relative to going on a Master Mason's

srrand ?

ll'iinr.fx. I nevur heard that administered.

bth. If any part is omitted, &c.

Witness. I never heard that.

Variations in the Royal Arch oath.

6tli. The Grand Omnific word ?

Witness. I never heard it in that form.

[Mr. Hazard did not ask in n-luil form he had

heard it.]

7th. Will apprize of approaching danger?

Witness. I neper heard that !

8th. I will assist a companion Royal Arch Ma

son, when I see him engaged in any difficulty—and

will espouse his cause sp far as to extricate him

from the same, whether he be right or wrong —

Did you ever hear that ?

Witness. ffot the latter part of it. There is a

flaust in the Royal .'trfh oath, embracing the first

part of it. I never heard " espouse his cause so

fer as te extricate him from the same, whether lie

be right or wtobg." This obligation confines the

assistance to a worthy brother.

[dj-Лoгe. The High Priest here admits that

there is a clause tn the Royal Arch oath embracing

this point,- viz :—"I will assist a companion Roy»!

Arch Mason, when I see him engaged in any diffi

culty." In this he accords precisely with the testi

mony of Mr. fhacher, and establish» s the substance

of the allegation thnt Royal Arch Masons are bound

to assist each other in any difficulty, under all cir

cumstances, and of course whether right or wrong

And yet it is a remarkable fact, that the written

Royal Arch oath handed in by the Rhode Island•

Masons, does not contain a word about assisting a

Royal Arch Companion, when engaged to any ¡Hin-"

cully. But the High Priest admits that there is

such an obligation in the oath, though he says it U

confined to a worthy brother. What a worthy

brother is, Past High Priest Wilkinson lies informed

us. Mr. Haile, in his minutes, omits a part of the

witness' answer to the above question, but retains

the substance of the admission thnt there is such

an obligation, viz : to assist a worthy brother com

panion, when engaged in any difficulty.]

9th. ' 1 will keep all the secrets of a Companion^

Royal Arch Mason, when communicated to me as

such, without exception, or murder and treason not

excepted.' Did you ever hearUhat clause?

Witness. JVot the (.АГТER PART of it. I never

heard the expressions in the latter part of this ex»

tract administered '

[trJVu'e. A very pregnant answer, and for one»

Mr Haile has taken down here the very words of the

witness. ' I never heard the expression tu the lat

ter part,' that is without exception, or murder aml

treason excepted. The inferrence is plain, 1have

heard the first part, viz. ' I will keep all the secrets

of a Companion Royal Arch Mason when commu

nicated to- me as such.' Atl means all; precisely a>

Mr Thacher stated the oblifiation lie took in the

Royal Arch degree, viz. ' to keep aií'the secrets of

a Companion committed to me as such.' Mr Cttn-

ston thus lully sustains the testimony of Mr Thach

er, and yet it is another remarkable instance of Ma

sonic prevarication somewhere', that the written R.

Island oath, in the Royal Arch degree, as handed

to the Committee, contains not a word about keep

ing the secrets of a companion, of any description

or under any circumstances ! Had the oath always

been administered without any reference to keeping

socrels, would not the answer of the High Priest

havo been, ' I never heard that clause, or any part

of it;' instead of ' I never heard the expressions in

the latter part ?]

[The following question in Mr Hallett's hand

writing, Mr Haile was here requested to put. Mr

Hazard had stepped out at this moment, and Mr

Haile read the question. U was afterwards incor

porated among the variations marked E.j

10th. In the obligation of the Royal Arch de

gree, as read to you from paper marked B, is this

sentence. 7th. 'That I will not give the grand

Royal Arch word in any manner except th.it in

which 1 may receive it.' Ь the manner there rs-

fcirod to the same described in this obligation as

given in Allyn's Ritual, viz. ' in the presence of

three Companion Royal Arch Masons, myself ma

king one of the number, and then by three time»

thive under a living arch, qnd at low breath ?'

Witness. The obligation is, that I will not give

the word, except in the manner I have received it.

Mr Halletl. To show that the oaths are alike,

we want to know if the ' manner' is the same an n

described in the Royal Arch oath given in Allyn'v

Ritnnl.

Witness. I think I have answered that ques

tion.

Mr. HaHclt. Where is it answered ?

Mr. Haile. The question is whether the manner

alluded to in the written oath it the samt dcccrib«!

in thgprinUd oath.



il i:,íc.-s. After a pause. WuU, sir, 1 should an

swer that the first part is correct, and decline an-

•SKering the rert.

[Qj-.Vofc. This witness had taken a civil oath to

make true answers to such questions as should be

put to him, under the peril of the penaity of perju

ry ! and yet he refused to answer a question put to

him by Mr Haile, one of the Committee, because

be had sworn as a Mason to conccil and never re

veal. Which oath did he regard most binding in

this case; his civil or his Masonic oath!]

Witness was asked by request, if the penalty in the

1'ast Master's degree was ever given, to have my

tunguo split from tip to root ?

il'itneM. I never so heard it.

Mr Hallett hero observed that in the written

statement handed in by Mr Cranston, he had given

an acconntof the charities of the LoJgo for several

years. In order to judge of those charities it was

uecessary to ascertain for what purpose the money

was applied, and also the relative proportion of those

charities to the receipts and to other expenditures

of the Lodge. He wished this question to be par

ticularly asked, viz.

What was the amount of the receipts of your

Lodge arising from foes, quarterly dues and all other

sources, during the years in which you state certain

sums were paid out as charities, and what were the

expenditures, during that period for all other pur

poses ?

Mr John Miller, and Mr Peter Grhmdl, high Ma

sons, who wero sitting at the table, both objected

to ihis as a very improper question. One of them

.l•niai ki Л aloud, if the Lodge had done so much,

nvhy not give them the credit of it. It was suffi-

xiciil tosíate what they had dune. We had no more

light to inquire into their privait expenses, than we

liad into the expenses of au individual.

Ifitntxt. I am unable to state. The records will

show.

Mr HallM. Then the records ought to be pro-

lIm.i-o, and the statement shown. These Lodges are

chartered as charitable societies, and we cannot

judge whether tiiey have wasted their funds or not,

unless we can eee how much money they have had

to expend, and what proportion has gone for chari

ties and for other purposes. Mr Cranston has taken

pains to collect all the charities, as he calls them,

;mil we ask to see the receipts and expenditures.

[Mr. Hazard, who had been absent a short time,

ns above stated, came in and took his seat, about

Xliis time, which put an end to all further attempts

to get at the facts of the case. The following

question was put by request.] Can you state any

instance in wfrfch a brother or hie family b'.s receiv

ed more in cliari'ív iban he paid min fees, quarterly

(iue=. &c. If so s'tstis the instance ?

W'itncss. I think Г could with the assistance of

she records, and the orris's drawn by the charitable

committees on the Treasury, as audited and record

ed at iiic end of the year. I ..".'row nothing of quar

terly dues being paid.

[After this occurrence in (he examinai 'on, a writ

ten request was sent to the Committee, U.at "1eУ

lvould require Mr Cranston to produce a stoic."'16^

sif the receipts and expenditures of the Lodge ibf

each year, to accompany the statement made in his

deposition of the sums paid out in thoso years, for

charities, ami also lor what charities they were paid.

1t was abo suggested that the sums set down for

ihniities in 1820 and 1827, ought to bo explained.

It is remarkable that the tliarities of those two

years, the period ot Morgan's abduction and the trial I

of tlic western sufferers, amount to $2do 42, a much I

larger sum than m any other two years in the es

timate.]

[Tho Committee took no notice of this request,

icalling for an exhibit of the receipts and expendí- i

'utes) but permitted Mr Cranston's statement to go ¡

11, without calling upon him to show the receipts :

and other expenditures. And not only in this thin)

did they evince their determination to evade fia

investigation, but they afterwards allowed tos

same Mr Cranston, to append to his deposition, r•

under oath, a note in which he gives at second AamL

from*1ason Williams,s pretended statement of char

ities to individuals, from the Lodge ; and this htttr

say account, not sworn to by any one or even cen>

fied, is appended to this deposition of Mr Cranstoa

and appears in the published report of the Co»

mil u i- as a part of the testimony ! And yet the

candid Committee could not gel from the Secreta

ry of Mount Vernon Lodge a statement of the re

ceipts and expenditures ofthat Lodge! That the

Committee might- have no excuse for evading thii

inquiry into the receipts and expenditures of tb

Lodge, a call was made upon them in the Р1oч

dence Daily Advertiser, ol December 15, 1831, ths

day alter they had refused to comply with a writ

ten request to procure lhat evidence. The a:

in the Advertiser was as foltows:

" I beg leave to make one suggestion either to

the Committee on Masonry, or to the public, I dort

much care which, if it is understoood. It is this

In the testimony of the Secretary of Mount Ve:

non Lodge, there is a statement carefully drawn t

of what is called the charities, for thirty one year-

amounting to $1700, or about $58 per year. À ça:

was made [by Anlimasons] for the account of rt

ceipts of the Lodge during that time, together with

its amount of funds and the sums expended fora:

other purposes except charity, but has not yet beei

complied with. Now 1 agree this is the best cxhiö

it of masonic charity, ever made by a Lodge, if ;.

be all real charity ; but at the same time we ough

to see the other items of the account to understand

it. It this statement is to be appended to the Sec

retary's deposition, an exhibit of receipts and ex

penditures ought to go with it, or it is not FAIB

PLAY."

A newspaper containing the above paragraph,wai

laid on the table ul the Committee, Friday morn

ing, Dec. 16. They still persisted in their deter

mination not to permit the statements called for to

be given to the public, and they afterwards put in

to their published report a hearsay story fioni this

same witness about charities, without requiring him

to make the exhibit that had been so repeatedly anil

so publicly called for! This is one specimen ot

their fairness, and of their boasted indulgence, to

Antimasons, in putting all question they were de

sired to !

Another fact should be mentioned in this con

nexion, that will show the determination of the .Ms-

sous, in which they were upheld by the Committee,

TO REEP ТПE1E RECORDS SEcRET.

One or two large Ledgers, purporting to be the

records of the Lodge, wers observed on the table,

but no one had examined them. The day after the

Committee had refused to make any inquiry into

the funds and expenditure of Lodges, &c. Mr

Hallett took up one ol these books of records, with

a view to examine the accounts of receipts and ex

penditures. He had just began to make a noie with

a pencil from apart ofthe records when Moses Rich

ardson, (Treasurer of the Grand Encampmen;;

c.мne up and seized the hook with some violence,

sayiri^i " '"at book is in my custody, we dont allow

the RecC1"!5 of St. John's Lodge to be seen by you

or any other Antimason." The records were not

afterwards seen, a.''d as the Committee woulil not

look at them, and others could nut, they were es

effectually sealed as il they hsd been buried under

Ihe Altar with the Master's lost word ! Immedi

ately alter Mr Richardson had seized the records, a

note was written signed by William Sprague, Abra

ham Wi!kinson,«William Harris, Walter Paine, Jr.

and B. F. Hallett, stating that all access was deni

ed to the records of the Lodge, which we presumed

had been brought there for inspection, spd desiring



to know ¡Г the Committee sanctioned (his proceed

ing ? The note was placed before Mr Haile, but no

unties whatever was taken of the statement it con

tained, by the majority of the Committee.

After this transaction, it was found utterly im

possible to get, througlithiscominittee, any inquiry

into the waateful and useless expenditures of Lod

ges, or the amount of their funds, and the Commit

tee were left to pursue their own partial course.—

Had the Committee been disposed to act fairly, it is

believed that some other charities might have been

proved, wbere at least a thousand dollars had Ъecn

expended in the mummeries of a Masonic funeral,

and the widow of the deceased Mason left des

titute ; with but trifling if any assistance from

Mnsonic bodies.]

The following question was put by request. You

state that the forms of oaths presented here, were

agreed to by most of those who consulted about

forming them. Who were the persons who con

sulted together and agreed to these forms, knd di

rected them to be exhibited as your obligations ?

Witness. Joseph S. Cooke [Gland Master], Peter

Grinnell [General Grand Treasurer], Wm. C. Bar

ker [Grand Commander], James Salisbury [Master

of the Veils, we believe], Christian M. Nesteil

[Grand Recorder], Cyrus Fisher, John Andrews

[former officers in the Chapter], Moses Richardson

[Treasurer of the Grand Encampment], Samuel

Jackson, 2d. [Past High Priest], and Bazillai Cran

ston [High Priest]. [The witness did not state

their Masonic titles. They are given hore to show

the source irom whence the written oaths came,

and the Masonic power and influence which those

who framed them could exert to induce all other

Alasons to bcl,ie.rc they comprised the exact forms

as administered to them. Л few omissions, under

euch circumstances, would not be called in ques

tion. That there were omissions in the Royal

Arch oath, is plainly shown by the statements of

Messrs. Wilkinson and Cranston, relative to obliga

tions of that oath requiring them to assist a brother

in any difficulty, and to keep his secrets.]

Witness—after giving the above names. I don't

know that I can name any others at present. It

was the intention to give them as they have been

administered in St. John's Lodge, Chapter and

Council, and Mount Vernon Lodge, for a number

of yean. There were no objections to reporting

them as the form of oaths. 1 found I had used the

word unless, where others had except, and there

were some such other immaterial variations.

[CTMr John Andrews, one of the above num

ber, stated to John Hall and B. F. Hallett, after the

investigation, that there were objections in this

council or committee against giving the oaths at all.

That one of them said he would sooner have hie

arm cut off than do it, and that a great many Ma

sons stil! considered the oaths as much the secrets

of Masonry, as any other part of the institution.]

.Wr. Hazard. Have, to your knowledge, any of

the funds of these two Lodges been misapplied,

and directed to ether than the legitimate objects of

the Lodge ?

Witness. I believe they have not. Not to my

knowledge. Not one individual out of ten hus

bands his funds better than these Lodges do.

Queslion from John Miller, (Mason). Have

•not sums been voluntarily paid by memberg of

the Lodges, in charities, exclusive of the funds ?

Witness. Formerly, when the funds were small,

anil the members few, this was the case. The

Lodges appointed a committee to solicit contribu

tions, to be applied for the relief of distressed mem

bers and their families. 1 have been under the im

pression that the papers were returned to the.Lodge,

Jiut they cannot be found.

;"|D°As the subject of the funds and charities had

носи brought up here by masons, it was thought

b«l <" proposs some questions oil the other side, to

draw out facts, if possible, on a subject which the

Committee seemed resolved to Keep in the dark.—

The following question was handed by VV. Paine,

Jr. What are the legitimate objects of expenditure

to which the funds of a Lodge are applied? Mr

I laznrd hesitated, and put the question very reluct

antly. He said he considered it already answered

under the question as to the general objects of Ma

sonry. Mr Spraguo wished it put, and it was read

to witness. . -

Witness. The legitimate objects I understand to

he, that they -are to bo applied to charities, anil

other purposes. [¡C^f^Mr llailo has put this down • *

charitable purposes, which wad not the language

of witness.]

Mr Hazard. Do you mean to §ay that they are

applied to charity, and the ordinary necessary ex-

'penses of tha Lodge ?

Witness. 1 do. •

It was here remarked aside, by Antimasons, that

this explained nothing, unless you could get at the

receipts, and all the expenditures of the Lodge !

Mr Hazard overheard the remark, and said—It

seems that is not satisfactory.

Mi Hallett. No Sir. You may put this ques

tion if you please.

What do you understand by the ordinary and

necessary expenses of a Lodge or Chapter ?

Witness. It would take sometime to answer that

question in full. I should consider if they wanted

fuel, oil, printing, and suck HI. r, they would be

bound to pay for them. Also repaire of building,

tools, trowels—and a good many things I could

think of if 1 had time. [Mr Haile omits all these

particulars in his minutes.]

Mr. Hazard. By necessary and ordinary ex

penses do you include any other than those you

have enumerated and things of that character ?

Witness. I have never known any entertain

ments that had been paid for out of the funds;—not

in the Lodges in this town.

Question by request. What do you mean bj •

saying, in the Lodges ?

Witness. I think there have been instances in

the Chapter. I have never known it in the Lodges,

I am pretty sure. I have heard the members of -the

Chapter say that it was sometimes necessary to have

some refreshments in a long sitting—crackers and

cheese. The sittings of the Chapters were longer

than the Lodges. There was a supper paid for by

the Chapter recently, on the occasion of an election.

It was an unpleasant evening, few persons were

present, and we voted to pay the person who provi-

dec the supper out of the funds. ..

W. Paine, Jr. offered a question, whether contri

butions were paid to the Grand Lodge from subor

dinate Lodges, and from Chapters to the Grand

Chapter. Mr Hazard said it was unnecessary, and

would be embraced in some other question. He

would now propose the general interrogatories Mr

Haile, read Mr. Wilkinson's deposition! It was ac

cordingly read to witness.

Witness. ' In reference to the cable tow, the defi

nition I have given and heard others, is that we

were at liberty to bring it within the line of our

duty. The declaration that the obligations were

not to interfere with my duty to God or my country,

has always been impressed on ray mind asa duty.

The declaration coming from the same source that

the obligations did, I considered them as explain

ing each other. I did not consider I gave a right to

take life, or bound myself to take that of others.

I believe the address was always given before the

oaths in the degrees above master. I think it was.

It was considered proper that it should be given.

I can say for myself I always had an aversion to

oaths, but for form's sake I have submitted to

them. I do not consider the Masonic oaths as in

compatibte with my religious or civil duties.

1 nave proposed quesViput respecting the nature



Und extent of Mienne penalties, «ml heard llie .'sine

argumente used by Masons, which I have before

ktulud. Huvo heard sbem explained in the manner

«е f have before stated.

Mr. Sprague asked if he had ever done this in

open Lodge?

Witness. I don't remember that I ever did in

opmi Lodge, but either before or after the opening

und closing of the Lodge, i think I have in open

Lodge.

.We. S/iragsc. When was this, and on what oc-

c.isiim?

Witness. If my recollection serves me. I have

done it occasionally ever since I was a Mason, to

the leading members.

Mr. Spraq«c. What was the construction put

upon the penalties?

Witness. I have heard the arguments used as 1

have before stated. ,

Jl/r. Hazard. Was the consti action you have put

upon the penalties, the same put upon them by the

members?

Witness. I might say, without vanity, that the

younger members looked up to me for correct Ma

sonic information generally. [Mr. Huile added

something here the witness did not say.]

Question by request. Was there ever any dis

tinct proposition to revise or alter these obligations?

Witness. I do not remember ever hearing any

made to Masonic bodies, while in session.

qaestion. from B. F. Hallett. You say the

younger members looked up to you for Masonic in

struction. Did you ever instruct a younger mem

ber, that if he were to reveal his masonic secrets,

ht would not lie liable to the penalties of his obliga

tions?

Witness. (In some embarrassment.) 1 don't re

member as f ever did. I don't remember ever giv

ing a Mason such instruction. The bylaws of the

Lodges in thi< town recognize no other punishment

than expulsion. I have generally referred to the

bylaws lor instruction. i never remember to have

heaiv. any such question proposed.

[O°Querv. Is it not plain from this declaration,

that before the murder of Morgan, Masons were

left with the impression that their penalties would

be inflicted if they revealed the secrets, and that

no intimation was given by the leading Masons,

that the penalties did not mean just as they read

—death?]

Question by request. If you had a vote to give,

or iavor to grant, were you bound to prefer a Ma

son to one who was uní, in similar circumstances?

[This question witness was not required to an

swer.]

Qui.4ti.uu by request- Do you know when Boyal

Arch Masonry originated? [This question witness

did not answer.]

In an-iwer to ¿7th interrogatory, relative to com

municating expulsions to Lodges in other States,

witness says,

I believe the custom is, for the Lodges in this

(tste to give• notice to the Grand Lodge, and they

to coin uunicate it to all other Grand Lodges/

Mr. Hazard. What order is taken on the expnl-

biouofa member, being communicated from one

Lodgs to another?

Witness. I am not able to state.

Mr. Hazard. But if it is communicated from a

Lodge in another »täte?

Witness. When a member is expelled, his name

is reported to the Grand body to which he is subor

dinate, and they communicate it to similar Masonic

bodies in other states.

Mr. Hazard. What course is then taken?

Witness. I believe the Grand Lodge here has

made a piactice of putting down the names of per

sons expelled from Lodges in other states, and com

municating the names printed with their annual

proceedings, and distributing them to their subor

dinate Lodges. Of late this has not been done. I

can't recollect of having seen or heard of a lut of

expulsion for a year or two.

Mr. Hazard. Has any Masonic body in this

State, to your knowledge, received any communi

cation relative to the abduction or murder oi Mor

gan?

Witness. I should answer that question the same

as Sir. Wilkinson has.

Question. Is not a Mason, so long as he belongs

to a Lodge, entitled to be received in all Lodges,

as a visiting brother, and if a conspicuous Mason

in another State, were found to be guily of a crime,

would he afterwards be admitted toa Lodge in this

State?

Witness. Mr. Wilkinson's answer is not pre

cisely such as I should give. I think that a visiter

would not be admitted unless he was supposed to be

a worthy brother.

Afr. Hazard. The object of this question is to

ascertain whether all Masons are not received in

Lodges, who have an appearance of respectability,

and if that is the case, whether when it is got to be

notorious that any Mason has committed a high

crime, it is not customary to take some order in the

Lodges, that if he presents himself for admission he

maj be known ? For instance, suppose De Witt

Clinton had been proved to have been concerned in

the abduction of Morgan, was convicted and the

trial published. In such a case would not the Lodges

here feel it their duty to take some order about it,

to prevent his admission *

[УЗ"Мг Hazard here put the question fairly.—

Mark the answer, which we give in the precüe

words of the High Priest.]

Witness. I SHOULD THINK THEY WOULD SAY

NOTHING ABOUT IT UNLESS HE HAD BEEN EXPELL

ED WHERE HE BELONGED. TiIEY WOULD ТАЕЖ

NO KOTICE OF IT!

Mr. Hazard. But if he was convicted of a

crime ?

Witness. 1 should say he would not be admitted,

•unless he was supposed to be a WORTHY brother.

Mr Hazard. Has any Masonic body in thin State

disapproved of the conduct of those masons, engaged

in the abduction and murder oi Morgan ?

Witness. I should think the Grand Lodge had

expressed their disapprobation of the killing of

Morgan.

Mr Hallett. Where ?

Witness. In their Address to the people of the

State, (June, 1831.)

Mr Hallett. What part of the Address? Witness

did not answer. The question was handed to com

mittee in writing. Please inquire in what part of

that Address ? Mr Hazard refused to put the ques

tion.

Mr Kazard. Are the funds of any Lodges or

Chapters, or any of them diverted to the use of

Grand Lodges, Grand Chapters, or Grand Encamp

ments

Witness. They are not.

Mr Hazard. 1 thought so. Here is a charge

in this Memorial (referring to the Antimasonic Me

morial,) about diverting the funds.

Mr Hallett suggested that if the object was to dis

prove the assertion in the Memorial, the word funds,

would not cover it. It should be fees or receipts.

Mr Hazard. It is all the sагne thing.

Mr Hallett. The witness don't think so. Ask

him if the subordinate Lodges and Chapters don't

pay fees, in the form of tribute to the Grand Lodge

and Chapter. Mr Hazard did so, using the term»

funds, fees, or receipts ?

\Vitness. Two dollars for every initiation in a

subordinate Lodge is paid to the Grand Lodge.

* Mr Hazard. That is a part of the fee which the

individual pays to the Grand Lodge.

Mr. Halletl observed that it was not so. The

Lodge pa d it to the Grand Lodge, in the form of t

tax or tribute.

Mr Hazard. I don't understand it ta. Th»



subordinate Lodge takes the fee, and hands

over two dollars of it, which belongs to the Grand

Lodge.

Mr Hallett. It ie not so. Ask the witness. The

Lodge is taxed by the Grand Lodge two dollars Tor

the right to initiate each member, and the Lodge

pays two dollars a bead to the Grand Lodge, wheth

er it receives a cent itself or not.

Mr.Hazard. Well, how is that? Whatdoesthe

Lodge receive for making Masons, and what purl is

paid to the Grand Lodge í

Mr. Hallelt insisted that it was not a part of what

•vas received, bat a distinct tax upon the subordi

nate Lodge. A seceding Mason, who was by. re

marked that he had known notes given for initiatory

fees, which were never paid, but the Lodge had to

pay two dollars for the candidate.

Mr Hazard. How is it, Mr Cranston ?

4'innss The candidate pays twenty four dollars

for initiation in the 3 degrees to the subordinate

Lodge, and that Lodge pays twoJollars to the Grand

Lodge, for every initiation ; that is for every can

didate initiated.. I am not acquainted with the reg

ulations of the Chapter. Do not know what the

Chapters pay to the Grand Chapter.

[And yet the witness is Hi?h Priest of a Chapter,

and superintended all its concerns !]

The llth Interrogatory passed over by Mr Haz

ard, he was requested to put.

Mr. Hazard. What do you consider the secrets

of Masonry to be ? What do you consider to be

the nature and extent of the secrets of Masonry?—

We do not wish you to explain them, but to say

whether they have any bearing upon the rest of the

community.

Witness. I have always considered the main ob

ject charitable. The secrets are such as will secure

ihf benefits and abjects of the institution to tliose to

whom they belong, its members.

Mr Hazard. Can these secrets affect the rights

or interests of any person, who is not a member of

that Association ?

Witness. I should think not.

Mr Hazard was here requested to present lo wit

ness Cross's Masonic Chart approved by Masons,

page 33, an emblem of the ceremony in the Royal

Arch degree representing God appearing to Moses

in the burning bush.

Mr Hazard. I consider that trenching on those

parts of their secrets they ought not to disclose.

Mr Hallett. We think the truth ought to be dis

closed. This is aercpresentation of one of theii

exhibition», which is considered highly blasphe

mous, and which, if performed publicly, would sub

ject any person guilty of taking a part in it, to in

dictment for blasphemy.

Witness. I dont know any thing about it. 1

never saw §ueh a picture.

This seemed to relieve Mr Hazard, and he put

the question. Is this picture in Cross's Chart, a

representation of one ol the secret ceremonies yoi

do not feel at liberty todisslose ?

Witness. I dont know whether it is meant to

represent anything in Masonry or not !

W. Paine, Jr. here unrolled before witness the

Symbolical Chart and Masonic Mirror, by Com

panion S. Converse, represonting the same picture

of the burning bush.

Viitness. I do not know what this picture rep

resents. I never saw any such representation .in

Masonry !

[(LTJVfife. This answer is remarkable. The sym

bol which this High Priest of a Chapter , says he

knows nothing about, is contained in Cross's Chart,

which is certified to be correct Masonry, by twenty

of the highest Masonic officers in the Ü. S. arid bjr

the General Grand Chapter, who say that it is "a

valuable assistant in elucidating the varinus masonic

•mblems." The Chapter of Connecticut also say

•I this book that it contains " an cl.igant and com

prehensive vww of all ths lymbelt swd in Iwtur-

ng upon the »everal degrees.1' One of these em

'ili:ins ant! symbols, used in lecturing, н the burn-

ng bush. " Every character, figure and emblem

n a Lodge, (says Webb, p. 40) has a mqral tenden

cy." And yet High Priest Cranston does not know

what a picture in Cross's Chart, of God appearing

to Moses in the burning bush, represents .']

In reply to a question from the Committee, for

witness to confirm the statement made by Mr Wil-

uusoa in his examination, witness says—

I have heard the deposition of William Wilkin

son read over deliberately, and the statementsand

facts therein contained are correct, so far as they

relate to the degrees 1 have taken, and so far as my

knowledge extends, where they are not varied by

explanations I have giv.en.

A pamphlet printed in Cypher, supposed lo be a

book contaimng Masonic Lectures and oaths in the

three first degrees, was presented to witness, by re

quest and he was asked it he knew any thing about

it.

Witness. I do not. I have heard something

about there being such a book. I never looked at

it, and do not know what it contatns. It was never

consulted by Masons, or used in any Lodge to my

knowledge. 1 saw such a book once, eight or ten

years ago, I believe, in possession of John Ilnl-

royd, a Mason, who had then recently relumed

from the West. I do not know what it contained.

The testimony of Mr Cranston here closed. No

addition was made to his statements, at any sub

sequent time, under oath.

Wednesday afternoon, December, Uth, 1831. Mr

Hazard absent.

PHILIP ALLEN, Esc. 13iA witness, wassworn.

He had not been in a Lodge for 20 years. Had

been a Royal Arch Mason. Never knew Masonry

used for political purposes, not being much engag

ed in polities himself, and of course did not know-

much about it, one way or the other. Hr p «siim-

ed, at the ti¡ne, it was meant fpr a charitable inxti-

tution. So far as his recollection serves he did not

consider there was any thing in the secrets that af

fected the rights of others.

Mr. Huile. When you took the oaths did you

consider that they interfered with your civil, reli

gious or social duties? Answer. I have no recol

lection what the oaths were. I did not consider

they made me any better or worse. 1 considered

after 1 became a member, 1 had a right to act in

the same way as before I was a member.

[SAMUEL GREENE, 14th witness.]

Adhering Mason. Sworn to answer all such

questions as may be asked.

Mr Haile read lo him the part of the deposition of

Abraham Wilkinson, in which it is stated that ho

had heard Mr Greene say that if Morgan had been

killed for disclosing the secrets of Masonry, ha did

not see why any body need complain, for he had

suffered no more than his just deserta, or what he

had agreed to. The same remark is sworn to by

William Harris, who heard Mr Greene make it.—

Mr Haile inquired of witness il he ever said this ?

Mr Greene. I will state to the honorable com

mittee that in general terms, 1 have never been an

advocate of murder. 1 have always been a pescea-

ble citizen, and 1 refer to those who have known

me for forty years, for my character. I have re

solved never to converse with A. Wilkinson or W.

Harris. I said something like this to another per

son : that Morgan was a good for nothing fellow,

and according to his own showing IF HE HAD BEEN

KILLED HE DESERVED IT, and if the Masont only

killed ont another, the Antimasons had no right to

complain ! I am in the habit oftalking with warmth

but as to justifying murder I never have. I ap

peal to my life for 40 years in Pawtucket, and defy

any one to say if I have not been a good citizen

and obedient to the laws. I am a Mason and have

taken several degrees in Masonry, including the de

grees of Knighthood. I cant tell how many. ,
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\.\'iiln. The witness txpretsed hiraseli with

great warmth and feeling. The fact that his char

acter as a citizen stood so high, (he being one of

Hie most intelligent Manufacturers in the state of R.

Island, and until the distresses of 1823, one of the

most extensively engaged employers in that busi

ness) rendered his justificatiqn of the killing of

Morgan still more convincing as a proof of the real

meaning of Masonic penalties. No circumstances

could have irritated Mr Greene into a justification

of a cruel murder upon any person not a seceding

Mason. and yet he admits that he fully justified

the killing of William Morgan, at the same time

assuming the right of Masonry to execute her own

criminals, without regard to the civil laws. We

repeat, that this witness is а тery respectable man,

and we should do him injustice to believe that any

thing but the pernicious influence of his Masonie

oaths, made him so forget all moral principle as to

justify a cruel and unprovoked murder of the father

of a family, who had committed no offence against

the laws or the morals of society.]

Mr. Haile, of the Committee, put this question

to witness : Did you say these words, ' If Mor

gan had been killed he had no reason to complain,

lor he liad suffered no more than his just deserts?'

Answer. No sir. I never said these words.

Mr. Halle. At no lime ?

Answer. Only in explaining to him what he had

represented. I did say.

Mr. Haile. Did you ever use expressions like

these ?

Answer. There was some conversation about

Morgan, and a good deal of warmth between my-

self and the other persons. The expression I made

uso of, as near as I can recollect, was that Morgan

was a great scoundrel according to hU own show

ing, and perhaps got no more than justice, and I

further said too, I thought the Antimasons ought

not to complain ai long as the Masons only killed

Masons, and perhaps that would be the better way

to get rid of such scamps as we Masons were. That

was the substance of what I said as rightly as I can

recollect. I have no recollection that Mr. Harris

was ever present.

Mr. Haile. Was that your deliberate opinion, or

uttered in a state of irritation !

[Note. What a question ! If a man was so un

principled as to justify murder, would he be so

weak as lto confess it before an Investigatipg Com

mittee ? The answer of the witness was, however,

an evasion, thus.]

Answer. 1 generally when I talk on this subject

become irritated. I think I was so then. It was nev

er my intention to advocate murder anywhere, or to

approbate the killing of Morgan. I detested it as

much as any man. I am pretty confident that I

never .said tlie above to Mr Wilkinson except in en

deavoring to explain after I had heard it reported

that 1 (witness) had justified the murder of Mor

gan. I then had a conversation with Mr. Wilkinson

in the Pacific Bank. Me (Wilkinson) had called

Masonry an abominable, blood stained, stinking-Or.

dor. It would do no harm where I and A. Wilkin

son are known. He charged me with having said

these things, and I told him it was a misrepresenta

tion,.and endeavored to explain how I said it.

I rather think the person I had the talk with, was

a chap of the name of Claflin, who had been in the

employment of Mr. Wilkinson. He would tell

what I said to Wilkinson, and what W. said to me,

and 1 was fool enough to talk to him. I have no

knowledge of ever making use of any of these ex-

pressions to William Harris or in his presence. I

have told WillUm Harris uniformly that I was un

der no obligation that would influence me to do any

thing improper as a good citizen or neighbor, and

that I considered myself bound by my Masonic obli

gations to support the laws of the government under

which I lived, and to be a good, quiet and peacea

ble eitizcn. He replied at the time that wai prob

ably the case with mi ; that he did not doubt it wsi

the case with me, but believed it was different with

some other Masons. That he said.be would take

my word in anything till it come to Masonry.'and

then he would not believe me, because he consider

ed I was sworn to lie.

In answer to a question, By request, witness says:

I have no recollection of having made expressions

justifying the murder of Morgan to any one but

Claflin.

[Mr. Hazard came in and took his seat a shor:

time before this.]

Witness was asked, by request, liow many degrees

he had taken ?

.'Ins. I don't know as I can tell.

The Committee were asked three several timei.

to read'the Royal Arch oath to witness from Allyn,

and ask him to point out what part of it he Ь

never taken.

Mr. Hazard refused to put the oath from Allyn,

until he had first read to witness the oath written

out for the Committee, which he (Hazard) insisted

was the Rhode Island oath.

Mr. Hallett said he had supposed that was a ques

tion to be settled by evidence, not to be taken for

granted beforehand. If the oath was correct, the

witness could tell it without having it read to him,

as if to prevent his making a mistake. The oaths

from Allyn had been read to Messrs. Thacher and

Chase, without giving them the benefit of the writ

ten oaths, and he did not see what the objection

could be to trying the witness first on the printed

oaths. .

Mr. Hazard made some insulting and sneering

remark relative to Messrs. Thacher and Chase. Me

insisted that the oaths were precisely as they were

written out by the Grand Lodge. It was an in

sult to doubt that the oaths were correctly written

out.

Mr. Hallett. Very well. We only wished to

see if the Committee"were disposed to treat all wit

nesses alike. If it is thought best to tell them

what to swear to, we have no objection.

Mr. Hazard became uneasy. The feeling of the

spectators was evidently against his partial and un

fair proceeding. To obviate it, ho took up Allyn

and read the Royal Arch oath to witness, at the em!

of every sentence saying, ' that is in the R. Island

oath,' ' that is not in the R. Island oath,' as the case

happened to be. Thus instructed, the witness gen

erally confirmed the written oath, and did nol recol

lect any portions of Allyn's oath which Mr. Hazard

informed him were not in the R. Island oath.

Witness. That which viutfirst read, sounds most

to me like the oath I took. The variations read

from Allyn I do not remember to have heard.

Question from B. F. Hallett. Is there any thing

in the Royal Arch oath, which bound you to keep

the secrets of a companion Royal Arch Mason ?

Answer. 1 could not say whether there was or

was not. I have not been in the habit of visit

ing the Chapters for several years, except occa

sionally.

In answer to question by request—

The Thrice Illustrious Knights of the Cross I

have not taken. [The Committee took no pains to

ascertain how far the witness had gone or what tlio

oaths were above the Royal Arch. Mr Hazard db-

couraged all questions of that kind.]

Question from W. Paine, Jr. Were you in I'иa

Lodge in Pawtucket in 1826 or 1827, when what is

called a test oath or new pass word or check was

given ? and if so, what was its object ?

Answer. I was present at a Lodge in Pawtuck

et. It was considered an addition, something in

stituted to prevent imposition. I cannot recollect

what year.

Mr Hazard. You are not bound to tell whit it

was I

Witness. I so understand it !

Question by rtjutst. Why wai it introduced ?
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Answer. I understood it was given to prevent

impositions. Thinks he has heard it called a check.

Question by request. Was it not a ne;v thing,

and what reason was given for introducing it into

the Lodge .' What authority did it come from ?

Ansieeг. It was necessary to prevent imposition.

It was given bl' some ono from this State. I con

sider that a fair answer, and submit it to the Com

mittee. [Mr Hazard, the Committee, was satisfied

of couisc.but one more effort was made to get an an

swer- Tho following question was proposed

through Mr Sprague.]

Question. Was the check introduced in conse

quence of the disclosures made by Morgan ?

Witness asked to be excused from ajiswcring that

question.

Mr Hazard siùd I HAVE NO DOUKT THAT ALLYN

is coanzcT.; but as the Masons liare pledged them

selves to one another, not to reveal their secrets, I

think they ought to keep them.

The witness was excused. Mr Hazard here in

quired if any one wished to ask further questions.

The reply was, it was no use to ask questions under

such circumstances Tho witness then withdt ew.

TESTIMONY or WM. RL-SSELL.—[13th witness]

William Russell of Providence, merchant, sworn

to answer questions. Is a Royal Arch Mason. Was

initiated in 1803, in Providence, Mount Vurnon

Lodge. Is still a Mason.

Question by request, from Walter Paine, Jr.—

Wete you ever captured, and if so, please state min

utely the circumstances relativo to an occurrence

that happened to you in the late war, when at sea?

•4ns. I never was captured. I was in the ship

Mary Ann, аs Commander, in 1810 or 1 1, during the

Berlin and Milan decrees, from Va. for Cowes and

a market , not a soul on board that knew where I

was bound but myself My papers were fictitious.

If they had known where I was bound I should

have been a prize. By my papers I was bound for

Tonningen. If my genuine papers had been known

I should have been a prize to a French man-of-war.

I was ordered on board a French privateer, got my

boat out, and went on board. As soon as I got o.-i

board, I was taken into the cabin. They examined

all of the boats crew apart, to find where we wero

bound. There were 20 in the cabin. I handed my

papers and letters for Tonmngen. Every thing was

perfect. I was detained there and the boat sent

back to my vessel, and directly there was aery of

good prize ! I was then informed that my boat was

stove, which was the only one I had. The Captain

said he would put me on board. When I got on

board I found they had stripped my baga^c. ^c- Ï

'told the officer that tho Captain said ho would take

nothing from mo ; he said it was the people. Bo-

foro I left -the privateer, and after the examination,

we drank a glass of wine together• and lie knew me

tabs a freemason, and I knew him ta be one. This

was before they robbed mo of my clothes, and valua

ble articles. He promised to take nothing from me,

but upon going on board I found I was robbfd. I

did not apply to him to get the articles back. It was

no time for him to show me a favor, if he had been

*o disposed. After the boat got on board, the Cap

tain advised me to make sail. It was very pleas

ant to find a man at sea I felt acquainted with, but

I received no favor from him in consequence of his

being a mason.

Question by request. Have you ever alluded to

this circumstance as a proof that Masonry is a good

institution ?

.íns. I dont know that I have to that circum

stance in particular. I have said I thought it a good

institution because I cou!d meet with friends abroad.

I have been in Masonic Lodges in the four quarters

of the globe, and have found it so. 1 Iiavo found,

in consequence of it, friends in different parts of the

world. I have frequentod'Lodges in different parla

01 the ivorld, and in this country. I have not visited j

Dodges much for the last ten years, sinto I discon- !

8

tinued going to sea. 1 have been in some Lojue*

where I could not understand a word that was said,

being ignorant of the language"spoken. 1 was nev

er a biight Mason. My object was to Im able to visit

Lodges abroad. I have been• in Lodges in Europe,

Asia, Africa, and America. The Lodge in Africa,

was in the Isle of Franco

Question bij request. Please state w liether tho

Masonic ceremonies, signs, etc. and obligations, and

mode of working, are the same in all the Lodges you

liave ever visited ?

.•íus. They are all similar, as it respects the

signs, ceremonies and mode of working. 1 was ne

ver at the initiation of a candidate in a foreign.

Lodge.

Mr. Ifaznnl. Have 3'ou ever considered your

Masonic obligations incompatible with your moral,

civil and religions duties ?

Дns. Never.

[.Vofe.—This was a favorite question4 with Mr.

Hazard. Its import, and the answer, go about as

far to acquit Masonry as III e question put to a ciiuis

in.il arraigned on his trial —Are you guilty, or not

guilty? The answer, even if he be guilty, is ex

pected to be—not guilty. So if « Mason had be

lieved his oaths to be ¡ncompaf/6ío with his civil du

ty, and had so used them, he coulií not be expected

to confess it. It is against all rules of evidence to

I compel a witness to criminate himself. Thie ques

tion, therefore, was clearly improper. The design

! of it was to impose upon the public the opinions D[

' individual Masons, for facts, which Mr. liuïard in

tended to use in the report, to exonerate tho Mason- '

ic Fraternity, asa boiry. .The position Mr. Hazard

took was, in effect, this—You must either prove ev

ery Mason to be a rogue, by bis own confession,

or tlie Committee will decide that Masonry is a

good institution !]

In answer to interrogatory, witness never consid

ered that he gave or received jurisdiction over life,

according to the penalties. He considered than

merely designed to make the obligations binding.'

Ho never heard any Mason construe them aa giv

ing a right to take life.

Question. Did you ever promi.-э tp keep the se

crets of a companion, without exception, or mur

der and treason not excepted ?

.ins. I never diií.

Mr. Hazard was then asked to put to the witness

the list of variations found in Allyn.

Witness said ho had never read the oath of any

degree in a book, or in print. Dont think he ever

read one. He had avoided reading anything about

the controversy.

Mr. Haile here began to read the list of varia

tions. Mr. Hazard stopped him, and directed him

first to read the Rhode Island oaths to the witness.

Witness said if he heard the outl", read WITH HIS

ETES SHUT, he could recollect if anything read was

different from what lie had received.

The written oaths were then i'cad. Witness said

they were correct.

Mr. Hazard. In this book Allyn has these addi

tions, and you can judge if they were in the oaths

you took.

Mr. Haile then ruad tile variations in the Master

Mason's oath, to each of which witness answered i,-

the negative.

Mr. Haile. Do vou recollect in the Master's

oath the words, "will apprize him of all approach-

I HAVE NO RECOLLECTIOPf Of THAT.

PCCIAL NOTE. This answer is remarka-

ablo. Tho witness was caught in tho contradiction

contrived purposely by puliing into tho variations'

a part of tho Master's oath, as written out by tho

Grand Lodge, with a slight variation in' phraseol

ogy. The object was to show that Masonic wit

nesses would swear to the written oaths whon to

they wese tho R. Island oaths, and ye« would denf



parts of thaïe very oaths, if presentai! аs variations

found in Allyn's book ? Such is tlie force of prej

udice. Thus this respectable witness swore that

the Master Mason's oath as written, was correct.

One clause of that oath is, "That I will not wrong

a brother, or deprive him of his good name ; nor

suffer it to be done by others, if in my power to

prevent it ; but will apprize him of all approach

ing danger, to far as it shall come to my knowl

edge." The witness swore (Аи was correct. The

variation put to him from Allyn is, -'That I will

not speak evil of a brother Master Mason, neither

behind his back, nor before his face, but will ap

prize him of all approaching danger!" This the

ap

he

witness denies wholly. Mr. Heile put these last

words "apprize ofapproaching danger," directly to

tlu witness, and be swears, "I have no recollection

of that !" Even Mr. Haile's accommodating report

of the testimony has pinned the witness to this con-

JHr. J. S. Harria. We supposed that was the

very thing the Committe was appointed to do. The

public are much interested in knowing -what these

secrets are, that they may judge of them for them

selves.

Mr Hazard,) very muchexeited.) The Committee

have no idle curiosfty to pry into the secrets of these

gentlemen. They have sworn that their secrets re

late to themselves, and do not interfere with the

rights of others, and we ought to be satisfied. The

object seems to be to »¡s/;e them contradict them

selves, e.nd draw out something that they consider

they are bound in honor, on oath, not to disclose,

and if that is the case, I consider it A NASTY

CURIOSITY, to inquire into their secrete.

Mr. Hallett. That remark will doubtless have a

tendency to promote the object for which this Com

mittee was appointed—to allay the excitement. To

tradietion. See page 121 of that Report. He there

makes the witness say, "as to Nos. 2, 3, 4 and 5,

on paper marked E witness says, I do not recol

lect these expressions." No. 2. is this very expres

sion, apprize of all approaching danger. Several

other Masonic witnesses were caught in the same

contradiction.]

[It is necessary here to state the fact, that a short

time previous to this, Wm. Sprague Jr. one of the

Committee, has left his seat at the table with the

Committee, and gone out, it being the hour for sup

per. He did not fako bis seat at the table during

the Subsequent examination of this witness, at the

olose of which the Committee adjourned.]

The variations in the Royal Arch Oath were then

read to the witness, to all of which he aHswered

that he had no recollection of them.

After much urging and hesitation, Mr. Hazard

permitted the llth variation to be put, viz : In the

written oath, you swear not to give the Grand

Royal Arch word, in any other manner, than as you

received it. Is the manner there referred to the

•ame as is described in the Royal Arch Oath, giv

en in Allyn, viz: in the presence of three compan

ions, and then by three times three, under a living

ardí, and at tow breath ?

Длa. I have no recollection of that being in the

obligation.

Questionfrom B. F. Hallett. Is the manner there

referred to, the same as that described in Allyn';

obligation ?

Ans. I should not be willing to answer that.

Mr. Hazard said the question ought not to be

answered.

Mr. Hallett remarked that the object of putting

this question, was to identify the two oaths, by

showing that the Rhode Island Oath, in this partic

ular, meant precisely the same thir.g described in

Allyn's version of the oath.

Mr. Hazard, [excited] If ihere are any witnes

ses who choose tocome bere aml disgrace themselves

by betraying thcjr honor, let them come, and we will

swear tk'rn! I consider a man has a right to be

protepled in relus ing to tell what he has pledged

his honor to keep secret.

Mr. Hazard was then esked if he chose to put the

following question :—Is there any thing in the obli

gation you look as a Royal Arch Mason, relating to

keeping the secrets of a Companion Royal Arch

Macon ? It was put to the witness.

Ans. I do not recollect if. there was.

Mr. Hazard insisted that the Royal Arch oath

was proved, as it was written out by the masons.

. He should take no other. He would ask the wit

ness one question, which would set this matter

right. Is there any thing in the secrets of Masonry

which interferes with the rights of others not Ma

sons ?

Ans. There is nothing which I so consider.

Mr. Hazard. That is sufficient. The Committee

feel no interest in ascertaining what Masonic secrets

avoid farther insult from Mr. Hazard, Mr. Hallett

then rose, and left his seat at the table.

Mr. Hazard. If it had been alleged that there

was any thing criminal in these secrets, there might

be a pretence for prying into them. But this is

not pretended.

Mr. Hallett, who was standing near the table,

said this was the very question. The secrets were

the medium through which the oaths were carried

into effect, and we consider them of a highly dan

gerous tendency.

Mr. Hazard. The Committee have resolved from

the beginning, that if the masons gave in their

oaths, they should not be questioned as to their se

crets. We have indulged the other side in putting

questions on that point, too far already.

Mr. Hallett. Were the Committee unanimous

in that decision ?

.Mr. Hazard. Yes.

Some one among the spectators said, Idoubt that.

Mr. Hazard. The Committee so understood it.

Mr. Cornell was not present when the Committee

agreed to it, and Mr. Sprague made some objec

tions.

Mr. Harris said the Masons had shown that they

considered their Masonic oath superior to their civil

oath, by refusing to answer. It agreed with the

trial in Newport (in the case of a Masonic juror)-

where Masonic witnesses refused to answer ques

tions under civil oath, which the Court decided they

were bound to answer.

Mr. Hazard said ho was glad that case had been

alluded to. He was engaged in that trial and knew

all about it. Mr. Cranston [a Masonic witness who

volunteered to disprove the oaths in Bernard,] was

examined by him, and answered all hit questions.—

Mr. Pearce (the opposite connsel) wanted him to

read and explain the oaths from Bernard, which he

declined doing, but he, answered every question

which the Court said it was proper for him to an

swer. Mr. Boss, (another Masonic witness, Master

of the Lodge) when he сашe on the stand and was

sworn, refssed to answer at all !

Mr. Harris. That is just what I said.

[The Committee were standing, and considerable

feeling was manifested.]

Ms. Haile, of the Committee, said he agreed with

Mr. Hazard. He saw no propriety in asking Ma

sons to disclose their secrets. They had stated, their

secrets related entirely to themselves, and did not

affect others, and were harmless ! Some of the spec

tators replied, so they would say to (heir oaths.

Mr. Moses Richardson, a high Mason, said he

wished to be heard one word. He was glad to see

the Committee do their duty. He wished to inform

the Committee that Walter Paine, Jr. told him that

when he got us before the Committee be would

screw it out of us !

The Committee here broke up in so much

confusion and disorder, that the form of adjourn

ment was forgotten by the Chairman.

It WAS past 9 o'clock in the evening, when the

Committee retired.



H is proper here tosíate that Mr. Sprngue of the

Committee, who was not present during the scene,

expressly denied, Cas he had previously done while

Mr. Wilkinson was under examination,) having as

sented to any agreement to screen the Masons from,

answering questions relating to their secrets. In

his report to the General Assembly, Mr. Sprague

says, page 8 : ' I never entered inte any understand

ing that Masonic witnesses were to be protected

from answering any questions, touching their se

crets or institution, which might be put to them.—

The Chairman has so stated the fact in presence of

Mr. Cornell.'

This Mr. Cornell subsequently confirmed, in a

note whcli has been published. Immediately on

Mr- Sprague's learning that Mr. Hazard had declared

the Committee were unanimous in agreeing to

screen .Masonic witnesses, he (Mr. S.) called upon

him to make the correction. • Mr. Hazard roro/e a

correction to give to Mr. Sprague, which was seen

hy Mr. Sprague and Mr. Cornell After promisin?

it tp Mr. Sprague, and retaimng il to make some

alteration : he altered his mind aml withheld it, und

then attempted, by the assistance ol Messrs. Sim

mons and Haile, to convict Mr. Spracuo of false

hood. This attempt was completely frustrated, and

recoiled upon the heads of its authors and abettors.

Mr. Hazard and his associates have been repeatedly

challenged by Mr. Sprague to deny a single asser

tion made in his minority report, hut tl/ey have

shrunk from this test, and resorted to personal abuse

The Rhode Island public understand this, and are

fully satisfied that the assertions made id Mr. S's

report, are strictly true. It has had as decided an

effect upon the majority of the Investigating Com

mittee, in exposing their partial and indecent pro

ceedings, as the minority report on the U. S. Bank

investigation. by Mr. Adams, has had upon the ma

jority of that Committee.

Thursday Dec. 15.—[In consequence of the

abusive treatment of witnesses by Mr. Hazard, and

hia iefusal to put questions fairly, Mr. Sprague, one

of the Committee, who had remonstrated in vain

against this course, declined taking his seat with

the Committee, though he was present in the room.

Mr. Hazard was absent, nearly all the afternoon.—

Upsn his assurance that the proceedings should be

conducted in a different manner from what they had

heen, Mr. Sprague finally resumed hi» seat. It

should here be remarked, that all the Masonic wit

nesses, with, the exception of William Wilkinson,

and two others were sworn only to answer such

questions as should be ¡mt to them. All other wit

nesses were sworn to tell the truth, the whole truth

and nothing but the (ruth. This distinction may

form an important precedent hereafter, for Courts

of law!

This morning Mix Hazard announced that no

question would be received, unless signed by the

person who wished it to be put, a provision which

he supposed would restrict the investigation.]

JOHN GARDNER—15(A Witness.

John Gardner^, of North Providence, Manufactur

er, sworn in full.

Was asked by request, if he had ever heard any

Mason justify the murder ot Morgan ?

.-/«.ч-. I can't say I have other than this : About

four years ago, I obtained Morgan's book and some

other disclosures of Masonry, and about that time

had a conversation with Samuel Greene, [Grand

Marshal of the Grand Lodge,] then of N. Provi

dence, now residing in Smithfield. I asked him

respecting the truth of the disclosures by Morgan

and others, and he gave me .rather an evasive an

swer, and very soon began in this way. ' He said

any person that would take them oaths, and Ihei

disclose them, msght tosvffer dtath.' The con-

versation there stopped. I said no more to him

nor he to me on the subject. This conversa

tion took place in the store of Mr. Greene ; his fath

er, ho, and myself were then in butinees together.

-')//•. Haile. Did his feelings appear to be ex

cited ?

/Ins. No sir. He said it deliberately. He went

out of the store, and a few days after met me in the

same store, and he then asked me if 1 had reported

that he had said it was good enough for Morgan if

he was murdered ? I told him I never had. I then

asked him if there was such a report in circulation.

He said there was. I told him then that he need

not lay itto rue, for I never had said anything about

the conversation that took place a few days before to

any person. He then went out of the store, and

said no more about it.

Mr. Haile. Do you belong to that political party -'

called political Antimasons ?

.'Ins. Yes sir. There is no mistake about that.

Question by request. Were you a political An-

timason at the time of this conversation ?

Ans. I was not. 1 had rather a favorable opin- '

¡on ol'Masonry at that time, and had hid for a num

ber of years. Since that time 1 have examined the

subject, and read both sides, which made me an Au-

timason. 1 have never been a Mason.

Asked by request of Masons, if he ever heard A.

Wilkinson or any other person say anything about

a murder said to hare been committed by Masons in

R. Island ?

.flns. Has never heard Mr. Wilkinson say «ny

thing about it, and has only heard some rumor* ;

nothing particular about it, but I have heard the

subject conversed of frequently. I read the ac

counts in the papers.

JOHN A. KKNTK16íA Witneu.

John A. Kent, of Pawtucket, sworn in full ; was

asked, Have you ever heard a Mason of respectable

standing as a man, justify or palliate the murder

of William Morgan?

.'tufiri:r. Sometime last summer, in the Machine;

shop in Pawtucket, Mr. Henry Lord stated lo me,

that "if Morgan had revealed the secrets and ob

ligations, he lind s nst what he agreed to have done.

If any man would Uke such obligations as he bad,

and reveal them, he ought to suffer death-" Mr.

Lord told me he was a Mason, and said he had tak

en twenty degrees, and if he had money he would

go clear up. He is a mechanic and painter. This

conversation was in presence of three others, Wil

liam Bagley, Mr. Child, and Jonathan West. Mr.

West did not stay to hear the whole conversation.

I began to talk with Mr. Lord about Masonry.

Was speaking of the murder of Morgan. I asked

him i fit was so good a society, how it came to take

the life of Morgan?

( ¡rund Master Cook suggested the following ques

tion, which Mr. Hazard immediately put : How

long have you been attending here^during the sit

ting of the Committee?

.fins. I have been here, and about the room,

more or less every day, since the Committee have

been sitting.

Mr. Hazard, as if to apologize for this question

said, it is the duty of the Committee to understand

all the circumstances under which this sort of tes

timony is given.

Mr. Hazard. Were you instigated to come here

by any one?

Ans. No one asked me to come. I come and go

of my own accord.

Mr. Hazard. Yes; you have been here a fort

night ofyour own accord, to impeach a man. This

is poor business, impeaching a person, to implicate

him in justifyingjinurder.

In answer to a question from Mr. Hazard, witness

says he has been'engaged in Manufacturing. WAS

in the employment of David Wilkinson, until he

failed.

Mr. Hazard. Well—I suppose 'tis no reason

why a man should not tell the truth, because he has

been in the employ of Abraham Wilkinson.

Mr. Abraham Wilkinson. I thank your honor,



he novei- was m my employ; and as lie never.was

in yours, 1 find no difficulty in believing him.

Ц was here explained, that Ihe witness had said

be had been in the employ of David Wilkinson, a

Mason.

JOHN HALL, mit Witness.

Resides in North-Kingstown, R. I. Is an At

torney and Counsellor at law.

Question by request. Have you ever heard any

Mason, of respectable standing as an individual,

justify or palliate the murder of William Morgan.

Ans. Some time in the summer of 1827, l think,

in a conversation with Ihe Rev. Lemuel Burge, of

•orth Kingston, R. I. (whom 1 understand to be a

Jt. Л. Mason,) respecting the death ot William Mor

gan, 1 told him I believed tliat Morgan vras dead,

and that I hud no doubt but that he was murdered

by Masons', for betraying ihe secrets of Masonry, 01

words to that import. He asked me if I believec

Morgan's book to bo true? 1 replied that I did, a

ihat I had not the least doubt of it. He then eaic

that if Morgan had taken the oaths he thero ac

knowledged he. did, (in the book he had written,]

he luid forfeited his life, according to the 1filer of

the oallus he liad taken, and that according to- his

own confessions, he liad become a traitor and vio

.lated his obligations as a Mason. In another con

versation with Capt. Joseph Northop, of Newport

at Wickford, respecting Masonry, I told him that I

was opposed to the inslitution, 1 believed it to b,e

wicked and corrupt. H"e said he knew it to be a

good instituiion for he had received benefit lrom it.

H's said at this conversation that he was a Mason.

lie to!d me that when he was at .sea, one time, he

was taken and carried oil'on board an armed vessel,

I do not .recoiled what vessel. He made himself

known as a Mason to the captain, and that conse

quently, the captain took him into the cabin, and

treated him with a great deal of care, and did not

take1 from him any of his property. 1 do not recol

lect any other conversation ot this kind.

[A question was here asked through a Mason,

whether witness had not said that he joined the

Antimasonic party in order to get into office, to

which he answered in the ilegativc.]

•[The Rev. Mr. Burge referred to in the foregoing

deposition, is a respectable clergyman of the Epis

copal Church. Immediately after the examination

ofiMr. Hall, an express was sent to Mr. Burge,

(either by Masons, or as is believed, through the

Committee,) who resided about twenty mites from

Providence, Mr. B. did not come before tho Com

mittee at Providence, nor subsequently when the

Committee net at Newport,which is within an hour

sail ol Mr li's residence. H was known, however,

that Mr B. had sent to Mr Hazard a deposition ta

ken privately, which deposition Mr Hazard said in

conversation, made the matter wor?(?. This affi

davit,taken in this private manner, before a Justice

tif peace, when the party might so readily have

bei.u summoned to attend on tlie Committee in per

son, is not entitled to be considered a part of the

examination. It nevertheless appears in Mr.

l'.ïilc's minutes. The only part ot the private

affidavit of Mr. Burge, that boars upon the sate-

дnent made by Mr. Hall, is this:

"On one occasion, happening to meet John Hall,

Esq., and hearing the said Hall rnnUe sundry decla

rations concerning Morgan's book and death, I said

i0 him, Do you really believe that Morgan is dead?

Jlis answer was, I have no doubt of it. Do you

believe that the bocii said to he written by him, is a

.correct representation of Freemasonry? 1 do, was

his reply. You believe, iben, that ho was murder

ed, and that by Masons, for having violated the ob-

ligаtions he there says he had voluntarily taken?

lie replied, to bo sure I do. 1 then askeo him (sole

ly for thf purpose of seeing what answer would be

given!) [indeed!] whether. as a mason, he was not

guilty, and if gnilty, WHT.TUCR I;E HAD NOT MET

VslTlI THE' FATE HE JUSTLY MERITED? I Waited

I«r an unsu¡£rf but there teas no cusiccr given!

I further depose and gay, that this is the ground I

hive uniformly taken, in order to avoid a declara

tion, or any thing that might lead to n declaration of

my opinion respecting the supposed death of William

Morgan, or his illustrations. " " '

[CENoTE. This confession from a сhristian minis

ter,is sufficiently remarkable. Headmits that he put

the case to Mr. Hall, in such a manner as to leave

him to infer, that he, Mr. Burge, did consider that

if a Mason were guilty of revealing. Masonry, he

justly merited death. And this ho did, solely for

the puiprsf of seeing what ansicer would le given!''

He explains nothing, but leaves his hearer to infer

that he, a minister of the gospel, justifies murder,

and this he does, solely to see what nnsicer would lie

given'. No answer was given. This fact demon

strates that Mr. Burge aid not put the case in the

form of a question, but as his own opinion. Had

he put it in the form of a question, would Mr. Hall,

an Anlimason, have been so puzaled as not to be

able to answer it.' The fact that he did not answer

it, proves that it was not a question.

Another admission by this clergyman, ia even

more appallit.g. He says he took this ground, (viz:

putting a case which was designed to compel his

hearer to admit that Morgan was justly murdered.)

in order to avoid a declaration of Ms apinion re

specting a cruel murder ! ! Is this possible ? A

minister of the gospel resorts lo subterfuges to a-

void giving bis opinion of an outrageous murder,

and to evade telling the truth! When Masonry

leads such men to such shifts, what will it not do

with men of loose or bad principles !]

JOHN PRENTICE, 18iA Witness.

[Mr. Hazard was absent. Mr. Haile conducted

the examination.]

John Prentice affirmed to tell the whole truth.—

Resides in Providence, is a Merchant Taylor. Has

been a Freemason, and taken three degrees in St.

John's Lodge, No. I, Providence, about eighteen

years ago. •

Question lut Mr; Haile. Are you a Mason now ?

Ans. I understood unofficially that I was expell

ed from the Lodge, but for what I was never in

formed. I had no notice of the proceedings.

Mr. Haile. Are you now an adhering Mason ?

Ans. 1 consider myself altogether opposed to

Masonry.

Mr. Haile. Are you a political Antimason ?

Ans. I have never voted, not having been ad

mitted a voter by the laws of this Mate, tuough a

freeholder. If being opposed to Masonry, consti

tutes an Antimason, 1 am one.

Question proposed Inj Masons. At what time did

you become opposed to it. «

Ans. .After I had satisfied my mind, by in

vestigation, that the whole fabric was based upon

falsehood and deception. My, mind was also deeply

impressed with the influence of tlie Masonic prm--

ciples, as they were legitimately carried out in the

forcible abduction and murder ¿f William Morgan,

and also in the obstructions, that were thrown in

the way, by Masons, in obedience to their Masonic

principles, of the conviction of those who were en

gaged in that wicked transaction. During the winter

ol leulI, I became first interested to inquire into

the truth or falsehood .of Masonry.

Mr. Huile inquired if witness should be examin

ed respecting the oaths ?

Grand Commander Barker said it would be as

well, and handed Allyn to Mr. Haile.

Mr. Haile asked if an oath was administered in

each degree ?

Aas. It was. I 'recollect distinctly that when I

took the first degree, the preliminary remarks were

nade to me that the oath was not to interfere with

ny religion or polities. In reference to the other

wo degrees., I csnnotsay whether they were or not.

think it probable they were.

Air. Haut. Can you repeat the obligations ?



6J

,'ir. 1 do not think Г could without omitting

some parts.

Mr. Hatte read to witness tho written Rhode

Island oaths, declining to state that they were the

oaths furnished by the Rhode Island Masons, as had

been done to all adhering Masons. Entered Ap

prentice's oath was read.

Witness. I never heard the word nffirm used.—

The phrase THAT buried alluding to the penalty that

the tongue is to be buried, was given to me ' my

body buried,' &c. "

Fellow Craft's oath read.

Witness has no recollection of within the nngle

or square of my work. It may however be an im

provement.

Master's Oath rend, and witness asked, do you

recollee^ any variations ?

.•Inswer. I recollect there ¡s one important omis

sion' in that oalh, which I will name. The oaths

reatt to me aresubstantially the same as I received,

with such variations as I have pointed out, above,

and will point out. They are these. The word

affirm was not used in either of them.

In the Master's Oath as read to me, in the penal

ty, there is an important omission, as I received it,

Viz. " thai there might not be the least track, trace

or remembrance, of so vile and perjured a wretch

as I should be, were I wilfully to violate these my

•v;olemn obligations."

Air Haile then read the variations, as had been

done to other witnesses.

Ist. Relating to Grand Hailing sign of distress.

Witness. That I took.

2r1. But will apprise him of all approaching dan

ger.

Witness, That I recollect, also to keep the se

crets of a brother, murder and treason excepted.

3d. "And they left to my election," was not ad

ministered to me.

4th. To go on a brother's errand.

Witness. 1 have no recollection of that.

Question by Grand Commander Barker. How

' many points arc there in the Master's oalh ?

Лnх. I do not recotlect. I never heard that

question asked by one Mason of another.

Mr Hazard here came in and commenced the

Committee's interrogatories. The iir^t charge from

Webb's Monitor was read. Witness' believes that

charge was read to him at his initiation in the first

degree. The other two charges of initiation of the

other degrees, were read to v.unosí,and hepiesumes

they were read to him.

Witness. The moral principles inculeated in those

charges 1 considered were binding on me before, as

a moral nun. I consider them as the advice and

instruction of tho Master of the Lodge.

Gilt Interrogatory. Witness had no means of as-

ccrlainiut; what he was to swear to. before he took

the obligations. He had no means of ascertaining

whether he had an oath to take, before he went tb

the Lodge, and had no idea of an oath being requir

ed until after he was brought into the Hall with a

rope ro'ind his neck, bund loMed, and placed at the

Blaster's desk. It was not then until I was tohl I had

an oath to take. •

Mr Hazard. It is unnecessary fo stats the situ

ation you were in I Did you strictly attend to the

oaths when taking them ?

/Iris. Tiio situation in which I was placed, and

the manner in which the oaths wcro communicated,

were such as to render it impossible for me to un

derstand them. 1 made no inquiry respecting the

oaths, at the time I took them.

The first degree was takes by itself, the other two

in the earns evening. 1 expressed no scruples to

the Lodge at the tune of taking the oaths, and 1 had

none al llintvtime.

10th. Relating to jurisdiction over rife ?

.•Ins l dont know that I ever came to any defi

nite conclusion relative to these points I never

believed' that if I breke the oaths. the Lodso to

I which I belonged would themselves indict the psnai1-

ties. I considered that, as a moral, being, I had no

! right to take the life of any individual.

In answer to the llth Interrogatory.

1 dont know of any other secrets in Masonry

than those contained in Bernard and Allyn. I have

always considered that the ontlis were as much the

socrets of Masonry, as the signs, initiation and man

ner of working'. The /crin of the different Lodges,

their arrangement when at work, &c. nre also a

part of the secrets.

Question. Did you at the time you took the oaths

consider them incompatible with your duties as a

citizen ?

Ans. No individual could form his judgment

of tho oaths, until aiter he had taken them. 1 did not

consider them incompatible with my religious and

civil duties, until 1 bad an opportunity to investigate

them. My mind was under a suspicion in refer

ence to them, as I presume has been tho case with,

many who still adhere, to tha institution.- When

they were placed before me in print, as I had taken

them, I had an opportunity tocont-ider thorn delibe

rately.

Question by Grand Commander Barker. When

did you firstree them placed before you m print?

Ans. l think 1 saw them soon after rny initia

tion, in Jachin and lioaz, wlrch so:ne Masons used

to have in the Lodge. It was considered rather un-

masonic to study Jachin and 1ioaz in the Lodge.—

In that book the oaths were printed. But I did not

study the oaths for the purpose of forming any opin

ion on them, but rather to refresh my memory. In

the winter of IS'?.), i formed nn opinion upon the

character of Masonic oaths. In answer to a ques

tion from Mr Barker, witness says, for tho first two

or three years after I joined the Lodge, I heard

these frequently administered, but 1 did not under

stand them.

Q'teslion. What do you consider the objects of

Masonry to be ?

Ans. What the objcc's of Masons now are, in

upholding the Institution, it would puzzle any body

to tell. 1 believe the original object of Masons to

have been to meet together to have a high frolick,

and look after each other's interests, to the exclusion

of all others of the community. To protect each

other ut all points. Such I believe to have been

its original object. I should be sorry to attribute

such motive.- to tha Masons in this. town. I also

believe one of the original objects was to bring the

religion of the New Testament into contempt. I do

not believe that those who now uphold it arc fully

aware that this is the legitimate design and ten

dency of Masonic principles and ceremonies.

[This statement produced much sensation, among

the Masons. The (irand Commander proposed this

question :]

Where do you find your proofs 'of this, and on

what do you found ymir opinion ?

Ans. In all the prayersl usad in tho Lotlgc, the

name of JESUS CHRIST is most studiously lett out.

There is no reference mado to him in any of tho

ceremonies of the seven first degrees.

Mr. Haile. To whom are the prayers addressed '

Ans. To God.

Question from a Mason. In what other respects

does Masonry conflict with the religion ol the New

Testament ?

Ans. The one I "believe to be a system of truth,

the other lo be a system of falsehood.

Mr. Hallet( hero presented, in writing, two ques

tion?, relative to tho disavowal of revealed religion,

in Masonic charges, and the erasure of tho naiiio of

Christ from the passages of scripture used in the

Royal Arch degree. No notice was. taken of it.—

tîiand Master C'ooke, relerred to the questions asked

Mr. Chase, a former witness, touching his belief in

the relative existence of the pcrsonairesin the Trin

ity, and insisted on having ihcm put. Mr. Hailott

requested th.at his questions might be put. Mr.



'ïlaile, who held the lallcr quesuons before him,

¡Kuisrd I'or some moments, and seeded undecided

"xvhat course, to adopt. Mr. Haile, Mr. Sprague anil

Mr. Cornell were the only members of the Com

mittee present, Messrs. Un/.ard and Simmons being

iti-cn] The curiosity of the spectators, was strong

ly excited, to discover what the difficulty was.—

Alter evincing considerable uneasiness, Mr. Haile

ímt the question, with evident reluctance. Up to

this time the impression of some of the Committee

and the spectator?, seemed to be that the witness

Und made a charge against the Institution, of its ir

religious tendency, which it was impossibte for him

to prove. Even the Masons who knew better, were

confident the witness would bo put down in making

chis charco.

The questions and answer, however, produced an

' entire revulsion in tin; opinion of ail candid persons

present, and fully sustained the witness. Sir. Haile

pul llns question tiret:]

Do yo's know of a quotation or passages from the

New Testament in а Masonic book, from which the

name of the^Savior is excluded, although it appears

in the oiio-inal as printed in the Naw Testament ?

,1ns. In one ol Paul's Epistles, which is used in

tlie ceremonies аs a lesson, Hie name of ' our Lord

Jesus Christ,' which occurs in the original text is

left out. The second question was then put:

Did you ever rend, or hear read to you, the Charge

to Masons in the first part ot" the Records of St.

John's Lodge, in which the following instruction is

giren to the candidate? 'Religious disputes are nev

er to be introduced into a Lodge. For as Masons we

only pursue the UNIVERSAL RELIGION OR THE RE

LIGION OF NATURE !'— [Extract from a short charge

to be given to the Candidate on his initiation, as

found in the Records ol St. John's Lodg2, Provi

dence, and also published in Books of Masonic Con

stitutions.]

Witness does not remember it was read to

him.

[Mr. Hallett here Called for tlie Book of Records

of St. John's I,odge,which was produced after some

hesitation, and referred to the passage as above

quoted, which he read, aloud, and handed to Mr.

Haile. Mr. Haile has entirely omitted this fact in

his Minutes.

NOTE.

[To illustrate this important point, that Masonry,

in the seven original degrees, as they are called,

carefully excludes revealed teligion, and the name

of Jesus Christ, in order to accommodate itself to

Turks, Jews and Pagans the following, facts are

subjoined. In one of the principal Masonic charges,

is found this passage, above referred to.]

" As Masons, we only pursue the UNIVERSAL RE

LIGION, OR THE RELIGION OF NATliRF.. This ¡3 3

cement which unites mon of the most different

principles in one sacred bond, and brings together

those who were the most distant from ene another.'

The same principle is fully avowed in tho De-

clttration of thu twelve hundred Masons of Massa

chusetts.

" [Masonry] simply requires ol the candidate his

assent to one great fundamental religious truth : the

existence and Providence of God, and a practical ac

knowledgement "of those infallible doctrines for

the government ol life, which are written by the

finger of God on the heart of man.'

So says orator Brainard. 'The only religious test

[in Masonry] is this, that men should have a sense

of their immortal accountability, so that their obli

gation can licfonfidsd in.'

A still stronger illustration of this Masonic prin

ciple, is found in tha original charge at initiation

into the first degree, p. 175 of the Massachusetts

Book of 'Constitutions, compiled by the learned Dr.

Harris, and approved by the Grand Lodge of Mas

sachusetts.

'• As a gentleman and a Mason you are to be a

••'riet observer of the moral law, as ceutaincd in the

в-2 ,

Holy writings." In a note by Dr. Harris, he thai

gives the Masonic definition ot Holy Writing*, тe:

"The Bible, and in countries where it in not known,

ANY OTHER BOOR WHICH IS UNDERSTOOD TO C0.1-

TAIN'THE WORD OF GOD."

Thus the Koran and the Sinister are accounted ;'

equal and concurrent authority with the Bible, in

the religion of Masonry ! Hear also what brother

James Hardie says in his Monitor, approved by alt

good Masons :

" Masonry excludes all distinctions of rank, ai

well as of religion. The Roman Catholic, the

Episcopalian, the Presbyterian, the Methodists, thi

Baptists, the Unitarian, the HEBREW, the GENTOO,

the INDIAN, &c. may here ait together in harraoní

and peace."

In Webb's Monitor, page 140, at the opening ci

the Royal Arch Chapter, passages of scripture art

set apart to be read, "ir: Thessalonians 3d chapter,

from the 6th to the 17th verses. The 6th vere

reads in the New Testament thus: " Now we c

nmnd you, brethren, in the name of OUT Lord Jism

Christ, that ye withdraw yourselves from every

brother who walketh disorderly."

In -Webb's version, it reads thus: "Now we

command you, brethren, that ye withdraw your

selves from every brother," &c.

12th verse. In the original : " Now them that are

such we command and exhoit, by our Lord Jssas

Christ, that with quietness they woik and eat theic

own bread."

Same verse as- altered in WeMl : " Now the:n

that are such we command and exhort, that with

quietness they work," &.c.

The 18th verse in the original is wholly omitted,

viz : " The grace of our Lord Jesus Christ be with

you all." Here, in one chapter, the name of Jesus

Christ, which occurs three times, is expunged by

Masonry, in order to accommodate itself to the Jew,

the Turk and the Hindoo.

Again in Webb, p. 154, a part of the 9th chapter

of Hebrews is read during tlie ceremony of lower-

ins the candidate through a trapdoor, in the wicked

farce of representing ' the tabernacle called the Ho

liest of all the manna, Aaron's rod that budded, and

the tables of the covenant." In the original the

aamo and office of Christ occurs seven times, but no

allusion is made to him in Webb's version. One 01

the verses omitted is remarkable. " 11. But Christ

being come a high priest of good things to come,

by a greater and inore perfect Tabernacle, not made

with hands, that is to say, not of this building."

Grand Master Cooke now called for his question.

which Mr. Hailo put as follows :

Mr. Haile. I have no right to ask you any ques

tions relating to your religious views, but in order

to explain how you consider the Masonic Institu

tion as excluding the religion of Jesus Christ, I

will ask you what you understand by the word

God ?

Лиs. Perhaps the best answer 1 can give, is,

that being who created and upholds the universe.

Mr. Haile. What do you understand is meant

by the words Jesus Christ ?

Ans. Do you wish to divide them or take them

together ? Jesus Christ was the son of God.

Mr. Haile. No, take them together.

Mr. Huile. What do you understand by the ex

pression, God the Father, God the Son, and God

the Holy Ghost ?

[Mr. Harris here referred to the bill of rights of

Rhode Island, which expressly says that no man

shall be called in question, touching his religious

belief.]

Afr. Halle. I have no right to question you on

your religious belief, but it is necessary to under

stand how you comprehend the word God.

.-/«.s. If the object is to involve me in а meta

physical inquiry, for t)is purpose of misrepresent! n¡;

my views oi religion, I shall claim шy righti аs a
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cuizrn. As a believtr in the religion of Christ, Г

can approach God in no other way, than in the

líame of Jesus Christ.

Mr. Haue. That is not an answer to the ques

tion. If you decline answering it, I shall so state

it. »

Witness. Tou will then not state it correctly. I

have not refused to answer.

Mr Haue. The witness has charged a large and

respectable body of men with infidelity.

Mr Hallett. The witness has made no such

charge against individuals. He has stated the

principles laid down in Masonic charges and con

stitutions.

Mr I fuih:. I cannot understand any distinction

between charging an Institution with inculcating

deism, or charging the men who belong to it.

Л/г Hallett. That is your own inference. The

witness has only stated the facts.

Mr Halle, addressing the witness. Is it under

stood, by any portion of the religious community,

that the word God includes Father, Son anil Holy

Spirit ?

.Ins. I do not understand the drift of the ques

tion, or the reason for asking it. 1 decline answer

ing the question, if it is intended, as I presume it

is, to involve an inquiry into tny religious opinions.

I do not think that this is a proper place to explain

them.

[Mr. Haile here remarked with some severity,

upon the circumstance of Mr. Harris having hand

ed to witness the R. I. bill of rights, relating to re

ligious freedom.]

Mr. Hailc. Then you decline answering?

.Witness. I beg leave to remark, that if that ques

tion has the remotest connexion with the matter

now under legal investigation, I am willing to an

swer it. I feel myself bound to answer every

thing that comes under my civil obligation to tell the

whole truth; not to tell a part of the truth', as other

witnesses have done, and excuse myself by saying

that the Committee agreed to ask me only such

and such questions.

Mr. Haile. For my own part, I consider it has a

bearing.

Ifftness. 1 believe there is no sect of Christians

who do not consider Christ the only medium of

intercession between God and man.

Mr. Haile. That is not an answer.

Witness. I think it important. In Masonic

prayers the Savior is excluded, which is evidently

not accidentally but purposely, in conformity to the

principles of the Institution, which exclude the re

I i ц ¡on of Jesus Christ, and adopt only natural relig

ion.

Mr. Hailc. That is not the question.

Grand Commander Barker handed the following

question, which Mr. Haile put.

In whose name are witnesses sworn in a Court of

law?

Witness. What has that to do with this investi

gation?

Mr. Hailc. You are not

[A'ote. The Masonic witnesses, however, by a

special contract with Mr. Hazard, were allowed to

judge, and to withhold answers to all questions

which they judged to be improper.]

Mr. Haile. Do you decline answering?

Witness. I have no objection to answer the

question, but I have an objection to being trifled

with. If the Committee will so far relieve my

mind as to point out any relation it has to my duty

here as a witness, I should be greatly obliged to

them.

Mr Haile. I cannot consider the question im

portant other than to ascertain whether you are ac

quainted with the manner in which oaths are ad

ministered in Courts of law. All kinds of questions

have been pat.

Witness. If the design was apparent in the

quMtion itscir, I should have no objection to an

swer, though the fact is known to tvery school hoy,

but the object is to draw an inference, to be used lo

my injury elsewhere.

Mr. Haile. Da you decline answering, then:

Witness. I do. *

Mr lïuilf wrote this down. -

Mr Hallett said, that if Mr Haile put down the

refusal of the witness to answer, he ought also to

state the reason given by him, ,for the refusal.

[JYoie. The above examination took place in tho .

absence of Mr. Hazard and Mr. Simmons. Tho

impropriety and unfairness of the proceeding, are

sufficiently apparent,especially to any one acquaint

ed with the laws of Rhode Island, which expressly

declare that no witness shall be called in question,

touching his religious belief. - Even this violation

of law; by Mr. Haile, is, however, less improper in

a person acting as a magistrate, than his refusal to -

put down any thing in Ms minutes, but the simple

question, and the refusal of the witness to answer,

though he was specially requested to gire the whole

of the witness' answer. It would seem hardly

credible that Mr. Haile should have condensed the

whole of this inquiry touching the religious views

of the witness, into the following questions and

answers, and yet it is every word of it that is given

in his printed report of the testimony. See page

62 of the Committee's published report of the tes

timony.

" Question by.Committee. What do you under

stand is meant by the word God ?

sííis. I understand it to mean that being who

created and upholds the Universe.

Question by request. In whose name is a witness

sworn in a court of law ?

¿Ins. I decline answering this question."]

[Mr. Hazard resumed his seat at the table.]

In answer to a question by request, witness stat

ed he had a conversation a year ago, with a Mason,

Benajah Warren, of this town, on the subject of

keeping secret a crime, if communicated to him

MaEonically. He asked me why I had renouncedi

Masonry. I told him, one reason why I had re

nounced it was, that I considered the principles of

Masonry were inconsistent with the duties of a man

as a citizen. He asked me to show him in what re

spect. I stated to him a case, by way ot illustra

tion, referring him to that part of the obligation

which requires him to keep the secrets of a brother

Master Mason, in every respect save murder and

treason.

If a brother Mason should be guilty of burning

his neighbor's house, and should communicate to

him the fact, and require him to keep secret, as a

Mason, the transaction, how he could, consistently

with his obligation as a citizen, keep his Masonic

obligation? Tasked him what ho would do in such

a case. Ho replied, he would not tell of it, let pee-

piefind it out as thty timid, he would never tell of

it.

Mr. IlaHe inquired if there was 'any reference to

a trial in a Court of Justice.

Ans. There was none.

In answer to 18th interrogatory, witness says—

I have no recollection of ever hearing polities dis

cussed in a Lodge, nor knew a Lodge to combine

to elect a candidate to office. .

21st Interrogatory—

I have considered my moral duties pavamrmnt tu

all others, and have never favored a Mason to the

injury of one who was not, in consequence of my

Masonic obligations.

Cuestion by reijutst. Have you known any in

stance, where the influence of Masonry has been

used to the injury of those who were not Masons?

If so state it.

.•'ins. Sometime in the summer of 1830, I was

called upon by a young man of the name of William

Hall, then a resident of this town, now in Connec

ticut, to become hie bail, he having been sued by

Griffin Child, of this town. Not being sufficient
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Vail myself, (two bain:; requireà by law,) I called

on Mr. Lowell Adam.-:, to be bail with me. He

did so. Л few days after we had become bail, said

.Adams remarked to me, that he.vras apprehensive

wo bad got ourselves into difficulty, for that this

Hall was a great villain. I asked him how he

knew that fact. He replied, ho was told it by a

brother Mason, as a Mason. I asked him who the

man was. lie refused telling his ñamo, saying il

was communicated to him as a Mason, or upon the

principles of Masonry. I ascertained afterward*

that it was the very man who had caused the writ

to be served on said Hall. This man wus Griffin

Child. The suit that was brought was for slander.

After the suit was withdrawn, Mr. Adams told me

he ¡jot the information from Mr. Child.

[A'oie. The bearing of this will be seen, by ob-'

serving that it was. the- interest ol Child to injure|

the character of Hall, and induce his bail to surren-j

der him, which would have placed him at tl.u mer-:

сy of Child. He therefore Mnsonically commu

nicated suspicion* tq tho mind of Adams, who did j

not know that Child had caused tho writ to be is- '

sued.

Mr. Hazard, about this time, was extremely civil

to witness, and made this remark, "I prciume that!

nobody who hears your testimony, will doubt it. It

is given very fairly.]

Witness. Never- knew the Grand Hailing Sign i

of Distress to be made in a Court, or a Judge to i

practice upon that construction.

Question by request. Was the duty of obeying

the Grand Hailing Sign of distress inculcated in

the Lectures?

Ans. I recollect at tho close of receiving the

Master's degree, the Master of tho Lodge, in ex

plaining the Grand Hailing Sign, told me that

whenever I saw that sign, or heard the words ac

companying it, I was to fly to tho relief of the per

son making it, if there was a greater probability of

saving his life than losing my own. The sign is

made by raising both hands above the head. The

words are, My Lord, three times repeated.

[The witness here represented the motion, at

which the Masons present exhibited indications of

distress as though they had witnessed some awful

sacrilege.]

Witness. It is the custom for Masons to be re

ceived as visiting brethren into all Lodges of their

degree.

Question by request. What is understood by a

worthy brother ?

.1ns. I presume it is to bo understood thaleiery

Mason is to be considered a worthy brother until he

is declared to be otherwise by the Lodgo to which

he belongs.

Answer to 33d Interrogatory. I have had repeat

ed conversations with different Masons, at different

times, upon the subject of the Morgan outrage.—

The impression that several of them left on my

mind was that they justified the abduction and mur

der of Morgan, on Masomc principles. My recol

lection is so indefinito that I should not »ame any

individual. These conversations were within two

years past, in this town. I do not recollect any par

ticular place, ncr do I recollect any particular ex

pressions that led me to these impressions.

Mr. Hazard seemed very desirous, just at this

time,% do away the unfavorable impression left

upon the public, by pressing the witness as to his

religious opinions. He evidently did not like to have

anyone abuse the witnesses but himself. He said,

very politely, that he hoped the witness would not

consider that the Committee were disposed to press

him. He thought the public ought to he possessed

of all the information in reference to such a subject,

as the justification of murder. This .was all he de-

eired. Mr. Hazard here asked if a single question

had been refused, if it had it should be put now.]

Question by the Grand Master. In what form

wer« you notified previous to your expulsion ?

.1ns. I was not notified at all, UR! knew not why

I was expelled. •

Question from W. Paint, Jr.- Had you made

known previous to jour expulsion, the Masonic

oaths, and did you suppose. you were expelled foi

declaring the truth of the revelations of Masonry,

before the public. •-

.'Ins. • I had, and I presume that was the reason

why I was expclltd..

Question fium the same. . Have. you ever'been

told in a friendly or threatening: manner by Masons

that your speaking against Masonry would injure

you in your business ?

Лis. I have, but whether in a friendly or threat

ening manner I cannot tell.

Question by request. Was it explained to you,

as you advanced in the degrees, that the reason of

the cable tow being increased in each degree, in the

number of times it was wound round you, was to

impress up'on you tho additional binding force oí

your obligations ?

Ans. It was so explained.

Tho testimony hero clo-ed, and it being У o'clock

in the evening, the Committee adjourned.

Friday morning Dec. 16.—Present all the com

mittee, except Mr. Potter. Rev. Mr. Greene, a Bap

tist Clergyman and adhering Mason,was called again,

having been previously examined and excused.

TESTIMONY OK REV. DANIEL GKEEN'I:.

The general interrogatories being put,witness ans

wered in the form adopted by moat of the Masonic

witnesses, who had the benefit of each others testi

mony.

Question by request. Did you ever hear of the

murder or intended murder of Morgan, in the Lodge,

or ¡lid you ever hear a Mason justify or palliate tho

murder ?

.ins. 1 do not knew any thing about it, except

What I read in the papers and publications.

Question by request. What are the signs made on

entering and leaving a lodge, and what reference

have they to tho penalty ?

.'lns. There are signs and ceremonies on leaving

a Lodge ; I never inquired whether they had refer

ence to the penalty or not. I presume iba lectures

will tell all about it.

[Witness, however, declined stating what the

signs were ; or what explanation was given of them

in tho Lectures.]

Question by request. Were you taught in tho Lec

tures, to obey the grand hailing sign of distress?

Ans l presume they are taught to obey the signs,

in the Lectures, &c.

Question by request. To whom did 'yon consider

you bound yourself, in the penalty of your Entered

Apprentice's oath, to have your throat cut, ibc. if

you revealed tho secrets ? to yourself, or to the

Lodge ?

.ins. I do not consider 1 gave power to any one

to inflict the penally upon me.

By request. Have you ever had any evidence to'

satisfy you that Speculative Masunry existed previ

ous to Ï717, and have you ever held out the opinion

to others, or believed it yourself, that the Institution

was 5831 years old'

Ans. I have always held it to be an ancient Insti

tution. I have no particular evidence other than

the Masonic Monitor. I do not remember to have

stated exactly how old it was.

liy request. Do you consid.-r yourself, as a Roya!

Arch Mason, under stronger obligations as respects

charity to a brother Royal Arch than to an Entered

Apprentice ? What is the object of having so many

degrees, in which Masons are bound to keep secrets,

not only from the world, but from each other.

.1ns. I do not know.

Question. How do you answer the first part of

the question?

Ans. 1 do not know that I do.

Question by request. If you have taken tho de

groe of Knight Templar, as you say, do you romem



«л

Ьer the follow-in:; obligation administered to you,

While going through the ceremonies? "This pure

wine," &c. [Ante p.4!).].

I cannot lecollect any thing about what is

read to mo from that hook. .

Question bi rtqncsl. Can you recollect ever

ilrinking wine, or its representative, ont of a HU

MAS SKI; M., in the ceremonies of being made a

Knight Templar? , •

.••In?. I rlo sot know that it Can effect the inter

ests of any one, ' WHETHER I DRANR WISE OUT

Oт A SRULtii A Tifr ¿UP, OR A BASIN!

Truly a wdrthy answer for a reverend cler

gyman, under a solemn civil oath, to answer all

such questions as should be put to him! How

strangely Masonic principles pervert the Under

standings and consciences of pious men, and even

ministers of the gospel of tnuTu ! A list of ques

tions had been made out for th'n witness, but they

hail been torn up by Mr. Hazard, and it was deem

ed useless to press them, where the witness was pro

tected by lite committee from telling the truth,

and where it was apparent hd would not answer

:my question, under civil oath; which his Masonic

oaili required him to conceal. One of these ques

tions, if put, must have involved the witness in di

rect contradiction.' He had testified; that the ob

ject of the check degree was to keep people out of

the Lodge) who might gdt in by studying the books

of impostors*- &c. The question was, whether a

man who told the truth could be an impostor, and

how it was necessary to guard against the admis

sion of impostors, if they had not got the real se

crets of Masonry, from Morgan's disclosures ?

[It has been alleged that among the charges

brought against the Masons of Rhode Island, by

Antimasons, was the murder of a man for having

made a Mason illegally. Mr. Hazard, (though he

carefully avoided inquiries into the actual charges

made by Antimasons, and though he twice refused

a written request to summon the Grand Master and

Grand Commander of the year 182G, and question

them as to their knowledge of the Morgan conspir

acy, and the disposition of the extra appropriations

made from their fands in that year,) was never

theless eager le' represent the Antimasons as hav

ing charged the Rhode Island Masons, with the ac

tual commission of murder. The fact was, this

charge originated from Caleb Sayles, a high adher

ing mason, antl but for him would never have been

presented to the public at alb We deem it wholly

foreign to the subject of inquiry before the Com

mittee, but as Mr. Hazard was particularly zealous

in his investigations into a matter which he knew

the Antimasons did not rely upon at all, or expect

to prove ; it may be proper to give the testimony.

The witnesses on this point were grit before the

Committee, with great difficulty, and only upon an

extra summons for them to appear. They were ad

hering Masons, and testified with great reluctance.

Mr. Hazard throughout avoided proposing any

questions that might draw out more than it would

be prudent to have disclosed.

There is one fact, particularly deserving notice in

• the testimony of Lewis C. Brown. It will he seen

that a Mason, who did not collect his debt in a dis

tribution of the witnesses property, accused him to

1 the Lodge, evidently for not complying with the

spirit of his obligation to favor a brother Mason, to

the exclusion of other creditors, and the Lodge con

demned him for it. Could this subject be fully de

veloped, many a creditor, not a Mason, would learn

how it has happened that lie has been overlooked in

the distribution or attachment of his debtor's prop

erty, while others, less deserving, have been fully

secured.

It will also be observed from this testimony, that

the witness was rather suddenly restored to the

Lodge, just after the Morgan outrage, when it be

came necessary for Masona to settle ill their smaller

difficulties. J
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TESTIMONY OF LEWIS C. Bnowx. [20th Witners.]

Lewis C. Brawn. Srnilhlield, Valley Falls, mill'

wright, sworn— I am a Mason, have taken Ihe de

gree to the R. A. f am still on adhering mason.

Ques. Did you ever have any difficulty with the

Lodge, ¡f so what was it, and what wers the рта-

becdings ? -

Лris. I never had an • difficulty with the (nrand

Lodge of this State. As to the Morning Star Lodge

there was at one time some difficulty in 1814. It

began by some of the members being at variance

with me. That happened in consequence of a cer

tain one, who I was owing a sum of money to, and

I was gone to New York and some persons attached

nty property; amongst them some mnsons. and nne

in consequence of not getting his money, accused

me of cheating him.

Ho made n complaint to the T/odgn for defraud'

in? him, and they look notice of it. They appoint

ed a committee to investigate the subject. The com

mittee on1 an investigation reported against me unan

imously; I appealed as I had n right to do, accord

ing to the by laws of the Lodge, to a second com

mittee. The second committee investigated the

affair and also reported against me. As I was a

member of a Chapter in Providence at the same

time, the same complaint was entered there. After

the report of the second committee, the Chapter

appointed a committee of three to rppoit on the

same. John Carlile, Peter Grinnell.nnd Mr. Jackson

of this town, I think were the Commitlee. After

hearing the parties they reported unanimously in

my favor. Then I went back to the Morninsr Star

Lodge, and insisted on being reinstated, which was

refused, t then made complaint to the Grand

Lodge. The grand Lodge appointed a committee

of three to investigate the affair and report. This

committee cited the Morning Star Lodge to shovs

cause why I should not be reinstated in said Lodge-.

The Lodge at Cumberland appointed a committee

to appear before the committee of the Grnnd Lodirp.

They accordingly appeared with m vself before said

committee. There was a full investigation of the

subject before the dommittee, and 'they reported.

That the said Lewis C. Brown be reinstated int"

the Lodge and all the privileges of Masonry, nnd

have a right to visit any Lodge umler the jurisdic

tion of the Grand Lodge. This report e-as accept

ed. I then went back to- the Morning Star LoJ^p,

but they insisted on holding mn as an expelled

member, and contended that thn Grand Lodge had

no right to reinstate an expelled member of nny

subordinate Lodge. Their by laws required the

unanimous vote of all the members present to re

instate an expelled member. and the reason why

the Lodge did not comply with the reouisiliona of

the Grand Lodge were these : the brother mason

opposed to me always put in a negative voip, and I

believe that some others voted alwavs n"ninst nm.

After these repeated requests, in 1P27! nr 2Я !

they finally restored me to all my frrnner rights nnd

privileges in said lodge by a vote, thn person who

made the complaint having moved awny.

Qu.es. After this, or before, or at anv other time,

did you write any thing abnut or against the institu

tion of Masonrv, which got before personn who wore

Masons, or before the Lodge, and created the same

or another difficulty

Acs. It is true while the affair wns pcnrtine in

Morning Star Lodge. I kept n journal nnrl martn

some comments on it, but I believe no ^IfRcnftv

was created by it. The comment' were on points

which I deemed Illesal and nnmasonle. At this

time 1 wrote some letters to the Lodge on thin sub

ject, which the lodge did not approve. These pro

ceedings are all on record

Qesi. Did the Lodge some two or three veurs

"go. or any masons pay or offer to pay all the money

back again which you had paid the Lodge upon

certain conditions; if so, slats the reason or condi

tions.



Ans. There was no such offer ever made. The

person represented that I had written against Ma

sonry, but the Committee of the Grand Lodge de

cided 1 had not written any thing against Masonry ;

1 never had written or said an; thing agaiist Ma

sonry.

Que*. Have you ever known any person to ob

tain the secrets of Masonry illegally, or as they

say clandestinely ? Who was it, where did he live,

what was hi> name, what became of him, when was

he tried if tried at all?

Ans. I know of no such case that ever came un

der my knowledge.

Qttes. Did you ever hear of such a case, or

have evidence given you to convince you that such

ik case ever happened in this State.

.ins. There has been frequent reports, but noth

ing that ever satisfied my mind that such a case

ever took place in this State. There was a report

that a Mr. Joseph Follet, of Cumberland, now

dead, did once obtain Masonry illegally. It is very

difficult to tell whether people meant it for a fact,

or only a rumor. This report I had from my fath

er and others. My lather was not a Mason. These

circumstances happened about thirty two years

age, since which time there has been something

said about it.

The report has been revived within about 5 years

in a Vermont paper, but I have heard no new cir

cumstance about it. Mr. Follett has been deac

something like twenty years. He left two daught

ers. The youngest is married le my brother. She

is about thirty years old, and resides in Cumber

land. My father died in 1800. I was well acquinl-

ed with Mr Follett. My brother's wife said thai

lier mother told her that a stranger came to board

with her, and soon alter disappeared. No name

wns mentioned in the Vermont report, who made

Follett a Mason. I dont know as 1 can tell. In

conversation with my brother's wife, she stated her

mother washed this man's clothes, who boanled

there, the stranger, and his shirt was bloody. Her

mother has been dead five or six years. Can't tel

that her mother stated the lime when this man

' boarded there. This man soon alter disappeared

It was supposed by them that no other person knew

the stranger but Mr. Follett. They were often in

a room together alone.

(¿nes. Ifhat has been rcprestnte'd by Л/r. Fvllett's

family, as his feelings and mews upon this subject,

during his last sickness.

Ans. Never has been represented by him, any

thing against Masonry. He was buried with Ma

sonic honors ! I don't recollect ever hearing his

family say any thing about what his feelings were

upon this subject. My brother's wife savs that

her mother told her they, the stranger and Mr. Fol

lett, were intimate together, and often in the room

together by themselves. I was well adquainled

with Mr. F., but never heard Mr. F. say that any

Mason or any body else suffered by Masons on his

account. I was twenty or twenty five years old

at the time Follett died.

Adjourned till afternoon.

QUM. Were you not restored to your Masonic

privileges by the Grand Lodge, from fear you

would publish your difficulties to the world ?

Am. It is very difficult for me to say what the

x:ause was. It was sufficient for me to know that I

was'restored. I should rather think it was because

justice required it to be done.

q-ues. Did you threaten to publish the proceed

ings of the Lodge, and was it talked in the Grand

Lodge that you would do so, if you were not re

stored.

.•7(is. Seems though there was something said

by a Committee in the Morning Star Lodge, to a

Committee in the G. Lodge. I do not know what

effect that bad. I should have published the pro

ceedings, if they had not restored шe.

Mr. Haue. Was there any thing improper in

those proceedings ?

Ans. Nothing more than to show a private diffi

culty, and the inconsistency of the proceedings of

the Lodge. Nothing that would injure the princi

ples of Masonry, I conclude, if these proceedings

were mads public. It would show their inconsist

ent conduct.

[This last was got down with difficulty, Mc

Haile asking if witness was satisfied.]

In answer to a question, witness has read some

parts of Morgan's Illustrations; of Bernard's none.

I thiak that Morgan wrote as well as he knew.

<}urs. What do you mean by saying he wrote as

well as he knew how ?

Ans. My impression is he wrote to get money by

it, and of course he would write as welt as he knew.

IB that part I read I found some variation.

Mr. Haile. What is your meaning, well or cor

rect '

Ans. I find some errors in it in my opinion.

.Mr. Haue. Can you state the errors.

Ans. I can't do it without they are pointed out.

Mr. Paine wished the Committee to read the

Royal Arch Oath from Allyn.

Mr. Hazard said the proper oath to read to the

witness, who was a Rhode Island Mason, was the

Rhode Island oath, as handed in to the committee.

Mr. Paine thought the witness ought not to he

instructed in this way, as to what he was to swear

to.

Mr. Hazard. It don't have a very good appear

ance to attempt to discard the oaths proved here, by

R. I. Lodges and Chapters. It is not in my opinoii

fair treatment.

Mr. Paine. If it was fair treatment to make sece

ding Masons testify from the oaths given in the

books, I don't see why it is notas fair -to question

adhering masons in the same way.

Mr. Hazard replied by biting his lips and shuf-

filing his spectacles with great vehemence. The

witness relieved him by saying,

I won't trouble you to read the oaths, they aie

nearly correct in Morgan. It is so long since I read

the Royal Arch Oath, that I cannot undertake to

point out any part. [The reading of the oath was

waived.]

Ques. Have you ever taken the Check degree or

pass word, since 1826; if so, when and from whom,

and what did you understand was the occnsion of

it?

Ans. I received such a degree in Morning Star

Lodge, Cumberland, sometime in 1828, from Rev.

Mr. Cutler, an Universalist minister, Master of the

Lodge. There was little said about it at the time.

I suppose the real object was to keep out those who

we did not know but might get information enough

from Morgan's book and others to work into the

Lodge.

Ques. Did you understand where it came from ?

Ans. I understood it had been lately received,

but from whence it was not told tome.

TESTIMONY OF JESSE BROWN—2Ist witness.

Friday morning, Dec. 15.—[Nearly every ques

tion put to this witness, was by request. Mr. Haz

ard appeared very reluctant to examine him close-

Je.sxe Brown, an adhering Mason, sworn in full.

Resides in Cumberland, is a farmer. I call myself

a Freemason. I have .taken 3 degrees in St. John's

Lodge, thirty five years or more ago.

QMS. Do you know of any person having been

made a Mason clandestinely !

Ans. I do not of my own knowledge. I never

saw one made. I have heard it reported. It was

the common report in Cumberland that one Joseph

Follett, who lived in my neighborhood, had been

made a Mason clandestinely. Follett is now dead.

If I can recollect the man's name who made Follett

a Mason, it was Adams. I can't recollect hii first



name ; I will not be quile positive that hie name

was Adams.

Qurs. What became of Mr. Adams?

.'//is. The report was that Adams sometime af

terwards took a vessel at Providence and went off—

removed to the west with his family. Thinks this

was within a few months after he had made Follett

a Mason. He was a transient man. It was said

that Fellatt was made a Mason clandestinely in

Massachusetts. AdamsVepresented himself as a

Mason.

Ques. Did Follett ¿et into the Lodge after Ad

ams made him a Mason ? Did he pay any tee for

admission ?

-ins. They received Follett in the Lodge. I do

not know whether he paid his fee or not. He was

not satisfied with the Masonry he got. He got sick

of it himself, and came forward and was admitted

to the Morning Star Lodge in Cumberland in the

legal way. 1 have sat in the Lodge with him.

.'Ins. Where did you understand Adams went to.

Ques. It was some distance 1 heard Adams was to

move ?• I wont be sure it was Ohio. / have never

heard of him sine» He was rather transient.

Ques. How did you know he had gone to Ohio :

.'tun. I conversed with some of our Masonic breth

ren who told me that he had gone to the West, and

tkey saw him go on board the vessel in Providence

with his family '. He had been with us in the Lodge,

and was some acquainted, and of course it would

lead us to speak about him, was the occasion of the

brethren telling me where he had gone. Witness

does not know Caleb Sayles.

Quss. Did you ever know or hear of Adams ma

king any other Mason ? , -

Ans. By report I heard that Adams made another

Mason clandestinely besides Follelt. I don't recol

lect who it was. It was not in my neighborhood.

This circumstance was generally known in Cum

berland, by Masons, and 1 guess other people too.

It was not a very ¡uivato thing.

Ques. Did you ever hear that Adams was called

upon by any Lodge, for what he had done, or that

Masons had any thing to do with his going away?

Ant. I never knew that the Lodge in Cumber

land or any other Lodge called upon Adams about

this. Some of the members did. I understood sev

eral Masons conversed with him.

Ques. What was the nature of the conversation ?

.Ins. Why, they asked him why he came to do

so, I understood he plead poverty, and wanted to

get funds to move. I never heard that the Lodge

had any thing to do with his going away, or paid

any thing for it. Said Adams did not visit the Lodge

after these transactions. This was more than twen

ty years ago.

Ques, by J. S. Harris, Have yon not frequently

said or thought there was something wrong about

this so far as Masonry is concerned ?

Ana. No farther than I have heard it said, Adams

did wrong, in getting said Follett's money.

Ques. Did you ever hear or know that Adams ev

er suffered in consequence of making Follett a Ma

son ?

Ans. I know nothing further than that the breth

ren talked with him about It, and told him it was a

breach of his trust. Adams gave FolUtt three de

grees in one evening.

["Mr. Simmons hero asked if there were any more

questions. The Committee proposed none and

evinced no wish to inquire into the subject.]

Quu. by W. Harris. Have you ever heard any

thing respecting a stranger that hoarded with F»l-

lett, und went away suddenly, and Mrs. Follett dis

covering blood on his clothing.

.Ins. I never did. The witness was here dis

missed.

TESTIMONY OF BEKAJAH WARNER—22ii mtnes*.

Benajak Warner—sworn in full. Resides in Prov

idence, is a shipwright, and an adhering Mason.

The deposition ofJohn Prentice was read, relating а

conversation, in which Warnisr had laid if a Mason

communicated a crime to him, he should feel bound

to keep it secret, and let others find it out.

Witness. I had no such conversation as that. We

had a conversation about the obligation, but not in

that way. He never put that question to me, and I

never answered it in that way. I asked him why

he had renounced Masonry. He was a young fellow

that I felt an interest in. I had always heard him

well spoken of, and I thought it would be an in

jury to him to renounce Masonry. I asked him

why he fell back. He said that the obligations were

dangerous, especially the higher ones. He said that

there was such a thing as that Masons would up

hold one another in the higher degrees. I told him

I believed no such thing ; and asked him if he found

any thing ungentleroauly, or unchristian in the ob

ligations he had taken ? It appeared that he signi

fied I was right in the lower degrees, but in the

higher degrees which we had not taken, one Mason

was bound to uphold another, let him do what he

would. I told him 1 did not believe it. It did not

look consistent with the other degrees. He said he

had a book that would convince me. I told him I

did not believe the book. It was not consistent. 1

talked with him out of friendship. He was a young

man, and had no one te help him. 1 told him 1

thought his seceding from Masonry would injure

him. I thought he had taken a miff, and- that in

stead of injuring others he would injure himself. I

had always heard a good name of him before, from

a child. He was much liked.

Ques, by W. Paine, Jr. How did you consider it

would injure him to secede from Masonry, especial

ly as you say you had always heard a good- name of

him before ?

. Ans. I considered that he would my things that

he ought not to, and would lose the confidence of

Masons—not only of them, hut all judicious men.

Question by W. Paine Jr. What character did Mr.

Prentice bear among Masons, after he seceded ?

[The witness did not answer this question.]

Question ky the same. Did you swear in your

Master Mason's oath, to keep the secrects of a

Master Mason, when cemmilted to you, mu rder and

treason excepted ?

Witness hesitated. Mr. Hazard read that part of

the R. Island oath to him. Witness admitted he

had sworn viz: "to keep a brother's secrete as my

own when committed to me, as such, murder and

treason not accepted.'

Questionfrom the same. Well, then, does not

the expression, "murder and treason excepted

show that no other secret, but murder and treasorf,

is allowed to bo disclosed, when communicated by

one Mason to another, as such? By murder and

treason being only excepted, aie not all other crimes

included? Please explain how you reconcile this

with keeping your Masomc oath, and being a good

citizen.

[The witness did not appear prepared with any

explanation. There was a short pause, whereupon

Mr. Hazard said it was ths hour appointed for the

funeral of some person, and the Committee would

adjourn till 3 o'clock.]

Friday Afternoon. The committee met, and

called Benajah Warner again, who appeard to have

been provided with an answer to the interrogation.

, Ans. I do not consider this part of the obligation

binding me to keep secret any crime, committed by

a brother Mason, os a crima.

Question by the same. If a Mason should com

mit a secret to you on the five points of fellowship

which was a crime against the laws of the Stale,

should you reveal that secret before you had mads

it known to the Lodge ?

Ans. 1should not.

[This, witness afterwards altered, by savin"- I

would not receive any such a secret, as a eeciVt,

and would communicate it if made to me. W '

give his preciss words.]



by Ike same. What, then, is meant by '

keeping a brother's secrete :' i

Ans. Why, what he promises to keep. . If a bro

ther communicates a secret to another brother, if

he is a man of honor he will keep it; but he is not

Vbound to receive such a secret. His Masonic obli

gation does not bind him to receive any secret that

is unlawful. I conceive for myself, that it does

not. I don't know how it is considered.

[ ÎLT.jp' This is a valuable distinction. He is not

obliged by his oath to receive а secret, revealing a

criino, but if he does receive it, he must then keep

it.]

CHIRLES SEARLE, 23d Witness. (Introduced

by the Treasurer oí the Encampment, Moses Rich-

aidson.)

(¿utstiim proposed by him. Did you ever hear

Abraliam Wilkinson say, that there had been 500,

more or less, murders committed in Providence Ma-

' tonic Hall, or Pawtucket?

Лю. Lastsammer, S. S. Southworth and A.Wil-

k in son, were talking by the Market Houue. A

large collection was present in the street. They

.were conversing on Masonry. Mr. Southworth

pointed to St. John's Lodge, and asked Mr. Wilkinson

how many murders he supposed liad been commit

ted in that Lodge. UK answer was, shaking his

finger, more than five hundred, you puppy. He

said it ia an ironical way, and raided a considerable

laugh. They both appeared to be excited.

Qaes. by Mr. Wilkinson. Do you know that

Mr. Wilkinson saw him point to the Hall ?

Mas. I cannot eay that he did. They were both

facing each other.

Ques. .Did not my answer apply to the Institu

tion ?

.lus I do not know how others understood it. I

understood it as applying to Masons.

24<A Witness.

BUKBI.NGTON ANTHONY, introduced by Moses

Richardson, for the same purpose. To the sашe

question answers—

I was coming out of Mr. Searlo's office, some

time ago. I arn ashamed to be called to tell the

story now, and should not if I had not supposed I

was compelled to come upon the summons of the

Committee. I heard loud talk in the street, and

went to the market window. Mr. Wilkinson and

Mr. Southworlh were conversing with warmth

upon the subject of Masonry. The only words 1

it-collect were, Soulhworth said how many do you

think have been murdered in this Hall .'

Mr. W. replied to it very quick, and rather in a

passion, five hundred,yoa puppy. I did ¿ot under

stand ihit he intended to convey the idea that he

believed five hundred persons had been murdered

there.

[It was here suggested, that as this expression

of Sir. Wilkinson was introduced as an offset to the

justification of the murder of Morgan by Masons, it

might be that Mr. Wilkinson referred to the candi

dates who had represented i I ¡ram, Jubela, Jubelo

and Jubelmn and been murdered in the ceremonies

in that Ilall.j

In answer to a question from Mr. Wilkinson,

witness says, I never heard him apply his opinions

oi the insi Hution to its members individually,

[Mr. IV. Pains Jr. here stated to the Committee,

in --mswor to some inquiry, that Mr. Moses Rich-

ari¡sou had m iii.s possession certain doings of the

Grand Chapter ¿mil i'sncampmcnt in New Yoik, in

182Ü, which wure printed.]

í¿-ji/i Witnesâ.

SAMUEL YOUNG wus called by the Masons and

SWDI n in full. Is a Mason. Questioned by Mr. Haz-

m J if hu had ever heaid ai;y reports abouta Mason

being murdered? .

.ins. Vos. Two years ago there was a report

prevalent in this town, that there was a man inur-
J"ted ш St. John's Hall, oí the name of Smith,

Thomas or Thomas H. Some one was relating

this story to Лимoн Potter, and considered there

was no doubt of it. I have understood it to be the

same man Thacher alluded to, as having been mur

dered in St. Johns Lodge.

[JVoie. This is entirely a mistake. Mr. Young

n his zeal to clear Masonry, liud brought up a Dew

and suspicious case, of which Antimasons had nev

er heard before.] •

11'Uu.L.rii. It was six or seven years ago lie went

off. Mr. Truesdell said he was in debt and run off

Judge Tourtellot (a mason) said he saw him in

Cincinnati. 1 was acquainted with the wile of

Smith, and I never heard her say or intimate that

her husband was murdered. She said he bad gone

nil ;nи! absconded. 1 never talked much with her

aboutit, because I considered it a delicate subject.

In answer to Question by request. Has no rea

son for saying this was the man alluded to by Mr

Thacher and others as having been murdered in

St. John's Hall. He supposes it must be, (as it

Ihn only man he ever heard it talked about as hav

ing been murdered there. I never heard it intima

ted that any other person was murdered ш St.

John's Hall, and i drew the inference from that,

that Smith was the man alluded to by Mr. Thacher

and others. Said Smith resided in .Gloce=ter ш

this State. I never heard Smith's wife say that her

husband had been summoned before the Lodge.

Mr. Moses Richardson was here called upon to

be sworn. llo declined; said he had an objection

tobe examined, to be wire-drawn by people on the

other side of the table, (meaning Antimasons. ) He

would not submit to it. The Committee waived

his examination, and said they should lake hold of

the Masons tomorrow.—Adjourned.

Saturday, December 17.

THOMAS TRUESDEL.L,, of Providence, affirmed.

[26iA Witness.]

Is not a mason. Has heard mentien made that i!

was supposed Thomas Smith was made way with,

in St. John's Hall. . He heard such a report last

winter—about a year ago. Knew Thomas Smith

well. In 182.1, in February, he started to come to

Providence, from Glocesler ; and the report came

in town that he was robbed and made way with by

robbers. There was a considerable inquiry mads

for him, and it was reported his horse and wagon

were found in Cranston or Johnston. The supposi

tion, after this, was that he had gone to Ohio. He

was owing my firm about $500. We sent our ac

counts out to a Mr. Drown, in Louisville. I never

heaid from Smith, till Mr. Wilder, a partner ot

Judge Toqrtellot, (a mason) returned from Ohio.

He said he had seen Thomas Smith, in New-Or

leans. He said h» did not speak to him. Smith

turned off when he approached him; but he was

sure it was he. I heard nothing more of him till

this fall, when 1 a-kcd Judge Tourtellot if he hau

seen him, mentioning the excitement there was

about Smith. He said he had not; but that Smith

had been in the neighborhood of Cincinnati, about

30 miles from there, with an acquaintance of Tom-

tellot's, as said Tourtellot was informed by a friend.

Said Tourtellot is a inason.

(¿u.es. Did Smith owe other debts, to induce him

to go off?

Ais. I believe not; ours was the main debt. I

have heard it repeatedly reported that he was matte

way with.

In reply to a question, says—

1 dont know whether tins was the -man Mr.

Thacher alluded to or not.

Clues. Did you ever hear from your correspon

dent or any other source, what became of Smith -

.9ns. No. Mr. Wilder cams the Highest to him

of any person I ever knew.

Witness паs never hoard any report of any othei

person having been murdered 'in St. John's Hill 01

any other Lodge in the State, but Smith.



RAY POTTER—sworn—called by Ihe Committee.

[i7(A Vitness.]

Resides in Pawtucket. la a clergyman. Has

aken one degree in masonry. Does not consider

iHuauli'u masou now. Mr. Thacher called on wit-

tess some time ago, in September or October 1831.

.le shewed me a lutter trom a inan in Maine or New

lampshire, relative to the act-aunt of ihn murder ol

i mason in the Lodge in Rhode-Island: I heard

Mr. Thacher read the letter, and also saw it, except

the name of the writer. The writer enjoined se

crecy аs to his name. Tho author of t ho letter

.•i-il that the nдшс; of the man who wan made a

mason, illegally, was Delton C. Smith, a brother-in-

law of Caleb riiiyk:.-, who now resides in New-York,

und has an elder brother residing in Glocester, 11. I.

The writer of the lutter said he had forgotten the

name of the person who made Smith a mason, and

wished to learn his name. The transaction way

about thirty years ago. The writer ol the letter

lived in this State formerly. I presume Mr. Thacli-

rr did not intend that I should know the name of the

writer. He had been requested not to give the

name. The man had written him in consequence

of the statement he had seen in a newspaper. ! !.•'

formerly resided in Rhode-Island, and he wrote us

it'tlio circumstances were once familiar to him. Mr.

Timelier called on me, to preach for me. in the

course of that call, I inquired ol him relative to the

statement he had made, and he shewed me the let

ter. The writer a-stsigned as the reason for not hav

ing hi< name made public, that lie did not wish to

get into the excitement.

QurÄ by Mr. Hazard. Did Mr. Thacher intimate

to you any other tacts and circumstances than those

you have here stated, about the murder? •

Jins. Ho stated the conversation bulwcen him and

Mr. Sayles, the same as has been published in the

papers. I have not heard that Mr. Thacher ever

made this letter known.

(¿ues. luI Air. Simmons. From all you found in

Ги.а letter, and all that Moses Tbtchcr added to it,

did you come to the conclusion and believe that any

such murder as w;is by said Thacher, or the writer

of 111s letter, hinted at or alluded tu, had evcrbeen

committed ?

Лns. I havo not come here to insinuate that the

Grand Lodge, or any other person, h:is committed

murder I Invr. not come to such a conclusion.

(¿ues. ¡J.ivr you over before spoken of the facts

and circumstances here alluded to : havo you done

so frequently and publicly ?

.•Ins. Yes : 1 have a number of times today, and

before.

(¿ues When you have related these circumstances

have you expressed an opinion decidedly?

Ans. I have never expressed an opinion decidedly;

but 1 have had some suspicions and some fears that

a in urder was committed, and 1 will give my reasons.

(¿ues. Will you tell the Committee what those

fears and suspicions were ?

.1ns. My reasons and suspicious were—in the first

pi.ice, L knew thu penally of the masonic obligation

to be death, in case of revealing the secrets ; and il

masons thought it right to annex such a penally,

they would of course think it right to inllict the

penally, as it evidently appeared to me they did, in

the cаse of Morgan ; and 1 think they arc not con

sistent unless they do it. These are the reasons for

my fears and suspicions.

By Mr. Si'nmons. Do you consideran anonymous

letter ought to be received by any man aa evidence

in relation to so high a charge as murder ; especial

ly when the person who shows such a lotter, ¡s in

some degree committed by making tho charge, and

13 to be benefited by tho contents of such a letter,

or the impression it may make .'

Ans. I skaidd tlunk not. I have referred to the

bUei as piool ol the name of the person made a ma-

bon. but never as proof of mutder.

I Tho last pai t of his answer Mr. Halle hda en

tirely suppressed in his report, wifli unpardonable

unfairness.]

My Mr. Simmons. Was it not Mr. Thacher'u in

tention to corroborate or substantiate tho charges he

had made, and which have been referred to by you,

by shewing you this lettei ?

.Ins. l can't say what his intention was : I asked

him about his statement, and he afterwards shewed

me this letter. In consequence ofthat inquiry, Mr

Thacher produced it, in the course of tho conversa

tion. ,

By .Mr. Hazard. Did you and Mr. Thacher hnvn

any conversation about the muriier itself, and about

' ic circumstancedi intending it; and who probably

committed the murder ?

,1ns. 1 don't recollect that we dr.1—the conversa

tion soon ended—wo wurc ьoon called to tea.

(¿иes. Did you suppose Air. Tliacher put his

thumb on the name in the letter, for the purposu of

concealing it ?

Ans. l uid : I have no doubt of that.

(¿ues. Did you, notwithstanding it wne concealed,

endeavor lo seo the name : what part of it did you

see ; and was you desirous ol set-in.; the uTi.me ?

Ans. 1 looked at it designedly, because 1 was de

sirous of seeing the name, and n;uv the Chrisuan

name, but can't recollect it: it wan not an ordinary

name—it began with O, something like Orin.

By tlie Committee. Did you make any enquiry

about this transaction alter this ihnc. :

Ans. I did uot; bccauso 1 did nм1 know where Is

go. I knew if 1 wunt to the murderers they would

not tell me.

Witness took one degree in masonry in Pawtuck

et, 'in this State ; anil renounced it lour or five years

ago, soon after the abduction of Morgan.

Witness continued a mason about five vears. Dur

ing that timo, he considered that tho penalty ol vio

lating his masonic obligation was death ; but did not

reflect seriously upon it. When lie did.be renounc

ed. He never entered a Lodge after tha first lime-

[Mr. Hazaid treated this respectable witness with

great harshness and gross insult, lie took the pa

per from Mr. Huile, and wrote down the questions

and answers to suit himself, continually muttering

that the witness, had come there to charge respecta

b!e witnesses with murder, and he would see tha"

they were protected.

Mr. Potter replied with perfect propriety and

calmness, that Im did not come there to accuse any

person or persons of murder. That Mr. Hazard

himself had called him, und put questions to him,

which ho had answered, under his oath, to the best

ol his knowledge and belief. That ho Was not res

ponsible to Mr. Hazard or any other man for his

opinions, the grounds of which he had frankly sta

ted, a?id that he considered himself, entitled as a

witness, before a committee of the Honorable Leg

islature ol Rhode bIind to decent treatment.]

Mr. Hazard—in great anger. There is your de

position, Sir; it will speak lor iUclf.

Mr. Puller. If it is correctly slated, it is all I wish

to speak for me.

Mr. Hazard. Very well, Sir; wo shall see.

Tho Committee bore adjourned until Saturday

morning, in a stale of very considerable excite

ment, and unusual spirit on the part of tho Chair

man.

TESTIMONY OF CALEB SAYLES—2SiA Witness.

Saturday Dec. 17.—[Mr. Sayles either presented

himself voluntarily or had been sent for by the Ma

sons, by express, and made his appearance evidently

for the purpose of contradicting Mr. Thachor]

Caleb Saytes, of North Wrcntham, Mass. a Ma

son sworn to answer questions.

By the Committee. Have you seen a statement in

the newspapers, published by liov. Moses Thacher,

which relates a conversation said to have taken

place between yoursalfand him on the alleged mur

der of a man in St. John1s Hall, and if so, is that

statement a correct account.

¿us. 1 have seen the account. It i., not correet1
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Ile nаs adicd tu il. 1 have published a reply to said

Tli teller's statement in tho Maionic Mirror, Boston,

which ¡a correct. 1 never heard the name of the

puraon supposed to have been put out of Ihe way by

(lie Lotice. 1 am a Freemason. Have taken some

thing like 25 or 26 degrees I took the three first

in Watcrtnvvn, New York, I took all the other de-

;;ivrs in Rhode Island, except some ineffable tic-

gices. The statement read to me is the one pub

lished in the Miiror, and н substantially true in ev

ery respect. I have made inquiries but have never

been able to find out the name of the person said to

have, been murdered. I heard during this examina

tion that his name was Smith. My brother in law

Uelwin Smith, tuld me the circumstances about the

murder, so(ne duzen years since. He then lived in

Watertown, New York. 1 do not know whether he

is now living or not. Have nut heard from him

since

By Mr. Hazard. At the time of your conver

sation with Mr. Thacher, what reply did he make.

Did he express any opinion favorable 01 unfavorable

to Masonry, or нny belief in the story. Did he

signify any intention ol leaving the Fraternity ?

sîns. I don't recollect whether Mr. Thacher made

any reply or not, when 1 made the communication

to him, or whether, he expressed any opinion favora

ble or unfavorable to Masonry, or intimated any in

tention to leave the fraternity. I think he did not,

for if he had I think I should remember it. I have

bad no conversation with him on this subject, since

that time. I do not recollect what reply he made if

any.

By W. Paine, Jr. What led to this conversa

tion, and under what circumstances was it intro

duced ?

Ans. I do not recollect what led to this conversa-

sation. I and Mr. Thacher were in a chaise togeth

er at tho time.

By the same. Did you know that Mr. Thacher

was a Mason, at the time you made this communi

cation to him ?

Ans. Yes, sir.

, By the same. What was your motive in making

this communication ?

Ans. After a pause—Why to give him informa

tion of that circumstance, connected with the Mor

gan affair ! That was my only motive !

(¿ues. Have you ever assigned any other rea

son .?

Л1и. I have not as I recollect, other than as stated

in ray publication.

J. S. Harris proposed a request in writing, that

.the questions put by Mr. Thacher to Mr. Sayles, in

his communication, might be put to the witness.—

The communication of Mr. T. from the Boston Tel-

«graph, was then read, containing these queries.—

The Masonic Mirror was also handed in, and Mr.

Sayles referred to his reply to these queries.

Mr. Haile said the reply was a long one. Does

it answer these interrogatories ?

Witness said it did. It took them into view.

Mr. Haile asked if that was satisfactory.

Mr. Harris said be should like to have ¿he ques

tions put and answered.

Mr. Hazard complained about giving the Com

mittee trouble.

Mr. Sayles said perhaps they had better read his

reply.

Mr Haile assented and commenced reading,

when Mr Sayles said that wai not the comrnunca-

liou.

Mr Hazard became quite angry. He said they

•would put questions that come from the four quarte»

of the globe.

Mr Harris observed that the questions were be

fore him in print.

Mr Hazard. What sort of a question is that ?

Write it down, Mr. Haile, and annex the newspa

per

The following interrogatories were then put to

witness, from the Boston Free Press of October 12,

1831, referring to the story Mr Sayles told to M:

Thacher, respecting the murdet of a mnson in R.

Island :

1. Did you relate the sатe story to other ini

sons, besides members of St. Alban's Lodge ?

Answer. 1 did relate the same story to othet

members of St. Alban's Lodge.

2. Did you, or did you not, as late as thi

Spring of 1829, relate the same storr to a ma»i

who was not а member of St. Albau's Lodge ?

.•/«.v. In 1823 I did relate the same to а ПУЬ

not a member of St. Alban's Lodge.

To each of the following interrogatories witness

replied, "I shall answer that in the negative," viz

3. Did a freemason,who was a Knight Templaran

1820, ask you in substance if it was intended thi:

masonic penalties should be executed, in case tie

oath of secrecy weie violated ? and,

4. Did you give your opinion in the affirmative

5. Did you give this asa reason, "that masonic

law was older than civil law ?"

6 Did you give this mason to understand, that

you would be willing to assist in executing

masonic, penalty upon a violator of his oath of se

crecy ?

7. Did you bring the Grand Lodge of R. Island

as authority, by relating substantially the same sto

ry, with which you say, in 1828, you "had pre

cipitately alarmed your brethren ?"

By the Committee. Did you answer the communi

cation of Mr. Thacher, containing these interroga

tories ?

.'Ins. 1 did in the Masonic Mirror of Oct. 12.

Mr. Hallett here reminded the Committee that

this witness stated he had taken 26 degrees, and in

opportunity offered of ascertaining the oaths of tho

higher ilegrees, if the Committee wished to devtl-

ope the truth. The Committee evinced no dispo

sition to make the inquiry. The following ques

tion was handed to them and put:

Have you ever taken the degree of lllastrioue

Knight of the Cross ?

VVitness wished to have the book to look at,—

Bernard's Light was handed him, and after ruading

the oath attentively and a considerable ранee, be

laid it down, saying in an under tone, he did not

know as he had. The Committee let it pass. Tin

oath of this degree contains the obligation to de

range the business of a seceding mason. and hold

him up as a vagabond wherever he may go. Mi.

Sayles had apparently practiced so thoroughly OD

this principle, in his treatment of Mr. Thacher, that

considerable anxiety was felt to ascertain if he had

ever taken this oath. The Committee, however,

discountenanced the inquiry.

Mr. Hullett said,—he had supposed that if ант

Mason were sworn here, who had gone higher than

the Knight Templar's degree, the committee wouU

of course endeavor to ascertain the oaths of those

higher degrees.

The Committee did not regard the suggestion,

and the witness was dismissed.

TESTIMONY OF BARNET MERRY. Past GRAMr

MASTER—[29íA Wííneís.]

[Mr. Merry was Grand Master of Rhode IslanJ

from 1828 to 1831, and was regarded as among tin

most intelligent and influential masons of the Stale.

He may therefore fairly be supposed to be as capa

ble of explaining masonic oaths and principles,

any adhering mason can be. We invite particular

attention to his testimony;]

Mr. Merry was called by Masons for the purpose

of contradicting the deposition of William Harris.

viz: that he, Harris, heard Merry lay, " that if

Morgan had revealed the secrets of шаммrт. ht

deserved his fate." [See ante page S3.]

[Mr Hazard was absent, Mr Simmons presided.]

Barney Merry, of North Providence, Manufac

turer, sworn to answer all such questions ti may

be put to him.
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fiy Mr. Haile. Do you recollect the conversa

tion imputed to you by William Harris '

./s;.-. Idono't. I have tried, but cannot bring

any such conversation to my mind. 1 never have

deliberately justified the murder of Morgan, at any

time to my recollection, or the conduct of those

masons who were concerned in that transaction.

By Walter Paine Jr. Did you not take in the

Knight Templar's degree an obligation called the

fifth, libation? If so, is it not considered, and so

explained by Masons of that degree, to be the seal

of all your former obligations, administered in the

institution ?

The witness did not answer. The sealed obliga

tion was read to him аs lollows :

" This pure wine I.take from this cup, in testi

mony of my belief of the mortality of the body,

and the immortality of the sou), and as the sins

of th¿ whole world were laid upon the head of

OUT Saviour, so may the sins of the person

whose skull this once was, be heaped upon my head

inndduiento my ou>n, and may they appear in

judgment against me, both here and hereafter,

should I violate or transgress any obligation in Ma

sonry which 1 have heretofore taken, take at this

time, or may hereafter be instructed in, so help me

God- Drinks the wine." [See ante page 49.]

The question as proposed by Mr. Paine, was

again put to witness, who continued to hesitate.

Яn$. I SHAM. DECLIKE ANSWERING IT!

[СoммЕИт. This Past Grand Master had just

taken the following r,h:il oath : "I swear to make

true answer to aU such questions as may be asked

me, touching the matter now under investigation,

so help me God !"]

By Mr. Itui.lt* Did you take the obligation I

have read to you ?

Ans. I did not take that obligation.

[NoTE the quibble ! Witness first declined to an

swer at all. He then denies that he took the obli

gation, because he and other masons do not consider

the fifth libation as a masonic obligation. The truth

of these words 'is admitted liy two preceding wit

nesses [see ante pages 49, 65.]

By Joseph S. Coolie, present Grand Master and

successor to the witness. Did you ever take any

obligation which you thought would conflict with

your moral or social dutieu ?

Ans. I did not.

By Wm. Harris. Did you not, in this Court

House, say to me, after I had given my evidence,

that if you did make such a declaration, it must have

been in reference to the oaths in Masonry ?

Ans. I had some conversation about your evi

dence, and told you I could not recollect any such

declaration ; that if I ever made it, it must have

been under an excitement, produced by some un

reasonable charge against Masons.

By IlIс same. Have you at any time visited the

Lodges as Grand Master, to explain tue oaths or ob

ligations, and induce them not to give up their

charters.' Please explain the object of such visits?

Ans. I never have visited the lodges for that

psrpose, except at the elections.

[The words in itálica Mr. Haile has suppressed.

By the same. Have you ever as Grand Master

received any Masonic communication from the

Grand Lodges in other States, or their officers, and

if сo, what was their import?

Ans. I never have as an individual. The Grand

Lodge has never, while I was Grand Master, re

ceived any communication, except on the election

of officers and masonic matters. The communi

cations are on file and may be seen by the Com

mittee. Some of them are very long.

[Mr. Haile has misrepresented this answer. The

Committee never took any measures to get at these

very long communications. A question was here

presented in writing, how long the witness had

been Grand Master. The Committee took no.no-

tice of it, leaving it to be inferred that Mr. Merry

was Grand Muster during the Morgan outrage.—

This was not so. He was not Grand Master till

1828. Richard Anthony was Grand Master in 1826,

27, and it is worthy remark, that though he lived

within four miles, the Committee refused two spe

cial requests in writing i0 summon him and exam

ine him touching his knowledge of the Morgan

murder, derived Irom masonic bodies in New York !

H. F. ¡lu.ltflt here handed a question in writing

to Mr. Haile. Mr. Haile hesiated. Mr. Simmons

was then sitting at the stovr, at a dislance from the

table. Moses Richardson (Treasurer of the Grand

Encampment) observed tne question, and went and

spoke to Mr. Simmons, who rose and resumed his

seat at the table, and looked at the question. Messrs.

Simmons, Haile and Sprague were the only mem

bers of the Committee present. • Mr. Sprague

thought the question ought to be put. Mi. Sim

mons objected to the first part of it, which was in

these words : "A charge from Webb's Monitor ha«

repeatedly been read to »eceding Masons, in the

course of this investigation, by the Committee, at

the request of Masons."

Mr. Simmons refused to put the question, ff it

stated that this charge had been read to seceders, at

the request of Masons. He said he had read thèse-

charges himself in the Monitor long ago. ' '

B. F. Hallett. That part is not material ; but it is

a fact that this charge was shown to you by Moses

Richardson, a mason, and read to seceders, by hi«

suggestion, in order to show the excellent princi

ples taught by masonry ; and it has been used for

that purpose. We think, therefore, as it is intro

duced to justify masonry, it ought to be explained,

if it has any hidden meaning.

W. Paine, Jr. and A. Wilkinson said they had wit

nessed the fact stated by Mr. Hallett.

Mr. Simmons appeared at a loss how to. proceed.

He finally said he had no idea of putting a question

that implied a censure of the Committee.

Mr. Hallett said the truth ought to be no censure;

but rather than lose the question, he • ould strike

out that part of it ; which he did, and Mr. Simmons•

passed the question to Mr. lluilu.

Mr. Halle—addressing the witness. It is request

ed that I read to you from the charge to the master.

in Webb's Monitor.

Mr. Hallett. I have made no such request. I

wish the questions put, as they are stated in writing.

Thereupon. Mr. Haile finally read these formida

ble questions, which had been subjected to so many

objections. The .questions were intended to be put

in succession, the second after the first was answer

ed; but Mr. Haile read them both at once, as if to

give the witness she benefit of seeing the whole

ground, and that he might avoid a committal.

1. Qu«. A charge from Webb'« Monitor, page 72,

has repeatedly been read, in the course of this in

vestigation, by the Committee. In that charge, this-

sentence occurs :—"Be true and faithful and imitait:

the example of that celebrated Artist whom you thi?

evening represent." Please explain the allusion-

and meaning of this paît of said charge, and the na-

tute and object of the representation there alluded

to, with its reference to masonic penalties?

2. Qfies. Please state whether the following in

strnetion, or the like, occur» in one of the Lectures

of the master mason's degree referring to the same-

representation alluded to in the above charge, ad

dressed to the candidate, viz :—

" Brother A. before we can proceed any further

with you in this solemn ceremony, it will be neces

sary for you to travel, in order to convince the breth

ren of your fidelity and fortitude. In the course of

your travels you may meet with rujians who will en

deavor to extort from you the secrets ofa Master Ma

son. Some will go so far Br. A. as even to threaten .

to take your life, but you must be prepared even to

lay down your life, rather than to reveal any of the-

secrets of Freemasonry that have been communie*



ffd to you ; therefore on your firm fidelity and for

tilmlc ri'st nur further favors. "

»iii.». 1 SHALLD7.CMNE ANSWERING THAT QUES

TION \

Mr. Snraffue, (of Ihn Committee.) Do you de-

rline answering Die whole, or which pail of the

questions ?

.ins. 1 decline answering the whole ol it.

[Mr. Hailo objected to writing down these

questions and answers. IIs complained that he had

been put to a great ilcnl of trouble Mr. Hallctt

told him he would save him the trouhlo by writing

them himself, rather linn they should not go in the

deposition. Mr. llaile finally assented, and Mr.

Hulled wrote then* on Mr. Hailu's minutes.]

Present Grand Master Çoakè, proposed the fol

lowing' question, which Mr. Simmons put at once,

without showing il lo any ono hut Mr. Haile.

Do you consider the question as alluding to that

rnrt of the ceremonies which you do 4iot con

sider matcria( to the public, as a reason why you

decline answering it?

.1ns. I do.

.Иг. Simmons. You say then that the only reason

why you declins answering tin's question, is, that

the public have no interest in it ?

Ans. I do.

Mr. Iiailc. Can the masonic, signs, ceremonies

and secrets, in any way, directly or indirectly, af

fect the rights or interest of any person, not а Мas

sort ?

sîns. They cannot, to his injury, so fat ns I am

acquainted, never having had a caee of the kind

overcome to my knowledge.

By B. F. Haltflt. If а Mason is required to suffer

his life tobe taken rather than have the secrets of

Маsonгy extorted from him, ought he not as a Ma

son to suffer imprisonment and death, sooner than

disclose these secrets, il called upon in a Court of

Law, and compelled to disclose them under his

cicil oath ?

Ans. AfteraprMise—That is supposing an extreme

ease. I don't know as I can say what a Mason ought

to do in such a case.

[Comment. Here is an illustration of the obedi

ence to the civil Magistrate taught by Masonry. A

Grand Master is doubtful whether a Mason ought

not to suffer imprisonment and fine, as Bruce and

Wliitney and others did, sooner than testify lo the

. truth, under a civil oath, when required to do so by

the civil magistrate, provided that civil oath enjoins

upon him the disclosure of any secrets of Misons, or

of Masonry, which he has sworn ever to -conceal

"and never reveal '. The principle goes the whole

length of making Masonic law superior to civil

law. Mr. Haile saw this dilemma ol the Grand

Master, and came to his aid with the following lead

ing question.]

Mr. Haile. Can you conceive of any possible case

in which it would be the duty of a Court to require

a Mason to reveal bis Masonic secrets or in which

a refusal to make such disclosure could afleet the

rights or interests of any person, not a Mason ?

To these words thus put into the mouth of the

witness would be of course answered No.

[Here we again have the assumption that a Ma

sonic witness, and not a Court of law, is to be the

Judge of what questions it is proper for him to ans

wer as a Mason, in such Court !]

Tí. F. Hallett. But suppose a jury should be ob

jected to in a trial, on a charge that Masonic signs

had passed between him and the party, or that he

could not stand impartial with his masonic oath.might

it not be necessary to call upon Masonic witnesses

to testify what these signs and oaths were, in order

to prove that they had been used in this case, or

would bias the juror ? Under such circumstances

would a Mason be justified in withholding this im

portant evidence from the Court ?

.Ins. That is an extreme саsе. I know nothins;

about what a person might do. It would he lift to

the individual to decide. I cannot lull what a per

son might du in such a case.

Б. F. HallfU. What would you do ?

Ilitness—rather angrily. If thf gentleman tctsAtJ

to draw any fiiing nut of me, derogatory to thf jniа-

cipffs nf rаf-sonnj, he wilt find himself mistaken .'

.By Grand Cltaplaiit Frieze. If satisfied that ma

sonic secrets conflicted with the duties ol n good

citizen, would not your obligations and charges, as '

you understand them, require of yoo to give up those

secrets in obedience to your civil oath ?

.1ns. They would.

[It was here suggested that this witness had be

fore sworn that his masonic obligations never could

conflict with his civil duties;• and of course he nev

er could be " satisfied," as a mason, that he ought

lo obey his civil oath, if It required him to disclose

what he had masonically sworn not to reveal.]

By Bt F. IIallfit. You appear to he quite certain

that masonic secrets cannoi affect those who are not

masons.

If a mason, in a trial, were to give the masonic

sign of distress to a masonic juror, and that juror he

induced thereby to favor him as a brother muson. in

preference to the opposite party, not a mason, would

not this secret of masonry, in such a case, affect tlie

rights ol those who are not masons ?

Ans. That, Sir, is a curious kind of a question.

No juror, who was an honest man, would receive

such a sign.

Question by tlic same. But may not Masonic

signs and secrets be used by Im ¡I men, as a medi

um of communication and concert, dangerous to

the rights ofthose who are not Masons?

Ans. A bad man might do a great many things.

B. F. Hallett. Are not many masons bad men .'

That does not answer the question.

Witness. Well, Sir, I think not, if they acted on

the principles of Masonry.

Mr. Haile. Натe you ever known such a case?

Witness. My answer is, Sir, that so tar as I am

acquainted, they never have. I do not know what

might be done by bad men.

Mr. Sprapuc, (of the Committee.) That is not

an answer to the question. It is a very plain one.

- Mr. Simmnns. You said before, that they could

not upon the principles of Masonry. Was not that

your meaning? ,

Ans. Yes, that was my meaning.

Mr. Haile. Then you say you think that Masons

could not use the secrets aml signs in that way, and

act upon the principles of Masonry. Is that your

meaning?

Ans. It is.

Mr. Sprague. Is not this principle taught in

Masonry, to suffer death rather than disclose the

secrets?

Ans. IT is NOT.

Mr. Sprague. You say so in the Grand Lodgr

Address.

Witness, after a pause. I should wieh to amend

that answer. " The scords of the obligation makt

use ofthat, but as to the principles of Masonry in

culcating such a «Л mg, / do not so understand it."

Question fгom A. Wilkmson. Would nota mason,

on trial, have secret means of communication with

a masonic judge or juror, which one not a mason

could not have ? . .

J)nS. I SHALL DECLINE ANSWERING THAT QUES

TION \

[A mason here spoke to the witness in a low voice.

Witness thereupon said, " I should prefer answer

ing that question, I think." He then added, " I

never know any such case.it would not be likely to

occur."]

[Mr. Haile has made this witness say, in answer

to the question whether masonry teaches to suffer

death rather than disclose its secrets, "such a prin



:¡pl« a not it all taught iu masonry-" (See page

35 , Halles' minutes.) Mr. Merry has involved

iuiusclf in a most extraordinary contradiction here.

[{e swears that no such principle as this is inculeat

ed by Masonry, to suffer death rather than disclose

Masonic secrets. In June, 1831, the Grand Lodgi

of R. I. published an Address to the people, which

is signed BARNEY MERRY, Grand Master. It is to

be inferred, that Mr. Merry road this address, be

fore signing it. It contains the Mlowinir, page 5.

*' No penalty recognized by a Mason, involves

any other principle than that of self-devotion. The

instance of John A. Gustos may serve as a noble

example. The cruel tortures of the" Spanish In

quisition were insufficient to extort from him the

secrets of Masonry. He would have suffered death

as an honorable man, rather than violate bis integ

rity. This every mason, and we add every man,

is in honor bound to do. A mason, like a Christi in,

promises to Is faithful unto death, but gives no

rig-ht to take his life for infidelity."

To the sarao point is the charge from Webb's

Monitor, page 72 which this same witness admit

ted tot be correct, viz: ' Be true and faithful, and

imita e the example ofthat celebrated Artist whom

you this evening represent.' This Artist was Hi

ram Abiff, who suffered death, as Masonry teaches,

rather than disclose the secrets of Masonry. Grand

Master Merry had enacted this resurrection farce

perhaps an hundred times, to teach a Master Mason

that he should suffer death rather than disclose the

secrete of Masonry; and yet on his civil oath he

swears, that "such a principieis not at all taught

in Masonry !"

In August, 1831, Barney Merry signed a second

Address, of the R. I. Grand Lodge to the people.

He thens says, " the true form is, " binding my

self to suffer thus and so, rather than I would vio

late, &c." " It is so understood in all our Lodges."

Again. " A mason is understood as pledging

himself tobe faithful to his trust, i.cen to death."

And yet, swears this same Grand Master, whose

signature is placed to the above declarations, " such

a. principle is not at all taught in masonry /' Can

there be presented a more palpable and direct con

tradiction? Such is the influence of the " principles

taught in masonry" upon the minds of men who

pass in society for upright, respectable and unim

peachable citizens !]

TESTIMOKY OF HENRY LORD.—29th Witness.

I havetaken something like fifteen or sixteen de

grees. The higher degrees I took in Norwich, Con.

of J. L. Cross. I took the degrees in regular order

to Royal Arch ; I was then made a Select and Roy

al Master, Perfect Master, Roman Eagle, audMed-

iteranean Pass.

1,lu,stiua by the Committee. Do you recollect the

conversation with Mr. J. A. Ksnt, relative to justi

fying the murder of Morgan?

-Ins He bore upon me one day quite hard, in re

lation to the subject, and I thought it deserved a

reply, because 1 had found out that said Kent was

an anlimason. I told him he did not know that Mor

gan was dead; and if he had been murdered that it

was done by low masons; but I never uttered the

expressions attributed to me by Kent. I cannot re

member the conversation alluded to, so as tosíate it.

By High Priest Cranston. Has not said Kent

spent most of his time in abusing masons ?

.iIns. His whole theme was abuse.

In answer to a question from J. S. Harris,—

At the time I took the degree of Mediterranean

Pass; I took it with the officers of Com. Decatur'e

•hip. At that time we were at war with theAlge-

rines, and this pass it was thought, would benefit

those who might fall into their hands. I do no'

know how it would benefit them. It appeared to

be the object of the degree to get released fiom

prison, should I be so situated.

Grand Milter Cooke here said, it would be ben

eficiul to soften the barbarous treatment toward*

prisoners.

The Committee made nninquiries,u to the high- .

er degrees the witness had taken.

NOTE.'

In a former part of this Report allusion hasjrcen

made to the Unwarrantable proceeding of the ma

jority ofthe Committee, in permitting Masonic wit

nesses to take the interrogatories home with them,

and write out at their leisure, such answers as they

might think best caleulated to evade a thorough ex

amination. This proceeding is the more exc£p-

tionable, from the partial relation in which three <

witnesses stood, they being, in fact, parties to the

investiga ion, and their personal reputation, as .well

as the reputation of Masonry, depending upon their

answers. Under such circumstances, it was not

in human nature to avoid taking advantage of the

peculiar privilege extended to them, of arranging

their answers by consultations among themselves,

and exerting all their ingenuity to evade making

any disclosures that would implicate the Institu

tion or themselves. The benefits of a cross exam

ination and unpremeditated answers to- questions,

were thus entirely lost to the public. No such

privilege was extended to the witnesses who testi

fied against the Institution. They were required

to answer all sorts of questions upon the spur of ilm

moment, without deliberation or con?utation.

Neither were the majority of the Committee sat

isfied with even this partiality to Masonic witnesses.

In several instances they hare admitted into their

published minutes, Utters, from Masons without

any formality of oaih attatched to them. In others

they have allowed a Mason to give his deposition,

and to interlard it with affidavits, taken by his sug

gestion from other adhering Masons. Unattested,

certificates of pretended charitable distributions

have also been published, without any explanation

or authentication, while, at the same time, the

Committee resolutely refused to make any inquiry

into the amount of funds, and the appropriation of

those funds.

In one instance, the majority of the Committee

have gone even further than this., Abraham Wil

kinson and William Harris, two unimpeachable

witnesses, testified to certain threats made by Sam

uel H. Gardner, Master of a Lodge, to doter Mr

Wilkinson from giving his countenance to the es

tablishment of an Antimasonic Press. (Ante pp.

33, 34.) This Mr. Gardner was present at the time

one or both of these witnesses gave their testimony,

and on the lust day of the examination, he was in

the room where the investigation was going on,

for several hours. Every member of the Commit

lee knew him, and several, if not all of them, con

versed with him. Yet no attempt was made to put

him under oath, nur was he asked publicly ior sny

explanation of the testimony against him.

The inference of course, was that he could neith

er deny or explain It. Nevertheless, we find in

the published report of Mr. Hazard's investigation,

p. 33, a formal Icttrr from this same Samuel -

Gardner, without date, addressed "to the honorable

10
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Commit!se, &c. forths purpose of investigating the

charges against Freemasonry."- The letter com

mence» thus : ('Gentlemen, I ehoulJ not presume

to trouble you, were it not for the fact, that r«y

name has been made use of by Messre. Wilkinson

and Harris, in their examination before you, in

/ Providence. That only suust be my apology for

trespassing on your time, by stating the conversa

tion I had with them."

Now as the examination of Messrs. Wilkinson

and Harris had not been published, it is evident

that Mr. Gardner must either have heard it, or that

» It was handed to him by the Committee in order to

get him to draw up some counter statement. He

did not venture "to trouble the Committee" with a

statement on oath, which he might have made

with half the trouble he wrote this letter. Even

thie statement, prepared evidently so as to evade

the responsibility of an bath, and at the same time

enable the Committee to use it as contradictory

testimony, does not deny, hut confirms the threat.

Mr. Gardner admits that when Mr. Wilkinson in

formed him he had subscribed to the stock of a

free press, he, Gardner, told him "it was the worst

business he ever undertook, and that he could not

discover the hand that might injure him, or words

to that import." Mr. Gardner adds i "Mr. Wilkin

son said in reply, greatly agitated, My God ! am I to

have my throat cut, and I not know it?" This re

ply shows how Mr. Gardner's threat was under

stood, and how he meant it should be received,

tor he says in his letter, the conversation here

ended. . ',.

Such are the subterfuges te which an honor

ble Committee of an honorable Legislature have

resorted, to palliate and explain away the force o:

the testimony they were compelled to record against

Masonry.

On the ono hand, in favor of Masonry, we find

them furnishing witnesses with interrogatories to

answer in writing at their leisure, and publishing

letters and explanations not under oath, aa it they

constituted a part of the testimony. On the other

hand, we find them suppressing some of the most

essential parts of the testimony of Masons and Anti-

mason.s, against the Institution, misrepresenting

their answers, and refusing to publish in their mi

nutes the deposition of Jarvis F. Hanks, regular

ly sworn to before a magistrate, declaring that he

was present at Jerusalem Chapter No. 8, New

York, when it was voted to pay $500 out of its

funds, for the i elief of the kidnappers of William

Morgan ! (Ante p. 26.) The committee also refus

ed to publish the communication made to them by

William Sprsgus, Esq. setting forth the allegations

against Masonry, and the facts and evidence by

which they could be sustaiaed.

We take no pleasure in presenting this evidence,

of the utter violation of every principle of fairness

and impartiality, which governed the proceedings

of this Committee, but it is due to the public that

they should be made known. If the Committee,

or cither of them, will deny a tingle allegaticB

made in this report, touching their course of pro

ceedings, they «hall be meI, ¡n any form in which

the truth can be tested, and by individuals, in

all respects as responsible, and as much entitled to

credit as themselves.

We have now gone through with the testimony

of every witness examined before the Committee

in their investigation at Providence, from the 7th

to the 17th of December. At the close of the ex

amination, on Saturday evening, about 10 o'clock,

Mr. Hazard made an attempt to exhibit a show of

fairness, by stating that the Committee would meet

again at Newport, and if any questions had been

omitted, which were at all important, they should

thru be put. This, however, was impossible, as

Mr. II. well knew,because the witnesses to whom he

had refused to put questions, were residing 30 miles

from Newport, and would not be present at the ex

amination there ; and further to prevent the possi

bility of any attempt to urge the rejected questions .

at Newport, Mr. Hazard, (without any consultation

with Mr. Sprague, one of the Committee) caused

a notice to be published in the newspapers of Mon

day, December 19th, signed by himself as Chair

man of the Committee, in which he states that the

Committee would meet at Newport on the 25th

inst. when they would examine the witnesses sum

moned before them, on all matters, except those re

lating to ihr forms, ceremonies, secrets and myste

ries O/FAEEMASONRY ! In other words, he would

examine the witnesses upon such matters as they

chose ! After this annunciation, no further attempt

was made to get at the truth, beyond an attendance

on the part of Mr. Turner at Newport, as some

check upon the gross partiality openly exhibited by

Mr. Hazard throughout the whole proceedings.

The investigation at Newport was held by Mr.

Hazard alone, with the occasional presence of Mr

Cornell. Another private and exparte examination

was made by Mr. Halle, of masons in Warten, R. I.

Л third (notified in such a manner as to escape the

observation of Mr. Spiague, one of the Committee)

was held in Providence, by Mr. Simmons, alone.

The object of most of these examinations was mere

ly to receive written dissertations drawn up by ma

sons, in favor of their institution, substituting their

awn «pinions for fuels. The only examination en

titled to be consideied regular, is that taken before

the Committee at Providence, as above reported.

The minority examinations were all informal, and

not entitled to equal consideration. There are, bow-

ever, several important points established and de

veloped, in those examinations, a summary of which,

.will be presented, aa an appendix to this report.
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EXAMINATION AT NEWPORT.

"[Mr. Hazard, Chairman of the Committee, held an

i ntormal examination »lone, at Newport, with the

occasional attendance of Mr. Cornell, another ot

the Committee, which was continued from Dec. 31

to January 7th.' It chiefly consisted of written

dissertations, furnished by Masons in answer to

questions which Mr. Hazard permitted ther» to take

privately, together with the examination of the

1'rovidence Mason*, the answers to which were

agreed upon in a regular Lodge meeting previous

to their being handed in to the Committee. ! Such

concerted and premeditated evidence, cannot he en-

tit led to much-credit, as a full development of foots

It consisted chiefly of a mere echo to the answers

ma le by the Providence Masons, with some exccp-

tions.

George Tarner attended the investigation st

Newport, and attempted to elicit the truth, but was

met with the same obstacles and insult Mr. Hazard

had dealt so largely in, nt Providsnce. An absiract

of the testimony is taken from notes by Mr. Turner.

Wednesday, December 21 .

TESTIMONY OF NICHOLAS G. -BOSS, ESQ..

Mr. Boss is a Counsellor at Law, and Past Master

of a Lodge. Has gone as high as Royal Master.

He teitified as follows :

The written oaths, as read to him are correct,

except as follows. In the Entered Apprentice's

penalty, the words were added to the oath as taken

by me, " ere 1 would divulge the secrets about to

"

NDIX.
Apprentice's Oath. How convenient, masonic con-

struction is ! When a Mason is told thet his oath is

not to interfere With religion or polities, he assures

us that explanation is a part of the oath, and

equally binding; but the explanation of the man

ner of giving the R. A. word made in the midst of

bis oath, he sweat-s is no part of that oath ? In the

first case, it helps to cover over the enormity of

the oaths now they are revealed ; therefore, it is

to be construed as a part of the oath ! 1n the lat-

:er case, if admitted to be a part of the oath, the

witness would be required to disclose it, therefore

he construes this explanation to be no part of hii

oath !]

" The words whether he be right or wrong, were.

not used in any Lodge or Chapter I have been in

t never have heard the words, " murder and treason

not excepted," and I don't believe any other mason

ever did. When I took the degree of Royal Arch

Mason, / promised to keep the secrets of a R. Л.

Mason, knotting them to be such ; but murder and

treason were excepted, and they left to my own elec

tion. I have been present in.Chapters in New York

Vlnladelphia and this town, and never heard " mur-

dvr and treason not excepted."

[ITTThe Providence Masons handed in the Roy

al Arch oath without a single word relating to

keeping secrets, and swore it was all the osth

though they admitted, on cross examination, thss'

they were bound to keep a R. A. Mason's secrets.

The Newport Masons swore that this obligation to

,
be committed to me," and the like words were in the

other penalties, as I took them. Also, after injury

to mysell, "or those who have a prior claim to my

benevolence." In the Master's obligation, these

words were used, whenever 1 have heard it admin

istered :

" 1 will keep the secrets of a Master Mason.when

communicated to..me, murder and treason excepted,

AND THAT TO BE LEFT TO MV OWN DISCRETION."

" I will apprise of all approaching danger," was

not in my Master's obligation-"

The PasJ Master's obligation binds, "not to wrong

the Lodge, over which 1 may be called to preside,

tier see it wronged by others, if in my power to

prevent it." In this obligation I was sworn to ap

prise the Lodge of all approaching danger.

I have heard the Master's oath administered, to

hoU myselt amenable to any part of the obligation

omitted, when informed ot the sanie ; but this was

only when the Master did not feel confident lhat he

could recollect the whole obligation.

' When I was placed in a situation to receive the

obligation, the person presiding said,

" Yos are now in a situation to receive the obli

gation of an entered apprentice, which all others

have done, who have gone this way before yon. It

contains nothing contrary to religion, morality, or

the laws of your country, but is founded on faith,

hope and charity."

In the Royal Arch Oath, the words were used,

" will not shed the blood of а R. A. Mason in

anger," instead of " unlawfully," as given in the

mannicript oath, by the Providence Masons.

I never heard thfc word " omnific" used. I pro

mised to not repeat the R. A. word, except in the

manner I received it. The manner was then ex

plained to me, and I did not consider the explana

tion at part of the oath !'

Question by Geo. Turner. Was the explanation

given before the oath was completed, and if so how

do you separale it from the oath ?

answer. The person presiding would state the

manner, and the candidate did not repeat this ex

planation, but it was given alter the words except

keep all secrets oTa Royal Arch, at their discretion,

was always in the oath .']

" I could not repeat any single degree of knight

hood "
Question as to the 5th libation, and drinking wine

out of a skull?

Ans. None such was ever nsed to me, and I have

never bee.i in an Encampment since. I took that

degree in presence of Rev. Mr. Mudge, and others.

No such ceremony was used at the lime, and no

such words in any ceremony of initiation I ever

took. In the Knight Templar's obligation.the words

" without reservation,, self evasion, mental reser

vation," &c. I think were used, and in several rle-

•rrees of Knighthood, which, by the .by, we never

considered any part of Masonry. Refers to Webb,

208. 1 never beard sucli an expression, as when

or until the last trump shall sound."

[The Providence Masons all swore to this exprui*

sion in the Knight of the Ked Cross.]

What do you consider the secrete of masonry ?

Ans. I feel bound, as a good citizen .and a good

mason, to answer all questions. 1 consider the way

in which masons know each other aa the secret of

masonry; but hon they know 1 do not feel at liberty

to tell.
Mr Hazard. If any perjon wishes to know now

mas«ns shake hands.tbey ate not on this Committee.

Witness. There are certain ways in which one ma

son can know anrjthei—certain signs, tokens.words.

Mr Hazard. I suspect it is not so now—you have

been obliged to adopt a check word.

Witness-. Лo Sir, tee haue not!

[This is in direct contradiction of the Providence

masons.]

In answer to a question respecting superiority oí

civil or masonic obligation, witness says—1 should

have obeyed my civil and moral obligations, il they

came in conflict ; but I do not consider that my ma

sonic obligations could ever come in conflict wit»

my religious, moral, or civil ones, but always

strengthen them;

n 1 shall receive it. [NOTE. This same Mr. Boss, ai will be seen at

[Non. Neither does the candidate repeat the I the close ol his testimony, had plumply refused

U ¡a called, preceding the Entered ' one year befori, to answer qai.tions, wh-in under



tivil oath, as a tttincis, which interfered with his

masoTtie oaths !]

Witness has visited three master mason's lodges

in New York, and a chapter in New York, in 1822,

Philadelphia in 1893, and some in Baltimore, and

believes the [cr remanic», practices, and obligations

to be the SAME as these used in Newport ! I con

sider masonry a charitable society, and designed to

discuss the mutual concerns of freemasons.

In answer to question whether it is not the cus

tom to receive into the lodges, as a visiting brother,

all masons not expelled from their respective lodge;,

witness replies— Yes ! Those whom we know to be

unworthy, we reject.

Que*, by Mr Turner. If convicted of crime,

would you reject them, though not expelled ?

Ans. The Lodges where they belong will

vestigate the charges, and if found true will expel

them ! The lodges never pass votes of censure as a

prohibition upon masons, until they are at first dealt

with by their own Lodge !

Cues. Has your Lodge or Chapter ever passed

any resolution disapproving of the murder of Mor

gan,by masons ?

Ans. We have never taken any order about it.

I NEVER BELIEVED THE MASONS HAD ANT THING

IO DO WITH IT !

[D°Truly an enlightened man !]

Quej. Did you ever hear a masonjuetify the ab

duction or killing of Morgan !

Ans. I never heard any mason justify or palliate

it, admitting it had been done by masons ! If it had

bten done, no people would have been more willing

to have ferretted it out than masons mould. [¿j"As

for example, the witnesses who refused to' (uglify,

the Chapter that voted $500 to the abductorэ, arid

the Grand Lodge, who appropriated $1000, for the

relief of the Western sifferers!!]

Ques. IB there a chain of communication be-

Witnits rtfusti to answer this question! [butts

considers his citil oathe superior to his Masons

oaths, so hi: says.]

By Mr Hazard. Were you a witness, in the cut

of Bateman Monroe, a juror, objected to on accoui

of being a Mason, in November, 1830, and did yoi

decline answering questions, anu ifso why i

Ans. I was called as a witness in that case, ID

entered the courtroom without knowing the qua-

lion on trial. I was enquired of by B. Hazard, Eiqti

state the obligations, and declined doing it. M •

Pearce and Turner then required me to read On

obligations as printed in Bernard's book, and s\;

the difference ifany. I did read it, and immcdiat

ly refused, plumpty to answer or explain the dift

ence ; because I considered the question as an in

pertinent and unauthorized one, not holding myst

bound to answer individuals in such matters ; U

alieuys to be subject to the constituted authorities:

By the same. Did the court require you tora-

wer—did they Snd any fault with you for not am-

wering ?

Ans. I did not consider the court as requiring m

to answer the questions, and no fault has been found

in relation thereto. К I had committed a conlenipl

of court, I should have been fined, imprisoned or

reprimanded, which was not done.

NOTE.

[iCJ^To show how strangely this witness conln-

diets facts, and to prove the superior force of hi;

masonic over his civil obligations, we subjoin i

certified report of the case alluded to, which ое-

currèd at the November Term, 1830 of the Comt

of Common Pleas for Newport County, R. I. In

he case of R. Shaw ve. John C. Borden, Messrs

Seorere Turner and Dutee J. Pearce, counsel for

Plft. objected to Bateman Munroe,one of the jury.

on the ground lhat Munroe and Borden, beini

Freemasons, and Shaw not a Mason, the juror wn

under masonic oaths incompatible with his civil

and of other countriei or any of them ?

Ans. The Lodges communicate to the Grand

Lodge of the state in which they are located, and

each Grand Lodge communicates with the others.

I know of no communication between them and for

eign countries. There is a Gen. Chapter and a Gen.

G. Encampment, but having no communication to

ray knowledge wilh foreign countrtas. 1 know of

no connexion between the higher Masonic orders,

(so callsdj and those in Europe or elsewhere. Thr-

Masonic fraternity in this country are not subject to

one common head or power !

[Mr Wilkinson swore they were. See Ante page

47, and the Constitutions sny the same.]

(Jiíesíien by G. Turner. Does not a mason make

a sign on entering and leaving a lodge, indicating a

part of ihe penalty ot that particular degree ?

Ans. They do not, only a mark of obeisance to

the master.

Ques. If Freemasonry is only a charitable society,

why have they so many degrees, and so much se-

cresy, not only from others but from themselves?

Ans. 1 tlo'not know.

Iiy G. Turner. Can you not, as a Mason, com

municate with a judge, juror or officer in Court,

who are Masons ?

Ans. I can m^ke myself known to a Mason, as

being a Mason at any time.

QUÍS. Are you bound by oath, to support the

Gr.ind Lodge ?

Ans. I am a member of the Grand Lodge, being

a Past Master of Siít. John's Lodge No. 1, and am

bound by no other oath, than that taken in my in

duction to the office of Master, which is similar to

tween the lodges in this State and the lodges of Oath to decide impartially between thy parties-

other States and between the order in this country Mr. B. Hazard was counsel lor Borden. The point

was argued, and four of the five Judges decided

that the juror wns disqualified, and must come off.

We now quote from the published report of thet

irholas G. Boss, a distinguished Mason, wa<

next sworn. He was asked by Mr. Hazard if tii<

oaths as stated in Bernard's Light on Masonry,

were truly the obligations taken by Masons, in the

three first degrees.

Aits. (after hearing them read,) No, they sre

ase.]

" N

the Past Master.

Ли G. Turner. Is every Mason, in a Lodge, re

quired to make the Masonic signs of each degree,

sefore the Lodge is declared to be opened on that

degree!

not.

By the same- What part of them do you denr,

or do yon deny them wholly ?

Ans. ¡ deny them wholly!

Mr. Pearce. What particular part of these oalhe

do you deny to be correct ?

Ans. The whole of them, except that someten"''

in both are the same.

By the same. What word-s are they ?

ans. Why such word* as "of," and "and'' and

"the."

By the same.. Will you state in terms, the obli

gations of Masons as you have taken or know them'

Ans. I do not think I shall. I do not feel misd}

at liberty to do so. That is a masonic affair alto

gether !

By the same. If I read these obligations to yoo,

sentence by sentence, will you show me in what

respect they differ ?

Ans. If you expect that of me, I consider my

being called here, as a witness, an insult, and migbt

as well at once decline all further answer.

The Court said Mr. Pearce's question was apre-

per one."

[Here isa singular development of Masonic ve

racity ! Mr. Boss, as a witness In Court, in No

vember, 1830, denied the whole sf the oaths of lhs

three first degrees in Bernard, except AND and тнr.,

and OF. In December, 1831, he swort that the oath5



written out by Ike Providence Masons (which are

almost verbatim the same u the oaths of the three

first degrees in Bernard,) were correct, except sev

eral additions which he made, conforming the oaths

still more to Bernard's ! He also refused in • 1330

to obey his civil oath in preference to his Masonic

oath, though the Court declared he was bound to

answer the questions, and would have punished him

for contempt, had Mr. Pearce (who was his brother

in law,) insisted apon his answering. And yet, in

1331, the Masons of Providence declare that the

oaths, which Mr. Boss so " plumply" refused to ex

plain, were never considered a part of Masonic se

crets ! !1

As a voucher of the rorrectness of the report

above quoted, we cita the certificate of Joseph

Childs, CHIEF JUSTICE of the Court balore .which

the case was tried.

"The undersigned lias read and carefully exam

ined the report of the challenge of Bateman Mun-

ro, as a juror, published in the R. Island American

of the lb'th,and is persuaded, from his own recol

lections, that it presents a nearly correct outline of

the cаse, and that no material fact or argument is

omitted. The peints made, are truly stated, and

the substance of the argument, and the testimony

of the witnesses, nearly word for word.

JOSEPH CHILDS.

Portsmouth, Nov. 19, 1830.

Nine persons, all adhering masons, were called,

and several swore to the correctness, of the deposi

tion made by Nicholas G. Boss, so far as their know

ledge extended, said deposition having been exam

ined by them, and the answers agreed upon, in a

regular Lodge Meeting the night previous, by an

arrangement with Mr. Hazard !—

S s K,pn£.-v Л. RuinivsuN Royal and Select Master.

He does not recollect the Royal Arch obligation to

keep a brother companion's secrets, precisely as Mr.

Boss states it, but has heard it so given sometimes

in our chapter. In other respects agrees to the

deposition.

Pelтg Clarke, of eight degrees, and Stephen Co,-

hoone, of three degrees, assent to the deposition.

Mr. Cahoone at first denied several clauses which

were in the Providence oaths, before he had heard

them read, whereupon Mr. Hazard undertook to

explain the difference between the oaths in Provi

dence and Newport, apparently to apprize the wit

ness (who had not been present at the Lodge

meeting,) of what had been testified by the prece

ding witness.

Henry Hudson, Royal Arch Mason, had heard the

oaths and Boss's deposition read last evening (at

the bodge meeting) and agrees to the truth of them

substantially.

[While this witness was under examination,

George Turner asked a question, relative to a pro

posed assault on the person of Dr. Case, a se

ceding mason. Mr. Hazard refused to put down

the answer, in witness's words, substituting his

own, which witness says is satisfactory. Mr. Tur

ner here stopped asking questions, for what use

could it be, if the answers were to be Mr. Hazard's

ami not the witness's.]

James R. Gardner and Jo1in Stanhope, Master

Jasons, swear to Boss's deposition.

Stephen T. Northam, a. Master Mason, made in

Carolina, 42 years ago, swears to the same, but

. s no recollection of phraseology.

By C. Turner, Do you swear that the substance

d principles of the oaths, include penalties as

ell as promises ?

-Ins. l have no recollection of phraseology. Ida

lot consider the penalty as any part of the obliga

tion! I have no recollection of the penalties being

there, and if I had, should not consider it any part

of the obligation !

By the tame. Did you not swear to submit to

some penalty, as well as to perform yonr promises,

at the time iou took each ol the oaths ?

.ins. I have no recollection of the oaths'at s11 !

[O*and yet he swore Mr. Boss gave them correct

ly !] I never submitted to any such penalty— I

do not think I did—No I did not !

Jeremiah N. Potter, and John G. Whitehorne al

so assent to the deposition of Mr. Boss.

TESTIMONY or 1ÍATKIIAIS MUNRO.

[This witness was the juror who was challenged,

on account of his Masonic oaths, in the case of

Shaw vs Berden, before the Court of Common

Pleas in Newport. (See ante page 72.) The Court

decided that a person who had taken the, oaths

there proved (which were the same in substance

as proved in this investigation) could not stand im

partial between a Mason, and one not a Mason, and

must come off the jury. The correctness ef this

decision can not be doubted after examining the

views which this man entertains of Masonic obliga

tions. Munro is a respectable man, and really

thought he was doing Masonry great service, by

avewing the advantages that might be derived from

it, in the manner he has described. He has кo

declared, after he had given the deposition.

Bateman Munro, of Portsmouth, in the County of

Newport, being solemnly sworn, testifies aa fol

lows: I am a Mason of three degrees. Took the

first in Charleston, S. Carolina, forty years ago, the

others in St. Alban's Lodge, Bristol R. I.

HiI request of G. Turner. Have you ever said that

Masonry has been of little use to you as a Farmer,

but that while you went to sea and traded, you

found it of great service ? Ifso please explain in

what manner.

.Ins. Masonry has been of use to me in foreign

countries, in Spain, in France, and in England.

From the same. In what manner did you find it

serviceable ?

Ans. I have entered ports, since I have been

ship Master, and would show myself as a Masqn,

so as to get information what the markets were,

what I could do, and what I could not, so as to

make my owners a good voyage. I have been

favored by Port Officers on account of ray being a

Mason, and have been aided nnd assisted in smug

gling goods, by m aking myself known as a Mason,

and have been introduced to the Bishop and Gov

ernor, in the Spanish dominions—but never in

this country—The Custom House ojleers, and even

the Governor himself, have been aiding me in ST)

doing,* and the Bishop also. I have been for four

уeаrч and upwards, sailing out of this State, with

a, memorandum from them (the Governor and

Bishop) of contraband articles, to bring them,

making three or four voyages a year, and never

paid any duties on them ! James L)' Wolf and my

other owners were benefitted by it. This was trans

acted in the port of Havana, in the Island of Cuba.

/ have, through Masonry, always derived great

benefit to my owners and myself, in foreign coun

tries, and have always turned my masonry to ac

count—made use of my masonryfor that purpose !

[NOTE. Let any honest man say ,if such a man ough t

to decide a causa as a juror, between a mason and

one not a mason? And yet the Court who decided

that this man was disqualified as a juror (Tram the

influence they inferred his misonic oaths might

have upon him, as well as every other mason, aud

before they knew the use he admits he always

made of his Masonry) were dtnounced in the bit

terest terms & their names held up to scorn in large

capitals, in masonic newspapers. The lawyers who

sustained the motion were denounced as utterly

abandoned, and the whole fabric ofjustice declared

to be prostrated, and the Masons disfranchised, as

citizens, by_tlie unrighteous proscription of Antima-

scni ry !

If this man, a respectable ship master, and of

f" " I furthermore promise and swear that I will bg

aiding and assisting, all worthy distressed Master Ma

sons." &c. Mastrr Muons Outh.]
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thus construed and acted upon his Masonic oaths,

in strict conformity lo their fuir and literal import,

and if Governors and Bishops, in other countries,

Conciured wi:h htm in this construction, where is

(he security which nu;n not masons have in busi

ness, in Courts of law or elsewhere, rn long as the

secret means of Masonic co-npcration and conspi

racy exist ?]

Secret concert between Л/r, ffazard and the ¿\rv;port

Musons.

[It has been staied on a proceeding page that

Mr. Hazard consulted the Masonic witnesses at

Newport, in O'dertogive them an opportunity to

<!Э1:ccИ tluíir answers to his interrogatories, which

were handed to Mr. Bass, Past Msster of the

Lodge, for thai p'иp'ise, and that a ri'gntar Lodge

meeting was held to arrange the form in which

the Masons should give their depositions to avoid

contradiction. This fact was brought out. in the

investigation, by cross questions from Mr. Turner,

as will appear from the lollowing answers of wit-.

nesses, on the first day uf the examination at New

port.]

STEPHEN CAHOONE—Sicorn.

Question by G. Turner. For what purpose did

you meet with the Lodge last night :

Ans. I met for the purpose of hearing read the

forms of oaths and other papers referred to in Mr.

1ioss's deposition.

Question by do. By whom were they read.

.ins. Mr. Boss read the interrogatories and oaths,

and Mr. Robinson, (present Grand Master) read

the answers and depositions.

Question Ity do. Can you repeat all or either of

your Masonic oaths ?

-ÎSÎ. No, I cannot, AND IF I COULD I SHOULD

NOT! ГОE Iт I COULD MÏ CONSCIENCE WOULD NOT

LET ME.

[Here again wn find the Masonic conscience not

to tell, stronger than the civil oath to tell the whole

truth !]

Question by do. If yon cannot repeat your oaths,

how can you undertake to swear that Mr. Boss has

stated them correctly ?

Mr. Haiard, (to witness) you perceive this is

rather screwing. It is a Justice's way of doing bu

siness !

Witness. 1 should have answered as to what per

tains to Masonry, according to my recollection, as

Mr. Boss had dono.

[On further inquiry it appeared in proof, that on

the 27th of December, before the examination

commenced, Mr. Hazard had sent in his form of

oaths, variations, and interrogatories, which with

Mr. Boss's deposition were all sent to St. John's

Lodge for perusal and digestion.

Here Mr. Hazard asked Mr Boss where Ihe pa

pers were, and he thereupon produced them from

his pocket.]

JOHN R. STANHOPE—Sworn.

Question by G. Turner. When, where, and by

whom, were the forms of oaths, interrogatories, &c.

read in your presence and at whose request?

sîns. At the Lodge, last night, they were read

by Mr. Boss and Mr. Robinson, and at the request

of the Chairman of the Committee (Mr. Hazard)es

I have heard Aim (Mr. Hazard) say .'

Question by do. Was the Lodge regularly open,

when the said papers were read, was there any dis

cussion or conversation on the subject of said pa

pers, if so state particularly what it was.

Am. Whether the Lodge had been regularly

opened or not, he cannot tell. He recollects hear

ing the Master declare the Lodge to be open, but

cant remember the time. The business of reading,

was done at the beginning. The members sat

round and heard the papers read, the object of do

ing which being mentioned. There was no dis-

'union about it ; except that it n as observed gen

erally that Mr. Bo» had answerer] the queslioM

properly !

Question by the same. Was the Lodge duly"tyN

or not .?

Witness evaded the question, by saying he did

not ice the Tyler.

Question by do. Is there or is there not alwar*

some ceremony observed on opening and closing il

Lodge, and was it performed last night?

Jins. The first part I answer, yes, the last parti

have said before I do not recollect !

NICHOLAS G. Boss

Being called again, by Mr. Hazard, attempted ts

explain. He said he received the papers, (the in-'

teirogatories, cross questions,, forms of oaths, &c.)

together with his own depositien, from Mr. Hara d,

on Tuesday morning, with a request to read the

questions and answers &o. to the Mnsons who

would Ъe eummonrd as witnesses, in order to facúl

tate the examination. He at first proposed to hav:

a meeting of the Masons at his house, but con

cluded to meet at the Lodge for the election of of

ficers that evening. The Lodge was duly opened,

and he then stated the business lo the brethren

who had been requested to attend as witnessei.

The Tyler was directed to admit all Masons, and 1

re.id the questions, &c. and brother Robinson the

answers. We then proceeded to Ibe regular busi

ness of Ihe Lodge.

[It would he difficult to imagine a greater oat-

rage than this, upon a fair ¡investigation, by I

legislative, or any other tribunal. Here were

rill the witnesses met together, the form of exam

ination put into their hands, and they tutored lo

that all mi¡>ht say yes or no to tho_same questions.

What would have been said of the' minority report

of the Committee appointed by Congress to investí-

g'rte the concerns of the United Slates Bank, if

Mr. Adams had given a list of interrogatories pri

vately to the President of the Hank, together with

all the testimony against it, and desired him to hold

a consultation with all the witnesses connected

with the Bank, who were to be summoned, before

the Committee, that they might have an opportu

nity to concert their answers, anil all get their les

sons alike, under pretence of "facilitating the ti-

amination!" Where would he the difference be

tween such a proceeding and the conduct of Mi.

Hazard with the Newport Masons ?]

THEMOST SOVEREIGN GRAND CONSISTORY.

[The existence of a Consistory ' ot Sovereign

Princes of the Royal secret, derived from the most

Sovereign Grand Consistory of the United Stales,

and to them from the Imperial Consistory in France,

was established, by the following testimony.]

TESTIMONY or ISAAC STALL.

I do not know who introduced the higher de

grees into this Country. I know who did into this

Town. They were introduced into this town from

New York. I assisted in the matter. The Chapter

was introduced here, say twenty years ago, by

James Perry, John A. Shaw and others. The first

Encampment was established here by . authority

derived from New York, and pretty soon after that

we established the CONSISTORY, and after a wii '

the Encampment was placed under the authority

of Massachusetts and Rhode Island. The CONSIS

TORY is the sum and summit of Masonry in this

Country.

All subordinate Lodges pay a small fee to the

Grand Lodge, for every candidate they receive.

Certain fees are paid by the Lodge, Chapter, En

campment or Consistory, npon receiving their dis

pensation or charter, and the same rule governs the

higher orders as is applicable to the lower orders.

I believe that the Grand Lodges correspond

throughout the States. There is a General Grand

Encampment in the United States. The Grand

Encampment of eaeh Stare is subordinate to ths

General Grand Encampment.
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[A Sovereign Prinee of the Royal Secret, and

also a barkeeper in a respectable Hotel.] In an

ewer to questions, reluctantly says, He is a mem

ber of the Consistory of Rhode Island. Cannot

say where it originated. Expects they have regu

lar meetings for choice of officers, but cannot say

who they are. Thinks they kept records, but docs.

not know who has them. Does not recollect what

amount of lees the Rhode Island Masons paid to the

Grand Consistory of the United Siates. Could not

make any guess about it now. Never Beard there,

was a Grand Consistory of the United States, or it

had escaped his memory, it was so long ago.

There is a Grand Consistory in New York, having

jurisdiction over its subordinate Consistories.

Does not know of any higher degree in this Coun

try than Princes of the Royal Secret, and members

of the Grand Consistory.

Stephen Deblois, John Brown, David M. Cog-

geshall, and Jeremiah Bliss, members of the Con-

tistory, testified to the origin and existence of the

Consistory, in Rhode Island. The latter was pres

ent four or five years ago, at the choice of officers.

He surely considers the Consistory In existence,

because they.were in possession of the Charter, and

had never surrendered it. Deblois was formerly

Recorder, and kept the books. He paid $150 to

ward fees, Hnd for getting the Charter from N.York.

[Peleg Clark's diploma of the 28th degree, was

presented, dated 77Й1, and 3312 years after the res

toration .']

Alexander M. McGregor, testified that he had

taken three degrees of Masonry in Scotland. The

oaths he took there are substantially the same as he

has heard administered in Lodges in Rhode Island.

George Howland, swore he had attended a Lodge

in Curracoa, and a French and American Lodge in

Norfolk, Va. and in various other places in the

Islands and in Europe. Their ceremonies and

mode of working, with few variations, are the same

u in Lodges here.

[Maton.« justifying the murder of Morgan.}

SAMUEL S. PECKHAM—Sworn.

Is not a Mason. Testifies that two months ago,

in Capt. Vars store, in presence of Capt. VV. and

Capt. J. Vars, he heard James M. Tuell a Mason,

say, " that if any man should do as Morgan had

done, hü ought to have his throat cut ; and that il

any man belonged to a religious society, and should

come out and strive to tear it down he would de-

sei ve the same." Witness saw Mr. Tuell a few

days after, and told him what he had said. He

then said, if he had said that about a church mem

ber, he ought not to have done it, and was sony

for it—but he never denied what he had said about

Morgan. That appeared to be his deliberate opin

ion, fur I had spoken to him several times about it.

I had heard he had said that there were three or

four men in this town, he should like to have serv

ed as Morgan was.

JAMES M. TUELL—sworn, to tell the whole truth

Is a Mason of three degrees. As to the conversa

tion referred to in Peckham's deposition, about

Morgan, witness recollects being in Var'e store, at

the time Peckham was, " and to tell you the truth

I ca nnot recollect what the conversation was, more

than a child, for I was in a hurry and was not in

the store more than three minutes." Has no re-

eoll ection of saying there were three or four oth

era he would like to have served as Morgan hac

bee n. Witness did not deny the remark respect

ing Morgan.

WILLIAM VARS—Sworn.

Is not a mason. Was present when Peckham

and Tuell had the conversation. Mr. Tuell said

be thought there were some in Newport who

aught to be served in the same way, as Morgan.

George Botoen affirmed. What conversation 1

hays had, wi» in 4jokin way. I think that one«, in

iis shop, I heard Mr. Tuell sлу that Morgan bad

ieen served right. ,

NIcHOLS HASSARD (Sher iff uf Newport County)

Sworn. Is not a Mason. Pretty soon , after thetty

le here began to talk about it, I heard Mr.

lENRV MOORE, a Mison, say, " he did not believe

s word of the murder, and if it WAS so, it was n»

more than he (Morgan) deserved."

Question by Mr. B. Hazard. Did Mr. Moore say

his as his sober, deliberate sentiment '

Afis. Нe said it apparently in earnest, and pretty

warmly, and he said it more than once ; and there

iad been no provocation given to him for sayinjf

so, to my knowledge. I have repeatedly asked

Mr. Moore it he thought Morgan had been carried

off by Masons, and he would always evade the

question by laying, " it had never been proved."

Mr. B. Hazard heie made some insulting remark

o the witness, who claimed to be treated with the»

civility due to a witness, or he should leave the

•oom.

Mr. B. Hazard retorted that this was a bad plac«

or him to flinch. The witness replied that he would

never find him flinching.

Mr. B. Hazard asked witness his opinion of Ma

sonry, as connected with the murder of Morgan.

Witness. Tiie Institution of Masonry, in my be-

ief, has screened the perpetrators of that deed. I

iave said so, and I believe so now.

There was some further cross examination, which

did not vary the testimony in the least.

THEOPHILIIS ТOРНАМ, sworn,—Buys he is a Ma

son and has taken twelve degrees. Being asked if

le could repeat the oaths accurately, says—'' Ь

could repeat them as high as the Royal Arch, in

clusive, but I decline repeating them. I have al-

ways understood that I was bound not to repeat

them."

[Mr. Hazard suffered this excuse to pass.]

SAMUEL S. PECKHAM states, that after his return*

to Newport, from the Antimasonic Convention helo?

at Providence, Sept. 4831, he had a conversation,

with Capt. Benjamin Marshajl, a Mason, of New

port. In the course of the conversation, CapU

Marshall said, that the Masons, " if they wanted

power, could have as much as they pleased, and

lhat the General Assembly dare not take up the An-

timasonic Memoiial, and try it ; and that the Ma

sons could command a majority, if they pleased, ii>

every town in the State. I asked Capt. Marshall

f I should remind him of these assertions a month

hence, he would acknowledge having made them ;

and he replied, " I will not only do that, but I will

repeat them," and he thereupon did repeat what he

had said about the power of the Masonic body, and

the fears of the General Assembly.

[There were several other witnesses examined at

Newport, but their statement!i did not vary the ev

idence given in the above abstract of the testimony

taken at that place. The Deposition of

Dr. BENJAMIN W. CASE, of Newport, a seceding

Master of a Lodge, was very minute and accurate,

detailing all the ceremonies and forms and oaths of

the Lodge. It confirmed in every essential partic

ular, the disclosures of Morgan, Bernard and Al-

lyn. Dr Case testified, that sometime in 1829,

Capt. George Howland, a Royal Arch Mason, told

him that he (Howland) was at sea at the time of

Morgan's death. On his return he visited the

Royal Aroh Chapter in Providence,and inquired in

to the truth of the story. They teld him it WM

true, and that Morgan had justly come to hie death

and on that night the Chapter raised meney to help

the Western sufferers, then imprisoned on account

of the Morgan business. The opinion vras uniform

among Masone, at first, that Morgan bsd been just

ly dealt by.

Capt. Howland, an adhering Mason, beinir called

and put on oath, positively denied be had ever

ma,de such a statement,
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Dr. Case further testified, that in the Master's

oath are these wc.nl* : " 7 will give a brother Mas

ter Maton a preference in his trade or calling."

This he well recollected, for he had repeated it at

least sixty times. having initiated over that number

of Members, besides repeating all the three first

oaths twice a year, as is required of the Master by

the by-laws, who repeats them to the members, and

they repeat after him.

The connecting link between the Lodge and the

Chapter, is the Past Master's oath, not to sit in a

Lodge of which the Master is not of that degree,

and that be will support the Constitution of the

Grand Royal Arch Chapter.]

PELEO ALMY—Sworn.

Is not a Mason.

Ques. Did you ever know any judge or juror,

being a Mason, to give a preference to a Mason, ш

Court.

Ara. I did not know until lately who were Ma

sons, or who were not, nor did I know any thing of

the obligations Masons were under to each other.

Que*. Have you now any reason to believe such

a preference has ever been given ?

Ans. I have bad cases in Court that went differ

ently from what I and others expected. There was

some mystery about it, but whether it was Mason

ry or not I cannot tell. One was a case against

Ebenezer Davenport, who I have since learned was

a Mason. There were several Masons on the jury.

During the trial, I took notice that Davenport was

often down i« the store of J. B. Newton (a Mason)

and I was in there after the trial, when Newton

told me he was satisfied the witness lied against

me, and that the jury decided against the evidence,

but that they could not give it the other way, be

cause it wonld prove forgery, on the part of Dav

enport.

TESTIMONY or HENRT Y. CRANSTOH

[Mr. Cranston is an Attorney at Law, Clerk of

the Court of Common Pleas, for Newport, and a

Mason of twenty-three degrees. In the challenge

of Bateman Mnnro (November 1830) as a Masonic

juror, before mentioned, Mr. Cranston was Counsel

for Borden, the Masonic \iarty, and volunteered as

a witness to prevent Munro being taken off the ju

ry. In his examination he denied that ho had ever

taken the three first oaths given in Bernard " as

auk," refused to state what the oaths he had taken

were, on the ground that he did not know as he was

at liberty to do so, though required by the Court ;

declaring to the Court that he would subject him

self lo every kind of punishment, that he would

perish utterly and forever rather than violate his

Masonic obligations ! Mr. Cranston was selected by

the Grand Lodge of Rhode Island to deliver the

Address on the last celebration of St. John's day, so

called, by the Masons of Rhode island.]

II. Y. Cranston, being called upon by Mr. Haz.

ard to take the civil oath, before the Committee,

made a speech to the Committee declining to sub

mit te an examination.

Mr. Hazard said, you can tell whether you are a

Mason, or not, and proposed to put the oath to him.

Mr. Cranston refused to take the n¡ith, and he and

Mr. Hazard conferred about it. "Mr. Hazard then

proposed to administer an oath to answer questions

put to him about the Bateman Munro case, and
•witness consented to be sworn in that form. Mr.

Hazard then put some irrelevant questions to him

about his being a witness in that case, after which.

he asked Mr. Turner if he had any questions to ask

the witneu '

Mr. Turner, I have not, until the witness is sworn

generally, and then I should like to ask him several

questions.

[Mr. Hazard did not swear him any farther, and

thus this witness, who declares that his civil duty is

paramount to his Masonic duty, doubted in one case

under civil oath, whether he was at liberty to tell

the truth, wh*re hie Masonic oath enjoined secrecy,

..n.| in another case, rejused to be ¡worn et all,

where his Masonic obligations were to be called in

question, unless the oath could be narrowed down

to suit his views aa to the questions he choose to

answer P What a scene would courts of law pre

sent, il members of all other societies, were to ex

ercise the prerogative claimed by Masons, to

make the supremacy of civil law, yield to Masonic

law !J

SECOND EXAMINATION,

AT PROVIDENCE.

IIfid by James F. Simmons, tolas.

[On Friday evening, January 6th, the following

notice appeared in the Providence Daily Advertiser

and American.]

" The Committee appointed by the General As

sembly to inquire into the charges against Freema

sonry and Masons in this State, will attend at the

State House in Providence, on SATURDAY, the Tib

instant, at 10 o'alock, A. M. for the purpose of re

ceiving the testimony of such witnesses as may

there appear before them.

In behalf of the Committee:

JAMES F. SIMMONS."

[This notice was given only 24 hours before the

examination. Mr. Sprague, one of the Commit

tee, who resided but a few miles from Providence,

was not personally notified, and knew nothing of

the intention of Mr. Simmons to hold this addition

al examination, until it had passed by. The ar

rangement appears to have been made with a de

sign of getting rid of Mr. Sprague's attendance.

None of the Committee appeared on Saturday, ex

cept James F. Simmons.]

The object of this pretended meeting of the Com

mittee was to carry into effect the pre-concerted

plan between the Committee and tîie Masons, of

riving the formal solemnity of sworn depositions

[o certain disquisitions and essays in favor of Free

masonry, which some of the principal Masons bad

prepared, by the consent of Messrs. Hazard and

Simmons, to hand in on this occasion. Accordingly

when Mr. Simmons called the first witness, Wil

liam C. Barker, Grand Commander, and swore him

to tell the truth, the whole truth and nothing but

the truth, the witness said he had testimony »ritten

which• he wished to offer, and handed a bundle of

papers to Mr. Simmons. This testimony, in his

case, as in that of the other witnesses, had been

written out, compared and digested, doubtless in

the Lodge, with all the benefit of the preceding

examinations and questions furnished them by the

Committee. In this light it is not evidence as to

facts, but merely individual opinions. The wit

nesses might with equal propriety have handed in

Webb's Monitor and Cross's Chart, and swore to

.hem as their depositions. What transpired epen-

y before the Committee, we shall record faithfully.

The written essays are no evidence.]

WILLIAM C. BARKER,

Grand Commander, being sworn, was questioned.

Question by Walter Paine, jr. Cannot a person

.10 a member of a chapter, encampment and lodge

at the same time ?

.'ins. He can.

Question by same. If Freemasonry is a charita

ble institution, why does it refuse to admit those

as members who are most likely to need the as

sistance of their fellow men, such as are deformed

or dismembered in body, and not «f hale and entire

limbs, as a man ought to be ?

.Ins. I hevejno answer to make to this question

other than this, that Freemasons choose to make

such rules and regulations as they please, of their

own affairs.

Question by J. S. Harris. You say you have

never received any information from Lodges or Ma

sonic bodies, of Morgan's dsath. Have you ever

heard. Maso«ici."v 01 otherwise, that Mergan bad
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wiitb-n, or was , about writins a book disclosing

Jlasonry,ana that he lud suffered either by con

finement or otherwise in consequence ?

.ins. Ifthe word Masonically was stricken out, I

might answer that queslion. I have heard such

rciiorts and sern them in the newspapers fre

quently.

Mr. Simmons raid the question must be answer

ed ns it stood. Nothing could be stricken out

Witness made no farther answer.

Question by John S. Hurris. Did you ever your

self as presiding officer of a Lodge, or know others

in that capacity, to inform the candidate when in

itiated, what was the oath he was about to take, or

tiie substance or nature of such oath, previous to

taking it ? i r

Лаs. We inform them that they are to take an

oath, and that it is not to interfere with their poli

tics or religion. Tin: oath is nut read nor repeated

before initiation.

Question by Walter Paine, jr. Did you in the

Knight Templar's degree take an obligation culled

the "5th lihation"? If so, is it not considered as a

seal to all your former obligations, and the most

binding oath administered by the Masonic Institu

tion ?

.Ins. I have alluded to all the obligations that I

bave taken, and handed them to the Committee.

Question by Samson Almy. You ray you never

knew an u/irigid adhering Mason, to consider his

obligations as biading him to inflict any punish

ment except expulsion from the Ixidge. Did you

«:ver know any Mason to consider them in any

other light?

.inr. I never did.

Question hy Walter Paine, jr. Is there such an

obligation administered in the Masonic Institution

ae the " 5th libation'?

.-lux. I ii:iVii referred to all the obligations I

know of ш Masonry, and handed them to the Com

anttee.

Question by Walter Paine, jr. Is there in the cer-

e munies of the Masonic Institution any oaIh, obli

gation or affirmation called the "5th libation'?

. f.-is. 1 have referred to all the obligations in

Masonry that I know of, and handed them to the

Committee—and as to the ceremonies of Freemason

ry, 1 have nothing to say about them.

Question by Samson Almy. If a Masonic sign is

given by one brother Mason to another, is he not

bound to obey it ?

.fits. That is a point that I am not at present de

cided on. I want time to consider of it. I should

rather think not, but am not at present prepared to

answer, had rather take time.

fWitness took the question for consideration, by

consent of tiie Committee, but he never answered

it.]

Question by George W. Jackson. Were not the

oaths and obligations as administered in the Mason-

ic Institution, considered as part of the Masonic

secrets prior to 1826 ?
• •Ins. l cannot tell ; they might have been by

eonie.

Question by Walter Paine, jr. Did you.prior to

182G, /eel yourself at liberty to repeat the oaths of

Maionry to any but a Mason ?

• •Ins. l never thought of the subject before that

time. Ifthe question liad cony under my considera

tion, I think I should have concluded they were

not secrets, [hero adding in a low tone, " if I wot

rf the same opinion I am. noю."]

Question by George W. Jackson. Did you ever

know prior to 1826, of an instance of a Mason re

peating to any but Misons, the oaths and obligations

its administered in the Institution ?

Лmюer. I don't recollect of any such instance.

If I had, I should have thought upon the subject.

Question by Walter Pains, jr. Do you know,

how many masons have been initiated into the ma

ll

sonic bodies to which you refer in your deposition—

and what is the charge for such degree ? if so,

please state the number anil piice ?

Answer. In answer to this queslion, I should

say generally, that I do not know. There are sonic

other facts enquired ol, tliat 1 do know. The prico

ot initiation is ";'-! dollars for UK: three first degrees,

•oи! 30 dollars for the lour succeeding degrees, nrut

SO lor the three next, making ten degrees. The

price I understand, varies in diffeieut places, .mil

has varied in Uiie town, riot lately however, not

since I have been a member.

Question by Walter Paiar,jr. Has there been a

new oath introduced into the Masonic Institution

which is now used in confering a check degree, or

pass-word since the year ISaü ?

Answer. I have alluded to nll the oaths in ma

sonry that I know of, and they hare been handed to

the committee.

Question Ini Geo. W. Jackson. Do you consider

yourself as bound by your masonic ohligattons.ordid

you ever know any mason that did consider himself

as bound to render any pecuniary or other nssist

ance to a mason giving thusign ot distress, without

inquiring how he came in such a situation?

Answer. I never did.

(This is tire close of this deposition. Mr. Bar

ker then said, " 1 give that deposition to you, Mr.

Chairman, not to go out of your hantls, at least not

to go into the hands of any .'Juiiinaeon.'")

Adjourned until ¿ past 2 o'clock, P. M.

[Alter the ccmmiltee had adjourned, Mr. Mosel

Riclinrdsnn called Mr. Simmons anide and ¿hew

Mm a paper.

The paper read as follows: " I M. Richatdsnn

of Providence, promise thai I will answer all lair

questions upon my fwnor, that may be put to mo

by the committee, but none Huit may be asked or

proposed by B. t'. Hallet!, Waller Paine, jr. John

Harris, Almy, or Jackson, Sic." (АЦ

Ant ¡masons.)]

AFTERNOON, Jan. 7. Present of the Committee,

James F. Simmons.

JOSEPH S. COORE, Grand Master, sicorn to " tell

the truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the

truth." Mr. Cooke handed a bundle of paper to the

committee as his essay upon Freemasonry. Is a

Royal and Select Master.

Queslion by John S. Harris. Was ths words,

" oi your duly to your God and country," contain

ed in the Master's assurance to you before your

initiation, used :' or only the words that the oath

would " not interfere with your polities or religion : "

.'inse>er. I do not recollect certainly.

Question by Walter Paine, jr. Do you under

stand that the penalties of Masonic oaths arc in

any way binding upon those who have taken them !

if so, in what way ?

Answer. I will refer you to Mr. Barker's depo

sition, and agree with him in what be has said upon

the nature of the penalties and obligations, [viz.

lhat they mean only expulsion, when they say noth

ing but death.]

Question by the Committee. Do yuu consider by

the principles ot the institution, that you aie to con

sider the claims of indigent brethren or the families

of sueh, when they are deceased, as having ;i claim

on your individual charities, as well as the fun Is of

the Lodge ?

Jtnsaer. Not a special cIaini^ but we should

feel bound certainly in dispensing our charities to

help a brother's widow and children sooner ими

any outers.

Question by Walter Paine, jr. Do you consider

that as a mason, you are under any obligation to

answer a masonic sign that is given you by u stran

ger or any other person that is a mason ?

Answer. l dont know how far I should bo bound

—I never had any such mads me, but if one should

be made, / ihould nsti*e it of cuurse,

act according to th* circumstancel .'



WitneH s.iye, " a ifortlui ma»on can at all times

be freely admitted into any Lodge, tu a visiter."

Mustti RICHARDSON паs called, and said before

taking the oath, lie would observe that he would

answer the thirty -fo«г questions the committee had

prepared, and twelve more which he had prepared

himself, but he would not answer any questions

iroui that side of the house, (pointing to those who

were proposing norm: questions as ¡mtim¡isons.)

The committee, Mr. Simmons, s.ml he could not

unke any new rules, and if he declined to be exam-,

hied, ho had nn power to compel nuy body to an ex-

ammation. Thuy could only swear people, and if

they refused to answer there was no power in the

committee to make them—any body might lead a

horae to water, hut it would ¡IB hard to make him

drink alter be got him there. Mr. Richardson then

gat down.

Peter Giianell, Genoral Grand Treasurer,w.tscall-

ed.and before being sworn, said, that with the under

standing that the committee had heretofore put upon

the ceremonies, ho would cheerfully he sworn, and

etate truly all ho knew about the obligations : but

having liecn entrusted with certain forms and se

cret ceremonies, that he did not think could affect

any but maxni.4, he must claim to be excusad from

answering any such questions as was calculated to

disclose them.

M r Paine said he would state what questions he

wished to have masons answer. He wished to

'know if the signs given on entering and leaving a

lodge were not designed to impress upon the minds

of the members that their penalties are te be un

dfrstood literally—and also, whether many of the

ceremonies, lectures and charges did not directly

impress ihs mind of the members with a literal ex

ecution of the penalties for divulging their secrets.

The committee, (Mr Simmons,) said the commit

tee had concluded that thry had not a RIGHT to ask

any thing about the signs or ceremonies, unless they

went to explain their obligations.

Mr. Harris. The words of the obligations Ibem-

•elvei.if communicated from one to another ofenly

as other people communicate, would not be so dan

gerous, but we consider the ceremonies and signs

very important to shew how these oath» can be

si»ed to effect other people or the public ; and the

means of secrel concert and conspiracy which they

give to Fieemasons.

Mr. Simmons said that the committee thought

differently. It would be right to ask these gentle

men if there was any sizn or ceremony in masonry

which could effect any body but masons ; or to ask

them, whether there is any thing in masonry which

would explain tho oaths, or give any other con

struction than they had already given, or whether

it had ever affected them differently from that which

had been stated.

This explanation seemed to satisfy and pacify

Mr. Richardson, and Mr. Grinneil gave way for

him to be examined.

MOSES RiCHAunsoit,

Treasurer of the Grand Encampment, swam to

" Ы1 the truth, the whole truth, and nothing but

the truth."—Presented his written discourse, which

he proposed to read himself. Mr. Simmons said he

nould bc'lter understand it if he read it himself.

Ho then read it.

Mr Richardson, in his dissertation, swore to the

whole of Preston's history of the Antiquity of Froe-

inasonry, the same as he wouM have sworn to facts

within his own knowledge. Ho also swore that

'every Major General in the army of the Revolu-

tion, except Arnold the traitor, with all those worth

ies who signed the Declaration of Independence,

except four, all the Presidents of the United States

except two,' [the Adamses] were Freemasons. He

also stfore that political Antimasons were ' anti to

every thing that is charitable, friendly, social, in

structivo, or beneficial to the community.'

He alee »wore to the following Very important

fact :—

1 1 was a member of the General Grsnd Chapter

which was in session in the city ol New York, in

September 1826, when the news was reeeired that

William Morgan had been abducted, and the lament

ed De Witt Clinton, who presided at the meeting,

immediately issued his proclamation, and offered

fifteen hundred dollars reward for the apprehension

of tho culprits, and it was published the next da;

in the newspaper, WHICH WAS THOUGHT sum-

CIENT.'

COMMENTS ON DE WITT Смнтoя.

[The fact sworn to so distinctly by Mr Richardson,

that on the 17th of Sept. 1826, the General Grand

Chapter, sitting in New York, were informed, by a

Mason, of the abduction of Morgan, is verv impor

tant. It brings home to that body a knowledge of

the outrage from the first, and a silent sanction of

the crime from the beginning. Mr. Richardson had

sometime previous, inadvertently stated.lbU fact, in

presence of three persons, in order to' show as ha

thought, how prompt De Witt Clinton and the Ma

sons were, in offering rewards to delect the kid-

napiiers. Knowing that this fact would be stated, he

anticipated it in his deposition. De Witt Clinton,

however, instead of being so prompt, was in fact

compelled to make his first proclamation, which he

didpctober 7 1826,on a petition from theWest.sign-

by so many persons, he could not disregard it. But

he effered no reward then. The. first retcasd lw

offered, was October 26, 1826, more than a month

after the deed, and the sum was three hundred ond

notffteen hundred dollars. The second reward of

fered 19th of March 1827, was $1000. Now il Moses

Richardson swears truly that Clinton, knew as a

Mason that Morgan was abdaeled, f.ve days after

the abduction, and held back from offering a re

ward as Chief Magistrate for a month after, until

pressed to it by petitions he could not resist—how

stands his relative duties as a Mason and a Gover

nor ? Even the apologist of Masons, Mr. Hazard

himself, condemns De Witt Clinton's conduct. He

says, in his report, p.71 :

• It was testified by Mr. M. Richardson, thai lie

was present in the General Grand Royal Arch

Chapter in New York, when the news of the ab

duction of Morgan was communicated in that body,

to the late Governor Clinton, who presided, and that

he, the next day, advertised a reward of $1500, for

the apprehension of Ihe culprits, which Mr. R. said

was thought sufficient. But was it sufficient? Gov.

Clinton acted as Chief Magisfiate of the Stale, not

as head ef the Masonic Chapter. The criminals

were Masons, and members of the Masonic bodies,

subordinate to the body then in session. The ciime

had been committed in the name of Masonry, fnd

as the perpetrators contended, under Masonic au

thority ; Yet it does not appear that any notice

whatever was taken of it by that body.'

Here is the delinquency of De Witt Clinton.—

Though he knew, as a Mason in Sept. 1826, of thw

crime,lie took no means,se the head of theMasons.to

detect or punish it, and was forced by petitions to

all the means he did take as a civil magistrate, to

detect the offenders. Such is the pernicious influ

ence of Masonry upon the most exalted minds.]

Question by Walter Paine, Jr.—Was the person

who brought the news of Morgan's abduction to the

city of New York, while the General Grand Chap

ter were in session, a Mason ? If so, was the news

considered official by the Chapter? and what WM

the doings in relation to the affair ?

Am. I presume he was. 1 dont say whether it

was contiderco official. I snw the young man that

brought ike news and the offer of the reward that I

have stated, and that is all I know about it.

Question by the same. Was you in tbo Masonic

tueetutg which adopted and publinhed an address of



ed. If Mr Pains knows, he can answer for him

self. In the l ist quusliun my answer oovtra ihn

completely.

Question by same. Is ihe history of Freemasonry

which yeu have цnчш in your depwili'Ui, lucrctt,

profane or Masonic history ?

.ins. I take it would be called prolane ; all histo

ry I take is profane that is not sаcreil.

Question bij George IV. Jufltsim. Have you ever

known or heard the penalties attached to the M.i-

sonic obligations, inflicted in the slightest degree

upon delinquents ? • . •

.Ins. It is an impertient question, I never knete

of any other penalties Wing inflicted than wlint is

contained in the 15ih article of the by-laws of St.

John's , and dont believe there is any one that
'

the Grand Lodge to the people of Rhode bland,

signed by Joseph S. Cooke and others ?

./sa. Yes, 1 was there at the time.

[JÍOTE —In the meeting here referred to, held in

August 1831, an address was adopted, in which it is

asserted that ' of that supposed act' [the outrage

upon William Morgan by Masons] ' we can only say

we can neither affirm nor deny, BECAUSE WE KNOW

NOTHING ABOUT IT !' And yet Mnses Kichardsnn,

who represented the Rhode l-Iand Masons, in the

General Grand Chapter, at N. York, in 1826, swears

that he saw the Masonic messenger who brought

tothat body, news of the abduction of Morgan! a

fасt he could not have concealed from his Masonic

brethren, when he ietnrned to Rhode Island. Nev

ertheless this same Moses Richardson and these Ma

sons, solemnly resolve and assert, in a meeting of

Masons, thai they know nothing about tiie supposed

outrage on Morgan ! ' Supposed act ?' yes ' sup

posed,' when in 1820 they knew he was stolen by

Masons, and when the Lockport trials which proved

his murder, had been published in the Rhode Island

American, right under their eyes! And yet these

innocent souls had got no further than ' supposed,'

in their knowledge of the violence done to Morgan.

The Cretans must have been I'reemasuna .']

Question by Samson Almy. What was the name

of the young man wiio brought the information to

the General Grand Chapter?

.ins. I do not know.

Question by do. Would you, rather than re

nounce Masonry, suffer the penalties annexed to

your obligations ?

Ans. Ves, eight times over, if it were possible.

[Хoтк.—Alter ho had finished his examination,

Mr Richardson took this answer and struck out the

words ' eight times over if it were possible,' and

inserted ' I would suffer all the punishment the

lodirc could inflict, viz. expulsion.'

Question by John S. Harris.—Was the check de

gree and test oath communicated to the Rhode Isl

and delegation in the General Grand Encampment

Of General Grand Chapter in New York, or at any

other place at that time in that State or city, to be

engrafted in Rhode Island Masonry, as n necessary

guard in consequence of the Morgan difficulties ?

.-/s.v. I should like to make two answers to that

question, and first I would answer Mr. Harris aml

tell him it is none of his business, and then I would

answer the Committee that I never heard any thing

of this in New York. •

Question by Waller Paine, jr. Are there any

ceremonies in the Institution »I Freemasonry which

refer to, or in any manner explain the oaths ? if so,

what sre those ceremonies?

Mi: Simmons refused to put this question, and

asked iyitness, Is there any thing in Freemasonry

that is designed to give a diffurent construction to

the obligations, than you have given, and if so, has

it ever had its effect to give to them a different con-

•truction by you ?

Ans. No, I luve no knowledge of any suchthing.

Question by Gtorge W. Jackson. Would net the

Masons who were concerned in the abductioti and --- „

rauider of William Morgan of New York, and who | men were my life and propendio be the forjeit-

have not as yet been expelled from the Masonic uгe." [ОГ course, then, this witness would never

Institution, be received in full communion by the

does ; and that is explanation enough.

yet he swears ihat he knew in 1826, that Morgan

was kidnapped by Masons for violating his o.idn: ] %

Question by Samson Almy. What is the'object of

the naths and obligations taken by Musons ?

.4ns. I have already answered this question—

when I said, what construction I put upon my obli

gations.

Question by John S. Harris. Where did you get

the information, that all the signers of the Declar

ation of Independence except four, and nil the Ma

jor Generals of the Revolution except Benedict Ai-

ui'U were Masons— nnd also, which two of tria

Presidents were not Masons ? i

.'?s.». I shall answer and say to the gentleman, it

is none of your business. (The Committeesaid, that

answer would not do ) Well, 1 nave got history for

it, and if any gentleman wishes to se- it, 1 will

show it to him. [Mr. Richardson has never pro

duced the history.]

CHRISTIAN M. NESTEI.L,

As a citizen, is a chair painter. As a Mason, he

holds the following among other titles. Grand Ke-

corder, Super-Excellent Mauler, High Priest, Ko-

man Eagle, Knight of Jericho, Knight of tho

Mediterranean Pass, and THREE KINGS !

Mr. Nestelt, being called, said, / icisli to be dis-

tim-.ihj umlerstood, Mr. Chairman, tlmt the obligation

you art about to administer, cannot finnpel me to di-

rulge iu the least degree, the secret principles and

ceremonies of Frcesnаsonry.

Mr. Simmons asked Mr. N. if he had heard what

had bocn said on that subject to other gentlemen

who had been examined.

Mr. Nestell said he had, and wuh that under

standing had no objection to being sworn.

He was then sworn "to tell the truth, the whole

truth, and nothing but the truth," and produced his

written essay on "Freemasonry.'

In this essay, he swear?, among other things,

"The internal secret forms und ceremonies attached

to each degree, 1 view аs a species of private prop

erty, which I have justly and lawfully purchased,

"" So has the counteileiler lawfully purchased.

and which Inner will consuit to yield vp

to any man or body of men, who ars not as justly

and lawlully entitled to the same ne I am myself.

[ICfSu

his dins]

lodges in this State ?

A«s. If we know them to be the murderers of

William Morgan, instead -of receiving them into

communion, we would seize them and carry them

to the proper placo for trial ; or if we knew them

to have had any concern in it, we would do the

samo. I would, and presume all good Masons

would.

Question by 1Futter Paine, jr. Should Eli Bruce,

James Gauson, Burrage Smith and Loton 1,-avson

apply to your lodge and give 'the requisite signs,

should you admit them ?

3ns. 1 dent know any tiiing about the men, аaа

of course dont know whether Ihey were concern-

dbclnso these secrots, under any requirement of :s

court of law, and yet he too affirms thnt he holds his

civil obligations paramount to his Masonic obligi-

tioim ! This witness also asserts that he has dnnlits

whether any outrage has been committed on Wm.

Morgan.]

Question by Walter Paine, jr. Hnve you iutt

visited tint lodges in this Siate since the year 18aS

to give the check word or test oath ?

.'Ins. I was appointed GRAND LECTURER for

two years successively, And during that lime 1 siu

ited the lodges several times. The information

which it was my duly to communicate in lecture?

to the lodges were the svrrets of Masonry—end it

being the secrets and ceremonies, I cannot note f



rulgf them. [ТЫч man had sworn to tell the whole

.trutli.]

Question by same. Do you know where the check

decree originated, and fur what purpose it was

formed, and when it was received in this State, and

by whom ? if so, pienso state it.

.ans. I ilont know any thing about that degree—

the check degree.

Questiun Itij same. Do you know of a ch*>rk

word, lust outli, or any thin;; instituted in the Ma

sonic Institution since the year 1826,or any addition

of any kind since that yew?

Ans. IVe hure a great many different locks on our

ditnrs, but I ttont fffl st rrnj drtty to state what tkcy

are, or to tet others know how to open them.

[Afterwards Mr. Neslcll asked liberty of the

Committee to strike out the word different in his last

answer, which was done.]

PETER GRINHELL,

I? the General Grand Treasurer of the General

Grand Royal Arch Chapter.

Mr. Grinnell was called and sworn to "tell the

truth, the whole truth, and nothing- but the truth."

On briny asked il he had his deposition written

out, he на! I he had began one, but had not finished

it—he could add nothing, however, to what had

been told by those who preceded him, Mr. Wilkin

son nud others. What he liad written was then

handed to the Committee as evidence.

Question by John S. Harris. Did you ever your-

•elve as presiding officer ola lodge, or have you

known others in that capacity, to inform the candi-

(I ni' when initiated, what was the oath he was about

to talis or the substance of such oath, previous to

his Inking it?

A/is. Л'o, the oath iras never repented before his

inlt'inlion.—he was assured that it would not inter-

lure with his polities or religion.

JOHN WILDER,

Of Providence, Innkeeper, sworn "to tell the

truth, the whole truth and nothing but tho truth,"

said he hits no deposition written out—has taken

sixteen or eighteen degrees.

Question by Iitgh Prsest, Barzilla-i Cranston.

Will you give your views ol the Masonic Institution

and ol the obligations.'

Aa.s. 1 will. My own opinion of the institution is,

tliat it is the best moral institution ander heaven— I

should not call it second to none except the chiistian

religion—I would willingly subscribe to the testi-

inony of those who have gone befoie me, as it re

pp^cts the obligations.

LUTHER WOODWARD,

Of North Providence, Iron master, »worn.

Has taken twelve regular degrees up to the or

der of St John, [being here prompted by the breth

ren bs suid up to the degree of Knight Templars

inclusive.] Hu swears to the same statements as

preceding witnesses.

(¿ufftion by Jnlin S. Harris. Do you Know any

.individual Mason in this State or any whete, that

subscribed money to cany on the election in Bris

tol district in Massachusetts, in favor of Mr.

Hodges ?

Answer. 1 do not.

[NUTE. Here Mr. Moses Richardson asked Mr.

Simmons, if he did not want to rest a lew moments.

Ho wanted to ask Mr. Harris one question, as we

heard a ¡¡o«"l deal about bloody shirts &c. and as Mr.

VVilkiufOn and Mr. Paine seemed to be gone he

would ask Mr. Harris the question.

Says Mr. R.wc have read some number of years ago

cf one John Rogers who was burnt at the stake, and

bi< wife ai d nine childien, one at tlie breast, follow

ed him. Now he would ask Mr. Harris how many

the re was in the whole, being one at the breast,

n'mn or ten?

This dignified aml grave interlude created some

laughter at the time Irom the members of the 'best

moral institution that ever c.xistcd under heaven.']

Questinn !,y John S Harris. Do you consider

that the oaths and obligations improve the merais? or

what part of masonry is it ?

Answer. The general principles of masonry, ta

ken collectively аs it is practised.

[Mr. Richardson, by Mr. Simmons' consent,

took his deposition and the questions and answers

home to compite, and return on Monday following!]

Mr. Simmuns here adjourned without aay.

О" NOTE.

MASONRÏ- USED FOR SMUGGLING.—The deposi

tion of U.i'i.'initn Munro, [s'.'o p. 77,] his excited

some inquiry in the minds of many, hitherto indif

ferent to the influence of Freemasonry upon soci

ety.

It must be obvious to every one who exnminod

the contrivance of Masonic oaths and secrecy, that

it would be impossible to devise a more ingenious

system than this for carrying on smuggling, or any

other violation of the laws, requiring secrecy and

caution, and certain mysterious obligations ar.d pen

alties, to bind together rogues and desperadoes,

who could have nothing else to pledge each other to

mutual fidelity in crime. Hence it is that frater

nities of thieves, robbers, pirates and desperadoes,

are always found bound together by mysterious

oaths and penalties. Honest men need no such

pledges from each other, in all lawful enterprises. ~

There have unquestionably been innumerable vi

olationi of the revenue laws, through the influence

of Masonic oaths and secrecy, which the ingenious

contrivances pougessed by Masons will forever eon-

r.i'.il from the world. A person detected in smug

gling was asked how ho had contrived to evade tho

laws so long, when so many persons must have

been engaged in assisting him ? He replied that

he employed none but Freemasons !

The deposition of На teman Munro justifies us in

believing, that if a man of acknowledged good char

acter, as he is, would use his Masonry to violate the

laws of other countries, there are not wanting very

¡¡•mut Masons, who would not hesitate to make a

profit¡ through their Masonsy, at the expense of the

revenue of their own country ; and hence it is that

we lind Freemason« generally so loth to give up an

institution through which they have been enabled

to derive so many unfair advantages over the rest

of mankind

The character ofBateman Munro, and his motive

in giving his deposition, will appear from the follow

ing certificate.

NEWPORT, March 25, 1832.

I'.aieina» Munro il a very respectable man ; an old

sea capiaiu, fur many years in the employ of James D.

U ni:'. !•;•,.l. of Bristol, and wan in hie employ at Ihs lime

testified to hy him in his deposition. This deposition

was given under a sincero impression that he was doing

the Masonic cause good service, and the most elevate"

sense of the excellence and value of the Masonic Insti

tution, and he has since expressed the same opinion ¡«

public, when I was present and several others, who will

testify to the fact. Ife is now tho proprietor of the

Tum'piko Estue, at the north end'of this island, and the

same man who was rejected as a juror, on Masonic

grounds, by the Court of Common Pleas for this county.

GEORGE TURNER.

It is believed that some strong light was thrown

upon the means resorted toby Masons to evade the

revenue, in a deposition, which Mr. Hazard took



.' uаtflij, and amfeatfd, and supfirfxsfd, te that no

one has been able to ascertain where it is, or what

sre ils contents ! Enough transpired however, to

induce a belief that they related to Masonic. smug

gling. The Deponent was a Mr. Penniman, of

New Bedford, then in Newport, who hail been na

med to Mr. Hazard, as a witness, by Dr. Case, a

seceding Mason. Instead, however, of examining

this witness in a public manner, Mr. Hazard, (who

appeared to hare anticipated fhatthe facts-he might

• r lost• must be suppressed, or they would put it

out of even At'* power to justify Masonry) took the

deposition of Mr. Penniman, one evening alone nt the

Tavern of Nichols Hassard, in Newport. For this

purpose hf took the icitnfss into a back room, by HIM

SELF, without giving notice to any person of his inten

tion to take the deposition, and no person was present,

but Д1г. В. Hazard and the witness ! The deposition,

or whatever Mr. Hazard drew from the witness, in

this mysterious interview, wus never shewn to any

person, not in the Masonic sccrcfs, and it has been

entirely suppressed in Mr. Hazard's report, lie bar

ing paid no attention to repealed с ills by individ

uals and in the newspapers, to explain this extraord

inary conduct, in the Chairman of a Legislativa

Committee ! The public must draw the inference.

CONCLUIIINQ NoTE.

The above is a laitlilul narrative of the extraor

dinary and important investigation it detail*. Tho

report MÍ Mr. Hazard, on one part, and of Mr.

Sprague Jr. on the other, went drawn from these

facts. Mr. Hazard attempted to justify, but closed

with condemning Freemasonry, and Mr. Sprague in

his minority report, fully explained the dangerous

tendency and principles of the Institution. That re

port is more than sustained by the facts above re

corded, drawn from the testimony under the

civil oath of more than one hundred persons , a

majority of them adhering Musons.

The principal Reporter of this Investigation hue

only to add, that il any ot the material facts herein

stated, aie called in question, by any man or body

ol men, he is fully prepared lo substantiate them in,

any I or m calculated "to establish truth and expos«

imposition." BENJAMIN F. HALLÏTT.
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[Of tlu. principal matter, alphabetically arranged. By turning to the pages under each

bead, the reader will find the evidence upon that particular point.]

Act of Assembly, 5

Agreement of Committee with Ma

sons to conceal their secrets. a.

48, 49, 73

— to prepare and arrange their de

positions, 50, 73. 77

— between Mr. Simmons and M.

Richardson, 20, 81 , (j2, 8

— between Mr. Hazard and New

port Masons,

Mr. Sprague dissents from the bar

gain, 48, 59

Leaves his seat, 58, 59

Allyn's Ritual, admitted to be cor

rect, 57

Altering answers of witnesses, 83

Burning Bush, 12, 55

By Laws, 44

Bargain between three of the Com

mittee and Masons, 48, 49

Bible and holy writings, 20

Bateman Munro's case, 76, 84

COMMENTS by the Reporter, viz :

On Lectures, 1Í

— Mr. Hazard's conduct, 23,27,76

— aid to Morgan conspirators, 27

— oaths not secrets, 27

— explanation of Oaths, 3b

— Grand Master Anthony, 32

— refusal to put questions, 36

— declining to testify, 3£

— Masonic preferences,

— contradiction of witnesses, 43

— antiquity of Masonry, 45,64

— subordination of Lodges,

—• protecting Masons from dis

closing, 48

— connexion between Lodge

Chapter, 50, 8Г,

— Masonic prevarication, 51

— espouse cause of Royal Arch,

and keep his secrets, 51

— expenses of Lodges, and Com

mittee, publishing letters and

notes of Masons, not sworn

to, 52

D* [Mr. Hazard declined publish

ing affidavits againstMasonry,of

Taber Gory,Philip Chaee,Philir

Peck, and Jarvis F. Hanks, all

sworn to, because they ;i were

taken without our direction !"

See his Report, p. 57.]

On Refusal to exhibit records of

Lodges,

— omissions in written oaths,

— oatln considered secrets, 03

— refusal to explain expenses, 5;i

— denial of burning Bush,

— justifying murder, 5C

— Mr. Hazard's position that Ma

sonry must be good if its mem

bers swear it is, 57

— attempt to charge Mr-Sprague

with falsehood, 5П

— cross swearing of Masonic wit

nesses, 57

— Clergymen justifying mur

der ' ' ' 60

— excluding revelation, 62

— questioning religious opinions 63

— fifth libation, 65

— charge of murder in Rhode

Island, 65

— Past Grand Master's violation

of civil oath, 71,72

— contradiction of himself, 73

— bargains and secret concert with

Masons by Committee, 73, 74

— conclusion of examination at

Providence, 74

— cross swearing of Mr. Boss, 7G

— use of Masonry for smug

gling, 1 "i

Charges at initiation, 8, 9, 61

Check degree, 7, 35, 48, 06, 57, 60.

75, 81, 83, 84.

Criminality of oaths, 4,44

'rime (civil) no cause of expul

sion or exclusion from Masonic

fellowship, 44,47,54,82

and Communication between Masonic

bodies, 46, 47

Contradictions of Masonic testimo

ny, 43, 51, 55, 57, 72, 73, 75,

76, 77, 83

CHARiTY,26,38, 43, 50, 52,53,80,81

Cable tow, . 64

Consistory, 78, 79

D

DEISM, the Saviour and revela

tion rejected, 18. 20, (-4

Danger of seceding, 21, b7

4CC

Depositions of

Taber Cory,

Israel Chace,

Pliny Merrick,
• Jarvis F. Hanks,

Ч Diploma of 28th Degree,

Disappearance of Masons in Rhode

Island, 65, 7Û

Dewitt Clinton, 82

К
ExpuIsion, never in the • .il»,'we

oaths, .

— always communicated all over

the Union. 54

— Morgan conspirators never es-

pelled or censured, 54, t,4

Eirnminaiion, first at Providence,

1,74.

— second at do. 80

— at Newport, 75

G

Grand Hailing Sign, 33, 38, 39,

43, 64.

II

Hiram Abiff, killing him, 9,22, 71

HAZARD, Mr. admits Allyn is cor

rect, 57

— restricts asking questions. 59

— rejects questions, see refusal.

— his abuse of witnesses, 18, 19,

23.31,32,44.56,58,69.

— " nasty curiosity," 58, 59

— "Antimasonic vermin," 31

— justifies concealing secrete,

4S, 57.

— avowed hostility to Mr. Thach-

er, 15

— unfair attempt to falsify memo

rial, 54

— dictating to witnesses, 56, 72

— his moo!e of ii allaying excite

ment," 58, 70

— retorts upon him, 31, 59

— his anility, 64

— questioning religious opinions

contrary to bill of Rights, and a

law made by himself, 33

— favor to Masons, 23

— refusal to summon grsnd of

ficers when Morgan wa» abduct

ed, 35



INDEX.

— to inquire into oathe of higher

degrees, 50

— suppressing a Deposition taken

in secret, 85

I

Introduction, 3

Interference by Committee with

religious beliefof witnesses, 15,

18, 62.

Jews Masters of Lodges, Judge

Child's certificate, 77

oxplana-

) of 22.

Loiter of suggestions to Commit

tee, 4

Lodge, open during investiga

tion, £

Lectures, their nature, 19, 35

Lodge in a Senate Chamber, 3l:

M

Murder and treason cxcepted, in

cludes all other crimes, 44, 67

Murder and treason not excepted

24, 26.

MASONRY ;—its origin, 45, 64

39, 47, 62, 83.

— its power over the General As

sembly, 7£

— its veracity , 46, 72, 73, 76, 77, 83

— its Head, 4"

— the same in different States аш

Countries, 23, 25, 57, 46, 76, 79

— most republican government, 47

Murder of Morgan, known to grane

Lodge, &c. 26, 32, 47, 82

— denied by a Mason, 76

— justified by Masons, viz.

— by Rev. Mr. Greene, 21, 3-

— " Rev Lemuel Burge, &

— other Masons, 23, 30, 31, 32, 33

47, 50, 55, 56, 59, 60, 71, 73, 79

— Author of Jachin and Boaz, 31

Morgan's Book called for in

Lodge, 3:

H

Notices by Committee, 3, 74, 80, К

О

OATHS—Indictable,

— discussed in Lodge, 11

— explanation before taking, 39

45, 61.

— nature of, 12, 1'

— Entered Apprentice, 6, 2c

— Fellow Craft, 6, 2e

— Master Mason, 6, 28, 35, 3IT, 43

50,73.

— Royal Arch, 7, 41 , 43, 5C

— Mark Master, 40, 4Г

— Past Master, 40, 4:

— Most Excellent, 40, 4:

FIFTH LIBATION.—Drinking wim

from a skull,—p. 35, 49, 65, 71

75. 81.

— Mediterranean Pass, 7

— Knight of the Red Cross, 4

— Knight Templar, 4

— Select Master, - 4:

— Royal Master, 4

— manneroftaking oaths, 17,6

— not secrets 39, 49,8

— refusal to disclose them, 78, 7

— Corqmittee refuse to question o

high oaths, 70, 7

— variations in oaths, 4

— inconsistent with civil duties

45, 48.

— stronger than civH oaths, 50, G8.

71, 72¡ 75,70,78, 79,80, 81,62,83

— form of, prepared by Masons, 53

— explanation and construction cf

43, 53, 67, 68. 72, 75, 81.

P

ESALTIES. — Masonic

tions and constructions

— 23,' 30.

— Knight Templar's penalty, 44

— how understood, 44, 4Й, 61, 69.

72.

— would suffer them sooner than

reveal, 50, 82, 83

— never explained except to mean

death, 35, 36, 37, 54, 81, 82, 84

— preferences of Masons for each

other, 22, 23. 37, 38, 65, 80

— preference of Masonic credi

tors,
Drice of Degrees,

^residents, Masons,

QUESTIONS.—Refusal to put them

by Messrs. Hazard, Simmons

and Haile, pages 7, 9, 31, 34, 35.

36, 38, 42, 43, 44, 54, 56, 58, 61 ¡

64, 65, 66, 67, 70, 71, 73, 77,82

83

— verbal, put by a Mason, 16, 82

R

— Religion and Masonry, 39, 61 .

62.

— right or wrong, to espouse a

Mason's cause, 24,20, 43, 45, 50

— refusal of Masonic witnesses to

obey civil oath, 48, 49, 52, 54,

57, 58, 63, 64, 65, 71, 72, 76, 78,

79,80,81,83.

— refusal to disclose the oaths, 78

79, 81.

— refusal to be sworn, 80

— to show expenses ofLodges, 52,

53, 80.

— Royal Arch cypher, 31

— rejecting Masonic juror, 76

S

— Mr. Sayles and Thacher, 70, 14

— suppression and alteration of

answers of witnesses, by Mr

Haile, Scribe,in thirteen instan

ces, 15, 44, 46, 47, 48, 50, 53, 62.

69, 71, 72, 73, 77.

SECRETS, keeping them, 44, 41

— ofRoyal Arch, 49,50,56, 6l, 63.

67, 68, 75.

— danger of, in Courts, &c. 48,63

72, 76.

— what are secrets, 55, 78, 79

81, 82.

Signs on entering a Lodge, 48, 64

— explaining them, and secrets

37, 38, 81, 82.

Smuggling, Masonic 77, 84, 85

U

Union degree, SI

W

Worthy Masons, so long as not

expelled, ч 44, 47, 54, 64

WiTNESSF.s,at Providence.

Anthony, Burrington 68

Allen, Phillip 68

Ballou, Willard 31

Brown, John 36

Brown, Lewis C. 65

Brown, Jessee 66

Cranston, Barzillai . 60

Chase, Levi, Rev. 17

Greene, Samuel 55

Gardner, John 59

Greene, Daniel, Rev. 64

Hall, John 60

Kent, John A. 59

Lord, Henry 73

Merry, Barney 73

Potter, Ray, Rev. 69

Potter, Anson 27

Prentice, John • 60

Phelps, Barney 31

Packard, Oran 32

Russell, William 57

Searle, Charles 68

Sayles, Caleb 69

Thacher, Moses, Rev. 6, 16

Treadwell, Thomas 68

Wilkinson, William 39

Wilkinson, Abraham 32

Whiting, Nathan 35

Warner, Benajah 67

Young, Samuel 68

Mr. Thacher and Sayles, 14, 70

VIr. T. compelled to sign Mr

Haile 's minutes, 16

Abuse of Mr. T. by Masons 17

Testimony of Newport Masons

concerted in the lodge, 77

Titles of Masons, viz.

il Sovereign Prince," a bar-keep-

. er, 79

" Most Eminent Grand Command

er," a tailor, 8t

Three Kings," a chair painter, 83

Second examination at Providence

Barker, William C. 80

Cooke, Joseph S. 81

Richardson, Moses 82

Grinnell, Peter 84

Nestell, Christian M. 83

Wilder, John 84

Woodward, Luther 84

Total, 37.

WITNESSES, at Newport.

Almy, Peleg 80

Bliss, Jeremiah 79

Boss, Nichols G. 75, 78

Brown, John 79

Clark, Peleg 77

Cahoone, Stephen 77, 78

Coggeshall, William 7»

Casi, B. W 79

Coggëshall, David 7!»

Cranston, Henry Y. 80

Deblois, Stephen 79

Gardner, James R. 77

Howland, George 79

Hudson, Henry 77

Hassard, Nishol» " '

Munro, Bateman ! 17

M'Gregor, Alexander 79

Northam, S. T. 77

Potter, Jeremiah N. 77

Peckham, Samuel S. 79

Robinson, S. A. 77

Stanhope, J. R. 78

Stall, Isaac 78

Tuell, James M. 79

Vass, William ~¡

Whitehorn, John G. 77

Total, 26.

Witnesses—difference between

swearing and examinations of

Masons and others, 50, 56,69, 61,

63, 67, 73, 74, 83, 84
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